
 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please contact the  

Village Clerk’s Office, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 

 

 

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 – 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 

March 18, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 

4. Minutes of Meeting – February 18, 2019 
 

5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 

from the public on items not on the agenda; however, no discussion is allowed and no action will be taken 
under citizen comments.) 

 
6. Administrator’s Report 

 
7. New Business 

 
A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #19-07 a Zoning 

Text Amendment to Section 420-125.2 L (4) of the Municipal Code as it relates to dock 
doors. 

B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #19-06 a 
Comprehensive Plan amendment relating to the Whittier Creek Neighborhood Plan, 
located north of 93rd Street and east of Old Green Bay Road.  

C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Conceptual Plan for the 
properties north of the Creekside Crossing development and adjacent vacant 
properties to the west of The Vista at Creekside development. 

D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Certified Survey Map, 
Easement Vacation and Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding relating to 
the vacant property east of 9201 Wilmot Road. 

E. Consider and approve Resolution #19-05 for 47th Avenue Water Main and Sanitary 
Sewer Extension. 

F. Consider and approve 2019-2020 Liability and Property Insurance proposals. 

G. Consider and approve Letter of Credit Reduction No. 1 for The Cottages at Village 
Green, LLC – Phase 2. 

H. Consider disallowance of claim submitted by Kenneth Kataja for damage to his vehicle 
that occurred near Highway H and Highway C on March 1, 2019.  

I. Consider disallowance of claim submitted by Doug Anderson for damage to his vehicle 
by a snow plow truck on January 28, 2019.  



Village Board Agenda 
March 18, 2019 

 
 

2 

 

J. Discuss and consider New RecPlex Membership Levels.  

8. Village Board Comments 
 

9. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to §19.85(1)(e) Wis. Stats., to discuss, deliberate or 
negotiate the purchase of public property, invest of public funds, or conduct other specified 
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. 
 

10. Return to Open Session and Adjournment 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 
February 18, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 
 
 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on February 18, 2019.  Meeting 
called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, Mike 
Pollocoff, Dave Klimisch and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Nathan Thiel, Village Administrator; Jean 
Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Smetana, 
Police Chief; Craig Roepke, Chief of Fire & Rescue; Rocco Vita, Village Assessor; Matt Fineour, Village 
Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, Human Resources Director; Dan 
Honore', IT Director; Sandro Perez, Inspection Superintendent; Craig Anderson, Recreation Director and 
Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk.  14 citizens attended the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. RECOGNITION 
 
 A. Present Pleasant Prairie Police Department Recognition to Detective Andrea Brey 

to commemorate her period of service to the Pleasant Prairie Honor Guard. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 

Good evening, Mr. President and members of the Board.  The item before you tonight is 
submitted as recognition for Detective Andrea Brey.  Detective Brey has served for eight years on 
the Pleasant Prairie Police Department’s Honor Guard Team.  And to go into greater detail on 
that honor and her service I’m going to invite the team leader, Lieutenant Paul Marik to the 
podium. 

 
Paul Marik: 
 

Good evening, everyone.  I understand your time is valuable and I promise I’ll be brief, and I 
thank you for spending some of it with us.  To the Village Board, Village department heads and 
members of the audience I come before you this evening to hereby announce the retirement of 
Detective Andrea Brey, Unit 171, from the Pleasant Prairie Police Department Ceremonial Honor 
Guard where she has served with distinction and merit for eight years.  The job of the Honor 
Guard is not an easy one.  We’re more than pretty uniforms.  Every movement is choreographed, 
every step, every turn, every count must be flawless.  Try standing in one spot for more than four 
hours in order to look like a marble statue and tell me that that’s not difficult.  And for those of 
you that would say no I have a chiropractor that would tell you otherwise. 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
2 

 
It’s not by happenstance that when Milwaukee loses one of their own the Pleasant Prairie Police 
Department Honor Guard is one of the Honor Guards in Wisconsin that’s called up to assist.  And 
that’s because of these men and women you see in front of you.  We’re the living embodiment of 
what it means to carry the shield, and we have a duty and privilege to represent our police 
department in moments of great joy, and of course, in great sorrow.  The emotional toll it takes on 
our members is also worth mentioning.  After every law enforcement funeral for a fallen officer I 
can guarantee you that these men and women sleep as though they just ran a marathon, and 
emotionally they have. 

 
When a member of this team retires their white gloves the team is absent a critical member, and 
thus the retiree receives their boat paddle.  This is a traditional that was started in the military, and 
the philosophy is still embraced by the Navy Seals and Recon Marines and Pleasant Prairie Police 
Department.  It’s a metaphor for teamwork.  The rowing team has to be in sync in with one 
another to make the boat as fast and effective as possible.  If just one person is not rowing in time 
with others it throws the entire compass heading off.  If a person is missing it throw off the entire 
balance of the boat.  In that boat every person is an equal, every person is important, every person 
has a direct influence on the mission, and every missing oarsman is felt. 

 
Andrea, members of the Honor Guard, can I have you come up please?  You can see how pretty 
they look, and my uniform is older.  They got the new ones.  Mine’s still on the way.  Andrea we 
thank you for all you’ve done for us and with us on our journey together.  Your paddle has been 
crafted by the officers of this department and members of the community.  The handle is wrapped 
in Village colors representing the call you received for your community.  The path has been 
seared into the paddle to represent the authority by which you serve.  Your badge number is 
engraved at the top to represent how you alone had a direct effect on our mission.  The challenge 
coins at the bottom represent a job well done and a reminder to continue to answer the call.  On 
behalf of the Pleasant Prairie Police Ceremonial Honor Guard it’s with deep reverence that I 
would like to now present Detective Andrea Brey with her paddle.  Thank you, ladies and 
gentlemen. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you.  Chief, I want to thank all of your folks for the honor, pride and distinction you serve 
our community with.  I’ve been to many events where you’ve been there and presented 
yourselves there, and I’ve also been honored to be from Pleasant Prairie and see what you folks 
do.  It’s not an easy location most of the places you’re at.  And you guys do a great job.  Thank 
you. 

 
 B. Present Resolution #19-03 of Appreciation and Recognition to Walter Graeber for 

His Years of Service to the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

Village President and Village Board, we have the fortune of having Walter and his wife Roxanne 
here this evening.  And I’ll invite them to come up to the stand here in the next little bit.  But for 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
3 

the benefit of the crowd we wanted to read this resolution.  So Resolution #19-03, Resolution of 
Appreciation and Recognition to Walter F. Graeber for his years of service to the Village of 
Pleasant Prairie. 

 
Whereas, Walter retire on February 27, 2019, after twenty-three years of outstanding service and 
commitment to the Village of Pleasant Prairie; and whereas, Walter began his career with the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie on December 4, 1995 in the Office of Assessment Administration; and 
whereas, throughout his 23 years of service, Walter has served the Village with the highest degree 
of integrity in his role as Senior Appraiser within the Office of Assessment Administration; and 
whereas, Walter has demonstrated great devotion to his work by mastering the methods of 
property appraisal and resolving complex valuation issues for all property types; and whereas, 
Walter has applied his knowledge and expertise of real estate analysis and valuation to the benefit 
of all property owners. 

 
And whereas, Walter worked tirelessly for the Village and all residents of our Assessment 
Consortium, providing the highest level of professional service; and whereas, Walter has 
honorably served all communities of our Assessment Consortium as an objective, unbiased, and 
credible resource of real estate information for residents and local officials of each of the 
municipalities within his sphere of responsibility; and whereas, Walter’s unfailing integrity and 
credibility earned him tremendous respect with residents and municipal officials of our 
Assessment Consortium and officials of the Wisconsin Department of Revenue; and whereas, the 
Village would like to acknowledge and sincerely thank Walter for his tireless dedication and 
commend him for the tremendous amount of knowledge and expertise he bestowed upon the 
community. 

 
Now, therefore be it resolved that the Village of Pleasant Prairie hereby extends to Walter F. 
Graeber our sincere respect and appreciation for his service to the Village, our congratulations to 
his well-earned retirement, and best wishes to his for continued success, happiness, and good 
health in the years to come. Considered and adopted this 18th day of February, 2019.  Now I’m 
going to invite Walt to come up if he wants to say anything and Roxanne.  I will tell you that this 
was the clean version of the resolution.  We were trying to get the assessment staff to come up 
with any dirty stories they could, but they were pretty fair to Walt. 

 
But I want to say that I have been so impressed with the staff, and Walt is the epitome of the 
professionalism that is within our personnel.  And I just have been grateful for the opportunity to 
work with Walt.  And he has always been friendly, he has always been respectful, he has always 
been just positive and came with an attitude of appreciation for the opportunity to serve the 
public.  And so I want to thank him on behalf of the Village. 

 
Walter Graeber: 
 

Thank you for the 23 years.  It’s been a pleasure, and I’m blessed to have worked with everybody 
here.  Twenty three years goes by quickly for those of you who are a little ways from retiring yet.  
But I’ve been with Rocco since the county in 1984, and we’ve been together for almost 35 years 
now.  And Rocco has -- as far as our office goes I think we are the best in the state thanks to you.  
You’ve created quite an entity here.  And to reflect what is in the resolution and the recognition I 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
4 

just reflect what this entire Village has done over the last 23 years that I’ve been here with Mike 
Pollocoff, Mr. Steinbrink, all of the department heads, everyone, all the staff we show respect to 
the people of the Village that we serve, and we’re accountable to them as well.  And those are just 
two of the main themes that run through this entire Village.  So thank you very much. 

 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

Rocco, why don’t you come up for a picture as well. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Congratulations, Walt. 
 

Walter Graeber: 
 

Thank you. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Oftentimes people say that the assessors don’t get the love they deserve.  I’m amazed to see how 
many fellow citizens have turned out for your retirement here tonight. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I’d just like to say when Kenosha County jettisoned property assessing away from the county and 
the municipalities had to pick it up, Pleasant Prairie had created a consortium of Pleasant Prairie 
and four other communities to be together.  And we were fortunate enough between us and the 
city we selected the best staff available.  And what Walt and Ed and Rocco and the people that 
have come and gone in the intervening period they’ve worked really hard to make sure that 
property tax assessments here were as fair as could be, as equitable as could be, and they worked 
diligently to do that with everybody and getting as much input as they could from property 
owners when they received their notices or whatever. 

 
Walt was a standup guy.  He spent a lot of time out west when they were doing revals there, and 
he was spending time here when we did it here.  And we were lucky to have him just like we 
were lucky to have the other guys.  So when I look back when Kenosha County left assessing and 
left it to the communities I think that was one of the best things to happen in Pleasant Prairie.  We 
brought an important function back to the Village.  But more importantly we brought really good 
people into that department when that Village assessing department was created.  Walt, you were 
definitely a key part of it so thank you very much. 

 
5. MINUTES OF MEETING - FEBRUARY 4, 2019 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

Move approval of the minutes. 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
5 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Any additions, corrections?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  So carries. 
 

KLIMISCH MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE VILLAGE BOARD 
REGULAR MEETINGS OF FEBRUARY 4, 2019 AS PRESENTED IN ITS WRITTEN FORM; 
SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 
6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

And please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received from the 
public on items not on the agenda; however, no discussion is allowed and no action will be taken 
under citizens’ comments.  Jane, we had a signup sheet? 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

Mr. President, we have 14 signups this evening.  And with that we’ll keep them to a three minute 
time restriction.  Our first one is Lucy Torres. 

 
Lucy Torres: 
 

Good evening.  My name is Lucy Torres, and I live on 60th Avenue.  And I’m here to ask the 
Board to reject the Conceptual Plan for apartments being built near me.  My husband and I 
received a letter from the Village outlining that proposed single family homes were going up on 
our street, eventually on our road with the values being at $400,000.  $400,000 doesn’t go with 
the word Workforce Housing apartment.  It just doesn’t.  I don’t know anyone who will spend 
that kind of money with that many apartments near them. 

 
My husband and I moved to Pleasant Prairie for a good, overall quality of life and to invest in 
property that would increase in value.  And I do not believe that will happen with this project.  If 
Mr. Mills is here today, I don’t know if he is, I understand that he lives near many acres in a 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
6 

development called The Reserve.  I think that he should lead by example, and if what he is saying 
is true and that this project and these apartments will have no crime, no loss in property value, 
then he should lead by example in this community and put them in his backyard.  If what he is 
saying is true, then he should have no issue putting them in his backyard.  He has the means, he 
has the way, and he knows how to do it.  He got us here today talking to you all about it.  Show 
the community, Mr. Mills, that you back what you say and lead by example.  Put this 
development in your backyard.  Let’s see what happens to your property value.  So as to the 
Board I ask you respectfully that you not approve this Conceptual Plan or that you remove that 
many apartments off it.  Thank you. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you. 
 
Howard Cooley: 
 

I’m Howard Cooley from 8731 Lakeshore Drive.  I’m in my 40th year as a homeowner in 
Pleasant Prairie.  I’ve been here, been fortunate enough to witness the miracle that has taken place 
in Pleasant Prairie over the last 30 years.  But I’m really here specifically tonight to say how 
much I appreciate the way the decision were made to develop the environmental park plan in 
Carol Beach.  This is an example of how this highly professional government listens to both sides 
of every story.  How they go outside to get third party consultants.  It never satisfies everyone, I 
liked the first plan myself before the changes, but we’re not all satisfied but we think the decision 
was made very well, very professionally.  And I’d just like to say I thank you for continuing to 
provide a Village that’s the best place this 84 year old has ever lived. 
 
If I may I’d like to introduce Rosalie Villano who is the Chairman of the Carol Beach 
Homeowner’s Association that had many, many discussions with people from the Village about 
how this plan was done and how it was going to be and the wonderful compromises that were 
made.  Rosalie also is helping out with the Pleasant Prairie Police Appreciation Association.  
Rosalie? 

 
Rosalie Villano: 
 

Hello.  To the Village President and the Village Board my name is Rosalie Villano.  I live at 8630 
Lakeshore Drive.  And I am the President of the Carol Beach Homeowner’s Association.  I fell in 
love with Carol Beach a lot because of the beach which is a treasure worth preserving.  Many 
other local communities have developed their beachfronts.  But we have such a beautiful, lovely, 
skinny, long beach in its beautiful, natural form it makes it very special. 

 
Since we moved to Carol Beach five years ago, the amount of erosion to the beach has been 
dramatic and significant.  Back in the ‘80s I want to thank Mike Pollocoff, John, Sr., John, Jr. and 
others who helped to protect the beach along Lakeshore Drive with the building of sand 
catchment areas on the beach.  Thank you for that.  They’ve done their job.  And where they are 
the beach is wide.  And in the north area where I used to walk my dog I no longer can because 
there’s very little beach left there.  So what you put in place back in the ‘80s really worked. 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
7 

 
I’m asking today -- to assess the Carol Beach residents’ attitudes towards the plan that was in the 
2012 plan we did a survey.  We presented these results to the 2018 Park Commission, 118 
residents completed the survey, 88 percent did not support building structures on the beach; 92 
percent wanted the Village to initiate and actively support ways to restore, protect and preserve 
the beach.  And this is consistent with the survey that was done this last summer. 

 
I want to particularly thank John Steinbrink, Jr. for hearing our voice and for modifying the 2012 
plan.  We encourage the Village to tackle the issues of preserving the beach by restoring the 
beach with sand dunes, hiring an expert to facilitate planning, planting and fencing off new 
planted areas with appropriate native species, and evaluating ways to prevent off roading vehicles 
on the beach whether by boulders or other kinds of structures along the road front.  With that I 
want to just recognize that we have about a dozen residents here in the audience from Carol 
Beach who all came here to say thank you.  And thank you very much for listening to us.  
Appreciate it.  Looking forward to working with you again in the future. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you. 
 
Karen Denhartog: 
 

Good evening, Mr. President and members of the Board.  There are three main points I’d like to 
make tonight.  Karen Denhartog, 9203 62nd Court in Creekside Crossing.  We oppose the current 
plan to use the main Creekside Crossing entrance to haul approximately 10,000 cubic feet of clay 
fill to the north side of the property.  The proposal states that over the next several months large 
dump trucks will drive past the only children’s park on our community both on the way to dump 
their load and again to leave the neighborhood to pick up more fill, up to 30 trips or 60 crossings 
in front of the park a day.  We are very concerned about the potential dangerous traffic, damage 
to our roads, hours of operation day and night, and for the noise and dirt and debris that will no 
doubt be tracked throughout the neighborhood. 

 
My second point is the current plan for Vistas at Creekside do not include any additional park 
space dedicated to the younger residents of our neighborhood.  A dog park is not an acceptable 
use of public park space when you consider that we will potentially have more than double the 
number of families and children utilizing the one tiny tot lot space in the community.  And 
considering that Ingram Dog Park is just a couple blocks to the east.  I strongly encourage you to 
consider requiring an additional park green space for human use to the north or northwest section 
of the Creekside Crossing neighborhood.  This was in the original plan for our community. 

 
My last point our Creekside Crossing community was originally built with the promise that this 
would be an owner occupied piece of land subdivided between single family home sites, 
condominiums and some very nice duplex units.  This plan was well thought out and allowed for 
a variety of income levels to become a permanent part of our community.  Respectful of our 
neighbors, the land we purchased and in harmony with the lifestyle of our hard earned dollars 
afford us.   



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
8 

 
For this opportunity we gladly paid our portion of Village taxes for the last 12 years, and we 
expect those tax dollars to be managed wisely and equitably and to be used to maintain the 
integrity of our investments which the people have faithfully entrusted to you.  The introduction 
of apartment rental living whether it’s referred to as Workforce Housing or low income is in 
direct opposition to what we were promised when we purchased our homes here.  In fact, all of 
the homes in our community were already Workforce Housing.  If you consider that we are a 
community of working families in the demographic the developer is saying is their target market. 

 
Our neighborhood already includes police officers, firefighters and teachers.  This is not a 
retirement Village nor are these luxury estates.  We are hardworking, honest, respectful 
homeowners who pay our taxes in exchange for what we believe to be our dream neighborhood.  
We do not want rental living in our community or the potential for an increase in other 
socioeconomic issues that go along with the apartment lifestyle.  We are not fear mongering as 
the developers have complained in the newspaper.  Renters bear only short-term interest. 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

Your time is up. 
 
Karen Denhartog: 
 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Curt Decker: 
 

Good evening.  I’m Curt Decker.  I live at 6218 92nd Place.  Karen covered most of anything that 
I would have spoke to.  Mainly our biggest concerns are that we invested in our neighborhood 
like she said.  We were given a plan that showed the single family homes, the mixed use of 
condos, duplexes, and that was at the point when we first bought the properties a lot of us and 
built our homes.  The single family homes had a homeowners association that dictated the size of 
the homes, this amount of garages.  We haven’t seen any type of plan for the single family homes 
that even follows that format whatsoever.  So I have some concerns about what the single family 
homes would be. 

 
But the elephant in the room is the apartments, whether they’re subsidized apartments, Workforce 
Housing, whatever it’s called.  We were sold a neighborhood plan with a quiet circle, two parks, 
different age groups, different income levels, but it was all home ownership, and that’s what we 
were sold back in 2007, 2008, I think maybe back into 2006.  So this clawing back into our 
neighborhood to drop apartment buildings, again whether subsidized or not, is not equitable to the 
homeowners in our neighborhood, in our community.  So with that I really request it stop here 
tonight.  I’d like to see no apartments be proposed, whether it’s on a frontage road, whether it’s 
right inside of our neighborhood.  I think there’s a lot of land that Bear owns in Pleasant Prairie.  
They own a huge tract from the Kenosha Drive-In Theater down to 165 and Sheridan Road, 
untapped lands, and they own it.   

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
9 

As far as the Workforce Housing goes my daughter I helped her do her taxes recently.  She was a 
full-time employee between her junior and senior year in college.  She worked in an assistant 
managerial role at a restaurant.  With the income that she earned for those three months’ period if 
she had that job for the entire year she would not qualify for housing there.  And with that I 
would know that the people who work for the public works department in the summertime cutting 
grass, doing landscaping and those seasonal jobs they, too, would earn too much money to live in 
this Workforce Housing with income restrictions. 

 
So, I just ask do we have a working poor problem?  Do we have a problem with that in Pleasant 
Prairie because this is supposed to be for Pleasant Prairie?  The assertion is that it’s for residents 
of Pleasant Prairie to maintain their jobs in Pleasant Prairie.  And there’s two very good examples 
of younger people that work in Pleasant Prairie that would be not eligible to live in these housing 
units.  So are we providing housing for the young, the young professionals in Pleasant Prairie, or 
are we creating a magnet for other people to come into Pleasant Prairie and take advantage of this 
Workforce Housing? 

 
Understandably Mills is not going to be getting a monthly check from the federal government to 
cover the rents.  They’re getting north of a million dollars up front, and I believe that this is a ten 
year program -- 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

Sir, your time is up. 
 
Curt Decker: 
 

-- So it’s $100,000 a year for ten years. 
 
Warren Denhartog: 
 

Good evening, I’m Warren Denhartog, D-E-N-H-A-R-T-O-G.  I live at 9203 62nd Court, 
Pleasant Prairie.  I wish I could talk as good as my wife because she said everything that I wanted 
to say.  But my thought tonight is two words, emotions and facts.  Emotions according to the 
dictionary are natural, instinctive state of minds driven from circumstances that arise.  Facts are 
things that are proven to be true.  Emotions are why we’re here tonight.  All these people in 
Creekside Crossing Subdivision are here because we’ve got an invested interest in what’s being 
said tonight.  We live there.  We help each other whether it’s shoveling snow or borrowing a cup 
of whatever.  That’s why we’re here for the emotional part of it.  The safety of surroundings of 
what we built and what we don’t want, what we don’t want. 

 
That doesn’t mean that we’re not able to be a little -- we’re willing to bend a little bit I guess is 
what I’m saying.  And if there’s other options out there I think that we’re willing to listen.  As I 
said, fact is the truth, and what we’ve heard here so far is that everybody does not support what’s 
being offered here tonight.  I could go on and talk about crime prevention statistics.  I could go on 
and talk about the fact that I was on the State Crime Prevention Board and know all that stuff, but 
that’s not what we’re here tonight for.  We’re here tonight to take a look at the facts and 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
10 

emotions.  We’re emotional about it because it hits us home.  And I don’t know if Mr. Mills is 
here tonight but it doesn’t hit him home.  So we ask that you help us with what we’re doing, and I 
believe that we can all come to a compromise.  Thank you. 

 
Lilian Staples: 
 

Good evening.  My name is Lilian Staples, and I live at 6203 92nd Place.  And I’ve been a 
resident for 11 years in Creekside Crossing.  When I see the projects that are being presented the 
way I analyze this is how would you accept or not the project.  And the things that I look at is the 
density, how they’re going to size off the lots, if the houses are similar what kind of 
characteristics they have.  When you talk about density what traffic impact that is if you put more 
people in the same space.  And I’m concerned that those projects are not considering all those 
points.  And I would like to see that revised on something that would be acceptable to our 
community. 

 
We have single homes, and the condos, they have specific characteristics, sizes, and I see that the 
project presented are putting completely different types of structures in the community that will 
look completely different beside all the different -- the value of all those types of different 
structures.  We want something similar, we want the unity, and we don’t want the bigger density 
in our community.  So those are the points that I would like to raise.  I apologize if that was 
already discussed.  But I’m completely against the apartments.  And if that is going to be built in 
that area it should be far away from all single family homes and the condos.  They are completely 
different besides the traffic impact to our neighbors.  Those are the things that [inaudible].  Thank 
you for the opportunity. 

 
Jeff Sorensen: 
 

Hi, Jeff Sorensen, 6299 92nd Place.  I’m going to start with just a couple comments about my 
favorite place to read, the Kenosha News.  Yesterday they had an article in there, and once again 
they’re not very favorable to Pleasant Prairie.  They seem to think that we should supply housing 
for Foxconn.  We already got rid of Foxconn.  We didn’t want them here, and now look what’s 
going to happen to Foxconn.  So I don’t think we should be responsible to provide apartments for 
Foxconn employees.  I didn’t like in the article that they want to know why we care about what 
happens in our backyards.  Well, if we don’t, no one will.  We care, that’s why everybody’s here.  

 
When Creekside Crossing started it was a requirement by the Village that this was owner 
occupied, condos and houses, owner occupied.  No rentals allowed.  As Mastercraft went out of 
business and Bear took over ownership they came back with another plan to develop the far north 
end with mostly single family and some duplex condos.  I was at that meeting.  Once again was 
told and promised owner occupied, no rentals.  Now here we are with rentals. 
I’m not going to talk about Workforce, but it says Workforce.  That’s going to be for firefighters, 
teachers and single professionals.  None of those people are working at Foxconn.  I would like to 
also point out we don’t need sidewalks.  We’ve gotten along just fine without sidewalks.  The 
sidewalks will lead to nowhere.  If you need sidewalks so bad sidewalks should be at the 
Meadowdale which will be adjacent to the new downtown and the development straight to the 
west of the new downtown to get them into downtown.  Sidewalks mean nothing out by us. 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
11 

 
I was also interested the last time at the Plan Commission that a traffic study was done.  Even if 
you were to move to option number three and place all those apartments adjacent to Old Green 
Bay Road on 91st Street, they’ve all got to get out somehow, and they’re going to either go north 
or south.  Friday when I was on my way to the RecPlex at 7:30 in the morning you have two 
options, turn left, go straight at the stoplight.  There’s a little right hand turn lane.  I was third car 
in line.  No one can get to the right hand turn lane with three cars. 

 
I guess in looking at it I would say option three is the best of the worst.  We don’t want 
apartments, but if you think that that’s -- 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

Mr. Sorensen, your time’s up. 
 
Jeff Sorensen: 
 

Thank you. 
 
[Inaudible] 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

All right, please -- 
 
Ken Harju: 
 

I just want to say because a lot of people are -- 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We’re allowing citizens’ comments here.  This is not a demonstration.  If you want to use your 
time wisely use it.  Otherwise a petition has been accepted, and said petition is in lieu of -- 

 
Ken Harju: 
 

I’m sorry, sir. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

And we’re allowing you this time to do this. 
 
Ken Harju: 
 

I’m sorry. 
 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
12 

John Steinbrink: 
 

We’re allowing you to applaud.  It takes extra time up.  If you want to do it that’s fine, but please 
don’t show a demonstration like that. 

 
Ken Harju: 
 

I only did it just because a lot of people are terribly afraid to come to the microphone, sir.  Its 
worse, most peoples’ biggest fear is speaking in public.  I’m sorry.  My name is Ken Harju at 
9249 64th Court, Pleasant Prairie.  When I moved in three years ago I came to the professionals 
here.  The assessor was very good to me, explain to me exactly how it was zoned back there.  
And this is how we were promised, R-8, R-10, R-9, R-4, two units, eight units, four units and 
single family homes, that’s what it was. 

 
History, Mr. Mills bought this property a total of 61.95 acres over the last ten years for $550,000 
or $8,900 an acre.  There’s other units going up, two different projects in the area, Village Green 
condos, Green Bay Trail condos.  Those people would come here and do back flips up a hill to be 
able to put condos into this area.  Mr. Mills says he can’t build condos here and make money.  
Ludicrous.  Green Bay Trails actually dropped their density from 66 to 46 units.  Incredible.  So 
this is ridiculous.  We now have 138 units in Creekside Crossing.  He’s coming with 185.  That’s 
more than what we have there now, and 140 of them are apartments.  That’s more units than exist 
there now. 

 
Now, to talk about subsidized housing, this is a dense cluster of subsidized housing.  This is what 
the solution was in the ‘60s, ‘70s and ‘80s.  We’re better than this now.  The Village can do better 
than making a dense cluster of subsidized housing.  What Mr. Mills got from the Wisconsin 
Housing Authority $24.9 million to use on top of tax credits.  And there’s never been 
transparency of what this money is coming from.  It’s our money, it’s a grant, and what’s it being 
used for?  Even at the Plan Commission no one asked what are these dollars.  So I thank you for 
your time, and I just apologize.  I didn’t mean to cause a demonstration.  These people are 
terrified of microphones so I just wanted to say, hey, these are the people you say you serve and 
are accountable to, here they are.  Thank you very much. 

 
Bill Demo: 
 

Tough following all these eloquent speakers but I’ll give it a shot.  I’m Bill Demo, 9285 66th 
Avenue, Unit 21.  I’m also President of the Creekside Crossing Condo Association.  I’m here to 
register objection to the rental units that are planned by Bear to be put in the back of the property.  
[Inaudible] you mentioned a petition had been submitted, 110 signatories to that petition out of 
140 possible.  Out of that 110, 98 percent were against the apartments being built.  We had one 
that was undecided and only one person that was in favor allowing those to go. 

 
We’re concerned about the adverse impact it’s going to have on our property values.  As you 
know, property values are making a comeback.  Now I’ve been there 12 years, I’m finally seeing 
the housing values come back in to where I paid for them.  We have paid a lot of effort in as a 
condo association to make sure that we maintain the street and curb appeal that we had when we 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
13 

all bought in years ago.  We keep the exterior of our buildings up.  We have 19 acres of largely 
green space that we keep maintained, almost manicured, to make sure that we maintain ourself to 
be an attractive community. 

 
One of the things that drew many of us here is the fact that we are open spaced buildings.  We 
have 21 buildings in the southern part of the condominium association, it’s on 19 acres.  People 
like the fact that you are not next door to your neighbor.  We’ve already had people talk about the 
density of the proposal for putting units back there that doesn’t fit in with what we have back 
there.  The entire rental apartment scheme does not fit in.  They’re trying to shoehorn something 
that doesn’t exist anywhere else in the Village. They’re trying to plan an apartment complex 
inside a neighborhood that doesn’t have any ready access to a street that will get you to a main 
thoroughfare.  You look around the Village everybody can get onto 22nd, 93rd.  There’s a road 
right there where they can get out, not in this plan for us. 

 
Apartments by nature are transient people, all right?  There’s no sense of ownership.  It’s hard to 
develop a sense of community.  I’ve been fighting for years, our association has been fighting for 
years to develop that sense of community, and I think we have.  This is an adverse impact to the 
feel of our neighborhood.  It’s already been mentioned we don’t need sidewalks.  People walk 
their dogs, they walk their kids, they ride their bikes, and we have not had any problem with any 
of that.  We have a beautiful neighborhood.   

 
Sidewalks that were proposed I understand that they want to those in.  I’m sure that’s to invite 
approval.  It’s going to put really a substantial impact of the cost of maintaining those sidewalks.  
Right now our snow removal budget is something that we can’t control with how the weather is.  
And it would double the cost of our snow removal which we’d have to pay aside to our 
homeowners.  As you know Mastercraft went under.  When they went under we took it over, 
there was no money in our reserve funds. 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

Sir, your time is up. 
 
Bill Demo: 
 

That’s five? 
 
Jane Snell: 
 

Three. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Sir, could I get your name again? 
 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
14 

Bill Demo: 
 

Bill Demo, D-E-M-O. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

D-E-M-O? 
 
Bill Demo: 
 

Yeah. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Okay, thank you. 
 
Tish Tippet: 
 

Hi, Tish Tippet, 8966 62nd Ave.  I’m one of the homeowners that will have those 100 apartments 
right behind them in their backyard.  And if you do something like that it’s not only going to 
bring just 100 apartments, it’s going to be hundreds of people on a small parcel of land that’s 
going to create noise pollution, light pollution.  I’m going to have car lights through my windows 
at all hours of the night.  

 
At the last Board meeting here there was asked a question about the percentage of evictions that 
they have to deal with on their properties.  He never answered the question.  He kind of danced 
around it, never gave an actual answer to that question.  Another question was asked if the rental 
rates would ever go lower.  And he said they could go lower if the economy does go downward.  
So that could leave it open to even people with less income to come in and rent those houses or 
those apartments.  And I believe there’s a police officer who lives in our subdivision who spoke 
out and said we’re likely to see crime and drugs start to occur in our neighborhood with those 
apartments coming into it. 

 
We all know nothing like this would happen to the homeowners down the street in Meadowdale.  
They really should go out and find another piece of vacant property with nothing on it to build 
those apartments, and that way if they want to put homes on it after the fact the people buying 
into those homes know what they’re getting because they’re apartments low income.  Thank you. 

 
Eric Davidson: 
 

My name is Eric Davidson.  Address is 9115 Old Green Bay Road.  When my wife and I bought 
the property that we live on Creekside wasn’t even thought of.  We were planning on just living a 
nice quiet existence on our property and watching the hawks soar around.  It was pretty neat.  
Then Creekside came, and like everybody else said, it was all supposed to be single family and 
duplexes and the condos and stuff and no apartments and stuff. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
15 

Apartments are not what we signed up for.  A lot of this stuff I’m not part of the Creekside but I 
live adjacent to it.  The ay it’s laid out any of the plans I’m going to have either 40 units or 100 
units or 120 units adjacent to my property surrounding me.  It doesn’t seem like the right thing to 
do.  It’s one of those things where you guys didn’t approve apartments in the beginning and it fell 
through, and you didn’t do it again.  And now we’re bringing that up.  And I’m just a vote against 
the apartments all together.  I’m done. 

 
Greg Olzewsky: 
 

My name is Greg Olzewsky.  I live at 9003 62nd Avenue.  I’ve lived previously on 1st Avenue in 
Pleasant Prairie back in the ‘90s.  And I kind of change the level of what I say.  Everybody that 
has spoke before me is absolutely right and have brought up things that are just -- I couldn’t 
match.  I just want to tell you why I moved back to Pleasant Prairie in the year 2000.  I lived on 
1st Avenue.  I had a nice home on the lake, and I owned the property on the lake.  But I had a 
problem with a neighbor.  And rather than stay in that beautiful home I sold it, and I found a 
home in downtown Kenosha which was very nice on the lake.  I like lakefront property.  And I 
stayed there about ten years.   

 
At that time my wife just developed cancer, her first round of it.  We were in our 60s, and for the 
next ten years she fought cancer, seizures and finally dementia.  And we had to move out of there, 
and I said we’ve got to get a ranch.  So we came back to Pleasant Prairie, looked around, looked 
at the home at 9003 62nd.  It was the first one we looked at when we started looking.  And she 
liked it because she was in a wheelchair already and she could get around.  It was built for us. 

 
Now, my background is, I’ve got to give you that, I spent 20 years in the Army, I’m retired.  I 
spent 15 years at Procter & Gamble as an industrial technician.  I spent 30 years in the landlord 
business in Kenosha and Waukegan.  And now I’m retired.  And I want to stay here and be up on 
that fireplace with my wife when I pass.  She passed three years ago.  And one lady brought out a 
good fact.  When I came up here to buy this home, the last one that Mastercraft built, the last 
single family, I did the research.  I found out that everything that they’ve said, I’m not going to 
repeat it, and it’s all true.  And what’s supposed to be built there?  Guys, we can come with 
something closer than those 20 units.  And I’m here because I want to die here.  I don’t have to 
die here, I got money, but I want to stay here.  That’s where she passed.  Thank you. 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

The next person is Keith Humphries. 
 
[Inaudible] 
 
Jane Snell: 
 

Oh, okay, thank you.  No further signups. 
 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
16 

Nathan Thiel: 
 

Jane, there was one other, do we want to read the petition into the record.  Okay.  As was alluded 
to in the public comments there was a petition that was submitted.  And they asked for us to 
submit this document in lieu of a verbal statement.  It was presented by Kathleen Wallace.  And 
so I figure just for transparency we include it into the record. 

 
Please accept this document in lieu of the verbal statement at the February 18, 2019 Village 
Board meeting.  I have circulated a petition among my neighbors in Creekside Crossing opposing 
the construction of the income restricted apartments in the proposed Vista at Creekside 
development and opposing the construction of sidewalks in the existing CC neighborhoods.  The 
original copies of the petition are enclosed for your consideration.  Ninety eight percent of the 
neighbors that I spoke to are opposed to the construction of these apartments in our backyard and 
also opposed to the addition of sidewalks.  I have also enclosed an opposition letter from our 
absentee neighbors Mr. and Mrs. Ron Hale and an email from Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Rojas.  Only 
one person remained undecided and one person said no to the signing of the petition.   

 
But I’d also like to add a little background to the term Workforce Housing.  It’s a term used to 
describe housing that is affordable for households with an earned income that is insufficient to 
secure quality housing within a reasonable proximity to a workplace.  I contend that the argument 
that Workforce Housing is needed in our neighborhood is a suspicious one.  As the residents of 
CC are the workforce of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha, Zion and surrounding communities.  We are 
teachers, policemen, nurses, entrepreneurs, sales persons, tradesmen and so on.  We are retirees, 
single women and men and young families.  We purchased our homes here because it’s a 
desirable neighborhood and one that was affordable to us without any assistance beyond perhaps 
a mortgage.  Thank you for consideration.  Sincerely, Kathleen Wallace. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Anyone else wishing to speak under citizens’ comments.  If you’re shy come up and speak, it’s 
not that bad.  If Jeff Sorensen can do it anybody can do it.  If not I’m going to close citizens’ 
comments. 

 
7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

Just two items to update the Village Board on.  First off we’ve been having some good success 
with the community collaboration effort.  A Thursday ago we had about 66 people show up to the 
meeting so that was very impressive.  We’ve had about 100 individuals committing to serve on 
subcommittees so I just wanted to update the Board on that.  Yes, for the Village Green Center.  
It’s just been a really exciting project so I just wanted to update.  Our next meeting will be this 
Thursday.  And it’s open for participation so we’d encourage anybody to participate. 

 
And then the second thing just an update on the PPCVB or the Pleasant Prairie Convention and 
Visitors Bureau.  They’ve had some good movement of late.  They had a group called Simple 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
17 

View come out to review the marketing strategy for Pleasant Prairie and tourism in the area.  
We’re really excited for this marketing firm and what they will provide for the Village.  And then 
also Michelle Williamson has been proactive in getting Travel Wisconsin to participate in a 
planning session within the community to identify the assets that our region has to provide.  And 
so that also has been just kicked off this last week and moving forward. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you, Nathan. 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 

#19-05 for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to Village of Pleasant Prairie's Park 
and Open Space Plan 2018- 2023. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President, I’m going to introduce John Steinbrink, Jr., he’s our public works director and our 
parks director, and have him present a presentation of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
which is Ordinance 19-05.  Again, this is to adopt the new Park and Open Space Plan for the 
years 2018 to 2023.  It came with a positive recommendation from the Village Plan Commission.  
But I’d like John to go through the slides for the formal presentation for the Village Board. 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this evening I bring before you consideration of the 
approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment, as Jean said Ordinance #19-05, to adopt the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie Park and Open Space Plan for 2018 to 2023.  This is a component of 
the 2035 Comprehensive Plan and also to amend Section 395-6B of the municipal code.  This 
plan is a component of the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 
We entered into an agreement with Ayres and Associates, and Blake Theisen was the 
representative that worked with the Village.  We started this about a year ago, so it’s been a pretty 
long and comprehensive project.  He’s very familiar with doing plans, and he does these around 
the state, he’s very successful with them.  It did include an overview of the project in report 
format, a survey, some recommendations, some mapping and some concept plans. 

 
For the overview of the project it’s called the CORP, it’s a Comprehensive of Outdoor and 
Recreation Plan.  It’s analysis of all the Village owned parklands and greenways, and it’s a five 
year plan window.  It is required by the DNR to get grant approval and stewardship grant money, 
and it does provide a forecast for capital improvements projects and future equipment processes 
and purchases. 

 
Just a quick overview of the project.  We entered into an agreement with Blake and Ayres and 
Associates in February.  We scheduled a kickoff meeting for the public.  It was very well 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
18 

received in April.  We did some field work in April.  We did a public survey in April through 
June.  The Carol Beach residents as Rosalie had mentioned did their own, and we took that into 
consideration.  We got some preliminary recommendations back from Ayres in June.  We got the 
first draft reports that the staff worked on in July.  Put together these CIP budget for the park plan 
in July of ‘18.  And just to note that that was late enough in the process where we were not able to 
include it in the 2019 budget.  We were already too far along.  So we’ll start that process in 2020. 

 
We got the second draft report in October of ‘18.  We did a little bit of work on it, listened to 
some of the comments and made some changes.  And we had a final report approved by the Plan 
Commission in February of 19.  I’m just going to go through it very briefly.  I won’t go into 
detail.  If you have any questions I can answer them at the end. 

 
Chapter 1 is the introduction.  Chapter 2 was the inventory and analysis.  Chapter 2 was 
recommendation to the existing parks.  With inventory and analysis they told us the good the bad 
and the ugly, really what had to be done.  So they weren’t shy to say if a piece of equipment 
needed to be replaced or some recommendations on some changes that had to be done with the 
existing plan. Chapter 4 was an implementation plan.  It did include a mapping review.  And so 
the National Rec and Park Association has six different classifications.  And so we kind of 
identified each of those classifications and the reach as identified in some of these polygons as 
shown with different colors on here.  The mini park is the smallest park, the neighborhood park, 
community park, regional park as RecPlex and Prairie Springs Park would be an example of that.  
Any sort of special use like Ingram Park and the dog park and the conservancy land that the 
Village owns and maintains.   

 
This is just kind of one example of each of the inventory sheets that we have for each of the 
parks.  I’m not going to go through each of them, but just to give you an idea of what it entails.  
They were based on the survey results, outcome from the public information meeting and the 
analysis that Ayres did and the field review.  It talks about the name, the existing facilities, some 
of the issues that are observed, different tasks that are done at each of the park and some options 
that have to be done.  It talks about the classification, it gives the location and then a site map.  So 
it’s very informative for each of the parks, and it was included in the plan in your packet and will 
be included online for all the residents to have in reference.  The next one just shows a couple 
more of the pages, excerpts from the plan, the different trails, the playgrounds, the swings, the 
reference to the Kenosha County Bike Trail. 

 
I am going to take just a little bit of time and highlight one of the parks that we really spent a lot 
of time evaluating.  This is a five year plan, and every year we go through the same drill.  We ask 
the residents for comments, we take them into consideration.  We take a hard professional look at 
each of the parks and each of the sites that we have.  We make the recommendations, make 
changes to the plan, and then we budget accordingly based on the recommendations of each of 
those plans.   

 
Five years ago when we developed the 2013 to 2018 plan, the feel for the Lake Michigan Park, 
the name at the time was Lake Michigan Park and since it’s changed to Prairie Shores Park, was 
they really wanted to gate the area, they wanted to have some lifeguards, they wanted to have 
these other amenities.  Since that time we have heard from the residents down there that they 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
19 

really want to focus on keeping it natural.  So we did alter the plan.  We have a cost estimate for it 
of restoring the dunes, of resolving some of the drainage issues, and installing some recycling 
receptacles in the area.   

 
We are budgeted for 2019 for the Clean Water Utility to do an analysis of the five outfalls and all 
of the public owned lands on Lake Michigan just to evaluate really what has to be done out there, 
and then based on the results of those plans we can put together the engineering that has to be 
done to construct those recommendations.  So that was the one really big change that we had in 
the plan was the Prairie Shores Park, taking it from some structures, some improvements, so 
really just kind of keeping it natural.  Still keeping it open to the public but kind of instead of 
making fences and pavilions and restrooms and guard shacks, keeping it natural but protecting 
some of the shoreland in there.  And with that being said I can answer any questions you may 
have on the plan. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Questions? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I have one.  Just looking at Prairie Shores parcel if I’m reading this right, we’re looking to look at 
restoring it to a natural area, actually a sand dune area.  But do we have an estimate of what the 
shoreline work would cost us to not rebuild that but just enhance it to cover the new area?  One of 
the things we’ve discovered over the years is the areas that were left natural with sand we had 
more erosion behind the wall than the areas where we had installed more of a clay-type material 
with landscaping on it.  Then when we had the wash overs water wouldn’t erode that area.  It 
might wash through the wall, but I’m a little concerned that we’re going to study this to death as 
the lake is starting to come back up again, and we’ll be in a worse position if we don’t get our 
hands around what we need to do to stabilize that shoreline protection especially in Prairie 
Shores. 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

We do not have a cost estimate at this time.  We’re hoping that that project, that engineering 
design project that we’ll be entering into a contract in 2019 will give us some sort of a feel for 
estimates with that.  I have been working with the Village Administrator on different sorts of 
techniques that are available, and we will make those recommendations to the engineering firm 
that we do hire.  We don’t have a firm.  It’s something we should be doing within the next month 
or so.  There’s been options of do you spend the money right on the shoreline?  Do you spend it 
out X amount of ways and kind of build the structure out in Lake Michigan to kind of stop it?  Do 
you build jetties?  So there’s all sorts of different techniques, and that engineering contract we’ll 
be entering into it will be evaluated by a PE that does this and give us the best recommendation 
for that.  And then we’ll probably come to the Board with something in the Clean Water Utility 
for the five year CIP based on the recommendations of that study. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
20 

Nathan Thiel: 
 

Mike, if I can just add one other thing.  The Department of Natural Resources along with the 
University of Wisconsin currently are actually doing some studies and making recommendations 
for a significant length of the shoreline.  And so with that we’ll be in touch with them as well to 
make sure that the practices that will be applied coincide with engineering studies that are already 
currently taking place.  And then another item just to bring up that when John Steinbrink and I 
visited the Legislator’s office we were discussing some potential grants and things of that nature 
that could potentially assist towards this effort as well. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Are those the Coastal Grants? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

Correct. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

John, I give you a lot of credit, the parks department, the Park Commission and also Ayres 
Associates.  It’s a big project, and it’s a big undertaking. Before we incorporated the Park 
Commission had a budget of $5,000.  It cost us $5,000 a year to cut the grass in the parks.  And 
here we are evolving into something I think is going to be very nice for the Village for the future.  
And I’m glad we addressed the concerns with the Carol Beach Association.  And I’d move 
approval of 19-05. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Is there further discussion?  Hearing none a roll call vote is 
requested. 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

Mike Serpe? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Aye. 
 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
21 

Dave Klimisch: 
 

Aye. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Aye. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Aye.  Motion carries.  Thank you, John. 
 

SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVED  ORDINANCE #19-05 FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENT TO THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE'S PARK AND OPEN 
SPACE PLAN 2018-2023; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; ROLL CALL VOTE – SERPE – YES; 
KLIMISCH – YES; POLLOCOFF – YES; KECKLER – YES; STEINBRINK – YES; MOTION 
CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance #19 

06 for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to a portion of the Whittier Creek 
Neighborhood Plan located north of 93rd Street and east of Old Green Bay Road. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Do you want C with that, Jean? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Yes. 
 
 C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of a Conceptual 

Plan for the vacant properties north of Creekside Crossing and adjacent vacant 
properties to the west to be known as The Vista at Creekside. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the two requests you have before you this evening are 
Ordinances 19-06, and this is to update the Whittier Creek Neighborhood Plan.  And the second 
request is a Conceptual Plan.  And this is at the request of Dan Szczap from Bear Development, 
LLC.  And this is on behalf of Creekside PP, LLC.  They are requesting to develop the north side 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
22 

of the Creekside Crossing development and the vacant lands to the west adjacent to Old Green 
Bay for a new project to be called The Vista at Creekside. 

 
This initial presentation is a presentation of what was presented before the Plan Commission, and 
so that is the initial presentation we need to make this evening.  The project consists of 62 acres.  
The developer is requesting to do 43 single family lots, one two-family lot and seven 20-unit 
apartment buildings.  This would complete or finish off the original Creekside development that 
was started in the early 2000s by the Mastercraft development. 

 
As some background information, the original Creekside development between 2005 and 2010 
anticipated a total of 312 dwelling units to be developed in several phases, 24 single family lots, 
34 2-unit condo buildings, 17 4-unit condo buildings and 19 8-unit condo buildings.  The 
undeveloped land proposed to be developed now within the Creekside area included 158 
additional condo units, 11 8-unit buildings, 6 4-unit buildings and 23 2-unit buildings.  So the 
vacant land anticipated to have a total of 158 additional units. 

 
A Conceptual Plan was initially presented in August of 2015 by the Bear Development team to 
the Village Board.  And this was a Conceptual Plan that considered that the balance of Creekside 
Crossing would be developed as 64 single family lots and one two-family lot.  Unfortunately after 
it had been approved by the Village the developers re-evaluated the situation, did not move 
forward with the project.  They felt that the cost of a Creekside Circle which would be that 
east/west completion of the circle to connect to 91st Street and the bridge crossing the Jerome 
Creek waterway would be too costly.  And so at that time they withdrew their project.  Since that 
time since 2015 the conceptual plan expired as it was approved or value for approximately one 
year. 

 
In 2019 Bear Development was working on a new proposed Conceptual Plan.  Again, 62 acres, 
58 acres remaining in the Creekside development plus four acres to the west with access to Old 
Green Bay Road and 91st Street.  With the development they were proposing 43 single family 
lots, one two-family lot and seven 20-unit Workforce Housing apartments as well as the 
clubhouse.  Open space would be approximately 31 acres or 50 percent of the property area.  
And, again, that’s primarily in the north/northwestern side of the site.  And this is due to a 
significant floodplain area as well as wetland area on the property. 

 
So part of Bear Development’s request is a Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  And, again, this 
would be to amend a portion of the Whittier Creek neighborhood which is actually a southeast 
portion of this neighborhood.  And keep in mind when I talk about a neighborhood I’m talking 
about a square mile or a square mile and a half of land area, not just one particular subdivision or 
one particular development.  So it really encompasses a much larger area. 

 
So on the east you can see what the existing Comprehensive Plan looks like, or on the west side 
or the right side what the west or the Creekside area was proposed to be envisioned to be 
developed as.  Again, you can see that the balance of the area inside the Creekside Circle, and to 
the west of Creekside Circle was going to be single family lots.  And what they were proposing 
were two multi-family 20-unit apartment buildings and a clubhouse to the west of Creekside 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
23 

Crossing just to the south side of 91st.  And then to the north of Creekside Circle there would be 
five 20-unit apartment buildings. 

 
With respect to the Comprehensive Plan Amendment, again, this is looking at the entire 
neighborhood, what it exists today and at full build out of that total mile and a half square area.  
So 392 existing dwelling units which is comprised of single family lots and condominium units.  
And then proposed 396 total dwelling units, 254 single family lots, one new duplex, and then 140 
multi-family rental units.  The net density with this project would have been about 19,348 square 
feet per dwelling unit.  Current population in the entire neighborhood 1,063.  Project population 
2,136 persons.  We also have breakdowns for the number of school age children as would be 
proposed based on the information that we received from the census and from projections from 
KUSD based on the number of units.  So the 2019 proposed Conceptual Plan, again, 62 acres, 58 
acres remain in the Creekside development.  Open space 31 acres, and 50 percent of the property 
area would remain open space.  This is our first drawing of what the proposed units would look 
like for the 20-unit building. 

 
So The Vista at Creekside would be comprised of single family and two family. Again, 43 single 
family lots as he proposed.  The lot sizes would range from 12,721 square feet to 25,694 square 
feet.  The average lot size would be just over a third of an acre or just over 16,000 square feet.  
There would be one two family lot that they are proposing right at that intersection of the two 
roads that would have an area of 17,539 square feet.  Their plan would be that this would be a 
duplex, would be a two unit ranch-style side-by-side similar to the adjacent units, but it would 
likely be a rental project.  It would not be a condo for one two unit, not as proposed. 

 
The Vista at Creekside multi-family 7 20-unit buildings for a total of 140 units.  Each apartment 
building includes 8 units on the first floor, 12 units on the second floor.  Units range in size from 
713 square feet to 1,325 square feet, 8 units having attached garages to the building.  All units 
would be designed as a condominium-style in that they would have individual entries from an 
exterior doorway.  They would not have common hallways or shared entrances between units.  
And, again, below is an artist’s rendering of the colors and the look and the feel of what the 20 
unit building what it would look like. 

 
This is what the building elevations would look like.  What’s identified with all the little numbers 
are the different types of materials.  It’s hard to see, but this is the rendition of the colors and the 
materials that would be used for the building.  Each building would provide a variety of options 
including 11 1-bedroom and 1 bathroom, 1 2-bedroom with 1 bathroom, 6 2-bedroom with 2 
bathroom, and 2 3-bedroom with 2 bathroom units.  And the elevations here are shown as the 
north elevation and the east elevation.  And the second elevations are the south elevation as well 
as the west elevation. 

 
The breakdown of the units and the units’ sizes and the pricing for the multi-family development 
would include 77 1-bedroom units, again, an average size of 700 square feet with rents between 
$700 and $970 not including utilities.  There would be 49 2-bedroom units, average size of 1,040 
square feet with rents between $840 and $1,175 without utilities.  And 14 3-bedroom units, 
average size of 1,300 square feet with rents between $970 and $1,425, again, without utilities. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
24 

With respect to the parking 168 enclosed spaces would be provided or under cover spaces.  Eight 
would be attached garages to the building, four detached garage buildings with 28 garages per 
building.  There in addition would be 110 surface parking spaces.  There would be 28 spaces at 
the clubhouse which is at the entrance of 91st Street and Old Green Bay Road, 8 spaces by the 
western units and 74 spaces by the eastern units.  Again, population projections with this 
development 502 persons, and there could be up to 77 public school age children.  And, again, we 
do this based on census information and information provided to us by KUSD. 

 
With respect to floodplain boundary adjustment, as you know back on October 20, 2003 the 
Village Board adopted Resolution 03-42.  And this was to approve the original floodplain 
boundary adjustment for the Creekside development.  In January of 2005 the original developer 
obtained the required permits from FEMA, the Federal Emergency Management Agency to begin 
the floodplain adjustment work.  The floodplain boundary adjustment work began in the area that 
is already development, but it has not been completed for the entire project.   

 
The FEMA approval is still valid and would need to be completed by the current petitioner as 
originally designed and approved by the Village, DNR and FEMA for it to be valid.  Field 
delineated topographic verification would also have to be provided to all the agencies following 
the completion of the filling of the work of the floodplain.  Since that time two small wetland 
areas totaling .214 acre have been proposed to be filled.  And this is in anticipation of completing 
the Creekside Circle and 91st Street.   

 
So this is the project as proposed as presented and discussed at the Plan Commission meeting and 
by the developer.  The area that’s identified in red is the area that was identified for proposed 
public sidewalks to be installed by the developer.  Private sidewalks would be identified in blue 
which is just immediately adjacent to the five multi-family buildings on the north side.  And then 
an asphalt path would need to be constructed adjacent to the five buildings up on the north end 
west of the detention basin to link the public sidewalk to the -- on Creekside Circle to the public 
sidewalk on the north end.  In addition, a gravel path would also need to be extended over the 
sanitary sewer line that runs through the floodplain area that extends from Creekside Circle to the 
northwest corner of the property. 

 
The proposed zoning of the property, single family lots would be R-4, Urban Single Family 
Residential District.  The two family lot would be R-8, Two Family District.  The apartment lots 
would be R-11, Multiple Family Residential District.  The wetland areas would be C-1, Lowland 
Resource Conservancy District.  The outlots excluding the wetlands areas would be PR-1, and 
this would be for the Neighborhood Park and Recreational District.   

 
As shown on their original concept just to the northeast of the five apartment buildings is a small 
dog park.  Again, it was primarily intending to be servicing the apartments in this development.  
But as was discussed several times with the developer there is a somewhat larger dog park open 
to the general public just to the east of this area by about 1,200 feet.  But you have to access the 
dog park through 93rd Street to get through Ingram Park. 

 
The 100-year floodplain would be designated as FPO, Floodplain Overlay District, and that 
would be upon the completion of the wetland floodplain boundary adjustment work.  And the 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
25 

entire development would need to be located in a PUD or a Planned Unit Development Overlay 
District to allow for multiple multi-family buildings for property.  This currently in in the R-8, 10 
and 11 districts those districts would allow only for one multi-family building per property.  So a 
PUD overlay would be required in order to have multiple family buildings per parcel. 

 
So after the Plan Commission meeting there was considerable discussion by the Village staff with 
respect to the development.  And there was some considerable discussion as to what other 
alternatives based on the Plan Commission recommendation was that they recommended 
approval, but they wanted the staff to continue to work with the developer.  So the Village 
Administrator, Village planning staff and others evaluated and asked them to show us three 
different possible alternatives.  Again, the Village Board for consideration this evening is either to 
approve or to deny the original submittal that was presented by the Plan Commission.  But 
because we knew this was of considerable interest to the residents as well as the staff and the 
Village, we wanted to take the time to present three options to the Village Board.  And depending 
on the direction of the Village Board the Board would take action this evening or would need to 
make a recommendation back to the Village Plan Commission. 

 
So option 1, and many of the residents have seen this option, this was an option that was 
presented directly to the residents at a meeting in November of last year.  It was not presented in a 
public form or a public hearing before the Plan Commission or the Board up to this point, but this 
was just an option that was under consideration by the developer, again, presented to the 
residents.  My understanding is that there was no support by the residents in the Creekside 
development for this.  

 
But, again, what this development shows is that at the time there were four apartment buildings 
on the north side of Creekside Circle.  And then there were three apartment buildings, all 20 units, 
on the east side inner loop of Creekside Circle.  And at that time the west side of Creekside Circle 
as well as the land area south of 91st Street ascending to Old Green Bay those would be single 
family lots. 

 
In this particular development the area that’s identified in green was recommended to be public 
sidewalk.  And the area in blue was a pedestrian walkway, more or less private walkway.  And 
then the area that’s blue with the cross-hatch as I indicated earlier would be a sewer overlay trail 
or pedestrian trail gravel over the sewer line that runs from Creekside Circle to the northwest 
corner of the site. 

 
I had the opportunity to meet with Bill Demo with the Association President today after the Plan 
Commission met.  And he outlined a number of concerns specifically for the staff.  And in the 
second memo that you have before you I just want to highlight.  I tried to summarize his concerns 
and comments.  And these were the comments that he really had from himself and the residents 
from last November and after the Plan Commission meeting on the 18th of February.  Again, my 
concern expressing the comments to him is that on that Monday night was really the first time the 
staff was hearing a lot of these concerns from the residents in more of a formal setting.  And so 
we were trying to see what we could do to re-evaluate the plans.  Again, this option one was the 
one in November, and then option two which you will see again, and that was the one that was 
presented to the Plan Commission.   



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
26 

 
But Bill had mentioned that the comments and concerns as raised by himself and the residents 
included that the rental units are now proposed were owner occupied units were presented in the 
original Creekside development.  That is true.  The one comment I do want to make with respect 
to that is that the original plan did indeed present to us over several years that it was going to be 
an owner occupied development.  That being said that development didn’t go forward, and the 
land is zoned for multiple family.  The current zoning ordinance does not distinguish between 
owner occupied and rental product.  We can’t do that in the zoning ordinance.  So I just want you 
to be aware that the plans for years showed it from what was originally proposed by Mastercraft 
as owner occupied, but the current zoning does not distinguish between owner occupied or rental 
occupied. 

 
Another comment, location of the apartments within the Creekside development were of a 
concern to both him and the neighbors.  They were concerned about management and 
management practices related to the rental units including long-term maintenance of the 
apartments and the grounds and the rental rates over a period of time.  They were concerned 
generally with increased crime, again, probably due to their concerns with respect to the more 
transient population as opposed to owner occupied population at that location. 

 
There was concern with traffic congestion within and adjacent to the development when 
additional units are being constructed.  They were also concerned with some speeding currently 
within the neighborhood.  They were concerned with the perceived value of a drop in property 
values or actual drop in property values due to residential apartments nearby.  They were 
concerned with respect to the public sidewalk locations, maintenance and cost.  Again, they 
weren’t concerned with the installation of the sidewalks because that would be done by Steve 
Mills or part of the Bear Development.  But the ongoing maintenance of the sidewalk and snow 
removal would be obligations of the abutting landowners or the condominium development. 

 
And then finally they were concerned about the loss of the proposed neighborhood park on the 
north side of the development.  The one comment I can make with respect to that is when we 
updated the Comprehensive Plan really in 2009 by January 1, 2010, it was at that time, and there 
was some considerable discussion, that there would not be another mini park in Creekside with a 
community park being less than 1,200 feet to the east which encompassed a dog park and play 
park at that location.  So, again, this is option one that was presented to the residents in 
November.  Option two which you have in your packets as well and as shown on the screen is the 
option that was presented to the Plan Commission.   

 
Option three, and again we did send these out to the residents even though there is no public 
hearing this evening, option three after some discussion tried to merge and move things around a 
little bit more, and it really brought back the concept from 2015 wherein all of the lots primarily 
internal to Creekside Circle and on the north side of Creekside Circle and on the north end of 
62nd those would all be single family lots, not even one two family.  They would all be owner 
occupied single family lots so at the end of the cul-de-sac and then all the way over to the gravel 
trail. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
27 

And what it also did was it brought in one 20-unit building on the west side, at the northwest side 
of Creekside Circle just south of 91st Street just south of the retention basin.  And then three 
more single family lots immediately north of the [inaudible] development at lots 36, 37 and 38.  
But what this did then was it moved six of the 20-unit apartment buildings to the west on either 
side of 91st Street adjacent to Old Green Bay Road.  What it also requires the developer to do is 
to acquire the land north of 91st Street in order to move four of the apartment buildings to that 
location. 

 
Again, one of the reasons why, as you can see the apartments are kind of shifted over to the west 
a little bit on the north side closer to Old Green Bay Road is because of the floodplain and 
wetland that has expanded from that wetland area on that northwest corner.  It still leaves the 
clubhouse right at that main entrance, the parking adjacent to it.  And then it still leaves two 
multi-family buildings south of 91st.  By moving all of the apartments to this location it does 
increase the impervious surface.  So the stormwater basin needed to enlarge significantly.  It’s 
actually identified as a 39 but it’s not a separate lot, it would be an outlot.  And then one of the 
buildings shifted south.  And because of how it was placed the parking is behind of that particular 
unit. 

 
So in the staff comments I have a memo that talks about different things with respect to the 
Comprehensive Plan.  With respect to options one, two and three the Comprehensive Plan from a 
density perspective overall for the entire neighborhood is not exceeded.  But it does need to take 
into account the entire neighborhood so that there’s not an increase in density for this particular 
development. 
 
The Village Park Plan as I mentioned was modified when Ingram Park was a 30 acre community 
park was added with the donation of the land from the Ingram family.  And at that time there was 
a concept that a dog park and a community park and there would be other options there besides 
just a dog park of how that park could be expanded.  So this option eliminates the northern park 
all together, the dog park all together, and assumes that land will be used in Ingram Park for park 
purposes.  With respect to options for the apartments, again, one shows them to the north and 
southwest of his area.  One shows them more to the north and to the west.  And the third option 
just pushes all the density to the west.   

 
With respect to rental versus owner occupied, as I mentioned the zoning ordinance cannot and 
does not regulate the type of ownership for residential dwellings.  The ordinance regulates 
building size, setback, materials and general requirements for the development but cannot 
regulate ownership.  In cases where a Planned Unit Development Overlay is considered, the 
Village in the past has strongly encouraged the developer to place percentages of the developer in 
renter or has requested owner restrictions on the units.  And it’s up to the developer as to whether 
or not they agree to that.  And they agreed wholeheartedly that this was going to be an owner 
occupied development at the time, and that was to be developed by Mastercraft. 

 
The requirement was then placed in the declarations for Creekside development by the original 
developer, and it was also placed in the Village PUD regulations as part of the Village ordinance 
as it relates to the owner occupied nature.  Again, those provisions are on the existing Creekside 
but not in the future Creekside because that area was not yet developed. 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
28 

 
In recent years there have been changes in the State Legislature, and many of you knows this, 
which limits the amount of regulation that a Village has over multi-family units.  We can’t 
regulate the size of the units.  We can’t regulate the number of bedrooms in a unit.  We can’t 
regulate whether they’re owner or renter occupied.  There are a lot of things that have been taken 
away from local communities when it comes to recent developer bills that have been approved 
over the years recently and some of the changes in the condominium statutes that we can no 
longer enforce or regulate.  So our goal is to work with the developers as best we can to put forth 
the best developments we can in a particular area based on the desires of the developer in 
combination with discussing it with Village staff. 

 
Again, not every development is approved the first time it’s presented.  Sometimes, and in this 
case we actually looked at about 12 different options for this development.  You have three of 
them before you this evening, again, one that the residents have seen and now you have seen.  
One that everyone has seen and the Plan Commission recommended with staff making some 
recommendations or modifications to it.  And then now a third option, but again this option has 
not received a public hearing, and the residents have not spoken with respect to this option yet 
because they have not had that opportunity. 

 
So before you you have this evening the recommendation of the Village Plan Commission to 
approve the original recommendation or to deny the original recommendation or to refer that 
recommendation and any others back to the Village Plan Commission.  In anticipation of any 
recommendation that may go back to the Plan Commission we have tentatively set a public 
hearing date in March so that the residents would know in advance prior to leaving this meeting if 
you choose to refer it back to the Plan Commission so that they would have an opportunity to 
express their concerns and comments and any other opinions that they have prior to that date or at 
that meeting.   

 
With that there are other things in my staff comments we can talk about if you’d like to get 
comments.  We have all the department heads here to address everything from infrastructure.  We 
can talk about sidewalks.  We have the engineer here, we can talk about any concerns with 
respect to traffic or management of the apartments from the developer.  Any of the issues that 
have come up this evening we’d be happy to answer any questions that you may have, and the 
developer is here I think as well, although I can’t see him, but I’m sure he’s back there to answer 
any questions that you may have of him. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Jean, one more time can you clarify what our friends in Madison have done for us in the way of 
taking away the Village’s responsibility or duty to regulate or have a say in what can be done in 
these situations.  Our only hope is to work the best case scenario out with the developer to get a 
product that’s kind of a win-win for both sides.  It just irritates me when Madison steps in and 
takes away things from the Village, our powers because they think they know better.  They’re not 
here to answer the questions for the folks here tonight.  So if you could just reiterate one more 
time. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
29 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Well, unfortunately there have been so many developer bills.  There were few in the 2000s, but 
the majority of the developer bills came through in I want to say 2010, 2013, 2015, 2017, 2018, 
there have been a lot of recent developer bills affecting all different aspects of zoning to be 
perfectly honest, development construction, building construction, housing.  There have been so 
many that most communities in Kenosha County were working together to try to play catch up 
and just getting a handle, and we’re working with our state attorneys right now to get an 
understanding of all the changes that we need to implement from letters of credit all the way to 
multi-family housing.  I mean there’s so many things that we need to get caught up with so that 
we’re in sync with the state regulations and changes to marry them up with all the rules that have 
changed. 

 
Again, it’s my belief that there might have been something going on someplace in the state, and 
they thought it would be good to add something related to that.  And then it becomes statewide, 
and then something else in Madison or Waukesha.  I mean it’s throughout the whole state.  But 
we all are obligated to comply with all of these different regulations.  And so that’s what we are 
trying to do.  And we are making our best effort.  And I work closely with all of our developers, 
not just Bear Development.  It’s my job to be able to work and navigate through the system with 
them and present projects to the Village and to try to make good projects come to the Village at 
all times. 

 
But, again, there just have been a number of changes that have been made with like the renter and 
owner occupied.  And another situation is with Airbnbs.  No longer can we regulate an Airbnb 
anywhere in the Village.  If people want to rent out their homes, if they want to rent out their 
units, if it’s an Airbnb we can’t regulate that through home occupation.  I mean we can regulate it 
maybe through tourism or through the Clerk’s office, but I can’t specifically say, no, you can’t 
rent your home for an Airbnb.  I mean a lot of rules have changed.  And, again, we’re trying to 
get caught up with all of those rules to make sure that everyone understands what the new rules 
are. 

 
And one other thing I just wanted to bring to your attention, and I had mentioned this, is that 
while we always believed that this was going to be an owner occupied condominium 
development, obviously a lot of things happened with the economy during the recession between 
2008 and 2013/’14 which really became a downturn in our community and other communities for 
single family development as well as for condominium development.  And as such there wasn’t a 
lot of that type of activity, that new residential development going on.  And so things have just 
started turning around. And as was mentioned we have two new projects that have -- just recently 
in the last year we have been working to develop in Pleasant Prairie The Cottages and Green Bay 
Trail Condominiums.  So in both of those projects we worked with them, and we actually 
approved R-10, R-11 zoning and we intend to and they have PUDs overlay. 

 
This just happens to be a map of what could develop on the property should there be some kind of 
change of heart from their development.  They want to put rental product in here.  This is what 
the current rental product would allow, R-8 on the north end, R-8 with that cul-de-sac and then R-
10 in the center, and then R-9 towards the west end.  Again, much larger single lots, but 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
30 

individual buildings, six 8-unit buildings in the middle, three 4-unit buildings on the west, seven 
2-unit buildings, and then fourteen 2-unit buildings on the north.  But, again, I can’t regulate as to 
whether they would be owner occupied or renter occupied.  I don’t have that authority.  And we 
don’t have any deed restrictions, PUDs, regulations, ordinances that would force that issue.  So I 
wanted you to be able to see that.   

 
Obviously option three was the last of the versions that we had worked on with Bear 
Development.  But there were a number of comments presented here.  There were many more 
comments presented at the Plan Commission meeting regarding concerns raised by the residents.  
And with that I think that ends my presentation.  Again, the department heads are here to answer 
any questions that you might have regarding the development. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

John, just to answer your statement, there’s 140 bills that were passed in Madison that took local 
control away from the municipalities. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Correct.  But I just want to thank Jean and her staff for working on this.  It’s an emotional issue 
for a lot of residents.  It’s a process.  The process has just started.  Jean is working towards an end 
that’s going to hopefully probably not going to make everybody happy, but it’s going to be the 
best solution we can come up with considering the hand we’re dealt. 

 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

John, can I make just a couple of comments just to give some contest to the purpose?  One of the 
biggest concerns with this development with the way Creekside is laid out right now is 
accessibility.  Technically speaking the whole development to the east didn’t have a second 
access, and at this time just according to our ordinance would require some type of second access, 
some type of egress for public safety. 

 
One of the things that I guess the staff that the reason we were entertaining this development in 
the first place was to try to attempt to address that concern.  And that concern was addressed by 
the connection of 91st and also the completion of Creekside Circle.  One of the concerns that we 
have with Creekside Circle in general is making sure that there’s enough development to justify 
even the construction of that road.  So it’s one thing to put the road in now, but also we need 
some type of development on that road to justify the future maintenance and outlay cost of that 
infrastructure. 
And so just some points to bring out regarding that.  One of the concerns on the north is that it’s 
very low.  And the idea is that to require -- the reason why the development in 2015 didn’t really 
go through was because we were going to require basements.  And in order for basements to take 
place it just became cost -- it became ineffective.  And so I guess the point that I want to bring up 
is that in all of our deliberations as staff we’re really trying to find an appropriate balance.   

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
31 

One of the main items that we’ve had and talked about is just the infrastructure of the road 
requirement that we currently have.  We have a very high standard for our roads.  The reason why 
some of the condos that are currently working is because those road requirements aren’t there.  
Jean, you can correct me if I’m wrong, but the condo on 165 was is that the new standard or is 
that the old standard?  Matt? 

 
Matt Fineour: 
 

That development had started so it’s the old standard. 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

The old standard.  And Creekside Circle the south loop was based on the old standard.  And so 
one of the thought processes is that we could sacrifice the standard, but the implication there is 
that in doing so we jeopardize the cost for future maintenance.  And so my point in just making 
this comment is trying to strike the proper balance.  And that’s really what the staff have been 
attempting to do.   

 
With this third option that was suggested we tried to pull as much development along the 
Creekside north as possible in order to continue to justify building that road on the north side and, 
therefore, giving the second access.  Because, again, technically that eastern portion of Creekside 
really shouldn’t have been developed without having had a second access.  It was granted a 
variance at the time with the hope and the thought process that development would come.  That 
development hasn’t come.  Now it’s somewhat here.  We’re trying to address it now as fairly and 
equitably as possible. 

 
The only other point that I want to make is just regarding the parks.  You actually saw it in the 
Park Plan today.  When you looked at the parks and the bubbles that surrounded the parks, with 
Ingram Park the access to the residents exceeded that area of Creekside.  And so the need for a 
northern park basically comes obsolete.  Whereas other entities or other residents or locations in 
the Village technically were outside of those bubbles, and that’s where parks -- we really should 
be focusing our attention on placement of parks. 

 
And then the last comment that I just want to comment on is the sidewalks and just that we 
understand and give context.  With the new road profile part of the thought process was including 
sidewalks in all new development.  One thing that we’re really trying to avoid as staff is creating 
dead ends and creating sidewalks that do go to nowhere.  In the original concept the thought 
process was to connect the parks through a trail system.  But that trail system was going to be on 
the back of lots.  And so the thought process was to try to come up with a better solution and, 
hence, the reason for creating a sidewalk that went around the entire circle.  One, to not create 
dead ends, two to access the park, make it ADA compliant and, three, to avoid trail systems on 
the back of lots. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
32 

Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Mr. President, so Jean if I understand your comments on the current Comp Plan, what’s permitted 
there, we could have basically the same development that Creekside has right now, but if Mr. 
Mills just doesn’t proceed and he sells it or whatever, we can’t stop it from being apartments.  So 
we could end up having all apartments in what is the undeveloped part now that is the second 
phase of Creekside. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

It could develop as a rental product as opposed to owner occupied product.  Again, I don’t know 
how practical it would be because we could require that there be one lot created for each 
individual building as opposed to clusters of buildings.  But the current zoning allows for a rental 
or an owner occupied product. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

All right.  And I agree with Trustee Serpe and the Village President that in village halls and city 
halls and town halls all over the state these communities are working as development occurs to 
have something that works for the entire community.  And the way you find that out is you have 
what we’re having tonight and what you had with the Plan Commission where you get input from 
the community and you’re able to craft something that works for everybody.  And right now the 
state has leveraged that all on the side of a developer.  We can’t change that.  We can’t change it 
tonight, and we can’t change it until the next election.  Even then I don’t think it changes.  But 
that doesn’t mean that we don’t still try to find some way to make this work. 

 
I had a couple questions.  In any of these alternatives when we open up 91st Street to Green Bay 
Road, Matt, I take 93rd every morning, too.  I’m not as early as Sorensen, but the traffic does 
stack up, and if somebody’s coming south on Green Bay Road that light, that traffic doesn’t get 
counted it what I’m thinking.  So if this thing proceeds we need to have traffic improvements and 
signal improvements so that signal counts the traffic coming from the north and the south equally 
along with the traffic coming from the east.  Otherwise that traffic light will only signal for two 
roads waiting, and one road is the only one it’s going to recognize. 

 
Matt Fineour: 
 

You’re exactly right.  That intersection because it’s so close to Green Bay Road right now it has 
kind of a shared right turn and straight through lane and a left turn lane.  As part of Main Street 
Market that intersection will be widened so that there’s actually a designated right turn lane, a 
designated through lane and a designated left lane.  But with that you’re never going to be able to 
change the distance between Green Bay Road and that intersection -- I mean not Green Bay Road 
but Highway 31 and that intersection so you have to modify the signal there so that traffic can go 
through and no one is really backed up.  So it’s a combination of getting each lane done and 
working with the state as far as coordinating that light timing for all the traffic. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
33 

Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Okay, but that would be true at 85th Street as well? 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 

At 85th Street north? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

North. 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 

Potentially.  I mean we would have to see I guess traffic-wise the split of traffic going north and 
south, but you could look at both those intersections. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Okay, so I think that’s got to be -- I mean that has to get in the mix and something has to get it 
done without leaving it to the Village.  And the other thing is have we anticipated what the impact 
fee collection for parks would be with any of these out?  Have we estimated what the impact fee 
for parks would be with any of these options? 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Have we calculated what that number would be? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Right. 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

No, but I can. 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

And, Mike, one thing to point out that there were still -- in the plan in these options the developer 
was going to make improvements to that current mini park as well both from an ADA and also a 
few items of additional equipment.  But clearly the impact fee as well. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
34 

Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Because one of the other options I was going to think of and pose this to John, in the Master Park 
and Trail Plan did we identify a trail that would connect Ingram or even to 89th from this park, or 
was everything on 93rd? 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

Yeah, we do have a connection from Ingram all the way through to 89th with the connection to 
Creekside.  And the current plan still shows the north park and the south park with that trail 
alongside the creek.  So depending on the outcome of this process whether it may be this evening 
or in a month or six months, I’ll make sure that we get that updated to reflect the current change. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Okay, so we could end up having as part of this a trail that goes from Creekside not on the road 
but from Creekside to Ingram? 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

Correct. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

So people could access that larger park.  I guess that’s going to be a policy discussion for the Park 
Commission and the Plan Commission to take a look at.  I know it’s like I don’t want to be 
amending a plan that we just approved.  But on the other hand if this gets amended from here 
tonight, I don’t think this is contingent on it being amended, but I think we need to look at that as 
part of the amendment. 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

You are correct.  The Park Plan that we did approve this evening is a fluid plan, and I do plan on 
changing it as things change within the community.  And so we’re actually looking at taking that 
path and extending it along that sanitary sewer in Outlot 1 eventually all the way out to Old Green 
Bay Road.  Old Green Bay Road will have an on street bike path on both sides eventually when it 
gets reconstructed. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Right, okay, good.  Nathan brought up a really good point.  And I think for the people that came 
here tonight if you look at option three one of the rules that the state has put out is that we have a 
levy freeze, so how much we can levy on properties is frozen every year.  We can’t levy any 
more on a parcel.  The only time the levy really goes up is when there’s new construction.  And 
that’s a one-time hit.  So as a community all of us as taxpayers if we’re going to be extending a 
road in the circle which I think from a public safety standpoint makes sense.  I mean the worse 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
35 

thing to happen is a fire truck or an ambulance goes in and we don’t get a clean address and they 
go in one side, and it turns out it’s on the other side but we can’t get to the other side unless we 
circle back and go all the way to 93rd Street.  You want to make sure those movements work as 
easy as possible. 

 
But one of the problems is that if you look at those lots, 41 through 53 and then the ones on the 
south we’re not going to collect one more dollar in each successive year for we don’t know how 
long than we do the first full year.  So that makes us put a heavy requirement on the developer to 
build a real heavy concrete road with an asphalt top on it.  Because us as taxpayers, and we’re all 
taxpayers here, we don’t want to be going back in and resurfacing roads or rebuilding roads any 
sooner than necessary.  Under the old standard that your roads are built under you’ll see those 
roads will have to have some kind of more expensive maintenance on it than the new standard 
required. 

 
Which brings me to two points.  I think we have to look at -- I’m not in favor of using the existing 
roads for haul roads because our existing roads are under the old standard.  It’s going to be a 
match as to where did the damage come from, was it frost, was it the trucks, was it age, the 
depreciated value?  I don’t really care to get into that, and I don’t think that’s in the Village’s best 
interest.  So I think 91st Street has got to be the one that gets any fill in or out that has to happen. 

 
I guess my recommendation is that, and I’d make it a motion, is that we take the options -- we 
take them all back, but especially the options that haven’t received a pubic hearing before the 
Plan Commission.  Have the staff incorporate any other comments that they have, and I just gave 
you some of the ones that I have, any other comments by the Board and refer this back to Plan 
Commission for them to consider the additional options that have come up and some of the other 
requirements that we might need to take into consideration in approving that plan. 

 
The goal I think for everybody is to get it to be as comfortable a development as possible that’s 
going to bring as much value, maintain as much value as possible for you.  It’s got to maintain as 
much value for the developer.  I don’t think it serves anybody very well if we make this a 
situation where the developer walks, and then we’re fighting the original zoning with multi-
family apartments for the whole site.  That’s a lose-lose in my mind, or we lose and somebody 
else wins down the road.  But I’d like it to go back to the Plan Commission and ferret out those 
additional points and have them take a look at that with another hearing so that people can 
comment on that.  And then you say option three hasn’t been mailed out or it has? 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

It has been mailed out but no public hearing has been scheduled.  They’ve not had an opportunity 
to speak at a public hearing with respect to it.  That would be on March 11th. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I guess my recommendation is -- or my motion is that’s what we do is refer these plans back to 
Plan Commission, have them take another look at it, the option that’s here to gather public input 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
36 

and to pick up any more staff comments or any other comments that the Board might have that 
they want to send back to Plan Commission. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I’ll second that with a comment if I could. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Are you rejecting 19-06? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

No, I’m not rejecting, I’m sending it back.  Before we act on 19-06 gives Plan Commission a 
chance to amend it or modify it before they send it back here again. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I’ll second that.  Mr. Denhartog brought up a couple words tonight that struck me, fact and 
emotion.  And since I’ve been on this Board since we incorporated emotion has always been a 
part of a lot of what we approve or disapprove.  But we try to reach compromise that should be 
included in that fact, emotion and compromise.  This isn’t the first time that this auditorium or the 
previous auditorium has been full of people complaining to the Board or the Plan Commission 
about a development.  It’s changed.  They’re concerned.  We understand that, we appreciate it.  
And like Mike has just said we’re going to try and work through this thing.  You spoke at the 
Plan Commission, we listened, and that’s why we’re here tonight.  And I wholeheartedly support 
that the staff and the Plan Commission take this up again with the options that you have presented 
this tonight. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

What we can do is we can do some more vetting out of these plans and going through some of the 
specific issues and concerns again and go through that.  I’ll talk to the Village Engineer again 
about the traffic.  Again, I think we might have had some mixed signals as to whether a traffic 
study would be needed for this development.  I know that the nearby development would 
certainly need a traffic study, but we’ll certainly look at this area in more detail.  Also the 
question you asked about park impact fees, it would be about $80,000 in park impact fees from 
the option to the development. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Well, I don’t know if that’s going to solve any park issue, but I think once the Park Commission 
and the Plan Commission get a look at some options that they come up with, again, those would 
be hearings for the public to be at to see what we come up with. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
37 

Dave Klimisch: 
 

Jean, you mentioned that the current park might get some upgrades from the developer?  Can you 
speak more about that? 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Yeah, the developer had indicated that he would be willing to donate funding to increase or to put 
in some additional playground equipment at the park.  Those were the improvements.  He would 
do monetary donations to purchase playground equipment. 

 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

And then this is kind of a detail, but on option three that Outlot 39 which is a retention basin on 
the west side -- 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Yes. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

I don’t know the topography, would that be able -- what would it take to move that south one 
place and have the apartment building moved north? 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

We tried to do that in three different versions of this.  But because that is such a low area and 
everything is draining right there, and another area to the south is draining there, everything just 
focuses that that water needs to be right there, otherwise we’d be having to -- and there’s 
residence and stuff adjacent to that that we’d be grading all of their properties because everything 
is draining right there. 

 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

And I concur with what Mike was saying, both Mikes I guess, Pollocoff especially about 
connecting the northern route to make a second exit especially for the residents that are on the 
east side if something were to happen and connecting the trail over to Ingram Park.  It would be a 
nice accessibility touch, accessibility for what is being proposed especially with that connected 
trail.  That would be a very good highlight.  I’m on board with sending it to the Plan Commission 
and the staff and have everybody review the comments and tighten it up and we’ll come back. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

And we can look at that.  It cuts through four properties.  It’s about 1,000 feet or so, but it goes 
through four different properties to get to that location to Ingram Park.  But there are two ways 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
38 

based on our neighborhood plans that it could go more directly, it could go a little bit further to 
the north and coming back down if we wanted to stay adjacent to like a future road system 
pattern.  But otherwise we’d have to re-lay out the neighborhood plan as to how it could work.  
But we’ve looked at that. 

 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

And to make option three viable that lot north of 91st Street would have to be purchased, is that 
something that’s feasible? 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

There would be two properties that would have to be purchased.  And my understanding is that 
Mr. Mills has contacted the property owner to the north and has provided an offer of purchase to 
the first property to the north where the buildings are. 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

I’d like to add if possible my concerns for the congestion from the traffic patterns that may arise 
due to the proposed congestion in some of the areas.  And if possible, not being an expert in this 
field, but in some of the basic research I’ve done there seems to be a mixed bag of results as far as 
whether crime is impacted or disinvestment is impacted depending on the type of subsidized 
housing and whether it’s managed accordingly or well.  And if you could find any type of 
comparables that may lend itself to how other communities may have addressed this issue either 
on the number of units or the type of congestion and density.  It’s always nice to have some other 
examples to look at.  But I think a lot of it is dependent on what the existing area is.  And having 
an area right now that is family friendly and a low crime investment that both the taxpayers and 
the Village have invested in, certainly nobody is looking to devalue that in any capacity. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Just one comment, John.  There was a question tonight from one of the speakers about the project 
devaluating the property.  And I don’t know if tonight is the night, but at some point if we can get 
a comment from the assessor about what this project would do to property values I think would 
be good to have. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

If that could go to the Plan Commission and be part of their discussion evaluation before it comes 
back so we can see how that vets out. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
39 

John Steinbrink: 
 

A roll call vote was requested on the motion and the second.  That’s no longer needed, correct?  
Any further discussion?  We have a motion and a second.  Those in favor? 

 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries.  That takes care of B and C then. 
 

POLLOCOFF MOVED TO REFER ORDINANCE #19-06 FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENT TO A PORTION OF THE WHITTIER CREEK NEIGHBORHOOD PLAN 
LOCATED NORTH OF 93RD STREET AND EAST OF OLD GREEN BAY ROAD BACK TO 
THE PLAN COMMISSION TO TAKE ANOTHER LOOK AT IT AND GATHER PUBLIC 
INPUT AND VILLAGE STAFF INPUT AT A PUBIC HEARING TO BE ON MARCH 11, 2019; 
SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
  

POLLOCOFF MOVED TO REFER THE CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR THE VACANT 
PROPERTIES NORTH OF CREEKSIDE CROSSING AND ADJACENT VACANT 
PROPERTIES TO THE WEST TO BE KNOWN AS THE VISTA AT CREEKSIDE BACK TO 
THE PLAN COMMISSION TO TAKE ANOTHER LOOK AT IT AND GATHER PUBLIC 
INPUT AND VILLAGE STAFF INPUT AT A PUBIC HEARING TO BE ON MARCH 11, 2019; 
SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 D. Consider the Agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and Clark Dietz, 

Inc., for the 47th Avenue Sewer and Water Extension project. 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, I’ll just wait a second.   
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We’ll just pause for a couple minutes until things quiet down.  Okay, Matt, if you just want to 
speak up and we’ll keep on moving. 

 
Matt Fineour: 
 

Sure.  Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a professional service contract with Clark 
Dietz in order to design a water and sewer extension along 47th Avenue.  The sanitary sewer is 
planned to be extended approximately 400 feet from 113th Street north that is to serve 11127 47th 
Avenue who has a bad septic field area.  So we’ll be extending that to service that lot.  And at the 
same time we’ll be designing and constructing a water main to -- basically it’s a system 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
40 

improvement to complete a loop out there between 113th Street where it dead ends and just north 
of 11009 to complete the water main loop. 

 
This project is planned to be an assessable project.  The owner of 11127 47th Avenue has been 
notified of the approximate cost of the sanitary sewer extension and is willing to pay that 
assessment.  And the rest of the water main assessment is planned to be deferred until such time 
the property owners’ hook up, but it’s being done at this time since we’re going to be doing work 
out in that area and we need to complete the loop eventually anyway.  So the service agreement is 
for $26,100 for the design and permitting of that project.  I recommend approval.  And I’m here 
to answer any questions you may have. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I move approval of the contract with Clark Dietz? 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 

POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT WITH CLARK DIETZ FOR 
THE 47TH AVENUE SEWER AND WATER EXTENSION PROJECT; SECONDED BY 
KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 E. Consider an award of contract for the 2019 Annual Paving Program to Payne & 

Dolan, Inc. 
 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this evening I bring before you the paving program 
recommendation.  We did have two bids that came in, one from Payne & Dolan and one from 
Stark Asphalt, really the only two players within the asphalt industry nowadays.  There were 16 
sections as are identified in the map.  I’m not going to go through each of them individually, but I 
can answer any questions that you may have on the specifics of them. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
41 

The budget for this project was just over $1.8 million, and the bid came in at $2.2.  I’d just like to 
note that there’s actually three funds that are put together with this contract.  The $1.8 million 
from the general fund as identified for the paving program, $170,000 for the sewer adjustments, 
and then the Clean Water Utility is $120,000.  So we are over budget a little bit within this 
project.  So what I will recommend is approval of this contract, but we will make some change 
orders once we evaluate the road conditions after this harsh winter to identify which sections we 
have to keep and which sections we may have to defer until next year.  The other option would be 
we could take some other capital funds from other tax levy projects and defer those.  So I’ll work 
with the Village Administrator to identify the best use of those funds.  And with that I can answer 
any questions. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Do you know off the top of your head, and this is an unfair question, but when is 85th Street 
between 39th and Cooper Road slated for repaving?  That carries a lot of traffic, and I know we 
had that one -- 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

From 39th to Cooper Road it probably wouldn’t be a pulverize and relay, it would be a micro 
pave.  So we would mill up the edges, the three quarters and do a thin overlay on this.  We did get 
a new asset management software program just this past year, and we’re in the process working 
with IT to download all of our PASER rating, that’s the rating information that we are required to 
do with the state.  So we will be spending this summer and hopefully having it done by budget 
time to put together a new paving program.  The last one we did is probably 14, 15 years ago so 
we’re probably due to redo it.  And I can probably better answer that question at that time frame. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Because 85th the sanitary manholes are sinking -- 
 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

Correct. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

The storm manholes are sinking. 
 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

I would guess that it will be within the next couple of years.  Because with the paving program 
we work really hard to do preventative maintenance as the micropave on these roads before they 
get to a PASER rating of 4 or 5 where it has to go to a pulverizing relay. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
42 

Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Okay.  Like I say I didn’t expect you to know tonight, but I get a lot of comments on that road, 
and I use it a lot, too.  We did that I believe in ‘88 or ‘89, we did a seal coating on it that didn’t 
turn out very well.  I mean it’s not your fault or anybody, it just didn’t turn out well.  I don’t want 
to see it slip to a pulverize.  That’s a long, wide road. 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

Just by the condition of it as often as I drive it I would say it would be within the next couple 
years. 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Move approval of administration’s recommendation including the notion of potential adjustment 
based on the recent winter. 

 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 

KECKLER MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT WITH PAYNE & DOLAN, INC., 
FOR THE 2019 ANNUAL PAVING PROGRAM SUBJECT TO POTENTIAL CHANGE 
ORDERS; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 F. Consider the McGrath Consulting Group, Inc., for the Fire and Rescue Study. 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 

Village President and Board, before you tonight as a proposal from McGrath Consulting Group, 
as you’re aware during the 2019 budget process there was submitted a request for a $30,000 one-
time budget item for the purpose of a fire and rescue study.  That purpose was to evaluate current 
service delivery and the Village’s capacity to meet community needs both current and future in 
terms of staffing, equipment and facilities. 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
43 

 
Staff requested a proposal.  We received two proposals, one from McGrath Consulting Group, the 
other from the Center for Public Safety Management.  Staff is recommending approval of 
proceeding forward with the McGrath Consulting Group.  The study cost was outlined at $28,900 
not to exceed.  There’s no travel costs or travel costs are included in that base rate.  And then the 
time delivery is about five months.  They’re headquartered in Chicago, so I think that that was 
part of the edge or the benefit that gave them a preferred pricing.  With that any questions you 
might have we can entertain those. 

 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

Move approval of the contract with McGrath Consulting. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion and a second.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 

John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  So carries. 
 

KLIMISCH MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT WITH MCGRATH 
CONSULTING GROUP, INC. FOR THE FIRE AND RESCUE STUDY; SECONDED BY SERPE; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Just one comment.  Thank you, John, for the great job you guys did on the plowing and salting.  It 
was one of those storms that just kept popping back up and required a lot of guys to go out there 
and work and they did a great job. 

 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 

Thank you very much.  I’ll make sure to pass it onto the field staff. 
 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
44 

Michael Serpe: 
 

And more coming Wednesday. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Chief, you had an incident today?  I want to just commend your people on the way you handled 
it. 

 
Chief Smetana: 
 

Yes, it was a false call put into the police department at 7:30 this morning at what sounded like an 
active shooter hostage type situation.  If you listened to the call for service you’ll understand the 
excitement in the dispatcher’s voice as well.  They handled themselves very well as did the 
officers.  It was an organized check box, an organized investigation we carried out from 
beginning to the end locking down the area, making sure the area was safe, making sure critical 
businesses and our own public works and Prange Building was okay and then doing a house to 
house.  So we made a lot of very positive contacts today in the Village and those among them.  So 
job well done by the supervision and by the officers in the street.  We were lucky we had ten 
officers including detectives and supervisors and third shift officers who stayed over and first 
shift officers.  So there were ten of us out there to be able to handle it.  The timing couldn’t have 
been better. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

I just wanted to say thank you.  And, once again, it shows your readiness and capability in the 
department.  So thank all your guys for their work. 

 
Chief Smetana: 
 

It was a good practice, thank you. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Very professional and good luck on an apprehension.  That would be nice. 
 

Chief Smetana: 
 

It sure would.  Thanks. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Further Village Board comments? 
 



Village Board Minutes 
February 18, 2019 
 

 
45 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

How about if we adjourned. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion and a second for adjournment.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 

SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY KECKLER; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0 AND MEETNG ADJOURNED AT 8:20 P.M. 
 



 

Consider approval of a Zoning Text Amendment (Ord. #19-07) to amend Section 420-

125.1 L (4) related to allowing dock doors to face a public street in the M-5, Production 

Manufacturing District. 

Recommendation:  On March 11, 2019, the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 

recommended that the Village Board approve the Zoning Text Amendment as presented in 

the Village Staff Report of March 18, 2019. 

 



2 CODE1902-001 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF MARCH 18, 2019 

Consider approval of a Zoning Text Amendment (Ord. #19-07) to amend Section 420-

125.1 L (4) related to allowing dock doors to face a public street in the M-5, Production 

Manufacturing District. 

 

On March 11, 2019, the Plan Commission conditionally approved Preliminary Site and 

Operational Plans for the developer of the recently created Stateline 94 Corporate Park to 

begin mass grading on the northeast corner of 120th Avenue (East Frontage Road) and 122nd 

Street for the first building, an approximately 590,000 square foot new regional office and 

pharmaceutical processing facility for Fresenius Kabi. 

The property is zoned M-5, Production and Manufacturing District.  The M-5 District provides 

for manufacturing, assembly, office, and research and development uses with limited 

warehouse and distribution uses within an enclosed structure wherein no high hazard uses 

are allowed.  The M-5 District limits the storage and distribution areas to not more than 

30% of the building and that not more than 25% of the exterior linear footage of the 

building be used for dock doors.  Fresenius Kabi’s intended use and building design meets 

the requirements of the M-5 District and the building provides the following uses: 

 Office areas:  16,264 square feet 

 Cooler Storage: 4,838 square feet 

 Controlled Vault:  46,000 square feet 

 Processing Area for Receiving:  81,395 square feet 

 Raw Material and Finish Products for Assembly Packaging:  334,319 square feet 

 Processing Area for Packaging and Assembly:  79,349 

 Circulation:  28,552 square feet 

Due to the development site being a corner lot and the proposed operations of the facility, 

the petitioner is requesting approval of a Zoning Text Amendment to Section 420-125.1 L 

(4) to allow dock doors to face a public street in the M-5, Production Manufacturing District. 

The Village staff is recommending the amended to read: “Dock doors may face a public 

street; only under special circumstances with an approved screening and maintenance plan 

as approved by the Plan Commission.” 

Fresenius Kabi operations are such that materials arrive on the north side of the facility, are 

processed in the center and then leave the building on the opposite side (south side) thus 

having dock doors on both the north and south sides of the building.  As such dock doors 

will face 122nd Street.  No truck traffic will exit the property to the south (the western 

access to 122nd Street is for passenger vehicles of the employees and visitors and the 

eastern access to 122nd Street is a gated emergency access only).  The dock doors facing 

south will be screened from view on 122nd Street.  The building will be approximately 15.5 

feet below 122nd Street and a composite privacy fence with substantial landscaping including 

ornamental trees, evergreens and shrubbery will be installed along the southern property 

line to further screen the dock area from 122nd Street.   

Recommendation:   Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board to 

approve the Zoning Text Amendment as presented. 



CODE1902-001 

ORD. NO. 19-07 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE  

IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT THE FOLLOWING SECTION OF THE 

VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE ARE HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 420-125.2 L (4) related to dock doors is hereby amended to read as follows:  

(4)  Dock doors may shall not face a public street; only under special circumstances 

with an approved screening and maintenance plan as approved by the Plan 

Commission. 

 

Adopted this 18th day of March 2019. 

 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

ATTEST:  

  

John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

  

Jane C. Snell 

Village Clerk 

 

Posted:    

 

07-m-5 dock doors 

 



Foothill



Project Bluepoint – Zoning Text Amendment Application Supplement 

Amend Section 420‐125.1 L (4)  

Rationale: 

The current building orientation of Project Bluepoint conforms with the Building E Master Plan attached 

to the Development Agreement as Exhibit B . The south facing dock positions on this particular lot result 

primarily from the fact Lot E is bordered on two sides by major public ROWs.   

In addition, the user’s process is such that materials arrive on one side of the facility, are processed in 

the center, and then leave the building on the opposite side. Moreover, while the original concept plan 

contemplated a full access point on the east end of the site onto ML, the new Project Bluepoint plan 

eliminates the eastern full access point and instead designates it as emergency only. The western access 

point on ML will serve autos only with the single truck access point serving Project Bluepoint occuring on 

Frontage Road. Hence, there will be no truck traffic on ML from Project Bluepoint (and the “No Truck” 

signs on ML going east will remain).   

We are prepared to address the south dock orientation concern by adding substantial screening 

elements to the project design. We have added substantial screening in the form of ornamental trees, 

evergreens and shrubbery to soften the appearance of the south elevation, which will work in 

conjunction with the substantial set‐back from the road resulting from the native‐planted detention 

basin. In addition, we have added a 10’ tall composite privacy fence and screening vegetation along the 

southern property line to further screen the dock area from the public ROW. In the submitted plans we 

have included some sections along with the updated landscape plans which illustrate that the south 

facing truck court will be screened from the Highway ML ROW.  

Finally, we would also note that the Project Bluepoint building is substantially smaller at 590,000 sf, than 

the 716,000 sf Building E shown on the Development Agreement’s master plan.  

 

 

 



122ND STREET/COUNTY ML

A

A'

SITE CROSS SECTION A-A'
2/15/2019PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN

NORTHSCALE:  1"=100'

200'100'50'0

PROJECT BLUEPOINT - BUILDING E

SCALE:  NTS

SECTION A-A'



EAST FRONTAGE ROAD/120TH AVENUE

B

B'

SITE CROSS SECTION B-B'
1/24/2019PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN

NORTHSCALE:  1"=100'

200'100'50'0

PROJECT BLUEPOINT - BUILDING E

SCALE:  NTS

SECTION B-B'



 

PARCEL 1: 
 
PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWN 1 
NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST OF THE FOURTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING AND BEING IN THE 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE AFORESAID NORTHEAST QUARTER SECTION; 
THENCE N89°36'18"E ALONG AND UPON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 
SECTION, 329.17 FEET; THENCE N03°09'52"W ALONG AND UPON A LINE OF IRON PIPES FOUND 
MARKED, 1338.13 FEET AND TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SAID NORTHEAST 
QUARTER SECTION; THENCE S89°30'59"W ALONG AND UPON SAID NORTH LINE, 324.88 FEET 
AND TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE S89°55'15"W ALONG AND UPON 
THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE AFORESAID NORTHWEST QUARTER SECTION, 
335.50 FEET; THENCE S03°13'20"E 1335.76 FEET AND TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER SECTION; THENCE S89°34'33"E ALONG AND UPON SAID SOUTH LINE, 
330.00 FEET AND TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. AND SUBJECT TO A PUBLIC HIGHWAY OVER 
AND ACROSS THE MOST SOUTHERLY 33.00 FEET THEREOF. 
 
TOGETHER WITH: 
 
PARCEL 2: 
 
PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWN 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST OF THE 
FOURTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING AND BEING IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 
KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, N89°34'33"W 330.00 
FEET FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE CONTINUE N89°34'33"W ALONG AND 
UPON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, 515.78 FEET; THENCE N00°25'27"E 60.00 
FEET AND TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY TRUNK HIGHWAY "ML" (122ND 
STREET); THENCE N89°34'33"W ALONG AND UPON SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 202.04 FEET AND 
TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE N70°58'17"W ALONG AND UPON 
SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 273.56 FEET AND TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE FOR THE 
FRONTAGE ROAD FOR INTERSTATE HIGHWAY I‐94; THENCE N02°12'00"E ALONG AND UPON 
SAID EAST LINE, 1181.34 FEET AND TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SAID QUARTER 
SECTION; THENCE S89°55'15"E ALONG AND UPON SAID NORTH LINE, 946.23 FEET; THENCE 
S03°13'20"E 1335.76 FEET AND TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. AND SUBJECT TO A PUBLIC 
HIGHWAY OVER AND ACROSS THE MOST SOUTHERLY 33.00 FEET THEREOF. 
 



Fresenius Kabi, LLC 

600 Supreme Drive 

Bensenville, Illinois 60106 

T 630-350-7150 

F 630-238-1165 

www.fresenius-kabi.us 

. 

 

 

 

Fresenius Kabi is a global healthcare company that specializes in lifesaving medicines and 

technologies for infusion, transfusion, and clinical nutrition. Our products and services are 

used to help care for critically and chronically ill patients. We are committed to putting 

essential medicines and technologies in the hands of people who help patients and finding 

the best answers to the challenges they face. Our responsibility as a healthcare company 

goes beyond our business operations. Responsible and sustainable management is an 

integral part of our culture and our business. 

 
Fresenius Kabi provides high-quality products with one of the most comprehensive product 

portfolios for core therapeutic areas. We have a global network of marketing, sales, and 

production sites. 

 
We operate five business segments: 

• Clinical Nutrition – Parenteral, Enteral Nutrition, and Medical Devices (pumps) 

• I.V. Drugs – Intravenously Administered Drugs in Oncology, Anti-Infective, 

Anesthetics, Analgesics, and Critical Care segments 

• Infusion Therapy – Infusion solutions, Colloids for Blood Volume Therapy, Medical 

Devices, Pumps 

• Medical Devices/Transfusion Technology – Apheresis, Whole Blood, Autotransfusion, 

Cell Processing Equipment 

• Biosimilars – Focus on Oncology and Autoimmune Diseases 

 
Our new location in Southest Wisconsin will become our flag-ship facility in the US and the 

largest of its kind. Our locational decision is being driven by the proximity of the proposed 

site to our logistical network (both inbound and outbound), the pro-business economic 

climate in the State of Wisconsin, and the availability of competitive local and state level 

economic incentives, including Tax Incremental District (TID) financing, and Transportation 

Facilities Economic Assistance and Development (TEA) programs to assist with infrastructure 

requirements. We will perform the following activities at the new facility: 

• Facility will be a secure environment with card readers, camera systems, and full- 

time security. 

• The entire facility will be operated in a validated, temperature-controlled 

environment. 

• Licensed facility by governing bodies such as Board of Pharmacy, Drug Enforcement 

Agency, and we will operate as a Verified Accredited Wholesale Distributor (VAWD) 

site. All of which require strict policies and procedures for the movement and handling 

of products, as well as a highly trained team of associates to administer the process. 

• Inbound shipments of product from both domestic and overseas plants. 

http://www.fresenius-kabi.us/


Fresenius Kabi, LLC 

600 Supreme Drive 

Bensenville, Illinois 60106 

T 630-350-7150 

F 630-238-1165 

www.fresenius-kabi.us 

. 

 

 

 

• Customs, FDA, USDA, and EPA clearances of inbound shipments from overseas plants 

depending on specific product. 

• Quality Assurance review of inbound product for correct paperwork, labeling, along 

with identification (ID) testing for product received from locations outside the US. 

• Control systems in place for quarantining product, when necessary, pending 

release situations. 

• Schedule II Controlled substance handling and areas which require a DEA 

registered vault. Products and shipments are highly controlled. 

• Base product inventory stored at the facility will have lot and serial number level 

tracking. 

• Base product inventory will be drawn upon to assemble individual customer 

(hospitals, clinics, wholesalers, distributor, blood collection centers), lot level 

requirement orders that are then processed, aggregated and packaged for 

consolidation to our main customers. 

• Facility will have approximately 95 people in a combined office/processing and 

assembly setting. These workers will be skilled in operating equipment as well as all 

regulations related to cGMP, Drug Supply Chain Security (DSCSA), and DEA 

requirements. We have a full electronic training system that ensures employees are 

trained on appropriate policies and procedures for their particular job function. 

Approximately 35% of the total employment is office and technical related functions 

at an average wage of $79,000 per year, and the remaining 65% are operations and 

production functions with an average wage of $41,400 per year, for a combined 

average wage (excluding benefits) of $54,065 per year. 

• Exception processing system will be put in place to track instances of non-conformity 

to assist employees in corrective and preventative actions. 

• The facility will operate on a SAP ERP system that encompasses order processing, 

inventory control, financials, and quality systems. 

• The unique nature of the product and processes used in handling injectable, special 

pharmaceutical products and transfusion technologies require strict federal and 

customer fulfilment regulations. As a result, our throughput is significantly lower than 

other industrial facilities. 

• We will have a small maintenance area for the maintaining of equipment. 

 

Brian Kunz, Senior Director, Supply Chain Management 

http://www.fresenius-kabi.us/


 

PARCEL 1: 
 
PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWN 1 
NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST OF THE FOURTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING AND BEING IN THE 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE AFORESAID NORTHEAST QUARTER SECTION; 
THENCE N89°36'18"E ALONG AND UPON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 
SECTION, 329.17 FEET; THENCE N03°09'52"W ALONG AND UPON A LINE OF IRON PIPES FOUND 
MARKED, 1338.13 FEET AND TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SAID NORTHEAST 
QUARTER SECTION; THENCE S89°30'59"W ALONG AND UPON SAID NORTH LINE, 324.88 FEET 
AND TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE S89°55'15"W ALONG AND UPON 
THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE AFORESAID NORTHWEST QUARTER SECTION, 
335.50 FEET; THENCE S03°13'20"E 1335.76 FEET AND TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER SECTION; THENCE S89°34'33"E ALONG AND UPON SAID SOUTH LINE, 
330.00 FEET AND TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. AND SUBJECT TO A PUBLIC HIGHWAY OVER 
AND ACROSS THE MOST SOUTHERLY 33.00 FEET THEREOF. 
 
TOGETHER WITH: 
 
PARCEL 2: 
 
PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWN 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST OF THE 
FOURTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING AND BEING IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 
KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, N89°34'33"W 330.00 
FEET FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE CONTINUE N89°34'33"W ALONG AND 
UPON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, 515.78 FEET; THENCE N00°25'27"E 60.00 
FEET AND TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY TRUNK HIGHWAY "ML" (122ND 
STREET); THENCE N89°34'33"W ALONG AND UPON SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 202.04 FEET AND 
TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE N70°58'17"W ALONG AND UPON 
SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 273.56 FEET AND TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE FOR THE 
FRONTAGE ROAD FOR INTERSTATE HIGHWAY I‐94; THENCE N02°12'00"E ALONG AND UPON 
SAID EAST LINE, 1181.34 FEET AND TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SAID QUARTER 
SECTION; THENCE S89°55'15"E ALONG AND UPON SAID NORTH LINE, 946.23 FEET; THENCE 
S03°13'20"E 1335.76 FEET AND TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. AND SUBJECT TO A PUBLIC 
HIGHWAY OVER AND ACROSS THE MOST SOUTHERLY 33.00 FEET THEREOF. 
 







ColavittiA
Snapshot

ColavittiA
Snapshot

SicilianoM
Image

ColavittiA
Image

ColavittiA
Snapshot



A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

PROCESSING AREA FOR ASSEMBLY AND PACKAGING

RAW MATERIAL AND FINISH PRODUCT FOR ASSEMBLY AND PACKAGING

PROCESSING FOR RECEIVING

VAULT

VAULT 

EXPANSION

MAIN OFFICE

OFFICE 

EXPANSION

REMOTE OFFICE 

SOUTH

REMOTE OFFICE 

NORTH

COOLER

CIRCULATION

REMOTE RESTROOMS

BUILDING AREA:

MAIN OFFICE                                                                      

OFFICE EXPANSION

REMOTE OFFICE NORTH

REMOTE OFFICE SOUTH

REMOTE RESTROOMS

COOLER

  +/- 10,127 SF     1.71%

    +/- 3,820 SF     0.66%

       +/- 895 SF     0.15%

    +/- 1,238 SF     0.21%

       +/- 184 SF     0.03%

    +/- 4,838 SF     0.82%

  

COLOR 

KEY

BUILDING AREA:

CONTROLLED PRODUCT VAULT

VAULT EXPANSION

PROCESSING AREA FOR RECEIVING

RAW MATERIAL AND FINISH PRODUCT FOR ASSEMBLY PACKAGING

PROCESSING AREA FOR PACKAGING AND ASSEMBLY

CIRCULATION

TOTAL:

  +/- 30,000 SF     5.08%

  +/- 16,000 SF     2.71%

  +/- 81,395 SF   13.78%

+/- 334,319 SF   56.61%

  +/- 79,349 SF   13.44%

  +/- 28,552 SF     4.80%

+/- 590,525 SF    100%

COLOR 

KEY

Copyright © 2019 Forum Studio, Inc.

Project Blue Point
02/15/19PLEASANT PRARIE

1" = 40'-0"+A02-01

1 OVERALL PLAN

SicilianoM
Image

SicilianoM
Snapshot



1 

 

Consider an Amendment (Ord. #19-06) to a portion of the Whittier Creek 

Neighborhood Plan, a component of the Village Comprehensive Plan, generally located 

north of 93rd Street and east of Old Green Bay Road. 

 

Recommendation: Plan Commission held another public hearing on March 11, 2018 

to reconsider the Whittier Creek Neighborhood Plan amendment and denied Plan 

Commission Resolution #19-05 and recommended that the Village Board deny all 

four options as presented at the March 11, 2019 Plan Commission meeting. 

 

 

Consider several options of a Conceptual Plan for the request of Dan Szczap of Bear 

Development LLC, agent for Creekside PP, LLC, the owner of the vacant properties north of 

the Creekside Crossing development and adjacent vacant properties to the west for The 

Vista at Creekside development.  Various development options are proposed for a 

combination of single family lots, two-family lots and multi-family apartment buildings. 

Recommendation: Plan Commission held another public hearing on March 11, 2018 

to reconsider several options of a Conceptual Plan and recommended that the Village 

Board reject all options and direct the Developer to work with Village Staff on 

developing a plan around the original Creekside Development Plan and as another 

option, evaluate 3 or 3A against that original development. 

 



2 

 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF MARCH 18, 2019 

Consider an Amendment (Ord. #19-06) to a portion of the Whittier Creek 

Neighborhood Plan, a component of the Village Comprehensive Plan, generally located 

north of 93rd Street and east of Old Green Bay Road. 

 

Consider several options of a Conceptual Plan for the request of Dan Szczap of Bear 

Development LLC, agent for Creekside PP, LLC, the owner of the vacant properties north of 

the Creekside Crossing development and adjacent vacant properties to the west for The 

Vista at Creekside development.  Various development options are proposed for a 

combination of single family lots, two-family lots and multi-family apartment buildings. 

 

THESE ITEMS ARE PROPOSED TO BE DISCUSSED AT THE SAME TIME HOWEVER 

SEPARATE ACTIONS ARE REQUIRED. 

The petitioner is proposing to develop approximately 58 acres of vacant land generally 

located north of the Creekside Crossing development and the adjacent 9.6 acres of land to 

the west for a project to be known as The Vista at Creekside.  The items being reconsidered 

at the meeting include an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan (Whittier Creek 

Neighborhood Plan) and a Conceptual Plan for the development. 

Background: 

The Creekside Crossing condominium (including 8 unit, 4 unit and 2 unit buildings) and 

single family residential development were initially developed in several phases by 

Mastercraft Builders from 2005-2010.  Portions of the development were then sold to other 

contractors and units were constructed from 2010-2014.  The original development 

anticipated 24 single family lots; 34 2-unit condominium buildings, 17 4-unit condominium 

buildings and 19 8-unit condominium buildings.   All of the single family lots have since 

been developed and all of the condominium units with the exception of two 8-unit buildings 

have been built within the existing platted condominium area.  The undeveloped land in the 

original development proposal would have included a total of 158 additional condominium 

units (11-8 unit buildings, 6-4 unit buildings and 23-2 unit buildings).  

Due to the recession, the undeveloped land has remained vacant for several years.  

Creekside PP, LLC purchased the land and intends to develop the vacant properties.  On 

August 17 , 2015 the Village Board conditionally approved a Conceptual Plan to develop the 

remaining vacant land north and west of the Creekside Subdivision and the Creekside 

Crossing Subdivision and Condominium development adjacent to 89th, 90th and 91st Streets, 

90th Place, 62nd Avenue, and Creekside Circle for 64 single family lots and one (1) two 

family lot.  The Creekside PP, LLC developers, after re-evaluation did not move forward with 

this single family/two family proposal due to the costs of constructing Creekside Circle and 

bridge public improvements, thus the plan did not move forward.   

At this time a new development plan is being proposed for the remaining Creekside vacant 

properties (approximately 58 acres) and additional vacant properties (approximately 9.6 

acres) adjacent to the proposed 91st Street east of Old Green Bay Road.  Various 

development options are being proposed for a combination of single family lots, two-family 

lots and multi-family apartment buildings as further described below. 

At the Plan Commission public hearing held on January 28, 2019, it was staff’s opportunity 

to hear first-hand from the Creekside Crossing residents on The Vista at Creekside 

development proposed by Bear Development.  Although the Plan Commission recommended 

conditional approval of the proposed plan, that motion included direction to the Village staff 



3 

 

to work with the developer to try and address the resident concerns presented at the public 

hearing held by the Plan Commission on January 28, 2019.   

The following concerns were brought up at the public hearing on January 28, 2019: 

 Rental units are now proposed where owner occupied units were presented in the 

original Creekside development. 

 Location and density of the rental apartments within the Creekside development. 

 Management and management practices of the rental units including long term 

maintenance of the apartments and the grounds. 

 Increased crime. 

 Traffic congestion within and adjacent to the development when additional units are 

constructed and speeding currently in the neighborhood. 

 Reduction in property values with the construction of apartments.  

 Public sidewalk location requirements, maintenance and costs. 

 Loss of a proposed Neighborhood Park on the north side of the development. 

After the January 28, 2019 public hearing the Community Development Director met with 

the Plan Commission Chairman, Village staff and the Creekside Crossing Condo Association 

President Bill Demo to better understand and discuss the concerns of the residents and how 

the project could best address the issues or how the development could be improved if it 

moved forward.  The Village Administrator and Community Development Director then had 

further discussions about the issues raised with the Developer and possible plan changes. 

The Developer then submitted various alternatives for the Village staffs review.  These 

alternatives were presented by the Village staff to the Village Board at their February 18, 

2019 meeting.  At the February 18, 2019 Village Board meeting, the Board referred these 

items back to the Plan Commission to hold another public hearing to further evaluate other 

Options. 

The Options being evaluated and discussed tonight include: 

 Option 1: is the development plan that was presented by the Developer at the 

Creekside neighborhood meeting held in November of 2018, which included 37 single 

family lots, 2-two family lots and 7-20 unit apartment buildings with a club house. 

 Option 2: is the development plan that was presented at the Plan Commission 

public hearing on January 28, 2019, which included 43 single family lots, 1-two 

family lot and 7-20 unit apartment buildings with a club house. 

 Option 3: is the development plan as prepared by the Developer wherein the 

developer would acquire an additional 5.6 acres of land north of the proposed 91st 

Street for the development, which would provide for 55 single family lots and 7-20 

unit apartment buildings with a clubhouse. 

 Option 3a: is a development plan as prepared by the Developer which is similar to 

Option 3 except a revised location of a 7-20 unit apartment building within the 

Creekside development (from the west side of Creekside Circle to the east side of 

Creekside Circle). 

 Option 4: is a development plan as prepared by Village staff which outlines under 

current zoning what could be built within the Creekside development area.  Including 

21-two family lots (42 units), 3-four family lots (12 units) and 6-eight family lots (48 

units) for a total of 102 multi-family units.  At the Plan Commission meeting on 



4 

 

March 11, 2019, the developer indicated that he had investigated Option 4 and 

submitted the attached plan being referred to as Option 4a.  This option provides 

for 29 2 unit buildings (58 units) 4-4 unit buildings (16 units), 8 8 unit buildings (64 

units) for a total of 138 units.  All of the buildings are located on individual lots and 

land area that is less than the minimum required in each of the existing zoning 

districts.) 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Any development plan considered by the Village is evaluated 

based on the Village Comprehensive Plan’s goals, objectives, recommendations and policies.  

Neighborhood Plans, are a component of the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, that are 

intended to provide the community with a means of reviewing the patterns of existing and 

probable future development in and around the area proposed for land development, 

evaluating access to the land development and the feasibility of developing certain land 

uses and lot layouts, roadways and parkways, open green spaces and preservation areas, 

schools, municipal facilities and municipal services to serve the neighborhood.  The 

Neighborhood Plan sets forth a guide for future development when a willing landowner 

wishes to develop his land.   

The properties proposed to be developed are located within the southwest corner of the 

Whittier Creek Neighborhood.  [Note:  the entire Whittier Creek Neighborhood is bounded 

by STH 31 (Green Bay Road) on the west, 85th Street on the north, Cooper Road on the east 

and 93rd Street on the south.]   

As land continues to be developed, the Village evaluates proposals and amendments to 

Neighborhood Plans based on other elements of the Comprehensive Plans as well.  For 

primarily residential neighborhoods like the Whittier Creek Neighborhood, the Housing 

Element of the Village Comprehensive Plan is used for guidance.  The Village’s housing goal 

is to “provide a diverse housing supply that meets the Village’s future population needs.  

This includes homes for new residents without prejudice as well as for long-time residents 

whose housing requirements might have changed because of age, household growth or 

decline, income or disability.”  

Furthermore, the Comprehensive Plan sets forth recommendations to achieve the housing 

goals and objectives.  Some of these recommendations include providing a sufficient 

housing options so all income levels in the Village can afford housing utilizing a maximum of 

30% of their gross household income; and continue to support a variety of housing types 

and sizes, and continue to designate appropriate areas for single-family, two-family, and 

multi-family housing development on detailed neighborhood plans that are consistent with 

the Village 2035 Land Use Plan.   

While this is a housing goal of the communities Comprehensive Plan, the document does not 

specifically set forth where in the community that multi-family including workforce housing 

should be located. 

CONCEPTUAL PLANS:  While the Comprehensive Plan, including Neighborhood Plans 

provide framework and guidelines for development, the specific properties that are 

proposed to be developed are required to submit a more detailed plan or Conceptual Plan 

that provides greater detail related to the development of the properties.  Conceptual Plans 

shall be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   



5 

 

EVALUATION OF THE OPTIONS 

Option 1: is the development plan that was presented by the Developer at the Creekside 

neighborhood meeting held in November of 2018, which included 37 single family lots, 2-

two family lots and 7-20 unit apartment buildings with a club house. 

Option 2: is the development plan that was presented at the Plan Commission public 

hearing on January 28, 2019, which included 43 single family lots, 1-two family lot and 7-20 

unit apartment buildings with a club house. 

Option 3: is the development plan as prepared by the Developer, wherein the developer 

would acquire an additional 5.6 acres of land north of the proposed 91st Street for the 

development, which would provide for 55 single family lots and 7-20 unit apartment 

buildings with a clubhouse. 

Option 3a: is a development plan as prepared by the Developer which is similar to Option 3 

except a revised location of a 7-20 unit apartment building within the Creekside 

development (from the west side of Creekside Circle to the east side of Creekside Circle). 

This option was provided by the petitioner after discussion with their neighbors.  The 

building was carefully situated to be buffered by Jerome Creek to the north, and 

open space Outlot to the east and future Single Family to the south. 

Option 4: is a development plan as prepared by Village staff which outlines under current 

zoning what could be built within the Creekside development area.  Including 21-two family 

lots (42 units), 3-four family lots (12 units) and 6-eight family lots (48 units) for a total of 

102 multi-family units.  At the Plan Commission meeting on March 11, 2019, the developer 

indicated that he had investigated Option 4 and submitted the attached plan being referred 

to as Option 4a.  This option provides for 29 2 unit buildings (58 units) 4-4 unit buildings 

(16 units), 8 8 unit buildings (64 units) for a total of 138 units.  All of the buildings are 

located on individual lots and land area that is less than the minimum required in each of 

the existing zoning districts.) 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance:  All Options meet the general goals and objectives of 

the various components of the Comprehensive Plan including the housing goals, objectives 

and recommendations in Chapter 3 of the Comprehensive Plan and all Options meet the 

recommended land use density requirements of the Land Use Plan Map 9.9 of the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

In accordance with the Village Comprehensive Plan, the overall net density for the 

Neighborhood is recommended to be within the Lower-Medium Density Residential land use 

category with the average lot area being between 12,000 square feet 18,999 square feet 

per dwelling unit.  This range allows for some areas of the Neighborhood to have larger lots 

while other areas to have smaller lots to accommodate a variety of housing types.   

The net density of all Options, as shown below in the chart, falls outside the higher range 

of the density; therefore, the overall density is lower than required by the Village 

Comprehensive Plan. 



6 

 

# 
si

n
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 

u
n

it
s

# 
o

f 
u

n
it

s 
w

/i
n

 

a 
2 

u
n

it
 b

ld
g

# 
o

f 
u

n
it

s 
w

/i
n

 

a 
4 

u
n

it
 b

ld
g

# 
o

f 
u

n
it

s 
w

/i
n

 

a 
8 

u
n

it
 b

ld
g

# 
o

f 
u

n
it

s 
w

/i
n

 

a 
20

 u
n

it
 b

ld
g

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

U
n

it
s

G
ro

ss
 a

re
a 

(a
c)

A
p

p
ro

x.
 

w
et

la
n

d
 &

 

fl
o

o
d

p
la

in
 

u
n

d
ev

el
o

p
ab

le
 

(a
c)

N
et

 A
re

a 
o

f 

D
ev

el
o

p
ab

le
 

la
n

d
 (

ac
.)

N
et

 R
es

id
en

ti
al

 

D
en

si
ty

 o
f 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

(s
q

.f
t.

/d
w

el
lin

g 

u
n

it
)

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

u
n

it
s 

N
et

 a
re

a 
o

f 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 

D
ev

el
o

p
ab

le
 

La
n

d
 in

 t
h

e 

N
ei

gh
b

o
rh

o
o

d
N

et
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 

D
en

si
ty

 o
f 

N
ei

gh
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 

(s
q

.f
t.

/d
w

el
lin

g 

u
n

it
)

*P
ro

je
ct

ed
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

Option 1 37 4 0 0 140 181 62 23 39 4.64 784 350 19,446 2,023

Option 2 43 2 0 0 140 185 62 23 39 4.74 788 350 19,348 2,033

Option 3 55 0 0 0 140 195 68 23 45 4.33 798 354 19,324 2,059

Option 3a 54 0 0 0 140 194 68 23 45 4.31 797 354 19,348 2,056

Option 4 0 42 12 48 0 102 58 23 35 2.91 705 343 21,193 1,819

* based on 2017 US Census Estimates for Pleasant Prairie of 2.58 persons per household

IN THE DEVELOPMENT IN THE WHITTIER CREEK NEIGHBORHOOD

 

The overall multi-family net density of Options 3 and 3a is 6.7 dwelling units per acre (140 

units on 20.75 acres) and the overall net density for the entire development is 4.3 dwelling 

units per acre (194 units on approximately 45 acres). [Note: net density excludes wetlands 

and 100-year floodplain.  The original Creekside development area provided a net density of 

4.5 dwelling units per net acre (158 units on a project area of 35 acres). 

Although the multi-family area is close to the industrial park and employment opportunities, 

and the variety of housing types and overall net residential density meets the intent of the 

Comprehensive Plan, the density concentration adjacent to existing and long established 

single family and the owner occupied condominium development warrants further 

consideration as the most appropriate location.  

Village Park Plan:  The initial Creekside Crossing development plan originally approved in 

2005 identified a Neighborhood Park in the northern portion of this development.  However, 

since the initial Conceptual Plan was approved, Ingram Park, a 30-acre Community Park 

located within the Whittier Creek Neighborhood was dedicated to the Village for public park 

purposes.  Therefore, pursuant to the Village Park and Open Space Plan, this smaller public 

neighborhood park was eliminated.  [Note:  The dog park as proposed in Option 2 by the 

Developer would have been a private park owned and maintained privately for the benefit of 

the residents.]  All Options will require the Developer to install a public sidewalk in the 

rights-of-way leading to the park along the entire inner circle of Creekside Circle that will 

meet ADA standard and to add park equipment to the Creekside Park. 

Rental vs. Owner Occupied units:  The Village Zoning Ordinance cannot and does not 

regulate the type of ownership for any residential dwellings.  The Ordinance regulates the 

building design, size, setback, materials and general requirements for development but 

cannot regulate ownership.  In cases where a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay 

District is considered, the Village in the past has encouraged the developer to place 

percentages of renter or owner restrictions on the units.  This was the case in the existing 

Creekside Crossing Condominium development.  This requirement was placed in the 

Condominium Declarations for the Creekside development by the original developer and in 

the Village PUD Ordinance as agreed to by the original developer prior to any of the existing 

condominium units being built.  Note:  In recent years, the State legislature has been 

limiting the amount of local control and regulation that the Village can enforce in multi-

family developments. 

Based on the current zoning of the undeveloped Creekside Crossing, land could be 

developed with approximately 102 multi-family rental units when public improvements are 

installed (roadways, sewer and water) as shown on Option 4.   Specifically, the R-8, Two 

Family Residential District areas on the east and northeast portions of the site could be 

developed with 21-2 unit buildings, the R-9, Multi-Family District in the west portion of the 

site could be developed with 3-4 unit buildings and the R-10, Multi-Family District in the 

central portion of the site on both sides of the creek could be developed with 6-8 unit 



7 

 

buildings.  There is currently no portion of the undeveloped land within the original 

Creekside development area that is zoned for single family development.   

As a result of a neighborhood meeting the developer had with the existing residents within 

the Creekside development in November, 2018 (Option 1), the developer acquired 

additional land to the west and moved two of the apartment buildings (40 units) and the 

club house to this area adjacent to Old Green Bay Road and 91st Street, which also provided 

a main entrance for the new development (Option 2).  Furthermore, after the public 

hearing on January 28, 2019, the Developer indicated that he would acquire an additional 

5.6 acres of land on the north side of 91st Street east of Old Green Bay Road and has 

proposed to move an additional four apartment buildings (60 units) outside of the original 

Creekside development area (Option 3 and 3a).  In the new Options 3 and 3a 1-20 unit 

apartment building (20 units) is proposed to be located within the existing original 

Creekside development area.   

While Options 3 and 3a locates nearly 85% of the units outside the original Creekside 

development area, it places more multi-family units within a smaller area, creating a 

greater density of units (12.5 units/acre) in an area currently zoned for single family 

development surrounded by existing established single family homes.  This exceeds the 9.6 

dwelling units per acre in the R-11, Multi-family Residential District.  [Note:  A Zoning 

Map/Text Amendments would be required to accommodate this option.] 

All Options provide a new main entrance to the development from Old Green Bay Road and 

91st Street.  At this entrance is the club house in Options 2, 3 and 3a.  The club house 

would have a leasing/management office, community gathering space and a small exercise 

room.   

The following briefly describes unit types in Options 1, 2, 3 and 3a: 

 Single Family Lots:  All single family lots shown in Options 1, 2, 3 and 3a would 

be a minimum of 12,500 square feet with 80 feet of frontage (the frontage can be 

reduced to 45 feet on a curve or cul-de-sac) with a minimum lot depth of at least 

125 feet.  A majority of the lots abut up to open space, retention basins, wetlands or 

floodplain.  It is proposed that the home/lot packages will range from $400,000 to 

$525,000 and would be comparable to the current Arbor Ridge Subdivision under 

construction by the petitioner in the Prairie Ridge development south of the Froedtert 

South main hospital, which is adjacent to existing market rate apartment buildings 

and a WHEDA housing tax credit senior apartment building. 

 Two Family Lots:  Any two-family lots shown in Options 1 and 2 would be a 

minimum of 20,000 square feet with the exception of a two family lot at the 

southeast corner of 62nd Avenue and future 89th Street which would be 17,539 

square feet (due to the area available for development) with 100 feet of frontage 

(the frontage can be reduced to 45 feet on a curve or cul-de-sac) with a minimum lot 

depth of at least 125 feet.   

 Multi-Family Lots:  Options 1, 2, 3 and 3a provides for 7-20 unit workforce 

housing apartment buildings (140 units) and a clubhouse.  Each of the apartment 

buildings provides for 8 units on the first floor and 12 units on the second floor that 

range in size from 713 square feet to 1,325 square feet with 8 units in each building 

having an attached garage.  All units are considered condominium style in that all 

units will have an individual entry from the exterior of the building (no common 

hallways or shared entrances).  Conceptual building elevations have been submitted 

that show a variety of building materials including stone, brick and hardiboard siding 

with a grey/blue tone colors.   



8 

 

Each building provides a variety of unit types with a various rental rates including: 

 11-1 bedroom with 1 bathroom 

 1-2 bedroom with 1 bathroom 

 6-2 bedroom with 2 bathrooms 

 2-3 bedroom with 2 bathrooms 

Workforce Housing:  The 7-20 unit apartment buildings (140 units) shown in 

Options 1, 2, 3 and 3a are proposed to workforce housing (Option 4 could include 

workforce housing as well).  The petitioner has submitted and successfully received 

an award of Housing Tax Credits to fund a portion of the development for Workforce 

Housing.  There are many types of tax credits used to construct a variety of housing 

types.  The Housing Tax Credits awarded to this project are not for Low Income 

Housing but for Workforce Housing, and there is a difference.  Low Income housing 

typically serves area median incomes at or about the 30% area median income.   

The housing development being proposed is not low income, but it is income 

restricted as Workforce Housing that provides for rental rates that are very similar to 

current market rate area rents.  

Workforce Housing is designed for active individuals and families with working 

parents or single working professionals or seniors that have a lawful source of 

income.  These units are dedicated to those not typically understood to be the 

targets of affordable housing.  The Workforce Housing requirements mandates a 

maximum rental rate as well as the maximum income of residents.   All tenants must 

have at a minimum three-times their total monthly rent in income to qualify for any 

unit within the proposed development.  The goal of these units is to offer efficient 

and sustainable housing solutions that enable working individuals in moderate 

income vocations or emerging professionals, such police officers, firefighters, 

waitresses, teachers, factory workers, health professionals, and service workers to 

live in the community in which they work.   

The market area income information pursuant to 2018 ESRI information provided by 

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP shows that 28% of the Village’s residents have 

annual incomes less than $50,000 per year and 42% of the Village’s residents have 

an annual income less than $75,000.  Bear’s requirement is that no more than 30% 

of the gross income should be spent on monthly rent. 



9 

 

The rent (excluding utilities and detached garages) ranges are as follows: 

 1 bedroom rents range from $697 to $1,116 with minimum annual income 

ranging from $25,092 to $40,176 and maximum annual income ranging from 

$29,750 to $47,600. 

 2 bedroom unit rents range from $836 to $1,338 with minimum annual 

income ranging from $30,096 to $48,168 and maximum annual income 

ranging from $29,750 to $47,600. 

 3 bedroom unit rents range from $966 to $1,546 with minimum annual 

income ranging from $34,776 to $55,656 and maximum annual income 

ranging from $40,150 to $64,240. 

The Workforce housing program requires the following rental limitations as further 

described in the chart above: 

 84 of the 140 units (60%) will be rented at 50% of the area median income 

 28 of the 140 units (20%) will be rented at 70% of the area median income 

 28 of the 140 units (20%) will be rented at 80% of the area median income  

Pursuant to the applicant, the 40% of the units that will be rented at 70% and 80% 

of the area median income are rental rates are in-line with market rate rents. 

The petitioner has also provided a comparison of the rent to the median home value 

for Pleasant Prairie. 

 

 



10 

 

The following additional information was provided by the developer: 

Rental Rates 

 Workforce Housing was established to guarantee an adequate supply of high-quality 

residences for households at varying ranges of income.  

 In the case of Creekside, households’ annual income will be independently certified 

to confirm not only a sufficient minimum income to afford the monthly rent but also 

a maximum, so allowable within the workforce housing program.  Based on the unit 

mix and IRS requirements it is estimated that minimum incomes will range from 

$25,092.00 to $55,656.00 and maximum incomes will range from $29,750.00 to 

$64,240.00. Please see the above table which outlines the income ranges for the 

respective units. 

 The fully monthly rent is the responsibility of the residents; there is no rental subsidy 

(Section 8). 

 Of the 140 units at Creekside, 56 have rent levels at “market rate” in terms of 

monthly rent. The remaining units are roughly a 35% discount to market rates. All 

single family lots are “market rate.” 

 The Workforce Housing Credits received by Bear are invested into the development 

for the construction of quality, attractive residences. The floor plans, features and 

amenities are of the same quality as market rate apartments. 

 Residents are required to post a security deposit equal to 1 months’ rent. 

Workforce Housing/Market Rate Housing Split 

 The Multi-Family Component is Workforce Housing 

 Of the 140 units at Creekside, 56 include rent levels at “market rate” in terms of 

monthly rent.  

 The remaining units are roughly 35% discount to market rates. 

 The Vista at Creekside also includes 54 Single-Family homes sites which are “market 

rate”. 

Workforce Housing Compliance 

 Compliance with Workforce Housing regulations is strictly enforced by the Wisconsin 

Housing and Economic Development Authority. 

 Compliance with housing regulations and resident eligibility is accomplished through 

annual compliance reviews and audits. 

30 Year Land Use Restriction Agreement 

 Upon receipt of Bear’s final approval from WHEDA (post-construction), Form 8609 

from the IRS and a land use restriction agreement from WHEDA will be recorded 

against the multifamily development. Under this agreement, the development must 

continuously comply with IRS Section 42 and other applicable sections of the internal 

revenue code. The development must also comply with WHEDA codes and 

regulations. These agreements place occupancy restrictions on rents and the 

minimum percentage of units which shall be occupied by households whose income 

meets the Section 42 requirements. These requirements will be continuously 

monitored by WHEDA for a period of 30 years.  



11 

 

Resident Qualification 

 Bear Property Management reserves the right to qualify prospective residents based 

on credit history, criminal background checks, employment verification and asset 

verification. 

  BPM engages a 3rd Party provider to complete background checks. 

 To qualify for residency at Bear projects, prospective residents must demonstrate 

credit history and certifiable monthly income equal to 3 times the monthly rent. 

Occupancy Limits 

 Leases will limit the maximum number of occupants per unit. 

 The limit is based on the specific household make-up. For example, the limit for a 

1BR is two people but if there is a child under 1 then it can be 3 people (e.g. 

mom/dad/baby). 

  Due to Fair Housing issues, Bear must comply with Federal requirements. 

  In instances where there are small children (under age 7), children may share 

bedrooms.  

 1 Bedroom Unit- 3 maximum (married couple and an infant). 

 2 Bedroom Unit- 4 maximum (married couple and 2 children in a bedroom, provided 

the children are all under the age of 7). 

 3 Bedroom Unit- 6 maximum (married couple and 2 children in each bedroom, 

provided the children are all under the age of 7). 

Location of the Apartments:   

 Option 1 provides two apartment locations within the original Creekside 

development area including 4 buildings on the east side of Jerome Creek and 3 

buildings on the west side of the Creek with a club house between each grouping.   

 Option 2 provides 5 buildings on the east side of the Creek and 2 buildings and the 

club house outside of the original Creekside development area on 91st Street at Old 

Green Bay Road.  

 Option 3 would require the developer to purchase an additional 5.6 acres of land 

north of 91st Street and for 6 apartment buildings to be located on 91st Street at Old 

Green Bay Road and 1 apartment building to be located along the west side of the 

original Creekside development area.  Option 3 would require an amendment to the 

approved floodplain boundary adjustment to allow for additional single family lots on 

both sides of Creekside Circle. 

 Option 3a would require the developer to purchase an additional 5.6 acres of land 

north of 91st Street for 6 apartment buildings to be located on 91st Street at Old 

Green Bay Road and 1 apartment building to be located along the east side of the 

original Creekside development area.  Option 3a would also require an amendment 

to the approved floodplain boundary adjustment to allow for additional single family 

lots on both sides of Creekside Circle. 

 Option 4 shows the location of approximately 102 units that could be developed in 

the Creekside Crossing development area based on current zoning of the properties, 

which could be all rental units.  No clubhouse would be proposed.  At the Plan 

Commission meeting on March 11, 2019, the developer indicated that he had 

investigated Option 4 and submitted the attached plan being referred to as Option 



12 

 

4a.  This option provides for 29 2 unit buildings (58 units) 4-4 unit buildings (16 

units), 8 8 unit buildings (64 units) for a total of 138 units.  All of the buildings are 

located on individual lots and land area that is less than the minimum required in 

each of the existing zoning districts.) 

In the instances where the proposed apartment buildings share property lines with existing 

single-family homes (specifically near Old Green Bay Road) the developers will implement 

extensive landscaping and privacy fence to maintain adequate separation, buffer and 

privacy for neighboring property owners. 

Public Infrastructure/Site Access:  Village ordinance and policy requires that 

developments be interconnected and multiple means of roadway access be provided for 

development.  Therefore, the original Creekside Crossing development included multiple 

access points to 93rd Street with an access to Old Green Bay Road via 91st Street, a looped 

roadway known as Creekside Circle and additional future connections to the north and east 

as additional vacant farm lands develop.   

No further development on the east side of the Jerome Creek can be approved by the 

Village until there is another roadway connection either to the west by the completion of 

Creekside Circle and 91st Street to Old Green Bay Road or a public roadway connection to 

the east (about 1,400 feet) to the existing pubic roadway (Ingram Park Drive) located 

within Ingram Park. 

Creekside Circle and 91st Street have been dedicated by the original developer and 

municipal sanitary sewer was extended in a portion of Creekside Circle to service the 

existing development and future development within the vacant areas east of the Creek. 

The primary access for development in all Options will be from Old Green Bay Road at 91st 

Street.  Creekside Circle is planned to be completed (bridge and roadway infrastructure) 

that also allows access to 93rd Street at 63rd and 66th Avenues.  91st Street via Old Green 

Bay Road will also be the construction access and haul roadway for the primary 

development of the subdivision infrastructure and the residential development.  Temporary 

“No Construction Access” signs will be required at the entrances at 93rd Street during the 

duration of the development prior to commencing the public improvements.   

Traffic:  Providing multiple public road connections to and through the development allows 

traffic to be dispersed. Residents living in the neighborhood will travel the easiest path to 

get to their destination.  Most of the new apartment residents will likely exit the 

development through 91st Street and travel north or south on Old Green Bay Road.   The 

projected traffic volume and movements are the same/similar to what was projected by the 

original Creekside development. 

Pursuant to the Village Engineer, the proposed development and the total number of units 

does not warrant a traffic study.  When the 200 acres of vacant land on the south side of 

93rd Street/Dabbs Farm drive is proposed to be developed a Traffic Study will be required.   

The petitioner has completed a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the Main Street Market 

development at STH 165 and STH 31.  This TIA examines roadways north to Dabbs Farm 

Drive.  As part of the Main Street Market development on the corner of STH 165 and Old 

Green Bay Road, the Traffic Impact Analysis completed required that a dedicated right turn 

lane be added to Dabbs Farm Drive between Old Green Bay Road and STH 31.  This new 

lane will be added within the next 5 years.   

However, the existing traffic study could be used as a basis for their traffic engineering to 

the verify that no other improvements are needed at the intersection at Old Green Bay Road 

and 91st Street as a result of the 91st Street connection. 



13 

 

Speeding that was mentioned at the January 28, 2019 public hearing that is currently 

occurring in the neighborhood can be remedied a number of ways.  Since this development 

does not provide access to any other development at this time, the Association should 

remind it residents to slow down and abide by the speed limit.  The police could set up a 

digital speed sign in the neighborhood, or if the speeding happens during certain periods of 

the day, a squad car could be present in the neighborhood and citations could be issued.   

Sidewalks:  In 2016, the Village Board adopted new ordinance requiring the installation of 

sidewalks in residential developments.  The Village Administrator, along with staff have 

been evaluated and prepared a policy on how new sidewalks adjacent to existing 

development without sidewalks would be installed.  The current policy is to complete loops 

or neighborhood blocks and minimize dead ends mid-block.  The alternative is to have the 

developer install 5 foot wide concrete sidewalks only adjacent to the area being developed 

and creating dead ends now and then at a later date sidewalks are extended at the cost of 

the existing property owners as a Village assessed project.   

The Village staff is recommending that within the Creekside development sidewalks and 

pedestrian pathways be installed by the developer at the developer’s cost as shown on the 

attached drawings for each option.   In all Options it is recommended that the developer 

install concrete sidewalks around the interior area of Creekside Circle right-of-way.  This 

interior connection provides pedestrian access that meets ADA standards to the existing 

Creekside Park.  The sidewalk maintenance and snow removal would then be the 

responsibility of the abutting land owners.  

The original Creekside development plan included a pedestrian path adjacent to the creek 

within the multi-family area connection the north and south side of Creekside Circle.  

Options 1, 2, 3 and 3a show single family lots along the creek and placing a pedestrian 

trail along the creek in the backyards of the single family lots is not desirable; therefore, the 

pedestrian connection would be sidewalks adjacent to public roadways. 

Crime:  The Village Police Department is proactive in preventing and solving crimes within 

the Village.  In addition, the Village Security Ordinance (Chapter 410) requires that all 

commercial developments since 2005 and all multi-family (more than 3 units per building) 

developments since 2013 provide for outside camera systems that provide a live-feed back 

to the Village Police Department.  The Village currently has close to 500 cameras monitoring 

development in monitoring development the Village.  While these digital camera systems 

are not monitored 24/7 by the Police Department, many of the cameras can be 

viewed/transmitted to an officer’s computer in their vehicle in the event that they are 

responding to a call. 

Management of Apartments:  The success or failure of any multi-family development, 

whether rental or owner occupied is its management.  Most Village code violations that 

Village received are for owner occupied properties.  The rental apartment properties in the 

Village are well managed and have no ongoing issues with code violations.   

Bear Development has a very good management record and intends to own and manage 

these apartments for the long term.  In this case, a minimum of 15 years as part of their 

portfolio. They also have policies and practices in place to ensure that the exterior of the 

building and the site continues to be well maintained.  In addition, they have rental policies 

and practices to ensure that the tenants take care of their units.   Below is additional 

information provided by the developer 

Property Management 

 The Vista at Creekside will be professionally managed by Bear Property Management.  

 BPM currently manages 1,142 units in Southeastern Wisconsin. 



14 

 

 Bear Property Management has a current occupancy rate of 98.6%. 

 The project will be assigned a Full-Time Property Manager and a Part-Time Leasing 

Agent. 

 The Management Team will be on site between the hours of 9 AM -5PM, Monday 

through Saturday. 

 A Management & Leasing Office will be located within the Community Clubhouse. 

 A 24-Hour Emergency Service is available for management issues outside of 

business hours. 

 The Full-Time Property Manager will not reside on-site.  

 BPM has an accredited Asset Manager on staff to manage, evaluate and improve 

Bear owned assets. 

 The site and individual buildings will also be monitored by video surveillance. 

Parking Management Plan 

 Bear Property Management carefully manages parking to ensure that adequate 

parking spaces are provided for the residents. 

 A Parking Policy will be established prior to building occupancy. All residents will sign 

a Parking Policy Addendum as part of the lease agreement. 

 Vehicles that have not moved for a period of 72 hours will be towed. 

 BPM will restrict the number of vehicles allowed per unit to the number of legal 

drivers residing in the unit. 

 Detached garages shall be used strictly for the parking of vehicles and shall not be 

used primarily for storage. 

Parking of 91st Street 

 After the multi-family buildings are constructed parking on 91st Street shall be 

prohibited at all times. 

Pet Policy 

 The Vista at Creekside shall include three (3) buildings that will be pet-free. 

 In the buildings in which pets are allowed, pets shall be limited to 1 per unit and 

have a maximum weight of forty (40) pounds. 

 Bear Property Management restricts the following dog breeds from BPM Properties: 

Pit Bulls, Staffordshire Terrier, Rottweiler, Doberman Pinscher, Cane Korso, Chow 

Chow, Wolf Hybrids and Akita. Additional Breed Restrictions per the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie will be enforced. 

Eviction Process and Non-Renewal Process 

 Resident eviction is a complicated and time-consuming process and used as a last 

resort.  

 Based on thorough vetting and qualification processes used by BPM, evictions at BPM 

properties are rare. 

 More effectively, Bear Property Management uses the method of Lease Non-renewal 

to remove problematic residents from the apartment community. The threat of 



15 

 

eviction is used to reduce the offending behavior and the resident is simply not 

offered a lease renewal. 

Property values:  Based on information provided by the Village Assessment Office, the 

apartment development based on the proposed rents would be valued at about $58,300 per 

unit or $8,162,000 for the complete 7-20 apartment buildings (140 units).  The existing 

single family homes within Creekside Crossing Subdivision have an average 2018 value of 

$300,000 per unit.  The existing two unit buildings average $250,000 per unit and the 

existing condominiums units in Creekside Crossing average $175,000 per unit. 

At the Village Board meeting on February 18, 2019, Trustee Serpe indicated his interest in 

knowing what impact the stigma of the proposed Section 42 Subsidized Housing Project 

adjacent to and within the Creekside Crossing Condominium development and platted 

Creekside Crossing single family development might have on those existing developments. 

Quantifying the effect of any stigma on real estate values with a specific degree of certainty 

is the subject of scholarly research projects involving large amounts of data and generally 

beyond the scope of municipal assessment offices.  In general terms, attributes of property 

location that are perceived positively by the public tend to impact the market value of a 

property in a positive manner and attributes of property location that are perceived by the 

public in a negative light, tend to have a negative impact on the value of a property.  

Property value is a reflection of its desirability.  The more desirable the buying public 

perceives a property, the more money they are willing to pay for the property.  Conversely, 

attributes detracting from a property’s desirability tempers the public’s willingness to pay as 

much for the property as if those attributes were not present. 

Additionally, supply and demand principles play a role in property value.  The desire to 

acquire property in a specific location plays a role in demand for those properties.  When 

demand for properties in specific locations exceeds the supply of properties for sale, value 

of those properties trend higher. And when there is an over-supply of properties for sale in 

a location, property values languish.   

When considering what type of impact the development of a 140 unit subsidized housing 

development would have on adjacent, existing condominiums and single-family homes we 

can generalize either a positive impact, a neutral impact, or a negative impact to the value 

of properties within those existing developments.   

It difficult to foresee, as a result of the proposed development, an increased desirability or 

demand for existing properties within the existing development.  It is more likely any effect 

on current values of properties within the existing developments will be neutral or negative 

and largely depends of the buying public’s perception of the proposed housing development 

and its influence on their desire to acquire properties located in close proximity to the 

project. 

An additional consideration is whether current property owners within the existing Creekside 

development will flee in numbers greater than the current or future demand for those 

properties.  If this occurs, its possible values of the existing properties will languish or 

decline until supply and demand again becomes stable. 

FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT:  On October 20, 2003 the Village Board 

adopted Resolution #03-42 to approve the Floodplain Boundary Adjustment for the 

Creekside development.  In January 2005, the original developer of Creekside Crossing 

obtained the required Permits from FEMA to begin the floodplain adjustment work.   This 

grading work to amend the 100-year floodplain including the installation of the existing 

bridge on the south side of the development has been completed and the remainder of the 

grading work and the second bridge crossing on the north side of the development along 



16 

 

with the construction of the remainder of Creekside Circle needs to be completed so that the 

100-year floodplain boundary adjustment as-built drawings can be approved by WI DNR and 

FEMA and the official 100-year floodplain maps amended.  If Options 3 or 3a are 

approved, a revised Floopdlain Boundary Adjustment will be required for the additional 

single family lots on the north side of Creekside Circle.  In addition, the location of the 100-

year floodplain on the land that was purchased on the northside of the building shall be 

identified to ensure that no development is occurring in the floodplain. 

WETLANDS:  The wetlands shown within the outlots will remain undisturbed and protected 

during construction.  Two small wetland areas totaling 0.214 acres (9,321.84 square feet) 

are proposed to be filled within Creekside Circle and 91st Street.  Fill permits will be required 

to be obtained by the WI DNR and the US ACOE prior to approval of the Final Plat.   A 

portion of Wetland 5 is located within a future right-of-way that will be dedicated but not 

constructed at this time. In the future if the adjacent properties are developed to the north 

and east, those future developers will be required to obtain any fill permits from the WI DNR 

and US ACOE and extend the public improvements.  In addition, if Options 3 or 3a are 

approved, the location of the wetland on the land that was purchased on the northside of 

the building will need to be identified to ensure that no development is occurring in the 

wetland and property setbacks are being met. 

ZONING MAP AND TEXT AMENDMENTS:  Options 1, 2, 3 or 3a would all require the 

following Zoning Map Amendments:  The single family lots would be rezoned into the R-4, 

Urban Single Family Residential District; the two family lots would be rezoned into the R-8 

Two Family Residential District; the Lots with the apartment buildings and clubhouse would 

be rezoned into the R-11, Multi-family Residential District; all wetlands would be rezoned 

into the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District; the outlots (excluding the wetland 

areas) would be rezoned into the PR-1, Neighborhood Park and Recreational District; the 

100 year floodplain, after floodplain boundary adjustment is completed, would be located 

within the FPO, Floodplain Overlay District; and the entire development would be located 

within a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay District.  [Note:  The rezoning of the 100-

year floodplain cannot be completed until the floodplain adjustment is complete, as-built 

plans are submitted and FEMA CLOMR-F is approved by FEMA.]  The Comprehensive Land 

Use Plan would also need to be amended to reflect the above noted zoning changes to 

ensure that the Land Use Plan and the Zoning Map are consistent. 

[Note:  The lands outside of the Creekside area that are currently zoned R-4, Urban Single 

Family Residential District in Options 2, 3 and 3a would need to be rezoned into the R-11, 

Multifamily Residential District with a PUD]. 

The PUD, would allow for some dimensional flexibility provided that there is a defined 

community benefit.  Some of the PUD variations that are requested for Options 2, 3 and 

3a include:   

 to allow for more than one multi-family building per parcel; 

 to provide a minimum lot size of the single family lots to a minimum of 12,500 

square feet with a minimum frontage of 80 feet with a minimum average lot size of 

15,000 square feet;  

 to provide for a minimum lot size of 17,500 square feet for the two family lot; and 

 to reduce the street and rear setback for the apartment buildings.   

Part of the community benefit is that the developer would provide fire sprinklers within the 

apartment buildings; to provide a minimum of 3 pet free buildings; to limit the size and 

breed of pets allowed (no more than 1 pet per apartment not to exceed 40 pounds at 

mature size); to install sidewalk connections to the existing park on the south side of the 



17 

 

Creekside development and within the development as shown on some Options, to add 

additional park equipment to the public park; to provide enhanced architectural details for 

the buildings and enhanced landscaping within the apartments development areas.  In 

addition, the multi-family areas will be required to be equipped with a Digital Security 

Imaging System (DSIS) pursuant to the Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code.  The 

required DSIS Agreement with the camera locations plan and camera specifications will be 

considered as part of the required Residential Development Plans in the PUD Ordinance. 

Option 4 would require a Zoning Map Amendment to remove the UHO, Urban Landholding 

Overlay District from the current R-8, Two Family Residential District and the R-9 and R-10 

Multi-family residential districts in the Creekside development area.  In addition, all 

wetlands would be rezoned into the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District; the outlots 

(excluding the wetland areas) would be rezoned into the PR-1, Neighborhood Park and 

Recreational District; the 100 year floodplain, after floodplain boundary adjustment is 

completed, would be located within the FPO, Floodplain Overlay District; and the entire 

development would be located within a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay District.  

[Note:  The rezoning of the 100-year floodplain cannot be completed until the floodplain 

adjustment is complete, as-built plans are submitted and FEMA CLOMR-F is approved by 

FEMA.]  The Comprehensive Land Use Plan would also need to be amended to reflect the 

above noted zoning changes to ensure that the Land Use Plan and the Zoning Map are 

consistent. 

Village staff recommends that Resolution #19-05 related to the Whittier Heights 

Neighborhood Plan amendment be revised to reflect the desired Conceptual Plan 

Option, if any, recommended to the Village Board. 

Village staff recommends that if the Plan Commission recommends any of the 

Options be approved that said approval be subject to the above comments and the 

following conditions (note these conditions are based on the review of Option 2; 

however, all conditions would apply to all Options): 

1. See attached comments from the Village Engineer dated December 6, 2018. 

2. See attached comments from the Community Development Department dated 

January 11, 2019.  Further discussion will be warranted related to any PUD 

modifications for setback. 

3. See attached comments for the Village Fire and Rescue Department dated January 

15, 2019. 

4. Additional right-of-way shall be dedicated to the Village on Old Green Bay Road (50 

feet from center, currently 33 feet is dedicated. 

5. See attached current list of government agency contact to be updated and 

corrected on the cover sheet. 

6. All wetlands and 100 year floodplain (after the adjustment) shall be located within 

outlots.  Legal descriptions of the wetlands with the area of each wetland area shall 

be provided on the Plat.  All storm water facilities will be required to be located 

within outlots except for the Basins 2 and 5 that will be on the multi-family lots 

which will require easements. 

7. All outlots with stormwater basins, wetlands, 100-year floodplain shall also have 

easements granted to the Village for the same Floodplain Preservation and 

Protection, Wetland Preservation and Protection, Access and Maintenance Purposes. 

8. The single family lots shall all be a minimum of 12,500 square feet with an average 

lot size 15,000 square feet.  All lots shall be not less than 80 feet in width unless 



18 

 

located on a cul-de-sac or curve, in which case the lot frontage may be reduced to 

45 feet of frontage, provided that there is at least 80 feet of width at the required 

building setback line.  Verify that this is being met after lots are adjusted as noted in 

these comments. 

9. The Residential Lot data Chart shall be revised to list each development type 

separately.  For the multi-family, provide the amount of open space and % of open 

space within those areas as well. 

10. Provide a chart with parking ratios for the multi-family development sites.  At a 

minimum 1 enclosed parking space per unit will be required. 

11. Show locations and sign details of any proposed signage on the plans.  Easements 

will need to be shown on the Preliminary and Final Plats. 

12. All building plans and elevations shall be submitted for the apartments, detached 

garages and clubhouse.  Provide more architectural details for the clubhouse.  

Further discussion is warranted.  See initial comments attached related to the 

revised elevations.  

13. Detailed Residential Development Plans will be required to be submitted for the 

multi-family development sites.  These should include detailed site grading and 

drainage plans, landscaping plans, building plans (for the apartments, garages and 

clubhouse), parking lot and building lighting plans and details, site details including 

fences, garage dumpster and signage.  In addition, the required camera layout and 

specifications pursuant to Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code shall be 

submitted so that the DSIS Agreement and DSIS Access Easement can be drafted. 

The Residential Development Plans will be referenced in the required PUD Ordinance 

and shall be finalized prior to consideration of the PUD and the Final Plat). 

14. The legal description of the wetlands and the square footage of each wetland area 

shall be included on the Preliminary and Final Plats.  Permits from the WI DNR and 

the US ACOE for the wetland areas that are proposed to be filled shall be submitted. 

15. The Landscaping Plan shall be revised and shall include at a minimum: 

a. The base map for the Landscaping Plans shall be the grading plan with street 

names shown and all existing and proposed easements. 

b. The Conceptual Landscaping for the buildings area shall be enhanced and 

additional landscaping is required within the outlot areas. 

c. The Landscape Plan shall include detailed plantings in all cul-de-sac islands. 

d. Details shall be provided for all landscaping around the apartment buildings and 

garages.  (This will also be part of the required Residential Development Plans.) 

e. Stone islands will not be accepted in the parking lot islands. 

f. Provide a note and detail on the Landscape Plan identifying the park 

improvements that are being provided. 

g. The Landscape Plan shall provide an undulating 3 foot high berm with 

staggered Austrian Pines, fencing and other headlight screening adjacent to the 

surface parking lots. 

h. Add additional landscaping east of the 24 unit garage and surface parking along 

the eastern most garage, 

i. A minimum of 2 or 3 gallon planting sizes for annual/perennials will be 

required. 



19 

 

j. The public street tree pattern shall be revised.  There shall be minimum 

groupings of 3-4 of the same tree type on the same side of the street. 

k. Show the entire Creekside Circle and the required sidewalks.  Locate existing 

trees and not any that need to be relocated as a result of the sidewalk 

installation. 

16. All easements shall be shown on the Preliminary and Final Plats, Engineering Plans, 

Residential Development Plans, and Landscaping Plans. 

17. Review and revise the attached draft Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and 

Easements.  In addition, no fences shall be allowed adjacent to Creekside Circle.  

This should be in the Declarations and will also be a PUD requirement. 

18. The Conceptual Plan approval shall be valid for a period of one (1) year.  

Prior to the expiration of the Conceptual Plan, the Preliminary Plat, which 

satisfies the conditions of the Conceptual Plan approval shall be submitted 

and considered by the Plan Commission and Village Board.   

19. Upon approval of the Conceptual Plan the following documents (3 full size 

copies and a pdf) shall be submitted to the Village for staff review prior to 

the Village accepting the Preliminary Plat application and application fee:  

a. Draft of Preliminary Plat.   

b. Revised Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and Easements. 

c. Residential Development Plans (as discussed above) for the Multi-Family areas 

including building material/sample color boards.  In addition, a list of proposed 

dimensional variations being requested to be included in the PUD. 

d. Revised Landscaping Plan. 

e. Revised Engineering Plans, Profiles and Specifications. 

20. Upon staff review of the above draft plans in condition #20, the Preliminary Plat 

application, application fee and items listed in the application shall be submitted for 

the Village to schedule the required public hearing for consideration of the 

Preliminary Plat. 

21. The exact location and size of utility easements shall be verified with We Energies 

and included on the Preliminary and Final Plats.  All utility easements shall be labeled 

as “Dedicated Utility Easements”.  The developer and other homeowners are 

collectively responsible for the ongoing maintenance and facility usage charges as 

imposed by We Energies.  Pursuant to current Village procedures, the Village will 

coordinate the billing for these charges to the Association/homeowners. 

22. The Preliminary Plat shall only be valid for two (2) years from the Village Board’s 

conditional approval, during which all conditions must be satisfied and the Final Plat 

shall be submitted.  If the property is not final platted within the two (2) years of the 

Village Board's approval, the Village shall require that the Plat be resubmitted for a 

new Preliminary Plat approval along with the appropriate filing fees. 

23. Upon approval of the Preliminary Plat the following documents (3 full size 

copies and a pdf) shall be submitted to the Village for staff review prior to 

the Village accepting the Final Plat application and application fee:  

a. Draft Final Plat.   

b. Residential Development Plans (as discussed above) for the Multi-Family areas 

including building material/sample color boards.  In addition, a list of proposed 



20 

 

dimensional variations being requested to be included in the PUD. 

c. A revised draft of the Declarations of Restrictions, Covenants and Easements. 

This document shall be in final form prior to consideration of the Final Plat by 

the Plan Commission. 

d. Landscaping Plan. 

e. Engineering Plans, Profiles and Specifications.  

f. Public Street Lighting Plan, including a copy of the We Energies electrical 

distribution system plan and contract. 

g. Ownership verification documents. 

h. Operating documents for the property owner. 

24. Upon Village staff review of the draft Final Plat and other documents as specified 

above in condition #26, the following shall be submitted so that the required public 

hearings can be scheduled and the Development Agreement can be drafted: 

a. Final Plat application, application fee and related documents.  

b. The Zoning Text and Map Amendment Applications, application fee, the 

Residential Development Plans (3 full size and a pdf) and a letter outlining the 

request dimensional variations to be included in the PUD. 

c. The Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application to amend the Land Use Map 

Amendment and the fee. 

25. Upon Village approval of the Engineering Plans, Profiles and Specifications, the 

Developer shall submit two (2) copies of the final Village approved plans and 

specifications so that the Village can request approval from the Kenosha Water Utility 

(KWU).   

26. Upon written utility plan approval from the KWU, the Developer shall obtain written 

approval from the WI DNR.   

27. Upon Village approval of the Final Engineering Plans and Specifications, 

Landscaping Plan and Street Lighting Plan the following shall be submitted 

to the Village for staff review so that the Development Agreement can be 

finalized by the Village.  The number of copies required are noted below, in 

addition pdf’s of all documents and plans shall be submitted.  All documents 

shall be in final form prior to Village Board consideration of the Final Plat, 

Development Agreement and PUD. 

a. Final Memorandum of Development Agreement (to be drafted by the Village 

and reviewed by the Developer). 

b. Final Development Agreement (to be drafted by the Village and reviewed by the 

Developer). 

c. Recorded Articles of Incorporation for the Homeowner’s Association. 

d. Final Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and Easements. 

e. Final Homeowner’s Association By-Laws. 

f. Verification of taxes and outstanding special assessments being paid.  Any 

outstanding taxes, special assessments or invoices shall be paid prior to 

recording the Final Plat and Memorandum of Development Agreement. 



21 

 

g. A copy of the required wetland fill, N.O.I. Chapter 30 permits from the WI DNR 

and ACOE. 

h. A copy of the public sanitary sewer and water approval letters from the KWU, 

WI DNR, and SEWRPC. 

i. A copy of the signed contracts, certificates of insurance, and performance and 

payment bonds.  The contracts shall have the Developer’s name as shown on 

the title of the property.  The certificates of insurance shall also list the Village 

of Pleasant Prairie as an insured party. 

j. A Policy of Title Commitment equal to the cost of public improvements.  The 

title policy shall indicate that the right-of-way is being dedicated free and clear 

of any encumbrance liens or judgments.  The Title Report Commitment shall be 

updated the day before closing and again within 7 days after closing and 

recording of the documents. 

k. A copy of the signed public street tree/landscaping contract, Street 

Tree/Landscaping Plan and certificate of insurance. 

l. A copy of the signed We Energies contract and Street Lighting Plan. 

m. Erosion Control Permit application and plans and related fees (fees to be 

calculate by the Engineering Department). 

n. Work in the Right-of-Way application, plans and related $150.00 fee. 

o. The Street Sweeping Cash Deposit - $2,000. 

p. Five (5) paper copies of the Final Plat. 

q. Five (5) paper copies of the approved Engineering Plans, Profiles and 

Specifications.   

r. Five (5) paper copies of the Landscaping Plan. 

s. Five (5) paper copies of the Street Lighting Plan, including a copy of the We 

Energies electrical distribution system plan. 

t. Five (5) paper copies of the Residential Development Plans 

u. A “draft” LOC shall be provided to the Village for staff review.     

28. A one year minimum Irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC) to the Village, in the amount 

of 115% of the total cost of public related improvements, including street trees, 

street lights, street signs, field staking, inspections and construction related services 

(including sanitary sewer, and storm sewer cleaning and televising), shall be 

submitted to the Village.  The Itemized Cost Breakdown Exhibit will be prepared by 

the Village staff to determine the amount of the Letter of Credit and the cash 

payments. IMPORTANT:  A draft Letter of Credit equal to the cost breakdown 

analysis (need to verify proper format and dollar amount of Letter of Credit prior 

submitting the Original Letter of Credit.  The Cash payments and the “Final” LOC 

shall be provided prior to the Village at the closing.   

29. If any of the houses are proposed to be used as a model or marketing office, a 

Conditional Use Permit application will be required to be submitted for consideration 

by the Plan Commission.  

30. Upon Village Board approval of the Final Plat and within seven (7) days of said 

approval the Village will host a closing to have the Plat and all of the Development 

Agreement documents signed.  The Developer shall be responsible for recording all 



22 

 

required documents at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office and provide 

proof of recording to the Village within 72 hours of closing with the Village.   

31. Following the closing, the Developer’s engineer shall conduct a pre-construction 

meeting at the Village with all of the contractors, utilities and Village on-site 

inspectors (meeting is required prior to public improvement field work commencing).  

Contact Jean Werbie-Harris to coordinate the pre-con meeting. 

32. This development shall be in compliance with the Village Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance, the Village Municipal and Zoning Codes, the Village 

Construction Site Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance and the State of 

Wisconsin Statutes. 

33. All Village fees incurred by the Village Engineer and/or expert assistant required by 

the Village throughout the development process will be billed directly to the 

Developer.  Such fees shall be paid in a timely manner.  

34. All Village fees incurred by the Village Community Development Department and/or 

expert assistant required by the Village throughout the development process will be 

billed directly to the Developer.  Such fees shall be paid in a timely manner.   

35. Impact fees are due at the time building permits are issued.  Currently, these fees 

are $1,490 per housing unit.   

36. All public and private improvements shall be completed, inspected, and Village 

approved including having sanitary sewer and storm sewer televised, water sampled 

with safe samples, roadways completed, electric and gas utilities installed, signage 

installed and as-built utility and grading plans submitted prior to the issuance of any 

building permits in accordance with the Development Agreement on file with the 

Village. 

DEV1811-005 
CODE1811-003 



pherrick
Text Box
43 SF and 1 2F

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Development also includes 7-20 unit apartment buildings and a club house

pherrick
Typewritten Text
application revised 12-18-18

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Applicaton related to Option 2 as orginally considered at the January 28, 2019 Plan Commission Public Hearing

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text





pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Rectangle





PUBLIC SIDEWALKS

PRIVATE SIDEWALKS

ASPHALT PATH



1

11 14

10

8 7

218 4426

11 13

1919

8

21

171614

19 16

910520 17 19 15

ROOF TRUSS BEARING

119'-3"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-1 7/8"

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

21 22

5

11

23

22

9

3 34 110

87

18 4 2 6

11

19

817 16 14

1916

5 20171915

2122

5

11

23

34

ROOF TRUSS BEARING

119'-3"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-1 7/8"

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

231515

EX T ER IO R  M A T ER IA LS  SC H ED U LE

M A RK D ESC R IPT IO N M A N U FA C TU RER TY PE  /  STY LE D IM EN S IO N S C O LO R N O TES

1 A RC H ITE C TU RA L  A S PH A LT  SH IN G LES O W EN S  C O RN IN G  -  O R  EQ U A L D R IFT W O O D

2 6 " C O M P O S ITE  T R IM  BO A RD JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

3 6  " C O M P O S IT E  F R IEZ E  BO A RD JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

4 C O M P O S IT E  D O O R  &  W IN D O W  T R IM JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

5 H O R IZO N TA L  LA P  S ID IN G  -  1 JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) C O BBLE STO N E

6 H O R IZO N TA L  LA P  S ID IN G  -  2 JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) G RA Y  SLA TE

7 M A SO N RY  V EN EER  -  B R IC K G LEN  G ERY U T IL ITY  S IZE SM O K EY  Q U A RTZ

8 PREC A ST  C O N C RET E  S ILL PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) SEE  PRE C A ST  PR O F ILES G R IS

9 PREC A ST  C O N C RE TE  L IN TEL PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) G R IS

10 C O M PO S ITE  D EC K  BO A RD S A M ER IH A RT W IN C H EST ER  G RA Y

11 M A SO N RY  VEN EER  -  M A N U F A C T U RED  ST O N E C O U N TY  M A TE R IA LS REFLE C T IO N  ST O N E ST ILLN ESS

12 PREF IN ISH E D  A LU M IN IU M  G A RA G E D O O R W A Y N E D A LT O N  -  O R  EQ U A L TO  M A TC H  M O N T ERR EY  TA U PE

13 F IBER G LA S S  EN TRY  D O O R JELD -W EN A U R O R A TO  M A TC H  M O N T ERR EY  TA U PE

14 W O O D  W RA PPED  C O LU M N 1x6 TO  M A T C H  TR IM

15 W A LL  M O U N T ED  U N IT  N U M B ERS TBD M IN . 3 .5 " H E IG H T TBD

16 V IN Y L  W IN D O W S PLY G E M  W IN D O W S A N D  D O O RS V IN Y L SEE  PLA N W H ITE

17 PREC A ST  C O N C RET E  BA N D -  PRO F ILE  #1 PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) SEE  PRE C A ST  PR O F ILES G R IS

18 PREF IN IS H ED  M ET A L RA IL IN G TBD A LU M IN U M SEE  PLA N S BRO N ZE  o r s im ilar

19 V IN Y L S L ID IN G  PA T IO  D O O R PLY G E M  W IN D O W S A N D  D O O RS W H ITE

20 C O R N ER  TR IM JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC ITC  W H ITE

21 VERT IC A L  S ID IN G JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) G RA Y  SLA TE

22 SH A K E  S ID IN G JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) IRO N  G R A Y

23 W A LL M O U N TED  BU ILD IN G  A D D RESS  N U M BERS TBD A S  R EQ U IRED  BY  M U N IC IPA L ITY TBD

JLA PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DATE OF ISSUANCE

These documents reflect progress and intent and may be 

subject to change, including additional detail. These are 

not final construction documents and should not be used 

for final bidding or construction-related purposes.

PROGRESS DOCUMENTS

MADISON   :   MILWAUKEE

jla-ap.com

1
/

1
5

/
2

0
1

9
 2

:
1

4
:5

0
 
P

M

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

18-0918

THE VISTA AT
CREEKSIDE

DECEMBER 19, 2018

A200

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PROGRESS
SET

1/8" = 1'-0"
6

North / Front Elevation

1/8" = 1'-0"
16

Side East Elevation

REVISION SCHEDULE

Mark Description Date

SHEET REVISED JANUARY 15, 2019



ROOF TRUSS BEARING

119'-3"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-1 7/8"

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

11

14

102 184 21 2 5

13

19 1921

17

2216

9 10

2118

11

22

9

33

48 12 1315 9 77

10 182125 19

17

22 1621 18

11

3

41213 1597 7

ROOF TRUSS BEARING

119'-3"

SECOND FLOOR

111'-1 7/8"

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

23 15 15

EX T ER IO R  M A T ER IA LS  SC H ED U LE

M A RK D ESC R IPT IO N M A N U FA C TU RER TY PE  /  STY LE D IM EN S IO N S C O LO R N O TES

1 A RC H ITE C TU RA L  A S PH A LT  SH IN G LES O W EN S  C O RN IN G  -  O R  EQ U A L D R IFT W O O D

2 6 " C O M P O S ITE  T R IM  BO A RD JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

3 6  " C O M P O S IT E  F R IEZ E  BO A RD JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

4 C O M P O S IT E  D O O R  &  W IN D O W  T R IM JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

5 H O R IZO N TA L  LA P  S ID IN G  -  1 JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) C O BBLE STO N E

6 H O R IZO N TA L  LA P  S ID IN G  -  2 JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) G RA Y  SLA TE

7 M A SO N RY  V EN EER  -  B R IC K G LEN  G ERY U T IL ITY  S IZE SM O K EY  Q U A RTZ

8 PREC A ST  C O N C RET E  S ILL PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) SEE  PRE C A ST  PR O F ILES G R IS

9 PREC A ST  C O N C RE TE  L IN TEL PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) G R IS

10 C O M PO S ITE  D EC K  BO A RD S A M ER IH A RT W IN C H EST ER  G RA Y

11 M A SO N RY  VEN EER  -  M A N U F A C T U RED  ST O N E C O U N TY  M A TE R IA LS REFLE C T IO N  ST O N E ST ILLN ESS

12 PREF IN ISH E D  A LU M IN IU M  G A RA G E D O O R W A Y N E D A LT O N  -  O R  EQ U A L TO  M A TC H  M O N T ERR EY  TA U PE

13 F IBER G LA S S  EN TRY  D O O R JELD -W EN A U R O R A TO  M A TC H  M O N T ERR EY  TA U PE

14 W O O D  W RA PPED  C O LU M N 1x6 TO  M A T C H  TR IM

15 W A LL  M O U N T ED  U N IT  N U M B ERS TBD M IN . 3 .5 " H E IG H T TBD

16 V IN Y L  W IN D O W S PLY G E M  W IN D O W S A N D  D O O RS V IN Y L SEE  PLA N W H ITE

17 PREC A ST  C O N C RET E  BA N D -  PRO F ILE  #1 PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) SEE  PRE C A ST  PR O F ILES G R IS

18 PREF IN IS H ED  M ET A L RA IL IN G TBD A LU M IN U M SEE  PLA N S BRO N ZE  o r s im ilar

19 V IN Y L S L ID IN G  PA T IO  D O O R PLY G E M  W IN D O W S A N D  D O O RS W H ITE

20 C O R N ER  TR IM JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC ITC  W H ITE

21 VERT IC A L  S ID IN G JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) G RA Y  SLA TE

22 SH A K E  S ID IN G JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) IRO N  G R A Y

23 W A LL M O U N TED  BU ILD IN G  A D D RESS  N U M BERS TBD A S  R EQ U IRED  BY  M U N IC IPA L ITY TBD

JLA PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DATE OF ISSUANCE

These documents reflect progress and intent and may be 

subject to change, including additional detail. These are 

not final construction documents and should not be used 

for final bidding or construction-related purposes.

PROGRESS DOCUMENTS

MADISON   :   MILWAUKEE

jla-ap.com

1
/

1
5

/
2

0
1

9
 2

:
1

4
:5

0
 
P

M

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

18-0918

THE VISTA AT
CREEKSIDE

DECEMBER 19, 2018

A201

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PROGRESS
SET

1/8" = 1'-0"
6

South / Rear Elevation

1/8" = 1'-0"
16

Side 2 West Elevation

REVISION SCHEDULE

Mark Description Date

SHEET REVISED JANUARY 15, 2019



GARAGE

11

GARAGE

22

GARAGE

33

GARAGE

44

GARAGE

55

GARAGE

66

GARAGE

77

GARAGE

88

GARAGE

99

GARAGE

1010

GARAGE

1111

GARAGE

1212

GARAGE

1313

GARAGE

1414

GARAGE

1515

GARAGE

1616

GARAGE

1717

GARAGE

1818

GARAGE

1919

GARAGE

2020

GARAGE

2121

GARAGE

2222

GARAGE

2323

GARAGE

2424

11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '-9 "

5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '-1 1  1 /2 "

13 5 '- 11  1/ 2 "

11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '- 3  1 /2 " 11 '-9 "

13 5 '- 11  1/ 2 "

5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '- 6 " 5 '-9  1 /2 " 5 '-1 1  1 /2 "

2
1

'-
9

 1
/

4
"

5
 1

/
2

"
2

1
'-

9
 1

/
4

"

4
4

'-
0

"

2
1

'-
9

 1
/

4
"

5
 1

/
2

"
2

1
'-

9
 1

/
4

"

2
1

'-
9

 1
/

4
"

5
 1

/
2

"
2

1
'-

9
 1

/
4

"

4
4

'-
0

"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING

109'-1 1/8"

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

1

20 5

ROOF TRUSS BEARING

109'-1 1/8"

FIRST FLOOR

100'-0"

12

20

21

5

3

12 124

1 2

20

21

5

3

1212 4

JLA PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DATE OF ISSUANCE

These documents reflect progress and intent and may be 

subject to change, including additional detail. These are 

not final construction documents and should not be used 

for final bidding or construction-related purposes.

PROGRESS DOCUMENTS

MADISON   :   MILWAUKEE

jla-ap.com

1
/

1
5

/
2

0
1

9
 2

:
1

4
:5

1
 
P

M

GARAGE PLANS &
ELEVATIONS

18-0918

THE VISTA AT
CREEKSIDE

DECEMBER 19, 2018

A210

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PROGRESS
SET

REVISION SCHEDULE

Mark Description Date

SHEET ADDED JANUARY 15, 2019

1/8" = 1'-0"
17

FIRST FLOOR PLAN - GARAGE

PLAN NORTH

1/8" = 1'-0"
9

Side Elevation - Garage

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

Front Elevation - Garage

EX T ER IO R  M A T ER IA LS  SC H ED U LE

M A RK D ESC R IPT IO N M A N U FA C TU RER TY PE  /  STY LE D IM EN S IO N S C O LO R N O TES

1 A RC H ITE C TU RA L  A S PH A LT  SH IN G LES O W EN S  C O RN IN G  -  O R  EQ U A L D R IFT W O O D

2 6 " C O M P O S ITE  T R IM  BO A RD JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

3 6  " C O M P O S IT E  F R IEZ E  BO A RD JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

4 C O M P O S IT E  D O O R  &  W IN D O W  T R IM JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC T IC  W H ITE

5 H O R IZO N TA L  LA P  S ID IN G  -  1 JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) C O BBLE STO N E

6 H O R IZO N TA L  LA P  S ID IN G  -  2 JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) G RA Y  SLA TE

7 M A SO N RY  V EN EER  -  B R IC K G LEN  G ERY U T IL ITY  S IZE SM O K EY  Q U A RTZ

8 PREC A ST  C O N C RET E  S ILL PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) SEE  PRE C A ST  PR O F ILES G R IS

9 PREC A ST  C O N C RE TE  L IN TEL PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) G R IS

10 C O M PO S ITE  D EC K  BO A RD S A M ER IH A RT W IN C H EST ER  G RA Y

11 M A SO N RY  VEN EER  -  M A N U F A C T U RED  ST O N E C O U N TY  M A TE R IA LS REFLE C T IO N  ST O N E ST ILLN ESS

12 PREF IN ISH E D  A LU M IN IU M  G A RA G E D O O R W A Y N E D A LT O N  -  O R  EQ U A L TO  M A TC H  M O N T ERR EY  TA U PE

13 F IBER G LA S S  EN TRY  D O O R JELD -W EN A U R O R A TO  M A TC H  M O N T ERR EY  TA U PE

14 W O O D  W RA PPED  C O LU M N 1x6 TO  M A T C H  TR IM

15 W A LL  M O U N T ED  U N IT  N U M B ERS TBD M IN . 3 .5 " H E IG H T TBD

16 V IN Y L  W IN D O W S PLY G E M  W IN D O W S A N D  D O O RS V IN Y L SEE  PLA N W H ITE

17 PREC A ST  C O N C RET E  BA N D -  PRO F ILE  #1 PRA IR IE  STO N E (O R  S IM ILA R ) SEE  PRE C A ST  PR O F ILES G R IS

18 PREF IN IS H ED  M ET A L RA IL IN G TBD A LU M IN U M SEE  PLA N S BRO N ZE  o r s im ilar

19 V IN Y L S L ID IN G  PA T IO  D O O R PLY G E M  W IN D O W S A N D  D O O RS W H ITE

20 C O R N ER  TR IM JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) A RC ITC  W H ITE

21 VERT IC A L  S ID IN G JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) G RA Y  SLA TE

22 SH A K E  S ID IN G JA M ES  H A R D IE  (O R  LP  EQ U IVA LEN T ) IRO N  G R A Y

23 W A LL M O U N TED  BU ILD IN G  A D D RESS  N U M BERS TBD A S  R EQ U IRED  BY  M U N IC IPA L ITY TBD



1/8" = 1'-0"
8

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN

JLA PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DATE OF ISSUANCE

These documents reflect progress and intent and may be 

subject to change, including additional detail. These are 

not final construction documents and should not be used 

for final bidding or construction-related purposes.

PROGRESS DOCUMENTS

MADISON   :   MILWAUKEE

jla-ap.com

1
2

/
1

9
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

2
:
4

7
:1

8
 
P

M

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN

18-0918

THE VISTA AT

CREEKSIDE

DECEMBER 19, 2018

A103

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PROGRESS

SET

REVISION SCHEDULE

Mark Description Date



JLA PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DATE OF ISSUANCE

These documents reflect progress and intent and may be 

subject to change, including additional detail. These are 

not final construction documents and should not be used 

for final bidding or construction-related purposes.

PROGRESS DOCUMENTS

MADISON   :   MILWAUKEE

jla-ap.com

1
2

/
1

9
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

2
:
4

7
:2

0
 
P

M

SECOND FLOOR

PLAN

18-0918

THE VISTA AT

CREEKSIDE

DECEMBER 19, 2018

A104

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PROGRESS

SET

REVISION SCHEDULE

Mark Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
8

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN



JLA PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DATE OF ISSUANCE

These documents reflect progress and intent and may be 

subject to change, including additional detail. These are 

not final construction documents and should not be used 

for final bidding or construction-related purposes.

PROGRESS DOCUMENTS

MADISON   :   MILWAUKEE

jla-ap.com

1
2

/
1

9
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

2
:
4

7
:2

1
 
P

M

BUILDING DATA

18-0918

THE VISTA AT

CREEKSIDE

DECEMBER 19, 2018

A105

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PROGRESS

SET

REVISION SCHEDULE

Mark Description Date

3/32" = 1'-0"
7

BUILDING DATA



The Vista @ Creekside

Unit Matrix

Number of Unit AMI Set Ave Sq Ft Max Minimum Min Hourly Max Max Hourly

Bedrooms Count Aside % per Unit Rent Income Wage Income Wage

1 Bedroom 49 50% 732 697 25,092 12.06 29,750 14.30

1 Bedroom 13 70% 732 976 35,136 16.89 41,650 20.02

1 Bedroom 15 80% 732 1,116 40,176 19.32 47,600 22.88

77

2 Bedrooms 27 50% 1,055 836 30,096 14.47 37,150 17.86

2 Bedrooms 12 70% 1,055 1,170 42,120 20.25 52,010 25.00

2 Bedrooms 10 80% 1,055 1,338 48,168 23.16 59,440 28.58

49

3 Bedrooms 8 50% 1,335 966 34,776 16.72 40,150 19.30

3 Bedrooms 3 70% 1,335 1,352 48,672 23.40 56,210 27.02

3 Bedrooms 3 80% 1,335 1,546 55,656 26.76 64,240 30.88

14

Total 140

50% AMI 60% AMI 70% AMI Total

Total Units 84 28 28 140

Comparison to Home/Condo Purchase*

Mortgage Taxes Insurance Total

$206,800 Purchase 939$           345$           32$             1,316$       

     *Median home value for VOPP per 2018 ESRI information is $206,800; assumes a 5.50% loan rate, 80% LTV, 2% tax rate

Pleasant Prairie Area Income Information for 2018*

# %

Households with Income < $50,000 2,176 28%

Households with Income < $75,000 3,281 42%

Household Income Band Households % Cumulative

< $15,000 361 5% 361

$15,000 - $24,999 525 7% 886

$25,000 - $34,999 482 6% 1,368

$35,000 - $49,999 808 10% 2,176

$50,000 - $74,999 1,105 14% 3,281

$75,000 - $99,999 1,163 15% 4,444

$100,000 - $149,999 1,698 22% 6,142

$150,000 - $199,999 798 10% 6,940

$200,000+ 797 10% 7,737

Total Housholds 7,737 100%

*Per 2018 ESRI information provided by Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP



The Vista at Creekside 

Village of Pleasant Prairie Questions & Concerns 

 

Rental Rates 

 Workforce Housing was established to guarantee an adequate supply of high-quality residences 

for households at varying ranges of income.  

 In the case of Creekside, households’ annual income will be independently certified to confirm 

not only a sufficient minimum income to afford the monthly rent but also a maximum, so 

allowable within the workforce housing program.  Based on the unit mix and IRS requirements it 

is estimated that minimum incomes will range from $25,092.00 to $55,656.00 and maximum 

incomes will range from $29,750,00 to $64,240.00. Please see the enclosed table which outlines 

the income ranges for the respective units. 

 The fully monthly rent is the responsibility of the residents; there is no rental subsidy (Section 

8). 

 Of the 140 units at Creekside, 56 have rent levels at “market rate” in terms of monthly rent. The 

remaining units are roughly a 35% discount to market rates. All single family lots are “market 

rate.” 

 The Workforce Housing Credits received by Bear are invested into the development for the 

construction of quality, attractive residences. The floor plans, features and amenities are of the 

same quality as market rate apartments. 

 Residents are required to post a security deposit equal to 1 months’ rent. 

Property Management 

 The Vista at Creekside will be professionally managed by Bear Property Management.  

 BPM currently manages 1,142 units in Southeastern Wisconsin. 

 Bear Property Management has a current occupancy rate of 98.6%. 

 The project will be assigned a Full-Time Property Manager and a Part-Time Leasing Agent. 

 The Management Team will be on site between the hours of 9 AM -5PM, Monday through 

Saturday. 

 A Management & Leasing Office will be located within the Community Clubhouse. 

 A 24-Hour Emergency Service is available for management issues outside of business hours. 

 The Full-Time Property Manager will not reside on-site.  

 BPM has a accredited Asset Manager on staff to manage, evaluate and improve Bear owned 

assets. 

 The site and individual buildings will also be monitored by video surveillance. 

Resident Qualification 

 Bear Property Management reserves the right to qualify prospective residents based on credit 

history, criminal background checks, employment verification and asset verification. 

  BPM engages a 3rd Party provider to complete background checks. 



 To qualify for residency at Bear projects, prospective residents must demonstrate credit history 

and certifiable monthly income equal to 3 times the monthly rent. 

Workforce Housing Compliance 

 Compliance with Workforce Housing regulations is strictly enforced by the Wisconsin Housing 

and Economic Development Authority. 

 Compliance with housing regulations and resident eligibility is accomplished through annual 

compliance reviews and audits. 

Pet Policy 

 The Vista at Creekside shall include three (3) buildings that will be pet-free. 

 In the buildings in which pets are allowed, pets shall be limited to 1 and have a maximum weight 

of forty (40) pounds. 

 Bear Property Management restricts the following dog breeds from BPM Properties: Pit Bulls, 

Staffordshire Terrier, Rottweiler, Doberman Pinscher, Cane Korso, Chow Chow, Wolf Hybrids 

and Akita. Additional Breed Restrictions per the Village of Pleasant Prairie will be enforced. 

Occupancy Limits 

 Leases will limit the maximum number of occupants per unit. 

 The limit is based on the specific household make-up. For example, the limit for a 1BR is two 

people but if there is a child under 1 then it can be 3 people (e.g. mom/dad/baby). 

  Due to Fair Housing issues, Bear must comply with Federal requirements. 

  In instances where there are small children (under age 7), children may share bedrooms.  

 1 Bedroom Unit- 3 maximum (married couple and an infant). 

 2 Bedroom Unit- 4 maximum (married couple and 2 children in a bedroom, provided the 
children are all under the age of 7). 

 3 Bedroom Unit- 6 maximum (married couple and 2 children in each bedroom, provided the 
children are all under the age of 7). 
 

Parking Management Plan 

 Bear Property Management carefully manages parking to ensure that adequate parking spaces 

are provided for the residents. 

 A Parking Policy will be established prior to building occupancy. All residents will sign a Parking 

Policy Addendum as part of the lease agreement. 

 Vehicles that have not moved for a period of 72 hours will be towed. 

 BPM will restrict the number of vehicles allowed per unit to the number of legal drivers residing 

in the unit. 

 Detached garages shall be used strictly for the parking of vehicles and shall not be used primarily 

for storage. 

Parking of 91st Street 

 Parking on 91st Street shall be prohibited at all times. 



30 Year Land Use Restriction Agreement 

 Upon receipt of Bear’s final approval from WHEDA (post-construction), Form 8609 from the IRS 

and a land use restriction agreement from WHEDA will be recorded against the multifamily 

development. Under this agreement, the development must continuously comply with IRS 

Section 42 and other applicable sections of the internal revenue code. The development must 

also comply with WHEDA codes and regulations. These agreements place occupancy restrictions 

on rents and the minimum percentage of units which shall be occupied by households whose 

income meets the Section 42 requirements. These requirements will be continuously monitored 

by WHEDA for a period of 30 years.  

Eviction Process and Non-Renewal Process 

 Resident eviction is a complicated and time-consuming process and used as a last resort.  

 Based on thorough vetting and qualification processes used by BPM, evictions at BPM properties 

are rare. 

 More effectively, Bear Property Management uses the method of Lease Non-renewal to remove 

problematic residents from the apartment community. The threat of eviction is used to reduce 

the offending behavior and the resident is simply not offered a lease renewal. 

Traffic 

 The Vista at Creekside provides an additional point of ingress/egress via 91st Street which will 

relieve traffic within the Creekside development. 

 The projected traffic volume and movements are the same/similar to what was projected by the 

original Creekside (Mastercraft) project. 

Density 

 The Multi-Family Net Density of the Vista at Creekside project is 6.7 Dwelling Units per Acre 

o 140 units on a project area of 20.75 acres 

 The Overall Density of the Vista at Creekside is 2.86 Dwelling Units per Acre 

o 194 units on a project area of 73 acres 

 The Original Creekside Addition 2 included an overall density of 2.53 Dwelling Units per Acre 

o 172 units on a project area of 68 acres. 

Workforce Housing/Market Rate Housing Split 

 The Multi-Family Component is Workforce Housing 

 Of the 140 units at Creekside, 56 include rent levels at “market rate” in terms of monthly rent.  

 The remaining units are roughly 35% discount to market rates. 

 The Vista at Creekside also includes 54 Single-Family homes sites which are “market rate”. 

Proximity of Multi-Family Homes to existing Single Family Homes 

 In all instances, the requires setbacks as set forth by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Municipal 

Ordinance shall be adhered to. 

 In the instances where the proposed Multi-Family Building share property lines with existing 

Single-Family homes (specifically near Old Green Bay Road) the Vista at Creekside project will 



implement extensive landscaping and privacy fence to maintain adequate separation, buffer and 

privacy for neighboring property owners. 

Multi-Family Building on Creekside Circle 

 With careful consideration to our neighbors, Bear has relocated a Multi-Family building from the 

west side of Creekside Circle to the east side. 

 This building will be located east of the intersection of 91st Street and Creekside Circle. 

 The building was carefully situated to be buffered by Jerome Creek to the north, and open space 

Outlot to the east and future Single Family to the south. 

 



pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalks

pherrick
Text Box
Pedestrian walkways (private) 

pherrick
Text Box
Sewer access/Pedestrian trail

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalk conection along inside loop of Creekside Circle 

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalk to intersection



pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalks

pherrick
Text Box
Pedestrian walkways (private) 

pherrick
Text Box
Sewer access/Pedestrian trail

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalk to intersection

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalk conection along inside loop of Creekside Circle 

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line







pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalks

pherrick
Text Box
Sewer access/Pedestrian trail

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalk conection along inside loop of Creekside Circle 

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line



pherrick
Typewritten Text
OPTION 3A

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalks

pherrick
Text Box
Sewer acces/Pedestrian trail

pherrick
Text Box
Public Sidewalk connection along inside loop of Creeksie Circle

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line



pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Typewritten Text
R-10

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text
R-9

pherrick
Typewritten Text
R-8

pherrick
Typewritten Text
R-8

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text
OPTION 4



CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

62
nd

 AV
EN

UE

90th STREET

62
nd

 A
VE

NU
E

90th PLACE

91st STREET

OL
D 

GR
EE

N 
BA

Y 
RO

AD 91st STREET

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

11 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JJC

3-11-2019
- - -
- - -

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 A

LT
ER

N
AT

E 
CO

N
CE

PT
U

AL
 P

LA
N

O
PT

IO
N

 4
.0

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

200'

SCALE 1"=100'

100' 0' 100' 200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING RETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING RETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17,539 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
818,322 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland Fill 0.041 ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland Fill 0.173 ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland Fill 0.004 ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,292 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
26,248 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,131 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,649 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,499 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,929 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,228 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
24,138 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,247 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,062 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
44,976 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
55,791 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
51,761 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
48,078 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
43,039 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
46,957 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
42,903 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
45,215 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
30,442 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
32,875 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
31,471 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
26,493 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,447 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,919 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,509 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
25,334 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,716 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17,436 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,935 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,484 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,068 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,473 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,535 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,079 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,894 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,787 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,840 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,840 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,766 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,256 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,466 S.F.

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Option 4a



  
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

Office of the Village Engineer 
Matthew J. Fineour, P.E.     MEMORANDUM 

 TO:    Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner / Zoning Administrator 
 
FROM:  Matthew Fineour, P.E.,Village Engineer 
 
  SUBJ:  The Vista at Creekside – Conceptual Plan 
    
 DATE:  December 6, 2018 
 

 
Peggy, 
 
The Engineering Department has reviewed the submitted concept plans for the proposed residential 
development. We have the following comments listed below and noted on the attached mark-up plan. Refer to 
both this memo and mark-up plan sheets for all engineering comments.  
 
The engineering plan review was cursory to identify overall conceptual concepts.  Additional review comments 
will be provided as further detailed engineering plans are submitted. 
 
See comments on attached mark-up plan sheets.   

 
1. Only plan sheets with comments are included. 

 
2. Comments that apply to multiple locations are not repeated for every occurrence. 

 
Floodplain Adjustment and Compensatory Storage 
 

3. A floodplain adjustment was instigated by the original Creekside Crossing Development, which includes 
areas within this proposed development.  A floodplain analysis of Jerome Creek Tributary #4 and 
Compensatory Storage Evaluation report was prepared by Hey and Associates.  The Developer of 
Vista at Creekside shall complete the floodplain adjustment.  The following shall be provided and/or 
confirmed: 
 

a. Identify who the engineer of record is that will be assuming responsibility of the floodplain 
adjustment, floodplain modeling, and compensation storage?   
 

b. The engineer of record shall ensure that they obtain a copy of the floodplain adjustment study 
and model that was submitted to the WDNR and FEMA for the CLOMR.  Identify the report date 
and provide a copy the floodplain adjustment study to the Village. 
 

c. The engineer of record shall provide an updated report / memorandum regarding their 
assessment of the previous study and as well as provide the following information: 
 

i. The engineer of record shall confirm that they have reviewed the study and modeling 
and concur with the work of the previous engineer.  Any items that the engineer does not 



P a g e  | 2 
Memo – Vista at Creekside 
December 6, 2018 
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

agree or concur with shall be addressed to ensure the successful completion of the 
floodplain adjustment. 
 

ii. The engineer of record shall evaluate the existing as-built / site conditions and grading 
completed in the previous development phases and how that compares to the previous 
study requirements and modeling.  Address any variances. 
 

iii. Provide a summary of work to be completed as part of the Vista at Creekside 
Development to complete the floodplain adjustment. 

 
4. Lots and buildings located within the existing regulatory floodplain boundary cannot be developed until 

the floodplain adjustment is completed, a FEMA LOMR is obtained, and the Village Zoning Map has 
been amended.  A map showing the effected lots / buildings shall be provided for concurrence and 
understanding between the Village and Developer. 

 
Grading / Storm Water Management 
 

5. Large-scale grading and erosion control plan(s) were not submitted and not reviewed.  Submit in the 
next submittal for review. 
 

6. The storm water management is using the correct peak discharge and water quality standard 
requirements.  A detailed review will be completed with the grading plan review.  Show all offsite 
drainage areas (complete limits) in the post-developed condition drainage map. 
 

7. Ponds are required to have aerators / fountains.  Include in plans. 
 

8. Provide pond cross-sections for each pond. 
 

9. Storm water easement(s) and maintenance agreement provisions are required for the private storm 
water retention basins and storm sewer facilities. 
 

10. Earthwork calculations shall be provided with the engineer’s estimate of the amount of import or export 
of fill needed for the site grading plan. 

 
Roadway 
 

11. Provide a detailed sidewalk plan for the new and existing development.  Additional survey pick-up is 
required to show existing utilities, topography, driveways, street trees, etc.  
 

12. Provide a geotechnical report, including geotechnical recommendations for the roadway design, bridge, 
and sanitary sewer access maintenance path.   Borings shall be performed in 500-foot intervals along 
the roadway, at the bridge location, along the sewer access path, and at pond locations. 
 

i. The sanitary access path shall be designed to support the a sanitary sewer Vac-Truck. 
 

13. Provide a street light plan. 
 

14. Provide a street signage plan or include information in the plans. 
 



P a g e  | 3 
Memo – Vista at Creekside 
December 6, 2018 
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

15. Provide a street tree landscaping plan. Address tree removals and replanting, as may be needed, for 
the overall sidewalk plan. 
 

16. Provide roadway cross-sections. 
 

17. Provide a concrete joint layout plan or note in the plans to require submittal by the Contractor. 
 

18. Confirm that the entire project is being completed in 1 phase.  If phasing, is being proposed then show 
and design phasing limits for roadways, grading, and utilities. 

 
Public Sanitary Sewer and Water 
 

19. See plan mark up.  General alignment and sizing was reviewed. 
 

Private Sanitary Sewer and Water 
 

20. See plan mark up.  General concept layout was provided and reviewed. 
  

21. Private Access and Maintenance Easement(s) shall be provided along with a maintenance agreement 
provisions. 

 
General / Other 
 

22. A project construction and specification manual (project manual) shall be provided. 
 

23. We-energies gas and electric plans will need to be provided for review. 
 

24. Show and label applicable storm sewer easements on the plan(s). 
 
The engineering plans have been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted engineering practices and 
Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the design engineer is responsible for the 
thoroughness and accuracy of plans and supplemental data and for their compliance with all state and local 
codes, ordinances, and procedures.  Modifications to the plans, etc. may be required should errors or changed 
conditions be found at a future date and as additional information is provided. 
 
Attachment:  Plan Mark Up 



CONSTRUCTION
MANAGER

VOPP ENG REVIEW
PLAN MARK UP

DECEMBER 6, 2018

NOTE: CONCEPTUAL PLAN
SUBMITTAL CURSORY REVIEW 

ADD NOTE:  EACH CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A COPY OF THE
VILLAGE APPROVED PLANS, PROJECT MANUAL, AND VILLAGE
CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ON-SITE DURING TIMES OF
CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS.

DELETE
"DEPUTY"



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

344 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

200'

SCALE 1"=100'

100' 0' 100' 200'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 CO

N
CE

PT
U

AL
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

 (N
O

RT
H)

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

62
nd

 AV
EN

UE

90th STREET

62
nd

 A
VE

NU
E

90th STREET

90th PLACE

91st STREET

20 UNITS
20 UNITS

24 GARAGE
SPACES

24 GARAGESPACES

36' x 87'

OL
D 

GR
EE

N 
BA

Y 
RO

AD

20 UNITS 20 UNITS

DOG PARK

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
820

 U
N

IT
S

20
 U

N
IT

S

28
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

BASIN 1

BASIN 4

BASIN 5

BASIN 6

BASIN 3

BASIN 2

24
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

20
 U

N
IT

S

SHOW
EXISTING
HOUSE(S) AND
DRIVEWAYS

ADDRESS ACCESS
TO EXISTING
HOUSE.  ALSO
PROXIMITY TO
20-UNIT IS A
CONCERN.

MISSING
EXISTING
PRIVATE
ROADWAY
(SHOW)

SHOW ADACENT
BUILDIINGS/
STRUCTURES

SHOW BOTH EXISTING
AND PROPOSED
FLOODPLAIN LINES
THROUGH ENTIRE
DEVELOPMENT.DUMPSTER LOCATION IN

FRONT OF EXISTING
RESIDENCE? GET CD INPUT RE
LOCATION

SHOW/ LABEL
PROPOSED
SEWER
ACCESS PATH

IDENTIFY / LABEL
LINES.  ALSO
CARRY THROUGH
ENTIRE
DEVELOPMENT AS
APPLICABLE

SHOW  OLD
GREEN BAY
ROAD
ENTIRE
ROADWAY

SHOW
EXISTING
STRUCTURE
S AND
DRIVEWAYS

mfineour
Note



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

345 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

200'

SCALE 1"=100'

100' 0' 100' 200'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 CO

N
CE

PT
U

AL
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

 (S
O

U
TH

)
FO

R
CR

EE
KS

ID
E 

PP
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

OL
D 

GR
EE

N 
BA

Y 
RO

AD

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

90th PLACE

62nd COURT

63rd AVE

66th COURT

92nd PLACE

93rd STREET

BASIN 4

BASIN 5

BASIN 6

INSTALL SIDEWALK PER
VILLAGE DETAIL WHERE SHOWN

INSTALL SIDEWALK PER
VILLAGE DETAIL WHERE SHOWN

MORE DETAIL WILL NEED TO
BE PROVIDED FOR SIDEWALK: 
PLAN TO SHOW EXISTING
STREET TREES; UTILITIES;
STURUCTURES, ETC.

ADD MISSING
PRIVATE
ROADWAYS AND
ADJACENT
STURCTURES

IDENTIFY EXISTING
PARK AREA / SHOW
EXISTING PATH TO
PLAY AREA

SHOW ADJACENT
STRUCTURES/ PARKING
AREA, RETAINING WALL AND
REAR YARD LANDSCAPING. 
IS RETAINING WALL AND
LANDSCAPING 
ENCROACHING INTO LOT?

ADDRESS

SHOW EXISTING
DRAINAGE WAY;
EXISTING AND
PROPOSED FLOODPLAIN,
THROUGH ENTIRE
DEVELOPMENT

EXISTING CREEKSIDE
CROSSING CONDOMINIUM

DISCUSS ACCEPTABILITY
REGARDING  PROXIMITY TO
EXISTING MULTI-FAMILY
WITH CD

SHOW BRIDGE.  A DETAIL OF THE
SIDWALK ACROSS BRIDGE WILL
NEED TO BE PROVIDED.  ALSO, A
RAILING WILL NEED TO BE
PROVIDED ALONG THE BRIDGE
HEADWALL AND WINGWALLS



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

346 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 M

U
LT

I-F
AM

IL
Y 

N
O

RT
H

DI
M

EN
SI

O
N

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

24 GARAGE
SPACES

24 GARAGESPACES

20 UNITS

20 UNITS

20 UNITS

20 UNITS

DOG PARK

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

BASIN 1

BASIN 2

20
 U

N
IT

S

24
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

LABEL
PROPOSED
FLOODPLAIN
LINE

VERIFY THAT
FIRE TRUCK
CAN MAKE
THIS TURN

SITE DRIVE AND
PARKING AREAS
SHALL BE CURB AND
GUTTERED.  SHOW
AND LABEL C&G.FOUNTAIN

/AIRATOR
REQUIRED
(DEPICT AND
NOTE)

WILL DOG PARK BE
FENCED?  SHOW
FENCE LOCATION
AND INDICATE
FENCE STYLE /
HEIGHT / MATERIAL

CARRY
THROUGH
AND SHOW
PATH / LOT / 
SHOW TO
62ND IF
POSSIBLE

10 ft

DIMENSION PATH
TO PARK.
CONCRETE OR
ASPHALT?

SHOW
NORTH LOT
LINE

EXPAND VIEW LIMITS TO SHOW
ENTIRE CONDO AREA PROPERTY /
DOG PARK / SIDEWALK CROSSING

ETC.



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

347 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 M

U
LT

I-F
AM

IL
Y 

W
ES

T
DI

M
EN

SI
O

N
ED

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN
FO

R
CR

EE
KS

ID
E 

PP
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

28 GARAGE
SPACES

91st STREET

20 UNITS

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

CLUBHOUSE

20 UNITS

BASIN 5

SHOW
ADJACENT /
NEARBY
STRUCTURE
S ETC.

ADDRESS
ACCESS TO
THIS LOT

DISCUSS PROXIMITY TO
20-UNIT AND DUMPSTER
LOCATIONS WITH CD

SHOW ADJACENT
DEVELOPMENT

SITE DRIVES AND
PARKING AREAS TO
BE CURB AND
GUTTERED.  SHOW
AND LABEL C&G.

EXTEND LIMITS TO
SHOW OLD GREEN BAY
ROAD ALONG
DEVELOPMENT AREA

LABEL /
IDENTIFY
LINES (TYP)

LABLEL ROW

SHOW / NOTE
POND
FOUTAIN /
AERATOR

THERE APPEARS TO BE A
25-FOOT EASMENT PER
PREVIOUS PROPERTY
SURVEYS.  VERIFY, SHOW IN
PLANS, AND ADDRESS



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

348 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

200'

SCALE 1"=100'

100' 0' 100' 200'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 M

AS
TE

R 
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

62
nd

 AV
EN

UE

90th STREET

62
nd

 A
VE

NU
E

90th STREET

90th PLACE

91st STREET

20 UNITS 20 UNITS

24 GARAGE
SPACES

24 GARAGESPACES

CLUB
HOUSE

OL
D 

GR
EE

N 
BA

Y 
RO

AD

20 UNITS 20 UNITS

DOG PARK

UTILITY LEGEND

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

BASIN 1

BASIN 2

BASIN 3

BASIN 5

BASIN 6

BASIN 4

28
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

20
 U

N
IT

S

20
 U

N
IT

S

24
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

20
 U

N
IT

S

ROUTE WATER
AND SANITARY
AROUND BRIDGE
STURUCTURE

SHOW OLD GREEN
BAY ROAD.  HAS
SURVEY PICK UP
BEEN DONE ALONG
THIS ROUTE?

EXISTING 12"
WATER MAIN

&

&

kj

kj

kj

kj kj kj kj

kjkj kj

kj kj kj kj

kj kj kj kj

!

!

!

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

??

?

?
PROVIDE MORE
DETAILED SURVEY OF
WATER MAIN ROUTE. 
ROADWAY, EXISTING
UTILITES, ETC.

SHOW
MAINTENANCE
ACCESS PATH

PROVIDE MASTER SIDEWALK PLAN.  AS
PART OF THE PLAN MAINETENANCE
RESPOSIBILITES SHALL BE CLEARLY

NOTED /CODED REGARDING AREAS TO BE
MAINTAINED BY EACH ASSOCIATIONS VS.

INDIVIDUAL LOT OWNERS FRONTING
SIDEWALK



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

349 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 M

U
LT

I-F
AM

IL
Y 

N
O

RT
H

M
AS

TE
R 

U
TI

LI
LT

Y 
PL

AN
FO

R
CR

EE
KS

ID
E 

PP
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

24 GARAGE
SPACES

24 GARAGESPACES

20 UNITS

20 UNITS

20 UNITS

20 UNITS

UTILITY LEGEND

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

BASIN 2

BASIN 1
24

 G
AR

AG
E

SP
AC

ES

20
 U

N
IT

S

PROVIDE
SAMPLING
MANHOLE

PRIVATE ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE
EASEMENT(S) WILL NEED
TO BE PROVIDED OVER
THE PRIVATE SANITARY
AND WATER SERVICE
MAINS



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3410 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 M

U
LT

I-F
AM

IL
Y 

CE
N

TE
R

M
AS

TE
R 

U
TI

LI
LT

Y 
PL

AN
FO

R
CR

EE
KS

ID
E 

PP
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

28 GARAGE
SPACES

91st STREET

20 UNITS

UTILITY LEGEND

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

CLUBHOUSE

20 UNITS

BASIN 5
SAMPLING
MH'S
REQUIRED.
COORDINATE
WITH DPW RE
LOCATION

ROOF DRAINS TO BE CONNECTED TO THE
INTERNAL STORM SEWER SYSTEM;  SHOW

AND NOTE



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3411 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

200'

SCALE 1"=100'

100' 0' 100' 200'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SI

TE
 G

RA
DI

N
G,

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
&

 E
RO

SI
O

N
CO

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

62
nd

 AV
EN

UE

90th STREET

62
nd

 A
VE

NU
E

90th STREET

90th PLACE

91st STREET

20 UNITS 20 UNITS

24 GARAGE
SPACES

24 GARAGESPACES

OL
D 

GR
EE

N 
BA

Y 
RO

AD

20 UNITS 20 UNITS

DOG PARK

PROPOSED 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

75' SHORELAND
SETBACK

BASIN 1

BASIN 4

BASIN 5

EXISTING SPOIL PILES SHALL BE
REMOVED OR INCORPORATED

INTO THE EARTHWORK

8' x 15' x 1.5'

8' x 15' x 1.5'

8' x 15' x 1.5'

8' x 15' x 1.5'

8' x 15' x 1.5'

TRIBUTARY TO JEROME CREEK

BASIN 6

INSTALL FLOOD CONTROL
STRUCTURE PER DETAIL

INSTALL 10'-WIDE
GRAVEL ACCESS ROAD

SITE GRADING & EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

1
29

UTILITY NOTE
EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY
AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE
AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY
FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE
THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY
CONSTRUCTION. IS

S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

REFERENCES
EROSION CONTROL, EARTHWORK, SITE GRADING AND PAVEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
"STATE OF WISCONSIN, STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND STRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION", 2019 EDITION, HEREIN
REFERRED TO AS THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS".

EROSION CONTROL
ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES AND DEVICES SHALL BE INSPECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR AS REQUIRED IN
THE WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (SPS 360.21) AND MAINTAINED PER SPS 360.22:

1.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES FOR MAINTENANCE NEEDS AT ALL
THE FOLLOWING INTERVALS UNTIL THE SITE IS STABILIZED:

     (A)   AT LEAST WEEKLY.
(B)   WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER A RAINFALL EVENT OF 0.5 INCHES OR GREATER.  A RAINFALL EVENT SHALL BE CONSIDERED
TO BE THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF RAINFALL RECORDED IN ANY CONTINUOUS 24-HOUR PERIOD.

2.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A MONITORING RECORD WHEN THE LAND DISTURBING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
INVOLVES ONE OR MORE ACRES.  THE MONITORING RECORD SHALL CONTAIN AT LEAST THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:
(A)   THE CONDITION OF THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES AT THE INTERVALS SPECIFIED ABOVE.
(B)   A DESCRIPTION OF THE MAINTENANCE CONDUCTED TO REPAIR OR REPLACE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL
PRACTICES.

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF
SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE OR THEIR AUTHORIZED AGENTS DURING AND
AFTER THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT.

ALL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO COMMENCING EARTH DISTURBING ACTIVITIES.
CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES UNTIL THE SITE HAS ESTABLISHED A VEGETATIVE COVER
AND IS STABILIZED.  ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE OWNER, ENGINEER OR MUNICIPALITY TO
MEET FIELD CONDITIONS.

INSTALL SILT FENCE PER SECTION 628 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS" AND WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1056 AT THE
LOCATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAN.  ERECT SILT FENCE PRIOR TO STARTING A CONSTRUCTION OPERATION THAT MIGHT CAUSE
SEDIMENTATION OR SILTATION AT THE SITE OF THE PROPOSED SILT FENCE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL OF ALL REQUIRED SILT FENCE MATERIAL.

ALL PROPOSED STORM SEWER STRUCTURES AND ADJACENT EXISTING STORM INLETS SHALL HAVE A LAYER OF GEOTEXTILE
FABRIC (TYPE "FF") INSTALLED BETWEEN THE FRAME & GRATE TO PREVENT SEDIMENT OR SILT FROM ENTERING THE SYSTEM.
THE FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE INSPECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND REPLACED IF NECESSARY EVERY 14 DAYS AND AFTER
EACH RAINFALL.

A MINIMUM 18' WIDE X 50' LONG TRACKING PAD (3-6 INCH STONE) SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE SITE (AS
SHOWN) TO PREVENT SOIL FROM BEING TRACKED ONTO ADJACENT PAVEMENTS AND PUBLIC ROADS.  INSTALLATION AND
MAINTENANCE OF THE TRACKING PAD SHALL BE PERFORMED ACCORDING TO WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1057. ALL
TRACKED SOIL FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE SHALL BE COLLECTED FROM PAVED STREETS AT THE END OF EACH WORKING
DAY.  PERIODIC STREET SWEEPING SHALL BE CONDUCTED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO KEEP THE PUBLIC AND/OR PRIVATE
ROADWAYS FREE OF DUST AND DIRT.

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTROLLING WIND EROSION (DUST) DURING CONSTRUCTION AT HIS/HER EXPENSE
(WHEN NECESSARY OR AS REQUIRED BY LOCAL INSPECTORS).

SITE GRADING & SUB-GRADE PREPARATION
ALL EXISTING TOPSOIL AND OTHER NON-STRUCTURAL MATERIAL WITHIN THE PROPOSED BUILDING PADS, PAVEMENT
SECTIONS AND STRUCTURAL FILL AREAS SHALL BE STRIPPED AND STOCKPILED AT A LOCATION DETERMINED BY THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR AND OWNER.

EXCAVATE, GRADE & SHAPE SUBGRADE TO THE LINES AND GRADES SHOWN ON THE PLANS. SEE TYPICAL SECTIONS FOR
PAVEMENT THICKNESS AND MATERIALS. PREPARE AND COMPACT SUBGRADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE GRADING AND COMPACTION OF THE SUBGRADE, A PROOF ROLL SHALL BE CONDUCTED BY THE
CONTRACTOR ON ALL SUBGRADES TO RECEIVE DENSE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A
FULLY LOADED QUAD-AXLE TRUCK (18 TON MINIMUM LOAD) TO PERFORM THE PROOF ROLL.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
COORDINATE THE PROOF ROLL WITH THE OWNER OR HIS REPRESENTATIVES TO ENSURE THEY ARE PRESENT.

TEMPORARY SEEDING IS REQUIRED FOR ALL STOCKPILES AND OTHER EXPOSED LAND AREAS IF NOT UTILIZED WITHIN 30 DAYS.
AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PAVEMENT WORK, RE-SPREAD SALVAGED TOPSOIL TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM SIX-INCH (6") LAYER
IN ALL LANDSCAPE AND LAWN AREAS.  ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED, FERTILIZED AND MULCHED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTIONS 627, 629 AND 630 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS" OR RESTORED PER SPECIFIC DETAILS IN THE SITE
LANDSCAPE PLAN.

AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL ABANDONED, EXCESS, WASTE,
STOCKPILED AND SPOIL MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 205.3.12 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS". THIS WORK
SHALL BE DONE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

3
27

2
29

5
29

6
29

BASIN 3

BASIN 2

36' x 87'

20
 U

N
IT

S

20
 U

N
IT

S

28
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

10' x 12' x 1.5'

24
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

20
 U

N
IT

S

GRADING NOT REVIEWED: REVIEW TO BE
COMPLETED UPON SUBMITTAL OF LARGE SCALE/

DETAIL GRADING PLAN SHEETS

EXTEND
SURVEY PICK
UP BEYOND
PROPERTY
(TYP)

EXTEND SURVEY PICK
UP (TYPICAL AROUND
PARIMETER)

REVIEW

ADDRESS / PROVIDE
INFORMATIOIN REGARDING
FLOODPLAIN
COMPENSATORY STORAGE
AS PLANNED BY ORIGINAL
DEVELOPMENT

CHANGE TO
12-FEET

PROVIDE ADEQUATE
TURNAROUND AREA

EXTEND
SURVEY PICK
UP. (FOR
GRADING AND
SIDEWALK
PURPOSES

EXTEND
TOPGRAPHIC
SURVEY. DEFINE
OFFSITE DRAINAGE
ROUTE



CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3412 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

ST
A 

0+
00

 T
O

 S
TA

 1
2+

00
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

91
ST

 ST
RE

ET

HYDRANT #1
STA. 1+67.58- 23.5' RT.
13.8' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 699.30
IE. 6" 691.07

HYDRANT #3
STA. 5+31.17 - 23.5' RT.
12.4' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 695.30
IE. 6" 686.74

SAN MH 7

SAN MH 6

SAN MH 5 SAN MH 4

SAN MH 3

SAN MH 2

SAN MH 1

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

HYDRANT #2
STA. 5+79.24 - 23.5' RT.

10.5' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 694.85
IE. 6" 686.11

PLACE 5' BOC
TYP  (21.5)

NOTE HYDRANT
BURY DEPTH (TYP)

VALVE EACH
LEG

ADDRESS
ALGINMENT
ADJUSTMENT



CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3413 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

ST
A 

11
+0

0 
TO

 S
TA

 2
3+

00
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

90TH STREET

HYDRANT #3
STA. 11+66.23 - 23.5' LT.

12.4' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 695.30
IE. 6" 686.74

HYDRANT #4
STA. 15+40.02 - 23.5' LT.

15.2' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 693.60
IE. 6" 684.54

HYDRANT #5
STA. 18+60.23 - 23.5' LT.

12.5' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 695.65
IE. 6" 687.07

EX. SAN MH 4

EX. SAN MH 5

EX. SAN MH 6

EX. SAN MH 7
EX. SAN MH 8

EX. SAN MH 9

EX. SAN MH 10

SAN MH 1

EXISTING SERVICES NOTE:
CONTRACTOR TO EXPOSE EXISTING 4" PVC SANITARY
LATERAL AND CONFIRM SUFFICIENT DEPTH FOR
BASEMENT SERVICE FOR LOTS 21-23. LATERAL SHALL
BE REPLACED IF NECESSARY.

WATER SERVICES FOR LOTS 21-23 SHALL BE PROVIDED
BY EXISTING 1 1/4" HDPE SERVICES. CONTRACTOR
SHALL CONFIRM SERVICES ARE FUNCTIONAL AND
REPLACE IF NECESSARY.  DUPLICATE WATER SERVICES
SHALL BE REMOVED.

EXISTING WATER SERVICES
TO BE REMOVED.

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

BASIN 3

HYDRANT #6
STA. 21+64.30 - 23.5' LT.
WITH G.V. AND BOX
CONNECT TO EXISTING
6" WATER SERVICE

ROUTE SEWER AND
WATER AROUND
BRIDGE; PROVIDE
LAYOUT FOR REVIEW
WITH GRADING PLAN

SHOW BRIDGE
STRUCTURE IN
PROFILE

HORIZONTAL BENDS? 
CLARIFY IS THIS BEING
DONE BY DEFLECTIONS?

PROVIDE SERVICE
BRANCH VALVE

WHY GRADE
BREAK? 
ELIMINATE IF
POSSIBLE

7 ft

72 ft

EXISTING 7.5' RISER AND
LATERAL PER RECORD
DRAWINGS...ARE YOU
USING THIS?  CLARIFY

EXISTING
LATERAL



CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3414 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

ST
A 

22
+0

0 
TO

 S
TA

 3
4+

00
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

90
TH

 P
LA

CE

90TH STREET

62ND AVENUE

EX. SAN MH 11

EX. SAN MH 10

EX. SAN MH 13EX. SAN MH 12

EX. SAN MH 14

SAN MH 20

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

SHOW
EXISTING
RISERS PER
RECORD
DRAWINGS



62ND AVENUE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3415 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

62
N

D 
AV

EN
U

E
ST

A 
99

+0
0 

TO
 S

TA
 1

04
+0

0
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

62ND AVENUE

HYDRANT #7
STA. 102+26.76 - 10.6' RT.
13.0' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 0.75%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 694.85
IE. 6" 685.68

EX. SAN MH 20

SAN MH 20.1

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

EXTEND
SANITARY
FURTHER
NORTH. 

WHAT IS THE PLAN
FOR SUMP PUMPS
ON THES LOTS? 
DISCUSS / ADDRESS

PROVIDE SANITARY
LATERAL CLEAN OUT
(LATERAL OVER
100-FEET)



90TH PLACE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3416 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

62
ND

 AV
EN

UE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

90TH PLACE

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

90
TH

 P
LA

CE
ST

A 
19

9+
00

 T
O

 S
TA

 2
11

+0
0

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

HYDRANT #9
STA. 200+11.50

13.0' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 698.80
IE. 6" 688.61

SAN MH 20

SAN MH 21

HYDRANT #8
STA. 203+60.22 - 22.6' LT.

12.6' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 694.20
IE. 6" 685.40

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

686.73

686.40

36" RCP STORM
SEWER

8" WATER MAIN

1.67'

WATER MAIN OFFSET DETAIL

8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING HYDRANT TO BE
REMOVED AND RE-INSTALLED

AT A PROPOSED LOCATION

EXISTING HYDRANT LEAD
AND VALVE TO BE REMOVED

DID 90TH PLACE SHIFT
FROM ORIGINAL
PLANS?  THIS
APPEARS TO BE THE
8-INCH TEE. ABANDON
MAIN PER DPW
REQUIRMENTS AND
PLUG AT TEE.

DON'T REUSE..NEW
HYDRANTS WITH
STORZ
CONNECTION
REQUIRED

VERIFY THAT THERE IS
NO SANITARY STUB
THAT WAS PLACED FOR
THE ORIGINAL 90TH
PLACE EXTENSION.

PROVIDE TEMPORARY
PLUG. TO REMAIN IN
PLACE UNTIL
AUTHORIZED TO BE
REMOVED (TYP)



90TH STREET

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3417 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

90
TH

 S
TR

EE
T

ST
A 

29
9+

00
 T

O
 S

TA
 3

11
+0

0
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

62
ND

 AV
EN

UE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

90TH STREET

90TH STREET

HYDRANT #11
STA. 300+13.42 - 15.7' RT.

11.5' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 701.05
IE. 6" 690.77

SAN MH 30

HYDRANT #10
STA. 303+93.26 - 22.0' LT.

11.9' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX

ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 696.10
IE. 6" 687.46

SAN MH 31

EX. SAN MH 12

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

CORRECT TO
MATCH INVERT.
CHECK AND  VERIFY
IF THERE IS AN
EXISTING STUB

IS THERE A REASON
FOR THE GRADE
BREAK..ELIMINATE IF
POSSIBLE

VERIFY IF THERE IS AN
EXISTING SANITARY
STUB.

RECONFIGURE
TO ELIMINATE
BEND, IF
POSSIBLE

ELIMINATE
CONNECTION
TO STORM



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3418 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

91ST STREET

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

91
ST

 S
TR

EE
T

ST
A 

39
9+

00
 T

O
 S

TA
 4

11
+0

0
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

91ST STREET

OLD GREEN BAY ROAD

HYDRANT #15
STA. 400+37.61 - 21.50' LT.
11.5' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 700.25
IE. 6" 691.30

SAN MH 43

HYDRANT #14
STA. 402+88.0- 21.50' LT.
11.5' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 697.65
IE. 6" 688.80

HYDRANT #13
STA. 406+31.48 - 21.50' LT.
8.9' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 692.85
IE. 6" 683.55 HYDRANT #12

STA. 409+47.05 - 21.50' LT.
10.5' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%

WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 693.40

IE. 6" 684.66

SAN MH 42

SAN MH 41
SAN MH 40

SAN MH 3

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

BASIN 5

THE NEED TO PROVIDE
LATERALS TO "FUTURE"
LOTS TO THE NORTH TO
AVOID FUTURE ROAD
OPENINGS NEEDS TO BE
FURTHER REVIEWED.PROVIDE 12-INCH

WATER MAIN ALONG
OLD GREEN BAY AND
91ST ST

12-INCH

VALVE EACH
LEG

ADJUST TO SHIFT
WATER FARTHER
FROM CURB ON
CURVE



OLD GREEN BAY ROAD

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

3419 OF

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

FO
R

O
LD

 G
RE

EN
 B

AY
 R

O
AD

ST
A 

49
9+

00
 T

O
 S

TA
 5

11
+0

0
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

91
ST

 S
TR

EE
T

HYDRANT #16
STA. 500+98.6- 28.1' RT.
13.2' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 700.30
IE. 6" 691.98

OLD GREEN BAY ROAD

HYDRANT #17
STA. 506+50.00- 28.1' RT.
13.2' - 6" HYD. LEAD @ 1.00%
WITH G.V. AND BOX
ELEV. CTR. LRG. CPL. 697.00
IE. 6" 688.49

PROVIDE MORE BASE
SURVEY DATA ALONG
ROUTE. ROADWAY,
DRIVEWAYS,
UTILITIES, ETC.

SHOW EXISTING
SANITARY LINE AND
LATERALS.  IDENTIFY
ANY LATERALS TO BE
ABANDONED



CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3422 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

ST
A 

0+
00

 T
O

 S
TA

 1
2+

00
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

91
ST

 ST
RE

ET

MH 58.0

CB 57.0

CB 57.1 (48" DIA.)
RIM = 693.65

IE. 15" (NE) 689.72
133 LF - 15" RCP @ 0.25%

CB 57.2 (24" X 30")
STA. 3+53.81 - 18.5' RT.
F/L = 695.27
IE. 12" (SW) 690.17
33 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

MH 56.0

CB 55.0 (24 X 30)
STA 7+50.76 - 18.5' LT.

F/L = 691.32
IE. 18" (E) 687.89
IE. 15" (S) 687.99
IE. 12" (N) 688.09

27 LF - 18" RCP @ 0.25%

CB 55.1 (24 X 30)
STA. 7+58.54 - 18.5' LT.

F/L = 691.32
IE. 12" (S) 688.17

8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

CB 51.1 (24 X 30)
STA 7+59.00 - 18.5' RT.
F/L = 691.32
IE. 12" (S) 687.88
8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

CB 51.0 (24 X 30)
STA. 7+50.76 - 18.5' RT.

F/L = 691.32
IE. 24" (E) 687.60

IE. 24" (W) 687.70
IE. 12" (N) 687.80

240 LF - 24" RCP @ 0.25%

CB 54.1 (24 X 30)
STA 9+28.23 - 18.5 LT.
F/L = 692.12
IE. 12" (SE) 688.63
33 LF - 12" RCP @ 0.25%

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

MH 52.0

MH 53.0

CB 54.0

EW 50.0

BASIN 5

DIMENSION TAPER /
PROVIDE STATION OF
ROADWAY WIDTH
TRANSITION

EXISTING ASPHALT
PAVMENT SECTION

NEW ROADWAY:
COMPOSITE
PAVEMENT
SECTION

NOTE MATERIAL
(RCP) AND CLASS
(TYP)

PROVIDE PLAN/
PROFILE FOR ALL
PUBLIC STORM
SEGEMENTS.  ALSO,
SHOW AND LABEL
EASEMENTS. (TYP)

MH?

33
 ft

66
 ft



CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3423 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

ST
A 

11
+0

0 
TO

 S
TA

 2
3+

00
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

91ST STREET

INSTALL BRIDGE
PER DETAILS ON
SHEET 31 OF 31

CB 42.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 16+05.68 - 18.5' LT.

F/L = 691.32
IE. 12" (NE) 687.27

8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

CB 42.0 (24" X 30")
STA. 16+13.92 - 18.5' LT.
F/L = 691.32
IE. 12" (SE) 687.11
IE. 12" (SW) 687.21
33 LF - 12" RCP @ 0.50%

CB 41.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 16+05.68 = 18.5' RT.

F/L = 691.32
IE. 12" (NE) 687.02

8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

CB 41.0 (24" X 30")
STA. 16+13.92 - 18.5' RT.
F/L = 691.32
IE. 15" (SE) 686.84
IE. 12" (NW) 686.94
IE. 12" (SW) 686.94
68 LF - 15" RCP @ 0.50%

EW 40.0

EW 10.0

MH 11.0 (60" DIA.)
RIM = 691.20

IE. 30" (W) 686.48
IE. 24" (E) 686.6±

264 LF - 30" RCP @ 0.18%

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

BASIN 3

SHOW BRIDGE
IN PROFILE

PROVIDE UNDERDRAINS AT
ALL LOW POINTS (100-FEET
MIN); ADDITIONAL
UNDERDRAIN LOCATIIONS AND
LENGTHS MAY BE NEEDED
UPON REVIEW OF THE
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT



CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3424 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

ST
A 

22
+0

0 
TO

 S
TA

 3
4+

00
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

90
TH

 P
LA

CE

90TH STREET

62ND AVENUE

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

RESET EXISTING
FRAME & GRATE

REPLACE EXISTING FRAME &
GRATE W/ NEENAH R-3067-C

FRAME AND GRATE

DEFINE ROAD SECTION
TRANSITIONS (I.E.
COMPOSITE PAVEMENT
VS EXISTING ASPHALT)
TYP). ASLO CLARIFY
ROADWAY WIDTH
TRANISTIONS

CROSSING TO
BE 5-FOOT
CONCRETE
SIDWALK
WITHIN ROW;
LOT 20

STREET TREE
CONFLICTS WILL NEED
TO BE DISCUSSED
AND ADDRESSED

PROPOSED NEW
SIDEWALK

NOTE / DEPICT
HANDICAP RAMPS
AND DETECTABLE
WARNING FIELDS,
WHERE NEEDED
(TYP)

33 ft

37
 ft

CURRENT
EXISTNG CURB
RETURNS SET
FOR 37' BOC?



62ND AVENUE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3425 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

FO
R

62
N

D 
AV

EN
U

E
ST

A 
22

+0
0 

TO
 S

TA
 3

4+
00

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

62ND AVENUE

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

62
N

D
   

   
A

V
E

N
U

E

62
N

D
   

   
AV

EN
U

E

89TH STREET

IS THERE A TERRACE
AREA PRIOR TO
SLOPING?  SLOPE 4:1?
FURTHER INFO
NEEDED. 

VILLAGE STAFF TO
DISCUSS IF CUL DE SAC
CAN BE AN ASPHALT
SECTION VS.
COMPOSITE SECTION

LABEL RADII

SHOW POTENTIAL ROADWAY
EXTENSION AND PLANNED
MODIFICATIONS IF EXTENDED.

IF ROADWAY EXTENDS TO
NORTH OR EAST; EVALUATE
AND ADDRESS  FUTURE
DRAINAGE FOR THIS ROAD
PORTION AND ADJACENT
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN
SWMP



90TH PLACE

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3426 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

62
ND

 AV
EN

UE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

90TH PLACE

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

FO
R

90
TH

 P
LA

CE
ST

A 
19

9+
00

 T
O

 S
TA

 2
11

+0
0

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

MH 36.0 (X" DIA.)
RIM = 693.60
IE. 30" (N) 687.73 (PROPOSED)
IE. 27" (E) 687.9± (EXISTING)
34 LF - 30" RCP @ 0.25%

MH 33.0 CB 35.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 203+43.35' - 16.5' RT.

F/L = 692.23
IE. 12" (E) 688.12

8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

CB 35.0 (60" DIA)
F/L = 692.23

STA. 203+51.35 - 16.5' RT.
IE. 30" (N) 687.64
IE. 30" (S) 687.64
IE. 12" (W) 688.04

7 LF - 30" RCP @ 0.25%

MH 34.0

CB 34.1.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 203+43.35 - 16.5' LT.

F/L = 692.23
IE. 12" (E) 688.26

8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

CB 34.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 203+51.35 - 16.5' LT.

F/L = 692.23
IE. 12" (S) 688.08

IE. 12" (W) 688.18
26 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

MH 32.0

CB 33.2 (48" DIA.)
RIM 691.75
IE. 15" (N) 687.77
194 LF - 15" RCP @ 0.25%

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

CB 33.1 (48" DIA.)
RIM 691.25

IE. 15" (S) 687.81
211 LF - 15" RCP @ 0.25%

RESET EXISTING
FRAME & GRATE

REPLACE EXISTING FRAME &
GRATE W/ NEENAH R-3067-C
FRAME AND GRATE

MH?



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3428 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SCALES:
HORZ. 1"=40'
VERT. 1"=4'

91ST STREET

MDE
JEG

2014.0030.07

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

FO
R

91
ST

 S
TR

EE
T

ST
A 

39
9+

00
 T

O
 S

TA
 4

11
+0

0
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
CI

RC
LE

91ST STREET

OLD GREEN BAY ROAD

CB 64.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 403+50.00 - 16.5' LT.

F/L = 695.04
IE. 12" (S) 691.37

27 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

CB 61.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 407+58.11
F/L = 689.67
IE. 12" (W) 686.28
8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

MH 64.0

CB 64.2 (24" X 30")
STA. 403+50.00 - 16.5' RT.
F/L 695.04
IE. 12" (W) 691.16
6 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

MH 63.0

MH 62.0

CB 62.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 407+50.00 - 16.5' LT.

F/L = 689.67
IE. 12" (S) 686.19
IE. 12" (E) 686.29

27 LF - 12" RCP @ 0.25%

CB 62.1.1 (24" X 30")
STA. 407+57.89 - 16.5' LT.
F/L = 689.67
IE. 12" (W) 686.37
8 LF - 12" RCP @ 1.00%

MH 61.0 (24" X 30")
STA. 407+50.00 - 16.5' RT.

F/L = 689.67
IE. 18" (S) 686.10
IE. 18" (N) 686.10
IE. 12" (E) 686.20

40 LF - 18" RCP @ 0.25%

EW 60.0

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

BASIN 5

ACCELL/ DECELL TAPERS
REQUIRED.  SHOW THE ENTIRE
OLD GREEN BAY ROAD

IS THERE AN
EXISTING
ROAD DITCH /
DRAINAGE TO
ADDRESS?

STORM SUMP LATERAL MAIN
MAY NEED TO BE EXTENDED.
 TO BE FURTHER REVIEWED.



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3432 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 TY

PI
CA

L 
SE

CT
IO

N
S 

&
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

REDUCE TO 4"
MAX SPACING;
CONSIDER CONE
TRASH RACK



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

3434 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 TY

PI
CA

L 
SE

CT
IO

N
S 

&
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
8

PROVIDE
RAILINGS ON
HEADWALL AND
WINGWALLS. 
POWDER
COATED
BLACK. SEE
ATTACHED



BRIDGE BID ITEM SHALL INCLUDE

POWDER COATED BLACK AND
AND CONFIRMED BY THE OWNER.

10 OF BR 10

RAILING
ATTACHMENT



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

344 OF

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

200'

SCALE 1"=100'

100' 0' 100' 200'

MDE
JEG

11-16-2018
JJC

11-16-2018

2014.0030.07

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

TH
E 

VI
ST

A 
AT

 C
RE

EK
SI

DE
 CO

N
CE

PT
U

AL
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

 (N
O

RT
H)

FO
R

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
PP

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CREEKSIDE CIRCLE

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

CR
EE

KS
ID

E C
IR

CL
E

62
nd

 AV
EN

UE

90th STREET

62
nd

 A
VE

NU
E

90th STREET

90th PLACE

91st STREET

20 UNITS
20 UNITS

24 GARAGE
SPACES

24 GARAGESPACES

36' x 87'

OL
D 

GR
EE

N 
BA

Y 
RO

AD

20 UNITS 20 UNITS

DOG PARK

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

1
-1

6
-2

0
1
820

 U
N

IT
S

20
 U

N
IT

S

28
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

BASIN 1

BASIN 4

BASIN 5

BASIN 6

BASIN 3

BASIN 2

24
 G

AR
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

20
 U

N
IT

S

12
-4

-1
8

RE
VI

SE
D 

PE
R 

VI
LL

AG
E 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
JJ

C
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,088 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,580 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,265 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25,694 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,244 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,623 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
23,540 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,975 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,536 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,003 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,836 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,165 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,195 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22,723 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,001 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,821 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19,939 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,936 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,511 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,825 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,509 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,919 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,447 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,786 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,170 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19,164 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,240 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,971 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,742 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,344 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17,539 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
818,322 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
439,547 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,048 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,906 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,180 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,772 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,522 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,864 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,744 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,168 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,721 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,089 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,020 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,748 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,021 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
97,856 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
439,547 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
329,241 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
183,652 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7:29:36 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tuesday, December 04, 2018

pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Callout
Align lot lines

pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Callout
Lots need to be adjusted to allow for an outlot to be located south of Lot 39 to allow for the retaining wall and land surrounding the 4 unit to be  maintained.  The exact size of the outlot will be determined when additional information is provided.

pherrick
Callout
label as clubhouse and show all setbacks.

pherrick
Callout
The setback for the buildings along 91st Street shall be a minimum of 40 feet from back of curb since the right-of-way is greaters than 66 feet.  Show setback from the back of the curb and from the property line.

pherrick
Callout
This is not accetpable--by moving the building and parking lots further north this will be moved further north. Also remove dumpster.

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
a 3 foot undulating berm will be required with 6'8' Austrian pines staggered on the berm or a 6 foot high privacy fence shall be installed.

pherrick
Callout
Consider buying this house that improvements encroach on your property.

pherrick
Text Box
On all courner lots show the no driveway access requirements--and note 100 feet from center line of driveway to center line of intersection.Also show no dirvet driveway access to Creekside Circle for lots 1, 10, 11, 18-20.

pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Callout
this is not acceptable.  One entrance to creekside circle will be allowed.  It can be a blvc. entrance however, only one way in and one way out.  Maximum opening is 35 feet

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Text Box
relocate dumpster

pherrick
Callout
remove cross through here and add parking

pherrick
Callout
show setback to wetlands from back of curb--if less than 25 feet this will be included in the PUD.

pherrick
Callout
what is this line--note on the plans

pherrick
Callout
show setback to wetlands from back of curb--if less than 25 feet this will be included in the PUD.

pherrick
Callout
Club house seback shall be minium of 50 feet from property line adjacent to Old Green Bay Rd.

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Text Box
CD Comments 1-11-19



 

 

 

 

8044 88th Avenue  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  Phone 262.694.8027  Fax 262.697.1901  pleasantprairiewi.gov 

 

Office of the Chief of Fire & Rescue  
Craig Roepke 

 
 
 

VILLAGE STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 

FROM:  Craig Roepke, Chief Fire & Rescue 

CC:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 

SUBJECT: Review of Vista at Creekside Concept Plan 

Trakit/Permit#: DEV1811-005 

DATE:  January 15, 2019 

 

These are initial comments for the Conceptual Plan received for Vista at Creekside Concept Plan. The plans et is 
dated 12/4/2018. 

 

The Fire & Rescue Department have the following comments regarding the above project. 

1. Each multi-tenant building/project shall be its own review. 

2. The shared Fire FDCs as depicted sheet 9 of 34 (Multi-tenant North) are acceptable. 

3. Discuss concern for single entry access on all North multi-tenant drives. Removing or changing the 
configuration of the parking spaces at the end of the garage spaces would allow for a turn around and 
dual access. 

4. Discuss adding additional shared hydrant at each end of the garage space as shown below. (contingent on 
#3) 

5. The conceptual FDC location for Multi-tenant South depicted on sheet 10 of 34 may require additional 
discussion as to the ability to indent or create a small pull-off area so that the driveway is still passable by 
other apparatus. 

6. In each multi-tenant presented, please confirm that the riser room access is towards the FDC location. 
(Example where the riser room would be on the opposite side of the incoming water line) 

7. Confirm discussions held as to passable access road requirement while initial construction is in progress 
on both the North and South multi-tenant locations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Review of conceptual plan for Vista at Creekside 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

Add hydrant at each end 



pherrick
Callout
show these roof a minimum of 5/12 pitch (6/12 is preferred if works with roof lines)

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Callout
Provide more shack shingles a further on all the peaked elements on the north and south elevations.

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Callout
add brick on both east and west elevations

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Text Box
When providing elevations remove the interior views through the windows so that the window details can be seen



pherrick
Callout
Add a brick base a minimum of 3 feet from grade on all four building sides

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Callout
Add some additional detail on this side--Option add a vertical siding in the darker color 

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Text Box
If the garage doors are proposed to be numbered, shown location on plans.

pherrick
Text Box
Show location of downspouts on all building which shall be interconnected to storm sewer system.

pherrick
Text Box
Show location of all light fixtures on the buildings and provide cut sheets.











































Governing Agency Contacts 
 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE HALL 
 9915 39TH STREET 
 PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI  53158 
 OFFICE: (262) 694-1400 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 JEAN WERBIE-HARRIS, DIRECTOR PLANNING, ZONING ADMINISTRATOR       
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6718 
 EMAIL: jwerbie-harris@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
 PEGGY HERRICK 

ASSISTANT PLANNER & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6716 
 EMAIL: pherrick@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 

AARON KRAMER 
DEPUTY PLANNER & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

 OFFICE: (262) 925-6711 
 EMAIL: akramer@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
  ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
 MATT FINEOUR, P.E. 
           VILLAGE ENGINEER 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6778 
 EMAIL: mfineour@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
 KURT DAVIDSEN, P.E. 

ASSISTANT VILLAGE ENGINEER 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6728 
 EMAIL: kdavidsen@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 
  PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 JOHN STEINBRINK, JR., P.E.  
 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

ROGER PRANGE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 8600 GREEN BAY ROAD 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6768 
           EMAIL: jsteinbrink@pleasantprairiewi.gov 

 
 STEVE WLAHOVICH 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6767 
 EMAIL: swlahovich@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
  

mailto:jwerbie-harris@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:pherrick@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:akramer@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:mfineour@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:kdavidsen@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:jsteinbrink@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:swlahovich@pleasantprairiewi.gov


BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT 
 SANDRO PEREZ 

BUILDING INSPECTION SUPERINTENDENT  
 OFFICE: (262) 694-9304 
 DIRECT: (262) 925-6722 
 EMAIL: sperez@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 

DONALD KOEHNE 
BUILDING INSPECTOR 
OFFICE:  (262) 694-9304 
EMAIL:  dkoehne@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 
MICHAEL KAPRELIAN 
BUILDING INSPECTOR 
OFFICE: (262) 694-9304 
EMAIL:  mkaprelian@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 

FIRE & RESCUE DEPARTMENT  
 CRAIG ROEPKE,  
 CHIEF OF FIRE & RESCUE 
 8044 88TH AVENUE 
 OFFICE: (262) 694-8027  
 EMAIL: croepke@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 
 AARON LONGRIE 
 ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF  
 OFFICE: (262) 694-8027 
 EMAIL: alongrie@pleasantprairiewi.gov 

 

Public Utility Contacts 
 
AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY   

BRIAN MCGEE 
 OFFICE: (262) 506-68955 
 EMAIL: bmcgee@atcllc.com 

EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 972-5341 
 
WISCONSIN DOT 
 ART BAUMANN 
 TRAFFIC OPERATIONS ENGINEER 
 OFFICE: (262) 548-6707 
 EMAIL: art.baumann@dot.wi.gov 
  

KEVIN KOEHNKE, P.E. 
PERMITS COORDINATOR 

 OFFICE: (262) 548-5891  
 EMAIL: kevin.koehnke@dot.wi.gov  
 
  

mailto:sperez@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:dkoehne@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:mkaprelian@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:croepke@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:alongrie@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:art.baumann@dot.wi.gov
mailto:kevin.koehnke@dot.wi.gov


AT&T 
 MIKE TOYEK 
 OFFICE: (262) 636-0549 
 EMAIL: mt1734@att.com  
 
TDS TELECOM 
 SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN 
 OFFICE: (877) 483-7142 
 
TIME WARNER CABLE/SPECTRUM 
 STEVE CRAMER 
 UTILITY COORDINATOR 
 OFFICE: (414) 277-4045 
 EMAIL: steve.cramer@twcable.com  

EMERGENCY NUMBER:  (800) 627-2288 
 
WEC ENERGY GROUP 

JOEL BUROW 
 CEM MANAGER 
 OFFICE: (414) 221-3192 

EMAIL: joel.burrow@wecenergygroup.com 
 

WE-ENERGIES 
ALLIE KLAWINSKI 
SR. SERVICE MANAGER 
OFFICE: (262) 552-3227 
EMAIL: allie.klawinski@we-energies.com 
 
MICHAEL BAKER 
CUSTOMER SERVICE MANAGER 
OFFICE: (262) 886-7041 
EMAIL: michael.baker@we-energies.com 
 
HUSSAIN BIYAWERWALA 
SENIOR ENGINEER 
OFFICE: (262) 886-7074 
EMAIL: hussain.biyawerwala@we-energies.com 
 
BRANDON ERTS 
GAS ENGINEERING 
OFFICE: (414) 221-3654 
EMAIL: Brandon.erts@we-energies.com 
 

 NATURAL GAS EMERGENCY: (800) 261-5325  
 

ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY:  (800) 662-4797  

 
  

mailto:mt1734@att.com
mailto:steve.cramer@twcable.com
mailto:joel.burrow@wecenergygroup.com
mailto:allie.klawinski@we-energies.com
mailto:michael.baker@we-energies.com
mailto:hussain.biyawerwala@we-energies.com
mailto:Brandon.erts@we-energies.com


WI Department Of Natural Resources 
 
 TRAVIS SCHROEDER  

WATER MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST  
 OFFICE: (262) 574-2171 
 EMAIL: travis.schroeder@wisconsin.gov 
 

PETER WOOD, P.E. 
 WATER RESOURCES ENGINEER  
 OFFICE: (262) 884-2360 
 EMAIL: peter.wood@wisconsin.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rev 11-2018 

mailto:peter.wood@wisconsin.gov


DEV1809-001 
 

Consider approval of a Certified Survey Map, Easement Vacation documents and an 

Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding including Site Development Plans for 

the request of Kevin Risch with Clark Dietz, Inc. agent, on behalf of Prairie Holdings LLC, owner of 

the vacant property east of 9201 Wilmot Road to create three properties and to grade the 

properties and install private improvements to service the new lots. 

Recommendation: Plan Commission recommended that the Village Board approve the Certified 

Survey Map, Easement Vacation documents and an Addendum to the Memorandum of 

Understanding including Site Development Plans subject to the comments and conditions of 

the March 18, 2019 Village Staff Report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



2 

 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF MARCH 18, 2019 

Consider approval of a Certified Survey Map, Easement Vacation documents and an 

Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding including Site Development Plans for 

the request of Kevin Risch with Clark Dietz, Inc. agent, on behalf of Prairie Holdings LLC, owner of 

the vacant property east of 9201 Wilmot Road to create three properties and to grade the 

properties and install private improvements to service the new lots. 

 

Background Information:  On October 2, 2017, the Village approved a Certified Survey Map 

and associated Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the owner to subdivide the property so 

that the existing 9201 Wilmot Road building would remain on one property and the vacant land to 

the east would be located on a separate property.  The owner has removed the large, worn and 

unused parking lot to the east of the building and installed the required storm water retention 

system and other site improvements for the existing industrial building.  It was the intent of the 

developer that the remaining vacant land (with the private driveway access to Fire & Rescue 

Station #2) would be further developed for light industrial purposes.  

To the west of the vacant land is an existing 22.34 acre property with a 385,000 square foot 9201 

Wilmot Road industrial building being used primary for warehousing and storage and further west 

is the Asbury Creek Subdivision.  To the east of the development area is Fire & Rescue Station #2 

and on the east side of 88th Avenue is the southern entrance to the Westwood Mobile Home Park, 

a few single family homes, and Hidden Oak Apartments.  To the north along CTH C are single 

family residential homes and Pleasant Prairie Elementary School.  To the south is Kenosha 

Grounds Care and further south is the Fountain Ridge Apartments. 

On February 4, 2019, the Village Board conditionally approved of a Master Conceptual Plan for 

the development of three limited use industrial related buildings and associated site 

improvements on the vacant 17.6 acres of land located east of 9201 Wilmot Road at the 

southwest corner of CTH H (88th Avenue) and CTH C (Wilmot Road) for a limited manufacturing 

development.  The property is zoned M-1, Limited Manufacturing and is proposed to be 

subdivided into three parcels for limited use industrial buildings and associated site 

improvements.  Lot 2 is proposed to be developed as an Extra Space Storage building, the other 

two properties have no proposed users at this time, but are shown as potential building sites. 

Certified Survey Map:  This vacant 17.6 acres of land is proposed to be subdivided into three 

parcels for additional light industrial development pursuant to the existing M-1, Limited 

Manufacturing zoning district requirements. 

 Lot 1 is proposed to be 3.7 acres. 

 Lot 2 is proposed to be 6.2 acres (proposed Extra Space Storage facility). 

 Lot 3 is proposed to be 7.7 acres. 

The lots will not have direct driveway access to CTH H and CTH C, but will have access through 

private roadways that will connect to CTH H and CTH C.  The primary access will be through the 

existing north/south private roadway that currently services the Village Fire & Rescue Station #2.  

This private roadway will connect with an east/west private roadway that will connect to the 

existing access on the property to the west, which has an existing connection to CTH C as well.  

The private north/south and east west private roadways within this vacant land area will be 

reconstructed with curb and gutter, paving, storm sewer drainage systems, roadway lighting to 

service these three lots along with the Fire & Rescue Station #2.  [Note: The private roadways 

also provide access to the Village’s water tower and utility substation and public water main.] 

The attached Declaration of Covenants, Easements and Restrictions are currently under review 

to ensure consistency with the CSM.  Comments will are forthcoming from the Village’s attorney 

for review by the Developer.  The Declarations shall be finalized prior to consideration by the 

Village Board.  



3 

 

There are wetlands on Lots 2 and 3.  Some of the wetlands on Lot 3 that have been determined 

by the WI DNR to be artificial wetlands pursuant to the attached August 2, 2018 letter and the 

ACOE will not be taking jurisdiction pursuant to the attached letter dated March 4, 2019.  

Comprehensive Land Use Map Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment applications have been 

submitted to correctly show the location of the wetlands that will remain on the properties.  

All future buildings will be required to connect to municipal water and sewer within the adjacent 

streets.  The development of the properties will also require the installation of two (2) additional 

retention basins to ensure that adequate stormwater management is being provided for the 

development.  The developer intends to grade the properties, construct both stormwater 

retention basins and install all required improvements associated with the private roadways.   

Site and Operational Plans will be required for each individual building that includes site plans, 

drainage and grading plans, building plans, landscape plans, signage plans and all other required 

plans and documents pursuant to the Site and Operational Plan requirements of the Village 

Zoning Ordinance (Article IX of Chapter 420 of the Village Municipal Code) for each building site. 

Vacation of Easements:  A number of existing water main easements are proposed to be 

vacated.  All new required easements are shown on the CSM. 

Addendum to Memorandum of Understanding (MOU):  The attached draft Addendum to the 

existing MOU for the remaining site improvements (private road, street lights, mass grading of 

the sites and construction of two storm water basins) will need to be reviewed by the developer 

and finalized prior to Village Board consideration.  Additional financial security will be provided to 

ensure that these improvements are completed. 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Certified Survey Map, 

Easement Vacation documents and an Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding 

including Site Development Plans subject to the above comments and the following 

conditions: 

1. The following documents shall be submitted for staff review and approval prior to 

finalizing and executing the development agreement: 

a. Three paper copies and a pdf copy of revised Site Development Plans 

(Engineering Plans, Profiles and Specifications). See attached comments from the 

Village Engineering Department dated March 4, 2019.   

b. A revised CSM and Declaration of Covenants, Easements and Restrictions were 

submitted on March 14, 2019 and will be reviewed by staff.  Any additional 

correction/changes/comments will be forthcoming. 

c. Easement Vacation document shall be prepared and submitted to the Village staff 

for review. 

d. All required permits shall be obtained from Kenosha County regarding any work 

within their rights-of-way. 

e. A copy of the required wetland fill, N.O.I. Chapter 30 permits from the WI DNR and 

ACOE. 

f. A copy of the signed contracts, certificates of insurance, and performance and 

payment bonds.  The contracts shall have the Developer’s name as shown on the 

title of the property.  The certificates of insurance shall also list the Village as an 

insured party. 

g. Erosion Control Permit application related fees (fees to be calculate by the 

Engineering Department). 

h. A “draft” LOC or other approved financial security shall be provided to the Village 

for staff review.  A one year minimum Irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC) to the 

Village, in the amount of 115% of the total cost of the related improvements 



4 

 

outlined in the Addendum, shall be submitted to the Village.  The Itemized Cost 

Breakdown Exhibit will be prepared by the Village staff to determine the amount of 

the Letter of Credit and the cash payments. IMPORTANT:  A draft Letter of Credit 

equal to the cost breakdown analysis (need to verify proper format and dollar 

amount of Letter of Credit prior submitting the Original Letter of Credit.  The Cash 

payments and the “Final” LOC shall be provided prior to the Village at the closing. 

2. Upon satisfaction of the above conditions and prior to work commencing on the 

site a preconstruction meeting shall be scheduled (coordinate date and time with 

Jean Werbie-Harris when the permit applications noted above are submitted).   

The purpose of the preconstruction meeting is to discuss the construction, site 

logistics, schedule, inspection process and requirements in detail with the owner, 

engineer, general contractor, underground and building contractors, and the staff 

inspectors.  The Design Engineer of Record shall coordinate, moderate and prepare 

minutes of the pre-construction meeting.  The Developer’s Design Engineer of Record is 

responsible for the following for the Pre-Con Meeting:  

a. Attendance at Preconstruction meeting - Developer/Design Engineer shall invite and 

attendance is required for the following people at the pre-con meeting – Owner, 

Design Engineer of Record, Project Superintendent for this project, Site Excavator, 

General Contractor, Utility Contractor, Kenosha County and other trades as 

applicable. 

b. Pre-construction agenda - A sample agenda will be provided by the Village staff to 

the Design Engineer.  The Design Engineer shall tailor the agenda to the project 

and provide copies for all attendees. (Pre-con minutes shall be emailed by Design 

Engineer back to all attendees within 7 days of meeting).   

c. Project construction schedule – 11” by 17” must be of readable size. Provide copy 

for all attendees. 

d. Site logistics plan – identify the trailer location, site contractor directional signage, 

on-site contractor parking, gravel access road, travel route to the site, construction 

site fencing location proposed hours of operation. Provide copy for all attendees. 

e. Final set of approved plans – bring 1 full size set and 3 reduced size sets (half size) 

for discussion purposes. 

f. Attendee sign in sheet – circulate at meeting. 

g. List of emergency contact information and business cards – Owner, Design 

Engineer of Record, Project Superintendent for this project, Site Excavator, 

Underground Utilities Contractor, and General Contractor.  Provide copy for all 

attendees. 

Following the pre-construction meeting all necessary permits and fees shall be 

paid for and permits obtained from Village Building Inspection Department and 

construction may commence.   

 



1 

DRAFT 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

 

THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND 

PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC 

REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

FOR VILLAGE CONDITIONAL USE GRANTS NOS. 04-02 AND 06-01 AND 

SITE AND OPERTIONAL PLAN APPROVAL FOR THE 

9201 WILMOT ROAD PROPERTY 

 

This is a First Amendment (the “Amendment”) to the Memorandum of Understanding Agreement  

dated January 17, 2018, entered into by and between Prairie Holdings, LLC, a limited liability 

company with its primary offices located at 5721 Ryan Road, Franklin, WI 53132 and with the 

local business address at 9201 Wilmot Road, Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 (hereinafter referred to 

as the "Developer") and the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a Wisconsin municipal corporation with 

offices located at 9915 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158 (hereinafter referred to as 

the "Village"), regarding the conditions of approval identified in both Conditional Use Permit 

Grant No. 04-02 and again in Conditional Use Permit Grant No. 06-01 (the “MOU”). 

 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner of lands identified as Tax Parcel Numbers 91-4-

122-084-0101 and 91-4-122-084-0102 (hereinafter collectively referred as the “Property") located 

in the Village, and which lands are legally described in the attached Exhibit A, the Certified Survey 

Map; 

 

WHEREAS, the MOU was recorded with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds office 

on ______________, 2018 as Document No. ____________; 

 

WHEREAS, the Developer has completed certain obligations under the MOU but other 

obligations are outstanding; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to set forth certain conditions for the completion of the 

remaining obligations of the Developer under the MOU.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the Developer and the Village agree as follows: 

 

1. Completed Items.  

 

The parties acknowledge that the Developer has completed the Storm Water Retention 

System described in Paragraph 1 of the MOU and has provided as-built plans to the Village. The 

parties acknowledge that the Developer has completed the Landscape Berms described in 

Paragraph 2 of the MOU. The parties acknowledge that the Developer has completed the East 

Parking Lot as described in Paragraph 3 of the MOU.  

 



2 

2.   Completion of East/West Access Driveway/Parking Lots. 

 

The East/West Fire Lane Driveway described in Paragraph 4 of the MOU is being 

completed by the Developer as part of the new Phase II development and the Developer agrees to 

complete the curb and gutter for said east/west fire lane driveway in accordance with the plans and 

specifications attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference. The parties 

acknowledge that there is a letter of credit on file with the Village with a balance of $47,370.00 

remaining which shall remain on deposit with the Village to secure the Developer’s agreement to 

carry out all of its obligations as set forth in Paragraph 4 of the MOU and this Paragraph 2 of the 

Amendment. All of the site improvements described in Paragraph 4 of the MOU and this Paragraph 

2 of the Amendment shall be completed on or before                              , 2019. 

 

3.   North/South Private Roadway and Future Development Sites. 

 

The parties acknowledge that the Developer has repaved the North/South Private 

Roadway described in Paragraph 5 of the MOU, but that the North/South Private Roadway shall 

be reconstructed with a curb and gutter in accordance with the plans and specifications attached 

hereto as Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Developer agrees 

to provide the Village, prior or at the time the Village executes this Amendment, Cash on Deposit 

as described on Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference in the amount of 

$___________; with the Cash on Deposit being used as provided in Exhibit D to secure the 

Developer’s agreement to carry out all of its obligations as set forth in Paragraph 5 of the MOU 

and this Paragraph 3 of the Amendment. All of the site improvements described in Paragraph 5 of 

the MOU and this Paragraph 3 of the Amendment shall be completed on or before ___________, 

2019. 

 

4.   Easement Revisions. 

 

Any Easement Revisions described in Paragraph 6 of the MOU that have not been 

completed will be completed in the Certified Survey Map (CSM) which shall be approved by the 

Village at the same time as this Amendment is approved. 

 

5.   Cash on Deposit. 

 

The Developer shall deliver to the Village, prior to or at the time the Village executes 

this Amendment, Cash on Deposit in the total amount of $____________, as more particularly 

described on Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The itemized cost 

breakdown for work to be performed and secured by the Cash on Deposit is as listed on Exhibit 

D; provided, however, the remaining letter of credit balance of $47,370.00 for the East/West 

Access Driveway as described in Paragraph 2 of this Amendment shall be governed by Paragraph 

4 of the MOU and Paragraph 2 of this Amendment. The purpose of all Cash on Deposit is to secure 

the Developer’s agreement to carry out all of its obligations as set forth in the MOU and this 

Amendment. 

 



3 

6.   Incorporation by Reference.  

 

Except as specifically amended herein, all other terms and provisions of the MOU 

apply to this Amendment and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Developer and the Village have caused this Amendment 

to be signed and dated as of this ______ of ________________, 2019. 

 

Signatures are on the next pages. 

 

  



4 

OWNER(S) 

 

Prairie Holdings, LLC 

 

 

 

By:____________________________________ 

Name: David Doro 

Title: Managing Partner 

 

 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

) SS: 

KENOSHA COUNTY ) 

 

This Amendment was acknowledged before me this ________ day of ______________, 

2019 in Pleasant Prairie (City), WI, (State) by David Doro, as the authorized Managing Partner 

of Prairie Holdings, LLC. 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Name: __________________________________ 

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

My Commission expires:____________________ 

 

 

 

Additional signatures are on the next pages. 

 

  



5 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

 

______________________________________ 

John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

Jane C. Snell  

Village Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

    ) SS: 

KENOSHA COUNTY ) 

 

This Amendment was acknowledged before me this ________ day of ______________, 2019, 

by John P. Steinbrink and Jane C. Snell, Village President and Village Clerk, respectively, of the 

Village of Pleasant Prairie.  

 

_________________________________________ 

Name:____________________________________ 

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

My Commission expires:_____________________ 

 

 

 

This Agreement was drafted by: 

Timothy J. Geraghty 

Godin Geraghty Puntillo Camilli, SC. 

6301 Green Bay Road 

Kenosha, WI 53142 

(262) 657-3500 

 

and 

 

Jean M. Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 

Village of Pleasant Prairie 

9915 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 

(262) 925-6717 

  



6 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Legal Description of Property 

 

  



7 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Description of Improvements to East/West Fire Lane Driveway  

 

 

 

See attached.  

 



8 

EXHIBIT C 

 

Description of Improvements to the North/South Private Roadway 

 

 

See attached.  

 

  



9 

EXHIBIT D 

 

Cash on Deposit and Cost Breakdown  

 

 

See attached.  



 
 
August 2, 2018  EXE-SE-2018-30-02521 
 
  
OC Holdings, LLC 
Dave Doro 
5721 W. Ryan Road 
Franklin, WI 53132 
 
RE:  Artificial Wetland Exemption Determination for an area described as Wetlands A, B, C 
and I, located in the SW1/4 of the NW1/4 of Section 09, Township 01 North, Range 22 East, City 
of Kenosha, Kenosha County 
 
 
Dear Mr. or Ms. Doro: 
 
This letter is in response to your request for an artificial wetland exemption determination for the 
above mentioned wetlands.    
 
According to 281.36 (4n), State Statutes, a landscape feature where hydrophytic vegetation may 
be present as a result of human modification to the landscape or hydrology and for which no 
definitive evidence exists showing a prior wetland or stream history before August 1, 1991, may 
be exempt from state wetland regulations.  The following types of artificial wetlands cannot be 
exempted from state wetland regulation: 1) a wetland that serves as a fish spawning area or that 
is passage to a fish spawning area and 2) a wetland created as a result of a wetland mitigation 
requirement.  In addition, DNR must also consider whether the artificial wetland is providing 
significant flood protection to adjacent or downstream properties and infrastructure, and/or 
significant water quality functions to adjacent or downstream water bodies.     
 
The Department reviewed the following materials to aid in our exemption determination:  

• The request narrative  

• Historic Maps, including the Original Land Survey Plat, Bordner Survey, USGS 
topographic Quad map from 1971, and soil mapping.   

• Aerial photographs, including the 1937/8 era photograph, a pre-construction photograph, 
and a post-construction photograph.   

• Site photographs that show different angles and views of the wetland  
 
Below is a summary of our findings:  
 
Request Narrative 
According to the request narrative all wetlands A, B, C, and I appear to be human- caused and not 
historic wetlands. Wetlands B and C flow to a stormwater pond system and wetlands A and I flow 
to the west and north towards wetland H. No wetlands on site had wetland or stream history.  
 
Historic Map Review 

• Original Land Survey Plat.  The original land survey does not indicate wetness signatures 
in the area in question.  

State of Wisconsin 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
101 S. Webster Street 
P.O. Box 7921 
Madison, WI  53707-7921 

 

wisconsin.gov Printed on 
Recycled 

Paper 

dnr.wi.gov 

 

Scott Walker, Governor 
Daniel L. Meyer, Secretary 

Telephone 608-266-2621 
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 

TTY Access via relay - 711 

 

 
 



• Bordner Survey.  The Bordner survey indicates the area was actively cropped historically. 

• Soil Maps: The soil maps indicates that upland soils are present in the wetland areas in 
question. 

 
Aerial Photograph Review 

• 1937/38 era aerial photograph.  The 1937/38 aerial photograph shows the site is in 
agricultural use 

• Pre-construction aerial photograph:  The 1970s aerial photograph shows the site under 
construction with grading and land disturbance occurring in the area.  

• Post-construction aerial photograph:  The 1980 aerial photograph shows some wetness 
signatures forming and progressing through 2015.  

 
Site Photographs 
The site photographs show wetlands forming in swales and other disturbed areas.  
 
Conclusion:   
Based upon the information provided above, the wetlands identified as Wetland A, B, C, and I, 
lacked a wetland history prior to August 1, 1991, and fulfills all artificial wetland exemption 
standards.  Therefore, Wetlands A, B, C, and I are exempt from state wetland regulations.   
 

 
 
This letter describes DNR’s decision regarding the jurisdictional status of Wetlands A, B, C, and I, 
and is only valid for state jurisdictional purposes.  For decisions regarding the federal jurisdictional 
status of Wetlands A, B, C, and I, you will need to contact the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  The 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers contact for Kenosha County is Rachel Nuetzel.  Rachel Nuetzel 
can be reached at (651) 290-5729. 
 
If you have any questions about this determination, please contact me at (608) 264-9223 or email 
Amanda.Minks@wisconsin.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Amanda Minks 



Wetland Exemption Specialist 
 
cc: Rachel Nuetzel, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
 Travis Schroeder, Regional WMS, DNR 
 Neil Molstad, Regional Wetland Identification Specialist, DNR 
 
 
 



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
ST. PAUL DISTRICT, CORPS OF ENGINEERS 

180 FIFTH STREET EAST, SUITE 700 
ST. PAUL, MN  55101-1678 

                  
                              

REPLY TO ATTENTION OF  
REGULATORY BRANCH 

 
Regulatory File No. 2016-03639-JMB 
 
 
Clark Dietz Inc. for O.C. Holdings, LLC 
c/o Brandon Flunker 
625 57th Street, 6th Floor 
Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140 
 
Dear Mr. Flunker:  
 
 This letter is in response to your request for an approved jurisdictional determination for 
Wetlands A, B, C, and I on the 9201 Wilmot Road property. The project site is located in Section 
8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. The review area for our 
jurisdictional determination is identified on the enclosed figures, labeled MVP-2016-03639-JMB 
Page 1 of 3  through 3 of 3. 

  
The review area contains no waters of the United States subject to Corps of Engineers 

(Corps) jurisdiction. Therefore, you are not required to obtain Department of the Army 
authorization to discharge dredged or fill material within this area. The rationale for this 
determination is provided in the enclosed Approved Jurisdictional Determination form. This 
determination is only valid for the review area shown on the enclosed figures.  
 

If you object to this approved jurisdictional determination, you may request an administrative 
appeal under Corps regulations at 33 CFR 331. Enclosed you will find a Notification of Appeal 
Process (NAP) fact sheet and Request for Appeal (RFA) form. If you request to appeal this 
determination, you must submit a completed RFA form to the Mississippi Valley Division Office 
at the address shown on the form. 
 

In order for an RFA to be accepted by the Corps, the Corps must determine that it is 
complete, that it meets the criteria for appeal under 33 CFR 331.5, and that it has been received 
by the Division Office within 60 days of the date of the enclosed NAP. It is not necessary to 
submit an RFA form to the division office if you do not object to the determination in this letter 
 

This approved jurisdictional determination may be relied upon for five years from the date of 
this letter. However, the Corps reserves the right to review and revise the boundary in response 
to changing site conditions, information that was not considered during our initial review, or off-
site activities that could indirectly alter the extent of wetlands and other resources on-site. This 
determination may be renewed at the end of the five year period provided you submit a written 
request and our staff are able to verify that the limits established during the original 
determination are still accurate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text
4 March 2019

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text



Regulatory Branch (File No. 2016-03639-JMB) 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 

 

If you have any questions, please contact Jonathan Bakken in our Hayward office at  
(651) 290-5884 or jonathan.m.bakken@usace.army.mil. In any correspondence or inquiries, 
please refer to the Regulatory file number shown above. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Jonathan M. Bakken 
Project Manager 
 

 
Enclosures  
Notification of Appeal Process (NAP) fact sheet and Request for Appeal (RFA) Form 
Approved jurisdictional determination 
 
cc:  Kevin Risch, Clark Dietz, Inc. (kevin.risch@clarkdietz.com) 
  Travis Schroeder, WDNR (Travis.Schroeder@wisconsin.gov) 
  Dave Doro, OC Holdings, LLC (krddist@aol.com) 



b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text
MVP-2016-03639-JMB Page 1 of 3

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text



b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text
MVP-2016-03639-JMB Page 2 of 3

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text



b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text
MVP-2016-03639-JMB Page 3 of 3

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text

b6oprjmb
Typewritten Text

b6oprjmb
Oval

b6oprjmb
Oval

b6oprjmb
Oval

b6oprjmb
Oval



   
   

APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION FORM 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

 
This form should be completed by following the instructions provided in Section IV of the JD Form Instructional Guidebook. 
 
SECTION I:  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
A.   REPORT COMPLETION DATE FOR APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION (JD):  4 March 2019 
 

B.   ST PAUL, MN DISTRICT OFFICE, FILE NAME, AND NUMBER:  2016-03639-JMB  
 
C.   PROJECT LOCATION AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:         

State: Wisconsin   County/parish/borough:     Kenosha  City: Pleasant Prairie 

Center coordinates of site (lat/long in degree decimal format):  Lat. 42.55762° N, Long. -89.91494° W.  
           Universal Transverse Mercator:       

Name of nearest waterbody: Unnamed stream 

Name of watershed or Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC): 07120004 (8-digit HUC) 
 Check if map/diagram of review area and/or potential jurisdictional areas is/are available upon request.  
 Check if other sites (e.g., offsite mitigation sites, disposal sites, etc…) are associated with this action and are recorded on a 

different JD form.     
 
D.   REVIEW PERFORMED FOR SITE EVALUATION (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 

 Office (Desk) Determination.  Date: 31 January 2019 
 Field Determination.  Date(s):       

 
SECTION II:  SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
A.  RHA SECTION 10 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION. 
 
There are no “navigable waters of the U.S.” within Rivers and Harbors Act (RHA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 329) in the review 
area. 
 
B.  CWA SECTION 404 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION.  
 
There are no“waters of the U.S.” within Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 328) in the review area. 
 
 1. Waters of the U.S.:  N/A 
 
 2.  Non-regulated waters/wetlands (check if applicable):1 
   Potentially jurisdictional waters and/or wetlands were assessed within the review area and determined to be not jurisdictional.  

Explain:  This Jurisdictional Determination is for Wetlands B (approximately 0.02 acres) and Wetland C 
(approximately 0.06 acres) only. Wetlands A and I have been determined to not be a Waters of the U.S. as 
they are wetlands formed on the bottom of man-made ditches constructed in uplands. Corps staff 
determined that Wetlands B and C are located in closed depressions surrounded by previously developed 
commercial property. The wetlands are approximately 0.2 miles from an unnamed stream. The delineated 
wetlands occur in small depressions that collect surface water from the surrounding landscape, and were 
likely formed as slightly lower basins of fill, coninciding with construction of the adjacent industrial 
facility. The wetlands do not have any unbroken surface or shallow subsurface connections to the nearest 
unnamed stream, and are not mapped within the 100-year flood plain. The wetlands are not adjacent 
(bordering, contiguous, or neighboring) to any other WOUS and are not separated from other WOUS by 
man-made dikes or barriers, natural river berms, or beach dunes. Due to the distance between these 
wetlands and the nearest tributary there is no science-based inference (ex. does not support life cycles of 
amphibians or anadromous and catadramous fish) that supports an ecological connection. Additionally, 
there is no link to interstate or foreign commerce and they are not used by interstate or foreign travelers 
for recreation or other purposes. These wetlands do no produce fish or shellfish that could be taken and 
sold in interstate or foreign commerce, and are not known to be used for industrial purposes by industries 
in interstate commerce. The waterbodies have been determined to be non-jurisdictional under the Clean 
Water Act because the wetlands lack connections and/or relationships sufficient to serve as a basis for 
jurisdiction. Therefore, the Corps has determined that Wetland B and Wetland C are hydrologically 
isolated and are not regulated by the Corps under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.  

 
SECTION III:  CWA ANALYSIS 
A. TNWs AND WETLANDS ADJACENT TO TNWs:  N/A 
 

                                                 
1 Supporting documentation is presented in Section III.F. 



 

 

 

2 

B. CHARACTERISTICS OF TRIBUTARY (THAT IS NOT A TNW) AND ITS ADJACENT WETLANDS (IF ANY):  N/A 
 
C. SIGNIFICANT NEXUS DETERMINATION:  N/A  
 
D. DETERMINATIONS OF JURISDICTIONAL FINDINGS. THE SUBJECT WATERS/WETLANDS ARE (CHECK ALL 

THAT APPLY):  N/A 
 
E. ISOLATED [INTERSTATE OR INTRA-STATE] WATERS, INCLUDING ISOLATED WETLANDS, THE USE, 

DEGRADATION OR DESTRUCTION OF WHICH COULD AFFECT INTERSTATE COMMERCE, INCLUDING ANY 
SUCH WATERS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):  N/A 

 
F. NON-JURISDICTIONAL WATERS, INCLUDING WETLANDS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 
  If potential wetlands were assessed within the review area, these areas did not meet the criteria in the 1987 Corps of Engineers 

Wetland Delineation Manual and/or appropriate Regional Supplements.   
    Review area included isolated waters with no substantial nexus to interstate (or foreign) commerce.  

 Prior to the Jan 2001 Supreme Court decision in “SWANCC,” the review area would have been regulated based solely on the 
“Migratory Bird Rule” (MBR).   

  Waters do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such a finding is required for jurisdiction.  Explain:        
  Other (explain, if not covered above):        
 
 Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area, where the sole potential basis of jurisdiction is the MBR 

factors (i.e., presence of migratory birds, presence of endangered species, use of water for irrigated agriculture), using best professional 
judgment (check all that apply): 

  Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet     width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres.        
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres. List type of aquatic resource:      . 

 Wetlands: 0.08 acres.         
 

Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area that do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such 
a finding is required for jurisdiction (check all that apply): 

 Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet,      width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres. 
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres.  List type of aquatic resource:      . 
 Wetlands:      acres. 

 
 
SECTION IV:  DATA SOURCES. 
A.  SUPPORTING DATA.  Data reviewed for JD (check all that apply - checked items shall be included in case file and, where checked 

and requested, appropriately reference sources below): 
 Maps, plans, plots or plat submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant:      
 Data sheets prepared/submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant.  

  Office concurs with data sheets/delineation report.   
  Office does not concur with data sheets/delineation report.   

 Data sheets prepared by the Corps:      
 Corps navigable waters’ study:      
 U.S. Geological Survey Hydrologic Atlas:      

  USGS NHD data.   
  USGS 8 and 12 digit HUC maps.   

 U.S. Geological Survey map(s). Cite scale & quad name: 1:24K - Pleasant Prairie 

 USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey. Citation: NRCS soils data 
 National wetlands inventory map(s).  Cite name:      

 State/Local wetland inventory map(s): Wisconsin Wetland Inventory 
 FEMA/FIRM maps:      
 100-year Floodplain Elevation is:     (National Geodectic Vertical Datum of 1929) 
 Photographs:  Aerial (Name & Date):      

    or  Other (Name & Date): Site photos from delineation report dated 25 June 2018 
 Previous determination(s).  File no. and date of response letter:      
 Applicable/supporting case law:      
 Applicable/supporting scientific literature:      

 Other information (please specify): WDNR Exemption Letter dated 2 August 2018 
 



 

 

 

3 

B.  ADDITIONAL COMMENTS TO SUPPORT JD:   The Corps has determined that wetlands B and C onsite are 
hydrologically isolated, and are therefore not regulated by the Corps under Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act. 



   
   

APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION FORM 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

 
This form should be completed by following the instructions provided in Section IV of the JD Form Instructional Guidebook. 
 
SECTION I:  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
A.   REPORT COMPLETION DATE FOR APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION (JD):  7 February 2019 
 

B.   ST PAUL, MN DISTRICT OFFICE, FILE NAME, AND NUMBER:  2016-03639-JMB  
 
C.   PROJECT LOCATION AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:         

State: Wisconsin   County/parish/borough:     Kenosha  City: Pleasant Prairie 

Center coordinates of site (lat/long in degree decimal format):  Lat. 42.55762° N, Long. -89.91494° W.  
           Universal Transverse Mercator:       

Name of nearest waterbody: Unnamed stream 

Name of watershed or Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC): 07120004 (8-digit HUC) 
 Check if map/diagram of review area and/or potential jurisdictional areas is/are available upon request.  
 Check if other sites (e.g., offsite mitigation sites, disposal sites, etc…) are associated with this action and are recorded on a 

different JD form.     
 
D.   REVIEW PERFORMED FOR SITE EVALUATION (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 

 Office (Desk) Determination.  Date: 31 January 2019 
 Field Determination.  Date(s):       

 
SECTION II:  SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
A.  RHA SECTION 10 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION. 
 
There are no “navigable waters of the U.S.” within Rivers and Harbors Act (RHA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 329) in the review 
area. 
 
B.  CWA SECTION 404 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION.  
 
There are no“waters of the U.S.” within Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 328) in the review area. 
 
 1. Waters of the U.S.:  N/A 
 
 2.  Non-regulated waters/wetlands (check if applicable):1 
   Potentially jurisdictional waters and/or wetlands were assessed within the review area and determined to be not jurisdictional.  

Explain:  The review area contains 4 wetlands (A, B, C, and I) totaling approximately 0.24 acres in size. 
Wetlands B (0.02 acres) and C (0.06 acres) have been determined to be isolated. This Jurisdictional 
Determination form is for Wetland A (approximately 0.15 acres) and Wetland I (approximately 0.01 acres) 
only. Wetlands A and I were determined to be stormwater conveyance features that were constructed in 
uplands sometime between 1970 and 1980, coinciding with construction of an adjacent industrial facility. 
Wetlands A and I formed on the bottom of man-made ditches and are not waters of the U.S. This was 
confirmed by reviewing aerial photography dated 1937, 1970, 1980, 2015, WWI, and NRCS web soil survey 
data. Wetlands A and I appear to have been constructed to convey water to the east, away from the site. 
Information provided within the permit application and the 2018 Wetland Delineation Report indicates 
that the subject ditches do not have a relatively permanent flow of water and are not Waters of the United 
States.  

 
SECTION III:  CWA ANALYSIS 
A. TNWs AND WETLANDS ADJACENT TO TNWs:  N/A 
 
B. CHARACTERISTICS OF TRIBUTARY (THAT IS NOT A TNW) AND ITS ADJACENT WETLANDS (IF ANY):  N/A 
 
C. SIGNIFICANT NEXUS DETERMINATION:  N/A  
 
D. DETERMINATIONS OF JURISDICTIONAL FINDINGS. THE SUBJECT WATERS/WETLANDS ARE (CHECK ALL 

THAT APPLY):  N/A 
 
E. ISOLATED [INTERSTATE OR INTRA-STATE] WATERS, INCLUDING ISOLATED WETLANDS, THE USE, 

DEGRADATION OR DESTRUCTION OF WHICH COULD AFFECT INTERSTATE COMMERCE, INCLUDING ANY 
SUCH WATERS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):  N/A 

                                                 
1 Supporting documentation is presented in Section III.F. 



 

 

 

2 

 
F. NON-JURISDICTIONAL WATERS, INCLUDING WETLANDS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 
  If potential wetlands were assessed within the review area, these areas did not meet the criteria in the 1987 Corps of Engineers 

Wetland Delineation Manual and/or appropriate Regional Supplements.   
    Review area included isolated waters with no substantial nexus to interstate (or foreign) commerce.  

 Prior to the Jan 2001 Supreme Court decision in “SWANCC,” the review area would have been regulated based solely on the 
“Migratory Bird Rule” (MBR).   

  Waters do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such a finding is required for jurisdiction.  Explain:        
  Other (explain, if not covered above):  The review area identifed on the enclosed figures contains four delineated 
wetlands. Of the four wetlands, two (Wetland B and C) have been determined to be isolated. Wetlands A (0.15 acres) 
and I (0.01 acres) for which this form has been prepared formed on the bottom of man-made ditches constructed onsite. 
While the ditches may hold water during storm events, they do not carry reltively permanent flows of water and do not 
drain a water of the United States. The ditch wetlands should not be considered Waters of the United States. 
 
 Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area, where the sole potential basis of jurisdiction is the MBR 

factors (i.e., presence of migratory birds, presence of endangered species, use of water for irrigated agriculture), using best professional 
judgment (check all that apply): 

  Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet     width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres.        
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres. List type of aquatic resource:      . 
 Wetlands:  acres.         

 
Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area that do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such 
a finding is required for jurisdiction (check all that apply): 

 Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet,      width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres. 
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres.  List type of aquatic resource:      . 

 Wetlands: 0.16 acres. 
 

 
SECTION IV:  DATA SOURCES. 
A.  SUPPORTING DATA.  Data reviewed for JD (check all that apply - checked items shall be included in case file and, where checked 

and requested, appropriately reference sources below): 
 Maps, plans, plots or plat submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant:      
 Data sheets prepared/submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant.  

  Office concurs with data sheets/delineation report.   
  Office does not concur with data sheets/delineation report.   

 Data sheets prepared by the Corps:      
 Corps navigable waters’ study:      
 U.S. Geological Survey Hydrologic Atlas:      

  USGS NHD data.   
  USGS 8 and 12 digit HUC maps.   

 U.S. Geological Survey map(s). Cite scale & quad name: 1:24K - Pleasant Prairie 

 USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey. Citation: NRCS soils data 
 National wetlands inventory map(s).  Cite name:      

 State/Local wetland inventory map(s): Wisconsin Wetland Inventory 
 FEMA/FIRM maps:      
 100-year Floodplain Elevation is:     (National Geodectic Vertical Datum of 1929) 
 Photographs:  Aerial (Name & Date):      

    or  Other (Name & Date): Site photos from delineation report dated 25 June 2018 
 Previous determination(s).  File no. and date of response letter:      
 Applicable/supporting case law:      
 Applicable/supporting scientific literature:      

 Other information (please specify): WDNR Exemption Letter dated 2 August 2018 
 

B.  ADDITIONAL COMMENTS TO SUPPORT JD:   Per the Rapanos guidance, "ditches (including roadside 
ditches) excavated wholly in and draining only uplands and that do not carry a relatively permanent flow 
of water are not considered Waters of the United States."  Wetlands A and I formed in upland constructed 
ditches onsite and do not have relatively permanent flows of water. Therefore, Wetlands A and I are not 
waters of the U.S. as detailed in Section II.B.2. 



NOTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS AND 
REQUEST FOR APPEAL 

Applicant: Clark Dietz, Inc., c/o Brandon Flunker File No.: MVP-2016-03639-JMB Date:  4 March 2019 
Attached is: See Section below 
    INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission) A 
    PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission) B 
    PERMIT DENIAL C 
  X APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION D 
    PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION E 

SECTION I - The following identifies your rights and options regarding an administrative appeal of the above decision.  Additional 
information may be found at http://usace.army.mil/inet/functions/cw/cecwo/reg or Corps regulations at 33 CFR Part 331. 
A:  INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT:  You may accept or object to the permit. 

 
• ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final 

authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your 
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights 
to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit. 

 
• OBJECT:  If you object to the permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you may request that 

the permit be modified accordingly. You must complete Section II of this form and return the form to the district engineer.  
Your objections must be received by the district engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice, or you will forfeit your right 
to appeal the permit in the future.  Upon receipt of your letter, the district engineer will evaluate your objections and may: (a) 
modify the permit to address all of your concerns, (b) modify the permit to address some of your objections, or (c) not modify 
the permit having determined that the permit should be issued as previously written.  After evaluating your objections, the 
district engineer will send you a proffered permit for your reconsideration, as indicated in Section B below. 

 
B:  PROFFERED PERMIT: You may accept or appeal the permit 
 
• ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final 

authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your 
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights 
to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit. 

 
• APPEAL:  If you choose to decline the proffered permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you 

may appeal the declined permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by completing Section II of this 
form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division engineer within 60 days of the 
date of this notice. 

 
C:  PERMIT DENIAL:   You may appeal the denial of a permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by 
completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division 
engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice. 
 
D:  APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You may accept or appeal the approved JD or provide new information. 
 
• ACCEPT:  You do not need to notify the Corps to accept an approved JD.  Failure to notify the Corps within 60 days of  the 

date of this notice,  means that you accept the approved JD in its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the approved JD. 
 
• APPEAL:  If you disagree with the approved JD, you may appeal the approved JD under the Corps of Engineers Administrative 

Appeal Process by completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received 
by the division engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice. 

 
E:  PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You do not need to respond to the Corps regarding the preliminary 
JD.  The Preliminary JD is not appealable.  If you wish, you may request an approved JD (which may be appealed), by contacting 
the Corps district for further instruction.  Also you may provide new information for further consideration by the Corps to reevaluate 
the JD. 

http://usace.army.mil/inet/functions/cw/cecwo/reg


SECTION II - REQUEST FOR APPEAL or OBJECTIONS TO AN INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT 
REASONS FOR APPEAL OR OBJECTIONS:  (Describe your reasons for appealing the decision or your objections to an initial 
proffered permit in clear concise statements.  You may attach additional information to this form to clarify where your reasons or 
objections are addressed in the administrative record.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The appeal is limited to a review of the administrative record, the Corps memorandum for the 
record of the appeal conference or meeting, and any supplemental information that the review officer has determined is needed to 
clarify the administrative record.  Neither the appellant nor the Corps may add new information or analyses to the record.  However, 
you may provide additional information to clarify the location of information that is already in the administrative record. 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS OR INFORMATION: 
If you have questions regarding this decision and/or the appeal 
process you may contact: 
 
      

If you only have questions regarding the appeal process you may 
also contact the Division Engineer through:  
 
     Administrative Appeals Review Officer 
     Mississippi Valley Division  
     P.O. Box 80 (1400 Walnut Street) 
     Vicksburg, MS 39181-0080 
     601-634-5820      FAX: 601-634-5816 
 

RIGHT OF ENTRY:  Your signature below grants the right of entry to Corps of Engineers personnel, and any government 
consultants, to conduct investigations of the project site during the course of the appeal process.  You will be provided a 15 day 
notice of any site investigation, and will have the opportunity to participate in all site investigations. 
 
_______________________________ 
Signature of appellant or agent. 

Date: Telephone number: 

 



  
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

Office of the Village Engineer 
Matthew J. Fineour, P.E.     MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner / Zoning Administrator 

 
FROM:  Matthew Fineour, P.E.,Village Engineer 
 
  SUBJ:  Prairie Holding, LLC  - Site Grading, Ponds & Roadway 
    9201 Wilmot Road 
    
 DATE:  March 4, 2019 

 

 
Peggy, 
 
The Engineering Department has reviewed the submitted engineering plans for the proposed 
private site improvements. We have the following comments listed below and noted on the 
attached mark-up plan. Refer to both this memo and mark-up plan sheets for all engineering 
comments.  
 
See comments on attached mark-up plan sheets.   

 
1. Only plan sheets with comments are included. 

 
2. Comments that apply to multiple locations are not repeated for every occurrence. 

 
3. Mark up sheet include excerpt pages from the civil engineering plans, CSM, and 

Covenants. 
 
 Miscellaneous Comments 
 

1. Add the following note to the cover sheet:  “Prior to construction, a pre-construction 
conference must be held at the Village offices.  The pre-construction conference shall be 
scheduled and moderated by the designing Engineer of Record.” 
 

2. Provide details for the following: 
 

a. Storm sewer manholes and catch basin structures 
b. Storm sewer endwall grates 
c. Rip-rap treatment at endwalls 
d. Curb and gutter details 

 
3. A separate site and operational plan set will need to be submitted for the development of 

lot 2 (self-storage project).  This review only encompasses comments for the overall site 
mass grading, pond construction, and private roadway construction by Prairie Holdings, 
LLC. 
 



P a g e  | 2 
Memo – Prairie Holding LLC 
March 4, 2019 
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

4. Responsible parties and cost share allocations need to be clearly identified for the long-
term maintenance of the private roadways and streetlights. The existing documents seem 
vague on this matter. 

 
The plans have been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted engineering practices 
and Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the design engineer is responsible for 
the thoroughness and accuracy of plans and supplemental data and for their compliance with all 
state and local codes, ordinances, and procedures.  Modifications to the plans, etc. may be 
required should errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and as additional 
information is provided. 
 
Attachments:  Plan Mark Up Sheets 
*** 
 



PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC
EAST DEVELOPMEMT

SITE GRADING, PONDS & ROADWAYS
9201 WILMOT ROAD

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
KENOSHA COUNTY, WI

HORIZONTAL DATUM IS BASED ON THE

WISCONSIN STATE PLANE COORDINATE

SYSTEM GRID, SOUTH ZONE (NAD-27),

AND ALL BEARINGS ARE REFERRED

TO GRID NORTH. VERTICAL DATUM IS NGVD 29.

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T 

- P
H

A
S

E
 2

1
DWG 1 OF 21 DWGS

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY: AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

VOPP ENG REVIEW
PLAN MARK UP
MARCH 4, 2019

ADD VILLAGE STANDARD
PRECONSTRUCTION NOTE

PLACE AFTER
2

3



DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

   
   
   
   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
TE

S
 - 

P
H

A
S

E
 2

2
DWG 2 OF 21 DWGS

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

NOTE LOWER LAYER
(3") AND UPPER
LAYER (2")

ADD CROSS
SLOPE (2%)

IS THIS ACCURATE?  I
THOUGHT IT WAS RECENTLY
PULVERIZED WITH  5" NEW
ASPHALT

SHOW / DIMENSION
ROADWAY EASEMENT



2
0
'

5

1

0

'

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

(

9

2

0

1

 

W

i

l

m

o

t

 

R

d

)

L

I

M

I

T

E

D

 

M

A

N

U

F

A

C

T

U

R

I

N

G

 

Z

O

N

I

N

G

W

A

R

E

H

O

U

S

I

N

G

/

D

I

S

T

R

I

B

U

T

I

O

N

120'0' 60'

R/W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

PHASE 1 - POND AND SITE

EXCAVATION FOR LOT 1 & 3

(ESTIMATED TIME = 3-4 WEEKS)

PHASE 2 - ROADWAY & STORM

SEWER

(ESTIMATED TIME = 6-8 WEEKS)

PHASE 3 - LOT 2 SITE DEVELOPMENT.

WORK BY SEPARATE CONTRACT

(ESTIMATED TIME = 16-18 WEEKS)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
H

A
S

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 2

3
DWG 3 OF 21 DWGS

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

BERM

FOUNTAIN

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED BY WDNR

PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

B

E

R

M

B

E

R

M

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

DELETE FUTURE
DEVELOMENT LAYOUTS
FOR LOTS 1 AND 3..JUST
SHOW GRADING THAT IS
CURRENTLY PLANNED
FOR THIS PROJECT
PHASE. 

GHOST TONE LOT 2
DEVELOPMENT AND
NOTE SITE
DEVELOPMENT PLANS
PER SEPERATE PLAN
SET



7
3
3

734

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
3

7

2

9

7
2
9

734

736

734

732

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

7

7

3

6

7
3
5

7

3

4
7

3

5

7
3
4

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

5

7
3
5

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
1

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

1

7
3
2

7
3
3

7
3
4

7
3
5

7
3
0

7

2

8

7

2

7

7

2

5

7
2
8

7
2
9

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7
3
3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

1

R20.0'

R20.0'

20'

142.6'30.0'142.5'

3
0

.
5

'

45'

L2A CB3

24'' INLET

RIM = 733.79

IE=725.42 S

IE=725.32 NE

L2B CB2

24'' INLET

RIM = 732.64

IE=730.00 NW

L2B CB1

24'' INLET

RIM = 732.33

IE=728.50 SE

IE=727.00 NW

L2A CB6

24'' INLET

RIM=731.51

IE=727.03 SE

IE=726.93 NW

L2A CB8

24'' INLET

RIM=731.50

IE=729.00 NW

L2A CB7

24'' INLET

RIM=731.50

IE=728.00 SE

IE=728.00 NW

L2A CB5

24'' INLET

RIM = 731.01

IE=726.04 SE

IE=725.94 N

OS MH4

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM=729.02

IE=722.90 SW

IE=722.70 NE

L2A CB2

24'' INLET

RIM = 731.95

IE=724.09 SW

IE=723.99 NE

L2A CB1

48'' INLET

RIM = 729.96

IE=723.20 SW

IE=725.00 SE

IE=723.10 NE

72' OF 30" RCP @ 1.25%

113' OF 12" PVC @ 0.89%

132' OF 15" PVC @ 0.67%

78' OF 15" PVC @ 0.67%

184' OF 15" PVC @ 0.67%

118' OF 18" PVC @ 0.67%

69' OF 24" RCP @ 0.29%

75' OF 15" RCP @ 2.69%

104' OF 12" PVC @ 1.44%

132' OF 12" PVC @ 0.74%

5
.
6
%

0

.

5

%

7
.
5
%

71.5'

104' OF 30" RCP @ 1.25%

OSA MH2

60" MH

RIM=728.00

IE=720.15 W

IE=720.05 NE

OSA MH1

60" MH

RIM=725.18

IE=718.75 SW

IE=718.64 NE

136' OF 30" RCP @ 1.95%

20'

0

.

5

%

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

5
DWG 5 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

80'0' 40'

9.0'

1
8
.
0
'

1
0
.
0
'

115.0' 18.5'15.9'

3
1
.
5
'

1

6

'

PARKING LOT DETAIL

LOT 2 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

40'0' 20'

S
TO

R
A

G
E

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

- P
H

A
S

E
 2

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

THIS SHEET IS CONFUSING. 
DETAILED SITE
DEVELOPMENT PLAN WILL BE
SEPERATE PLAN SET.  THIS
PAN SET TO SHOW GRADING
/ IMPROVEMENTS BY PRAIRIE
HOLDING.  DEFINE WORK AND
GHOST TONE DEVELOPMENT
ITEMS

ON SITE PLANS CLEARLY SHOW
LOT LINES AND LABEL

EASEMENTS

DRAINAGE NOT GOING
THIS DIRECTION..A
SHOWN IT IS DIRECTED
TO POND



7

3

0

7

3

5

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7
2
7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

8

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

729

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
3

7

3

4

7
3
5

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

2

0

7

2

0

7

2

5

7
1
9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7
2
6

7
2

7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

4

1

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

2

6

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

2

7

3

2

7
2
6

7

2

5

7

2

4

7
3
5

7
3
6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
3
5

7
3
0

7
3
2

731

7

3

3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
1
9

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

2

2

7
2
3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

709

715

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7
2
1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

1

7

1

9

7

1

7

7

1

6

7
1
8

7

1

8

719

7
2
9

7
2
8

7

2

6

7

2

4

7

2

3

721

721

7

1

5

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

7

7
3
1

732

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

2

8

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

SIGN

AREA

DWG 7 OF 21 DWGS

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

Lot 1 - Excavate pond will require all topsoil on site to be

stripped off since this site will require fill for development.

Total topsoil stripping = 17,300 SY. and if no development,

topsoil to remain = 15,100 SY. This means 2,200 SY to be

hauled off site.

The total excavation for Lot 1 = 10,600 CY (Cut, primarily

pond) & 9,500 CY (Fill, pond and site). This excavation

includes the topsoil quantity. The total cut = 1,100 CY.

Lot 3- Excavate pond a total topsoil stripping = 8,500 SY.

and if no development, topsoil to remain = 7,100 SY. This

means 1,400 SY to be hauled off site. Total topsoil to strip if

development occurs = 25,750 SY and total to be hauld off =

18,700 SY.

The total excavation for Lot 3 = Cut, 10,600 (pond & site) &

11,000 CY (Fill, pond and site). This excavation includes the

topsoil quantity. The total need = 600 CY.

Total Excess Lot 1 & 3 = 500 CY.

BERM

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

7

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 2

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

FF = 730.50

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

TREE REMOVAL

TYPICAL

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED BY WDNR

PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

FOUNTAIN

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

DELETE FUTURE
DEVELOMENT LAYOUTS
FOR LOTS 1 AND 3..JUST
SHOW GRADING THAT IS
CURRENTLY PLANNED
FOR THIS PROJECT
PHASE. 

GHOST TONE LOT 2
DEVELOPMENT AND
NOTE SITE
DEVELOPMENT PLANS
PER SEPERATE PLAN
SET

SHOW LOCATIONS OF TEMPORARY
TOPSOIL STOCKPILES

NO STOCKPILES TO REMAIN UPON
GRADING COMPLETION



P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

58' OF 18" RCP @ 0.56%

IE=715.7 SW 18"

STR# P1

48" MH

N=211033.57

E=2561868.54

RIM=721.00

IE=716.00 NE

FIRE STATION

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7
2
8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

TEMPORARY

41' OF 24" RCP @ 1.23%

IE=729.5 NW 24"

IE=729.0 SE 24"

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

7

2

9

7
3
0

7

3

0

7

3

1

7
3
1

7
2
8

7

2

7

7

2

6

724

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

3

0

81 LF 15" RCP PIPE

IE=727.2 NE 15"

IE=726.4 SW 15"

7

1

5

7

1

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

2

8

7

0

9

7
1
6

7
2
0

7

2

1

718

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

2

9

7
2
9

7

2

8

7

2

7

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7
3
4

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

1

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

2

8

92' OF 15" RCP @ 3.24%

STR# (58)

15 RCP END SECTION

+55.6, 67.6' RT.

INV = 720.97

STR# (59)

15 RCP END SECTION

+69.2, 22.8' LT.

INV = 723.94

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

6

+

0

0

7

+

0

0

8

+

0

0

9

+

0

0

9

+

6

7

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

5

+

1

5

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

PROPOSED

PRIVATE ROADWAY

STORM SEWER NETWORK

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

NWL: 716

2 YEAR WL: 718.53

10 YEAR WL: 719.20

100 YEAR WL: 720.82

TOP OF BERM: 721.82

BOTTOM OF POND: 711

OUTLET

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 D
E

TE
N

TI
O

N
 P

O
N

D
(L

O
TS

 1
)

8
DWG 8 OF 21 DWGS

80'0' 40'

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

GRADING EAEMENT

FF = 734.50

FF = 730.50

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

DELETE FUTURE
DEVELOMENT LAYOUTS
FOR LOTS 1..JUST SHOW
GRADING THAT IS
CURRENTLY PLANNED
FOR THIS PROJECT
PHASE. 

WHAT ARE ALL THESE BOLDED
LINES?  ELIMINATE UNESSARY
LINES AND LABEL ANY REMAINING
(ROW)

LEBEL EXISTING
UPSTREAM I.E.

SHOW / LABEL
SPILLWAY
LOCATION

LOT 1 PROPOSED
SITE AND POND
GRADING

727

REVISE GRADING /
STORM I.E...I.E. IS
CURRENTLY BELOW
PROPOSED GRADES

WHAT IS
HAPPENING?

SHOW
PROPOSED
CONTOURS
ACCROSS
ROADWAY AND
TIE IN TO THE
SITE

WHAT IS
HAPPENING?

SHOW
PROPOSED
DRIVE
INTERSECTION
GEOMETERICS

DOES PL
FOLLOW CURB
OR EASEMENT
LINE ACROSS
LOT 1?

WHAT IS
HAPPENING?



LO
T 

1 
P

O
N

D
 D

E
TA

IL
S

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

9
DWG 9 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

2.5" ORIFICE @

716.00

13"x4.5" ORIFICE @

718.55

POND BOTTOM (OVER EXCAVATE TO 709.00) ALLOWING FOR

CONSTRUCTION SITE SEDIMENT.

MODELED POND BOTTOM = 711.0

TOP OF BERM 721.82

EMERGENCY SPILLWAY 720.82

18" FES I.E. 715.7

58LF 18" PVC @
 0.56%

10.00

2

:

1

 

S

L

O

P

E

4

:

1

 
S

L

O

P

E

4

:
1

 
S

L

O

P

E

8' WIDE SAFETY SHELF

NWL @ 716.00

2 YEAR STORM @ 718.53

100 YEAR STORM @ 720.82

OUTLET STRUCTURE SEE DETAIL

POLYETHYLENE POND LINER

MIN. 30 MIL THICKNESS

(PERMANENT POOL ONLY)

NOTE: PLACE 4" MINIMUM OF TOPSOIL, SEED, AND EMAT ON

POND EMBANKMENTS ABOVE THE PERMANENT POOL

ELEVATION, ON TOP OF BERM, AND BACKSIDE OF BERM

SEE EROSION CONTROL SHEET.

PLACE ANTI-SEEP

CONCRETE COLLAR AROUND

STORM SEWER PIPE

 POND LOT 1 CROSS-SECTION DETAIL

LIMITS OF TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT

10'

POND OVERFLOW SPILLWAY DETAIL

PYRAMAT PERMANENT TURF

REINFORCEMENT MAT INSTALLED

PER MANUFACTURER'S

SPECIFICATIONS.

TOP OF BERM

721.82

TOP OF SPILLWAY 720.82

1
.
0
'

F

3

POND LOT #1 DETENTION OUTFALL STRUCTURE

5
'
-
0

"

48"Ø 

6
"

4" GRAVEL OR SAND BASE FOR

LEVELING SURFACE.

12" MONOLITHICALLY PRECAST

CONCRETE BASE AND BOTTOM

SECTION.

MORTAR WITH NON-SHRINK,

QUICK SET HYDRAULIC CEMENT

AROUND  PIPE OPENINGS

(TYPICAL). FILL AND SEAL ALL

VOIDS.

5"

18"Ø PVC OUTLET

6
"

2.5"Ø ORIFICE

13"x4.5"  ORIFICE

INV. 718.55

INV. 716

INV. 716

INSTALL R-1581

MANHOLE FRAME, BOLTED SOLID LID

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

NOTE SLOPE OF
SAFETY SHELF

CLARIFY
LIMITS...JUST
SHOWN
TO..LINE
ENTIRE WET
POOL AREA

VERIFY THAT RECTANGULAR STYLE
ORIFICE CAN BE FABRICATED WITH
CONCRETE STRUCTURE OR IF YOU
NEED AN INTERNAL WIER WITH
ORIFACE PLATE

ADD NOTE AND
INFO ON
GRATE

PROVIDE PROVISIONS
FOR EMBANKMENT
MATERIAL

NOTE:  ALL CONSTRUCTION TO
MEET THE SPECIFICATIONS OF
'WDNR WET DETENTION BASIN
TECHNICAL STANDARD 1001"

CLAY LINER
TOO?



P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

FIRE STATION

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

4

IE=725.4 SW 15"

63' OF 15" RCP @ 1.00%

STR# P3

48" MH

N=210160.06

E=2561965.58

RIM = 731.00

IE=726.00 NE

TEMPORARY

41' OF 24" RCP @ 1.23%

IE=729.5 NW 24"

SIGN

AREA

7

2

9

7
3
0

7

3

1

7
3
1

724

7

2

8

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

2

9

7

3

2

7

3

1

7
3
5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7
3
3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

5

731

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

735

735

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

4

1

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

3

0

7

2

1

732

726

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

92' OF 15" RCP @ 3.24%

IE=725.4 SW 15"

STR# (58)

15 RCP END SECTION

+55.6, 67.6' RT.

INV = 720.97

STR# (59)

15 RCP END SECTION

+69.2, 22.8' LT.

INV = 723.94

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

1

+

0

0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

5

+

1

5

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

NWL: 726

2 YEAR WL: 728.05

10 YEAR WL: 728.96

100 YEAR WL: 730.31

TOP OF BERM: 732.00

BOTTOM OF POND: 721

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 D
E

TE
N

TI
O

N
 P

O
N

D
(L

O
T 

3)

10
DWG 10 OF 21 DWGS

80'0' 40'

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

LOT 3 PROPOSED
SITE AND POND
GRADING

DELETE FUTURE DEVELOMENT
LAYOUTS FOR LOTS 3..JUST SHOW
GRADING THAT IS CURRENTLY
PLANNED FOR THIS PROJECT PHASE.

WHAT IS
HAPPENING

730 729 726

728

LABEL
EXISTING
I.E.

SHOW PROPOSED
ROADWAY CONTOURS
/ LOT TIE INS

GRADE BDG
PAD AREA TO
DRAIN

TIE IN? ALSO LABEL
EXISTING CONTOURS AT
TIE IN LOCATIONS (TYP)



LO
T 

3 
P

O
N

D
 D

E
TA

IL
S

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

11
DWG 11 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

2.3" ORIFICE @

726.00

12"x6" ORIFICE @

730.00

POND BOTTOM 721.00

TOP OF BERM 732.00

EMERGENCY SPILLWAY 730.75

15" FES I.E. 725.4

63LF 15" PVC @
 1.00%

10.00

2

:

1

 

S

L

O

P

E

4

:

1

 
S

L

O

P

E

4

:
1

 
S

L

O

P

E

8' WIDE SAFETY SHELF

NWL @ 726.00

2 YEAR STORM @ 728.05

100 YEAR STORM @ 730.31

OUTLET STRUCTURE SEE DETAIL

POLYETHYLENE POND LINER

MIN. 30 MIL THICKNESS

(PERMANENT POOL ONLY)

NOTE: PLACE 4" MINIMUM OF TOPSOIL, SEED, AND EMAT ON

POND EMBANKMENTS ABOVE THE PERMANENT POOL

ELEVATION, ON TOP OF BERM, AND BACKSIDE OF BERM

SEE EROSION CONTROL SHEET.

PLACE ANTI-SEEP

CONCRETE COLLAR AROUND

STORM SEWER PIPE

 POND LOT 3 CROSS-SECTION DETAIL

LIMITS OF TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT

10'

POND OVERFLOW SPILLWAY DETAIL

PYRAMAT PERMANENT TURF

REINFORCEMENT MAT INSTALLED

PER MANUFACTURER'S

SPECIFICATIONS.

TOP OF BERM

732.0

TOP OF SPILLWAY 730.75

1
.
2
5
'

F

3

POND LOT #3 DETENTION OUTFALL STRUCTURE

5
'
-
9

"

48"Ø 

6
"

4" GRAVEL OR SAND BASE FOR

LEVELING SURFACE.

12" MONOLITHICALLY PRECAST

CONCRETE BASE AND BOTTOM

SECTION.

MORTAR WITH NON-SHRINK,

QUICK SET HYDRAULIC CEMENT

AROUND  PIPE OPENINGS

(TYPICAL). FILL AND SEAL ALL

VOIDS.

5"

15"Ø PVC OUTLET

6
"

2.3"Ø ORIFICE

12.0"Wx6.0"H  ORIFICE

INV. 730

INV. 726

INV. 726

INSTALL R-1581

MANHOLE FRAME, BOLTED SOLID LID

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

SEE COMMENTS
ON LOT 1 POND



P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

9201 WILMOT WAREHOUSE

FIRE STATION

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7
2
8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

SIGN

AREA

7

2

9

7
3
0

7

3

0

7

3

1

7
3
1

7
2
8

7

2

7

7

2

6

724

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

8

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

2

9

7

3

2

7

3

1

7
3
5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7
3
3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

5

731

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

735

735

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

5

7

3

3
7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

4

1

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

3

0

7

2

1

732

726

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

1

5

7

1

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

2

8

7

0

9

7
1
6

7
2
0

7

2

1

718

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

2

9

7
2
9

7

2

8

7

2

7

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7
3
4

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

1

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

2

8

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

LOT 3

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

NWL: 716

2 YEAR WL: 718.65

10 YEAR WL: 719.21

100 YEAR WL: 720.82

TOP OF BERM: 721.82

BOTTOM OF POND: 711

LOT 2

LOT 1

SILT FENCE

DITCH CHECK

TURF REINFORCEMENT

MATTING, SEE POND

DETAILS

TURF REINFORCEMENT

MATTING, SEE POND

DETAILS

12
DWG 12 OF 21 DWGS

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

P
LA

N

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

FF = 730.50

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

TREE PROTECTION

TREE PROTECTION

TRACKING PAD

SEE DETAIL

INLET PROTECTION

SILT FENCE

DITCH CHECKS

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

PROVIDE
EROSION
PROTECTION
FOR DRAINGE
ENTERING
POND

PROVIDE RIP
RAP AT OUTET
STORM SEWER
AEW'S (TYP)

IDENTIFY TEMP TOPSOIL
STOCKPILES LOCATIONS



7

3

0

7

3

5

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7
2
7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

8

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

729

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

2

0

7

2

0

7

2

5

7
1
9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7
2
6

7
2
7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

4

1

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

2

6

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

2

7

3

2

7
2
6

7

2

5

7

2

4

7
3
5

7
3
6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
3
5

7
3
0

7
3
2

731

7

3

3

732

7
3
2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
1
9

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

2

2

7
2
3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

709

715

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7
2
1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

1

7

1

9

7

1

7

7

1

6

7
1
8

7

1

8

719

7
2
9

7
2
8

7

2

6

7

2

4

7

2

3

721

721

7

1

5

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

7

7
3
1

732

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

2

8

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

SIGN

AREA

DWG 14 OF 21 DWGS

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

BERM

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

14

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

P
LA

N

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

FF = 730.50

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

4-INCHES TOPSOIL, SEED & EMAT

PFC, CLS, GD, RTD (MIXTURE)

SWO

ABM

RE

ABM

SWO

ABM

RE

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

RE

SWO

RE

RE

RE

SWO

RE

PFC

PFC

PFC

PFC

SL

SL

SL

SL

SL

SWO

FOUNTAIN

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

MOVE TREES OFF OF
POND EMBANKMENTS TO
EDGE OF WETLAND

MOVE TREES 
OFF OF
EMBANKMENT
OR ELIMINATE

USE STREET TREE FROM
APPROVED VILLAGE
STREET TREE LIST FOR
TREES ALONG CTH H(TYP)

ALSO..SERIES A COUPLE IN
A ROW BEFORE SWITCING
SPECIES.

LANDSCAPING FOR
LOT 2 TO BE DONE
WITH SEPERATE
SITE AND
OPERTIONAL PLANS

STREET TREES
ALONG LOT 2
WILL BE
REQUIRED



700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

7
3
3
.
3
0

7
3
2
.
8
0

7
3
2
.
3
0

7
3
2
.
6
0

7
3
2
.
7
8

7
3
2
.
4
8

7
3
2
.
1
8

7
3
1
.
2
8

7
3

3
.
9

7
3

3
.
8

7
3

4
.
0

7
3

3
.
4

7
3

2
.
6

7
3

2
.
0

7
3

1
.
7

7
3

1
.
3

7
3

0
.
9

7
3

0
.
9

0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50 2+00 2+50 3+00 3+50 4+00 4+40

-1.00%

+0.60%
-0.60%

-2
.2

6
%

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
0
+

5
4
.
7
7

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
3
.
7
5

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
2
+

0
0

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
2
.
3
0

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
2
+

9
0

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
2
.
8
4

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
4
+

0
0

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
2
.
1
8

-1.00%

+0.60%
-0.60%

-2
.2

6
%

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
0
+

5
4
.
7
7

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
3
.
7
5

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
2
+

0
0

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
2
.
3
0

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
2
+

9
0

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
2
.
8
4

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
4
+

0
0

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
3
2
.
1
8

ENGINEERED BACKFILL REQUIRED WITHIN THE ROADWAY

315' OF 15" RCP @ 0.62%

STR# (18)

48" MH

+00, 0.0'

RIM=732.30

IE=728.71 SE

IE=728.71 NW

IE=726.95 NE

0+00 1+00 2+00 3+00 4+00

2
8

.
0

'

PROPOSED BUILDING

FF=734.50

R

2

7

.

4

8

R

2

7

.

5

0

R

2

0

.

0

0

R

2

0

.

0

0

R
3
0
.0

0

R

3

0

.

0

0

DETENTION POND

FUTURE BERM

F

U

T

U

R

E

W

O

R

K

4
0

.
0

'
 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

MATCH

EXISTING CURB

MATCH

EXISTING CURB

30-INCH CURB

& GUTTER

(TYP.)

30-INCH CURB

& GUTTER

(TYP.)

ASPHALT

PAVEMENT

(SEE TYPICAL)

18-INCH CURB

& GUTTER

(TYP.)

0+84.57

41.48'LT.

0+72.83

41.50'RT.

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

2+38.07

44.00'RT.

3+36.50

43.85'RT.

3+26.85

33.91'LT.

3+32.67

18.00'RT.

MOVE LIGHT

 POLE

PROTECT EXISTING

LIGHT POLE

2+56.86

33.91'LT.

2+63.91

59.76'RT.
2+91.36

71.86'RT.

0+47.91

29.86'RT.

0+57.47

36.92'LT.

OSB INL1

2'X3' INLET

RIM=731.99

IE=729.00 SE

OSB INL2

2'X3' INLET

RIM=731.99

IE=729.00 NW

STR# (18)

INL-A2

2'X3' INLET

+02.4, 249.6' LT.

RIM=731.69

IE=726.75 E

INL-A1

2'X3' INLET

+03.8, 44.7' RT.

RIM=731.67

IE=726.30 W

IE=726.19 E

L2A CB8

24'' INLET

N=210184.37

E=2561391.09

RIM=731.50

IE=729.00 NW

STR# (52)

12 RCP END SECTION

+34.4, 63.3' RT.

RIM=726.96

IE=725.80 W

15 LF 12" RCP PIPE

315 LF 15" RCP PIPE

15 LF 12" RCP PIPE

4

1

 
L

F

 
1

2

"

 
R

C

P

 
P

I
P

E

36 LF 12" RCP PIPE

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

40'0' 20'

E-W PRIVATE ROAD

E
-W

 P
R

IV
A

TE
 R

D
 S

TO
R

M
 - 

1
 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

15
DWG 15 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

S
T

A
.
 
4
+

4
0
 
S

E
E

 
N

E
X

T
 
D

W
G

.

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

NOTE PIPE
SIZE FOR
EACH (TYP)

(12")
(12")
(15")

FUTURE OR BEING
CONSTRUCTED IN
THIS PROJECT?
CLARIFY

PROVIDE  AN
OVERALL
DRIVE
DETAILS.

DEPRESSED CURBS
THROUGH DRIVE?
CLARIFY

DRIVES (APSHALT
OR CONCRETE?) x

x

xx

DRIVE CURB TYPE? DETAIL
CURB TRANSITIONS ETC.

PROVIDE
ELEVATIONS
(TYP)

x x

xx

EXTEND ROAD
PROFILE TO
INTERSECTION
(5+15)

GRANULAR?

733

732

732

730

733

732

NEED EXISTING CURB
MODIFICATIONS?
REMOVE?



700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

+
2
.9

5
%

+1.2
5%

V.P.I. 4+33

EL. 731.40

150' V.C.

K=85.71

HP=4+65.50

EL.=731.14

P
V

C
:
 
3
+

5
8
.
3
6

 
7
3
0
.
4
7

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
1
+

7
3
.
4
1

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
2
8
.
1
5

+
2
.9

5
%

+1.2
5%

V.P.I. 4+33

EL. 731.40

150' V.C.

K=85.71

HP=4+65.50

EL.=731.14

P
V

C
:
 
3
+

5
8
.
3
6

 
7
3
0
.
4
7

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
1
+

7
3
.
4
1

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
2
8
.
1
5

ENGINEERED BACKFILL REQUIRED WITHIN THE ROADWAY

7
2
5
.
9
9

7
2
7
.
4
6

7
2
8
.
4
9

7
2
9
.
1
1

7
2
9
.
7
4

7
3
0
.
3
6

7
3
0
.
8
8

7
3
1
.
1
2

7
3
1
.
1
4

7
2

6
.
6

7
2

7
.
9

7
2

8
.
2

7
2

8
.
8

7
2

9
.
3

7
2

9
.
9

7
3

0
.
4

7
3

1
.
1

7
3

1
.
0

1+00 1+50 2+00 2+50 3+00 3+50 4+00 4+50 4+65

OSA INL6

2'X3' INLET

+87.4, 15.5' RT.

RIM=728.06

IE=724.70 SW

IE=724.60 NW

142' OF 15" RCP @ 0.40%

OSA MH6

48" MH

+35.8, 0.0'

RIM=730.18

IE=724.03 SE

IE=725.00 SW

IE=725.80 W

IE=723.93 NW

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

5

+

1

5

0

+

0

0

1

+

0

0

2
+

0
0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

R

5

0

.
0

0

R

6

0

.
0

0

3

0

-

I

N

C

H

 

C

U

R

B

&

 

G

U

T

T

E

R

(

T

Y

P

.

)

NEW LIGHT POLE

STA. 3+87.60

18.00' RT.

NEW LIGHT POLE

STA. 2+94.35

18.02' RT.

2

8

.

0

0

4+51.11

64.00'LT.

4+41.23

74.00'RT.

NEW LIGHT POLE

STA. 1+32.20

18.00' RT.

30-INCH CURB &

GUTTER (TYP.)

5+40.77

16.50'RT.

3

0

-

I

N

C

H

 

C

U

R

B

 

&

G

U

T

T

E

R

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

E

N

D

C

U

R

B

 

&G

U

T

T

E

R

4+82.22

14.00'RT.

R

1

7

.

5

0

4+73.20

31.50'RT.

R

2

7

.

5

0

NEW LIGHT POLE

5+07.04

18.00'LT.

R
4
5
.
0
0

R

4

5

.
0

0

0+88.09

59.00'LT.

END C&G

0+67.14

19.18'LT.

END C&G

0+67.52

19.40'RT.

0+88.89

59.00'RT.

W

O

R

K

 

B

Y

O

T

H

E

R

S

MOVE LIGHT

POLE

4+44.53

18.00' RT

R

1

7

2

.

5

0

2

+

8

0

.

4

8

1

4

.

0

0

'
R

T

.

3+99.54

14.00'LT.

2+66.88

14.00'LT.

OSA MH6

OSA INL7

2'X3' INLET

RIM=727.99

IE=724.90 NE

OSA INL5.1

2'X3' INLET

RIM=729.97

IE=726.25 E

OSA INL6

2'X3' INLET

RIM=728.06

IE=724.70 SW

IE=724.60 NW

+34.4, 63.3' RT.

RIM=726.96

IE=725.80 W

41 LF 15"

RCP PIPE

31 LF 12" RCP PIPE

142 LF 15"

RCP PIPE

3

1

5

 

L

F

 

1

8

"

 

R

C

P

 

P

I

P

E

1

2

'

1

2

'

92' OF 15" RCP @ 3.24%

STR# (58)

STR# (59)

15 RCP END SECTION

+69.2, 22.8' LT.

INV = 723.94

S

T

A

.

 

1

+

0

0

 

S

E

E

 

D

W

G

.

 

#

1

7

S

T

A

.

 

4

+

6

5

 

S

E

E

 

N

E

X

T

 

D

W

G

.

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

40'0' 20'

N-S PRIVATE ROAD

N
-S

  P
R

IV
A

TE
 R

D
 S

TO
R

M
 - 

1
 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

16
DWG 16 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

12-14-18 Submittal #3

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

SEE POND

GRADING DETAILS

S

T

A

.

 

4

+

4

0

 

S

E

E

 

P

R

E

V

I

O

U

S

 

D

W

G

.

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

EXTEND ROAD
PLAN AND PROFILE
TO INTERSECTION

DOES THIS
NEED TO BE A
MH?

PROVIDE
INTERSECTION
DETAIL

x

x

x

x
730

731

729



700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

-0.50%

+1.3
3%

P
V

T
:
 
5
+

0
8
.
3
6

7
3
1
.
0
3

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
8
+

5
7

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
2
9
.
2
8

-0.50%

+1.3
3%

P
V

T
:
 
5
+

0
8
.
3
6

7
3
1
.
0
3

S
T

A
.
 
=

 
8
+

5
7

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
7
2
9
.
2
8

ENGINEERED BACKFILL REQUIRED WITHIN THE ROADWAY

7
3
1
.
1
4

7
3
1
.
0
7

7
3
0
.
8
2

7
3
0
.
5
7

7
3
0
.
3
2

7
3
0
.
0
7

7
2
9
.
8
2

7
2
9
.
5
7

7
2
9
.
3
2

7
2
9
.
8
6

7
3

1
.
0

7
3

1
.
0

7
3

0
.
7

7
3

0
.
1

7
2

9
.
8

7
2

9
.
5

7
2

9
.
4

7
2

9
.
5

7
2

9
.
6

7
2

9
.
7

4+65 5+00 5+50 6+00 6+50 7+00 7+50 8+00 8+50 9+00

OSA MH4

60" MH

+57.2, 0.0'

RIM=729.29

IE=722.50 SW

IE=721.23 NE

208' OF 18" RCP @ 0.45%

OSA MH5

48" MH

+50, 0.0'

RIM=730.32

IE=722.36 SE

IE=722.26 NW

315' OF 18" RCP @ 0.50%

S
I
G

N

A
R

E
A

4+00 5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00 9+00 9+67

3
0
-
I
N

C
H

 
C

U
R

B

NEW LIGHT POLE

STA. 3+87.60

18.00' RT.

4+51.11

64.00'LT.

3

0

-

I

N

C

H

 

C

U

R

B

 

&

G

U

T

T

E

R

 

(

T

Y

P

.

)

END

CURB &

GUTTER

5+40.77

16.50'RT.

30-INCH CURB &

GUTTER

6+38.92

18.00'LT.

R

2

2

.

5

0

R

3

5

.

0

0

R

3

0

.

0

0

R

3

0

.

0

0

R

1

6

.

0

0

R

1

6

.

0

0

6+43.40

36.50'RT.

7+35.24

49.00'RT.

7+87.94

30.00'RT.

8+48.03

29.99'RT.

8+61.10

44.00'LT.

7+72.10

44.00'LT.

NEW LIGHT POLE

7+70.95

18.00'LT.

FUTURE

WORK

FUTURE

WORK

WORK BY

OTHERS

NEW LIGHT

POLE

8+55.08

18.00'RT.

WORK BY

OTHERS

18-INCH CURB &

GUTTER

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWW

WWWWWWWWWW

W

END

CURB &

GUTTER

4+82.22

14.00'RT.

R

1

7

.
5

0

4+73.20

31.50'RT.

R

2

7

.

5

0

5+52.23

41.50'RT.

NEW LIGHT POLE

5+07.04

18.00'LT.

R

4

5

.

0

0

R

4

5

.

0

0

3'

NEW LIGHT

POLE

WORK BY

OTHERS

3+99.54

14.00'LT.

L2B CB2

24'' INLET

RIM=732.64

IE=730.00 NW

L2B CB1

24'' INLET

N=210699.97

E=2561497.12

RIM=732.33

IE=728.50 SE

IE=727.00 NW

OSA MH5

L2A CB1

48'' INLET

N=210732.82

E=2561430.40

RIM=729.96

IE=723.20 SW

IE=725.00 SE

IE=723.10 NE

OSA INL5.1

2'X3' INLET

RIM=729.97

IE=726.25 E

OSA MH4

OS MH4

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM=729.02

IE=722.90 SW

IE=722.70 NE

OSA MH3

5' CATCH BASIN

+57.2, 15.5' RT.

RIM=728.92

IE=721.14 SW

IE=721.04 E

OSC FES2

12 RCP END SECTION

+14.7, 36.8' LT.

IE=727.25 NE

OSA MH2

OSC FES1

12 RCP END SECTION

+13.7, 43.8' RT.

IE=726.40 SW

315 LF 18" RCP PIPE

16 LF 24" RCP PIPE

16 LF 30" RCP PIPE

208 LF 18" RCP PIPE

72 LF 30"

RCP PIPE

69 LF 24"

RCP PIPE

81 LF 15" RCP PIPE

75 LF 15"

RCP PIPE

104 LF 12" PVC PIPE

NEW CONCRETE

PAVEMENT,

8-INCH

END C&G

9+04.12

14.63'RT.

END C&G

9+04.09

14.98'LT.

8+96.69

59.32'RT.

8+94.82

58.68'LT.

12'

12'

S
T

A
.
 
4

+
6
5

 
S

E
E

 
P

R
E

V
I
O

U
S

 
D

W
G

.

S
T

A
.
 
9
+

0
0
 
S

E
E

 
D

W
G

.
 
#
1
7

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

40'0' 20'

N-S PRIVATE ROAD

N
-S

  P
R

IV
A

TE
 R

D
 S

TO
R

M
 - 

2
 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

17
DWG 17 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

12-14-18 Submittal #3

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

REMOVE / REPLACE
CONCRETE AT
NEAREST JOINT. 
COORDINATE
REPLACEMENT
LIMITS WITH VOPP

PROVIDE DEPRESSED
CURB THROUGH
DRIVE

CURB?  PROVIDE
BETTER CLARITY OR
DETAIL OF DRIVE

CONTOUR
DOES NOT
COINCIDE
WITH TYP
CROSS SLOPE

x

x

x x

EXTEND PLAN AND
PROFILE TO
INTESECTION

DEPRESSED
CURB
THROUGH
DRIVE SHOW DRIVE

CURB
TRANSITION
DETAIL

PROVIDE DUEL
CB'S AT SAG
CURVE

730

SHOW
PLANNED
PUMPER PAD
LOCATION (BY
OTHERS)

CLEARY DEPICT
FUTURE CONCEPTUAL
ITEMS VS CURRENT
PROPOSED



700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

700

705

710

715

720

725

730

735

740

745

7
2
8
.
9
9

7
2
8
.
0
0

7
2
8
.
0
0

7
2
8
.
5
8

7
2
8
.
0
3

7
2
1
.
2
5

7
0
9
.
0
0

7
0
9
.
0
0

7
2

9
.
0

7
2

9
.
5

7
2

8
.
2

7
2

7
.
6

7
2

6
.
5

7
2

5
.
1

7
2

4
.
5

7
2

3
.
5

7
2

2
.
7

7
2

2
.
0

0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50 2+00 2+50 3+00 3+50 4+00 4+50

OS MH4

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM = 729.02

IE=722.90 SW

IE=722.70 NE

16' OF 24" RCP @ 1.29%

24 '' RCP

OSA MH4

60" MH

RIM=729.29

IE=722.50 SW

IE=721.23 NE

16' OF 30" RCP @ 0.60%

OSA MH3

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM=728.92

IE=721.14 SW

IE=721.04 E

72' O
F 30" R

C
P @

 1.25%

104' O
F 30" R

C
P @

 1.25%

OSA MH2

60" MH

RIM=728.00

IE=720.15 W

IE=720.05 NE

1
3
6
' O

F
 3

0
"
 R

C
P

 @
 1

.9
5
%

OSC FES3

30 RCP END SECTION

RIM=718.79

IE=716.00 SW

OSA MH1

60" MH

RIM=725.18

IE=718.75 SW

IE=718.64 NE

8
+

0
0

9
+

0
0

L2B CB1

24'' INLET

RIM = 732.33

IE=728.50 SE

IE=727.00 NW

L2A CB1

48'' INLET

RIM = 729.96

IE=723.20 SW

IE=725.00 SE

IE=723.10 NE

OSA MH4

OS MH4

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM = 729.02

IE=722.90 SW

IE=722.70 NE

OSC FES2

12 RCP END SECTION

N=210825.01

E=2561415.32

IE=727.25 NE

OSA MH2

60" MH

RIM=728.00

IE=720.15 W

IE=720.05 NE

OSC FES1

12 RCP END SECTION

N=210871.50

E=2561481.17

IE=726.40 SW

OSA MH3

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM=728.92

IE=721.14 SW

IE=721.04 E

16 LF 24" RCP PIPE @ 1.29%

16 LF 30" RCP PIPE @ 0.60%

2
0
8
 
L

F
 
1
8
"
 
R

C
P

 
P

I
P

E
 
@

 
0
.
4
5
%

7

2

 

L

F

 

3

0

"

 

R

C

P

 

P

I

P

E

 

@

 

1

.

2

5

%

1

1

8

 
L

F

 
1

8

"

 
P

V

C

 
P

I
P

E

 
@

 
0

.
6

7

%

6

9

 

L

F

 

2

4

"

 

R

C

P

 

P

I

P

E

 

@

 

0

.

2

9

%

81 LF 15" RCP PIPE @ 1.05%

7

5

 

L

F

 

1

5

"

 

R

C

P

 

P

I

P

E

 

@

 

2

.

6

9

%

1
0
4
 
L

F
 
1
2
"
 
P

V
C

 
P

I
P

E
 
@

 
1
.
4
4
%

104 LF 30" RCP PIPE @ 1.25%

7
2
8

7
2
5

7
2
0

7
1

6

7
2
7

7
2
6

7
2
4

7
2
3

7
2
2

7
2
1

7
1
9

7
1
8

7
1

7

7
1

5

7
1

0

7
0

9

7
1

2

7
2
4

723

722

721

720

719

718

717

716

7

1

5

710

733

733

730

730

7

2

7

7

2

6

7

2

8

OSA MH1

60" MH

RIM=725.18

IE=718.75 SW

IE=718.64 NE

OSC FES3

30 RCP END SECTION

N=210963.44

E=2561747.68

IE=716.00 SW

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

40'0' 20'

OUTLET TO POND

S
TO

R
M

 P
&

P
 T

O
 P

O
N

D
- P

H
A

S
E

2
 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

18
DWG 18 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

COMMON STORM SEWER
TO BE WITHIN AN
EASEMENT.  SHOW
EASEMENT ON PLANS

NOTE
BACKFILL TYPE
AND LIMITS

RIM
ELEVATION TO
BE RAISED TO
GRADE?



SIG
N

AREA

9
+

0
0

9
+

6
7

NEW LIGHT

POLE

9+44.11

212.50'LT.

9+54.29

211.27'RT.

W

W

W

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

R

4

5

.

0

0

R

4

5

.

0

0

3
'

OSC FES2

12 RCP END SECTION

+14.7, 36.8' LT.

IE=727.25 NE

OSC FES1

12 RCP END SECTION

+13.7, 43.8' RT.

IE=726.40 SW

81 LF 15" RCP PIPE

END C&G

9+04.12

14.63'RT.

END C&G

9+04.09

14.98'LT.

8+96.69

59.32'RT.

8+94.82

58.68'LT.

3

'

3
'

1
2
'

1
2
'

STA. 9+00 SEE DWG.#15

SIG
N

AREA

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

0+42.33

223.37'LT.

0+34.13

204.03'RT.

W

R

4

5

.

0

0

R

4

5

.

0

0

0+88.09

59.00'LT.

END C&G

0+67.14

19.18'LT.

END C&G

0+67.52

19.40'RT.

0+88.89

59.00'RT.

3
'

1
2

'

1
2

'

92' OF 15" RCP @ 3.24%

STR# (58)

15 RCP END SECTION

+55.6, 67.6' RT.

INV = 720.97

STR# (59)

15 RCP END SECTION

+69.2, 22.8' LT.

INV = 723.94

STA. 1+00 SEE DWG. #14

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

40'0' 20'

N/S PRIVATE ROAD AT CTH C

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 E

N
TR

A
N

C
E

S
 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

19
DWG 19 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

N/S PRIVATE ROAD AT CTH H

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

REPLACE 12-INCH CMP WITH  A 15-INCH

CMP UNDER RECONFIGURED DRIVE

RE-GRADE DITCH

AS NEEDED

RE-GRADE DITCH

AS NEEDED

DENSE GRADED

BASE COURSE (TYP.)

KENOSHA COUNTY PERMIT

ROAD FOR WORK IN ROW

KENOSHA COUNTY PERMIT

ROAD FOR WORK IN ROW

REMOVING

LIGHT POLE

REMOVING LIGHT POLE

DENSE GRADED

BASE COURSE (TYP.)

RELOCATE MAILBOX

PER US POST OFFICE

GUIDELINES

RELOCATE MAILBOX

PER US POST OFFICE

GUIDELINES

RELOCATE MAILBOX

PER US POST OFFICE

GUIDELINES

RELOCATE MAILBOX

PER US POST OFFICE

GUIDELINES

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

PROVIDE MORE CLEAR
AND COMPLETE

DETAILS OF
INTERSECTIONS

ADDRESS DRAINAGE AT END END OF
C&G (FLUMES ETC). ALSO PROVIDE
CURB TERMINATION DETAIL

IDENTIFY
VALVE
ADJUSTMENTS
(TYP)

CONTOURS
SEEM
INCORRECT

DIMENSION
TAPERS;
SHOW  RADII
PNTS

ELIMINATE AGG
SHOULDER THROUGH
DRIVE; MAKE A
PERPENDICULAR CUT
ACROSS DRIVE.

AT RADII PNT?
WHAT IS THE
DIMENSION
TOO?

LABEL EOP
(EXISTING)

LABEL EX I.E.

x
x

PROVIDE NEW EDGE
SAW CUT ALONG INT
AND CLEARLY SHOW
ALL NEW ASPHALT
SECTION

LABEL EX
DRIVE
MATERIAL

EXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLEEXAMPLE

EXAMPLE EXAMPLE

xx

PROVIDE EX.
PAVEMENT
GRADES

CAN ELIMINATE
NOTE.  PERMIT TO
BE OBTAINED BY
DESIGN ENGINEER
PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION

SAME
COMMENTS AS
BELOW

COORDINATE EXACT
DRIVE
REPLACEMENT
LIMITS WITH VOPP



T

O

T

A

L

 

=

4

3

,

5

0

0

 

S

F

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

PRIVATE DRIVE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

H

"

 

 

 

8

8

T

H

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

PRIVATE DRIVE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

H

"

 

 

 

8

8

T

H

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

1

0

.

1

0

.

1

0

.

1

0

.

1

0

.

1

0

.

3

0

.

2

0

.

1

0

.

4

0

.

3

0

.

2

0

.

9

0

.

5

0

.

3

0

.

2

0

.

8

0

.

4

0

.

3

0

.

2

0

.

8

0

.

4

0

.

3

0

.

2

0

.

5

0

.

3

0

.

2

0

.

1

0

.

2

0

.

1

0

.

1

0

.

0

0

.

1

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

0

0

.

4

0

.

5

0

.

6

0

.

8

0

.

4

0

.

6

0

.

8

1

.

2

1

.

7

2

.

1

0

.

4

0

.

7

1

.

1

1

.

7

2

.

2

2

.

6

2

.

6

0

.

8

0

.

6

0

.

6

1

.

1

2

.

1

3

.

0

2

.

7

2

.

1

3

.

7

4

.

0

3

.

7

3

.

5

3

.

3

3

.

5

3

.

6

3

.

8

2

.

7

1

.

6

0

.

9

0

.

8

1

.

8

3

.

3

3

.

1

3

.

3

3

.

5

4

.

4

5

.

5

2

.

3

3

.

2

3

.

4

3

.

6

5

.

1

5

.

1

4

.

9

3

.

4

3

.

2

2

.

9

1

.

9

1

.

0

2

.

9

3

.

3

3

.

8

4

.

7

3

.

8

4

.

3

3

.

8

1

.

3

1

.

6

2

.

2

3

.

0

2

.

9

2

.

8

3

.

9

4

.

3

3

.

7

2

.

6

2

.

8

2

.

6

1

.

7

0

.

9

3

.

4

3

.

1

3

.

9

4

.

6

3

.

2

2

.

5

3

.

0

2

.

4

1

.

8

2

.

1

1

.

9

1

.

7

2

.

1

2

.

8

3

.

2

4

.

0

6

.

1

6

.

0

5

.

9

3

.

6

3

.

0

2

.

4

1

.

4

3

.

4

3

.

5

3

.

3

2

.

9

3

.

0

2

.

7

2

.

0

3

.

6

3

.

7

3

.

2

2

.

2

1

.

5

1

.

3

1

.

6

2

.

1

2

.

4

3

.

7

3

.

6

3

.

7

3

.

5

2

.

9

2

.

6

2

.

7

2

.

9

3

.

8

3

.

7

3

.

3

2

.

9

2

.

5

1

.

7

0

.

9

2

.

3

2

.

7

2

.

7

2

.

8

3

.

1

3

.

3

3

.

1

3

.

8

3

.

9

3

.

2

4

.

4

4

.

6

2

.

6

2

.

8

2

.

8

1

.

9

2

.

7

3

.

8

3

.

4

2

.

6

4

.

1

6

.

5

0

.

6

0

.

7

1

.

6

3

.

7

3

.

7

4

.

6

4

.

9

4

.

1

4

.

2

3

.

3

1

.

9

3

.

4

3

.

8

4

.

1

4

.

8

4

.

5

5

.

9

4

.

7

2

.

9

1

.

4

1

.

3

2

.

5

4

.

0

3

.

5

3

.

9

4

.

1

5

.

4

5

.

6

2

.

3

4

.

1

3

.

7

5

.

0

5

.

2

3

.

6

3

.

2

3

.

4

2

.

8

2

.

1

2

.

8

3

.

2

2

.

9

2

.

9

5

.

4

5

.

6

4

.

1

3

.

3

4

.

3

3

.

7

3

.

0

3

.

5

3

.

2

2

.

5

2

.

4

2

.

7

3

.

1

3

.

1

3

.

5

3

.

8

3

.

9

3

.

8

3

.

8

3

.

3

2

.

8

2

.

4

2

.

1

2

.

3

2

.

5

2

.

4

3

.

0

3

.

4

3

.

1

2

.

8

2

.

3

1

.

9

1

.

5

1

.

2

0

.

8

1

.

4

2

.

3

3

.

1

3

.

3

2

.

6

1

.

8

1

.

2

1

.

4

3

.

1

4

.

1

4

.

1

3

.

0

2

.

2

1

.

0

3

.

2

4

.

1

3

.

8

3

.

4

3

.

2

2

.

6

2

.

7

3

.

9

3

.

9

4

.

1

2

.

6

3

.

0

3

.

9

3

.

4

5

.

1

4

.

5

4

.

5

3

.

9

4

.

4

5

.

0

4

.

7

3

.

1

3

.

7

3

.

4

3

.

3

6

.

3

1

.

7

3

.

3

3

.

5

2

.

9

3

.

1

1

.

4

2

.

0

2

.

7

2

.

9

3

.

2

2

.

2

2

.

1

2

.

2

2

.

3

2

.

4

3

.

1

2

.

8

2

.

6

2

.

1

1

.

6

3

.

1

3

.

0

3

.

3

3

.

3

1

.

9

6

.

1

3

.

5

3

.

1

3

.

7

3

.

3

4

.

8

4

.

6

4

.

5

3

.

8

3

.

0

5

.

1

4

.

2

5

.

1

3

.

8

4

.

1

3

.

0

2

.

7

4

.

2

4

.

2

3

.

6

3

.

0

3

.

0

3

.

6

3

.

8

3

.

6

2

.

7

3

.

5

3

.

9

3

.

2

2

.

6

2

.

2

50'0' 25'

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

P
H

O
TO

M
E

TR
IC

 P
LA

N
 S

.

26
DWG 26 OF 21 DWGS

LOT 2

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

ANOTHER LIGHT
NEEDED FOR
INTERSECTION?



LOT 1

LOT 2

D

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
---

88
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-

W238N1610 BUSSE RD.
WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188

262.513.0666 PHONE ▌262.513.1232 FAX

PRELIMINARY

AND ROADWAY ACCESS
AND MAINTENANCE
EASEMENT

VOPP ENG REVIEW
PLAN MARK UP
MARCH 4, 2019



LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---
88

TH
 A

VE
N

U
E

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

PRELIMINARY

DOES CROSS-HATCH
REPRESENT BOTH
ACCESS AND ROADWAY
EASEMENTS AS TITLED?

EW ROAD TO BE
COVERED BY ROADWAY
ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE
EASEMENT AS WELL



LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

PRELIMINARY

LOT 1

LOT 3

LOT 2

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---
-

PROVIDE STORM
WATER EASEMENT
OVER COMMON STORM
SEWER THAT DRAINS
THE ROADWAY TO THE
POND



LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
---

88
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-

WETLANDS DELINEATED AND
MAPPED BY ALICE THOMPSON &
ASSOCIATES WETLAND SERVICES,
LLC ON JUNE 25, 2018.

PRELIMINARY

WETLAND PROTECTION
AND PRESERVATION,
ACCESS, AND
MAINTENANCE
EASEMENT?



PRELIMINARY

 / EASEMENT



ADDITIONAL DEDICATION AND EASEMENT PROVISIONS
(PREVIOUS RECORDED DOCUMENTS ARE REFERENCED)

3. A perpetual nonexclusive easement coextensive with the area shown as a minimum Dedicated Water Tower/Utility 
Substation, Access and Maintenance Easement within Lots 2 and 3 on this CSM was hereby dedicated, given, 
granted and conveyed by Prairie Holdings to the Village for an easement of passage for both pedestrian and vehicular 
use, as appropriate for the purpose of ingress, egress and parking upon and over the access easement areas for access to
the Village's water tower and utility substation.  The Owner shall, at its sole cost and expense install, maintain, operate,
repair, and replace said pavement; surface the access driveways with asphalt or concrete and maintain said driveway in
quality, appearance and durability. All debris, paper and refuse shall be removed from the access driveways.  This
Dedicated Water Tower/Utility Substation, Access and Maintenance Easement shall be exclusive, except for: (1) the
Owner's use, planting and irrigating, care and maintenance of landscaped and paved driveway areas and the Owner's use,
maintenance, replacement or repair of any parking or driveway areas within the easement area as it will not interfere with
the access, uses and purposes of the Village and (2) such other easements as may be dedicated and conveyed herein with
respect to the same area or any portion thereof.  In the event of any conflicts between the rights of the Village
pursuant to this Dedicated Water Tower/Utility Substation, Access and Maintenance Easement and the rights of any other
persons or entities with respect to this Easement, the Village's rights under this Easement shall be deemed to be superior.

4. Nonexclusive easements coextensive within the areas shown on this CSM as Dedicated Wetland Preservation and 
Protection, Access and Maintenance Easement areas are hereby dedicated, given, granted and conveyed by the 
Owner to the Village for wetland conservancy preservation, protection, and maintenance purposes and uses and for 
related ingress and egress.  It shall be the Lot Owner's responsibility, with respect to the wetlands located on its lot shall
maintain said wetlands and remove invasive species, dead plant life and trash and debris from the wetland areas. Unless
the Village exercises the rights granted to it pursuant to the maintenance of the wetland easements areas, the Village shall
have no obligation to do anything related to its rights under these easements. Any Village costs that may be incurred for
wetland maintenance activities shall be placed as a special charge against the property.

5.   A perpetual nonexclusive easement coextensive with the areas shown as a Dedicated Storm Water Drainage, 
Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance Easement within Lot 1 and 3 on this CSM is hereby dedicated, given, 
granted and conveyed by Prairie Holdings to the Village for the property Owner's private storm water drainage system 
improvements, storm water retention basin storage and conveyance, uses and purposes, and for all related ingress 
and egress, construction, installation, repair, alteration, replacement and maintenance activities.  These Dedicated 
Storm Water Drainage, Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance Easement areas shall be exclusive, except for the 
Owner's use, planting and irrigating, care and maintenance of the Dedicated Storm Water Drainage, Retention Basin, 
Access and Maintenance Easement areas on Lot 1 as it will not interfere with the improvements, uses and purposes 
of the Village. In the event of any conflicts between the rights of the Village pursuant to the Dedicated Storm Water 
Drainage, Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance Easements and the rights of any other persons or entities with 
respect to the Dedicated Easements, the Village's rights under these Easements shall be deemed to be superior. 
Unless the Village exercises its rights granted to it hereunder with respect to these easements, the Village shall have 
no obligation to do anything pursuant to its rights under these easements.  Any Village costs that may be incurred in 
the repair, alteration, replacement or maintenance activities of the private storm water drainage, retention basin or 
storm sewer main improvements shall be invoiced to the Owner and if not paid, it will be placed as a special charge 
against the property.

6. A perpetual nonexclusive easement coextensive the areas shown as a Dedicated Private Storm Water Drainage  
Access and Maintenance Easement and a Dedicated Access Easement for storm water leaving 9201 Wilmot Road and
discharging into Lot 2 Storm Water Inlets which routes to the Storm Water Retention Pond located on Lot 1 of this CSM are
hereby dedicated, given granted and conveyed by the Lot 2 Owner to 9201 Wilmot Road for the purposes of storm water
drainage, storm sewer and retention basin(s) grading, construction, installation, planting, lighting, irrigation, related 
maintenance and for all related ingress and egress of the drainage areas benefiting the development.  These Easements 
shall be exclusive for installation and maintenance; grading, planting and maintenance responsibilities, if required, and 
related ingress and egress in the Easement areas, which shall be required of the Lot 2 Owner's premises.

PRELIMINARY

LOT 1 AND 3

CLARIFY PARTIES AND RESPOSIBILTIES
FOR PRIVATE ROADWAY MAINTENANCE
ETC. 

PROVIDE SECTION ON ROADWAY ACCESS
AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT AND
SEPERATE SECTION PERTAINING TO
WATER TOWER ACCESS EASEMENT



RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

1. The Landowner hereby covenants that the Lots 1, 2 & 3 Owner(s) shall have the obligation of planting Street Trees
within the CTH C (Wilmot Road) and CTH H (88th Avenue) rights-of-way area abutting their respective Lots.  Such
future planting and maintenance shall include without limitation and as needed planting, staking, mulching, weeding,
pruning, watering, replanting, and removing of trash, debris, leaves and brush around the trees in order to prevent a
nuisance condition.  No driveways, signage, mail boxes, parking areas, structures or fences shall be erected within the
right-of-ways, which might damage the street trees or might interfere with the Village's and Kenosha County's rights to
maintain the public street improvements, unless approved by the Village.  These trees shall be planted as a condition of
Lots 1, 2 & 3 development.  This covenant shall run with the land, shall be binding upon the Owner, its successors,
successors and assigns and successors-in-title of the land, in their capacity as the Owner(s) of Lots 1, 2 & 3, and shall
benefit and be enforceable by the Village.  Such street tree planting and maintenance shall be performed regularly,
without compensation, and to the satisfaction of the Village.

To the extent that the Village performs any such street tree related maintenance activities, the respective Lot 1, 2 and 3
Owners shall be liable for any costs which may be incurred by the Village, which the Village may recover from such  Lot
1, 2 and 3 Owners as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar
provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law.

2. The Landowner hereby covenants that the Lot 1, 2 and 3 Owners shall be responsible for all costs associated with the
pavement maintenance within the Dedicated Public 40' Water Tower/Utility Substation Driveway.  Such maintenance

shall include construction, installation, repair, resurfacing, alteration, replacement, and snow/ice removal; installation
and replacement of parking and driveway lighting; grading, placement of  topsoil, seeding or sodding and mowing of
grassy areas adjacent to the private roadway and driveway terrace areas; tree pruning, watering, mulching, staking and
other tree maintenance and replacements; extensions and maintenance of private utility and communications 
facilities; and other required construction, installation, repair, alteration, replacement and site maintenance in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Village's Land Division and Development Control and Zoning 
Ordinances and the requirements of the Site and Operational Plan approvals, without compensation, and to the 
satisfaction of the Village.

To the extent that the Village performs any such private driveway or private roadway related maintenance activities,
the Lot 1, 2 and 3 Owners shall be liable for any costs which may be incurred by the Village, which the Village may
recover from such Lot 1, 2 and 3 Owners as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or
successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law.

PRELIMINARY

REFER TO DRIVE SECTION(S)
DIFFERENTLY...THIS IS MORE THAN WATER
TOWER DRIVEWAY..REFER TO  AS PRIVATE
ROADWAY, IF YOU NEED TO
DIFFERENTIATE BETWEEN NS AND EW
DRIVES THAN COME UP WITH TERMS FOR
EACH.

THIS IS A PRIVATE ROAD THAT ALLOWS
VILLAGE ACCESS TO WATER TOWER ETC.
PRIVATE ROAD MAINTENANCE....

IT IS UNCLEAR TO ME IN ALL THESE DOCS
WHO IS REALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR WHAT
AS IT RELATES TO THE PRIVATE DRIVES.



RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

3. The Developer hereby covenants that the Lot 1 Owner shall have the obligation of maintaining and replacing the private
Dedicated Private Storm Water Drainage, Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance Easement areas on this
CSM in a functional, neat and nuisance-free condition to handle storm water in the development.  Such maintenance
shall include, without limitation and as needed, seeding or sodding, maintaining erosion control methods to protect the
drainage ways; ditching to re-establish design capacity;  installing, repairing and replacing the aerator/fountain,
removing of trash and debris leaves, and brush; clearing and repairing basin structures; and mowing and weeding to
prevent nuisance conditions.  No driveways, patios, fences, signage or structures shall be erected within the storm
water drainage and retention basin easement areas which blocks, diverts or re-routs the storm water drainage flow or
which might interfere with the Village's rights, unless express written approval is granted by the Village and subject to
any such conditions as the Village may impose.  This covenant shall run with the land, shall be binding upon the Lot 1
Owner, their successors, assigns and successor-in-title of the Lots, in their capacity as the Lot 1 Owner and shall benefit
and be enforceable by the Village.  Such storm water drainage, storm sewer and retention basin maintenance shall be
performed regularly, without public compensation, and to the satisfaction of the Village.

To the extent that the Village performs any such storm water drainage, storm sewer or retention basin related
maintenance activities, the Lots 1 and 3 Owner shall be liable for any costs which may be incurred by the Village, which
the Village may recover from such Lots 1 and 3Owner as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627
(or successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law. Unless the Village
exercises the rights granted to it in the Dedication and Easement Provisions on this CSM, the Village shall have no
obligation to do anything pursuant to its rights under this paragraph.

PRELIMINARY

CLARIFY: 

OWNER OF LOT 1 RESPONSIBLE
FOR LOT 1 RETENTION BASIN WITH
COST SHARE RECOVERY FROM
LOT 2? LOT 2 NEEDS TO HAVE
SOME RESPOINSIBILITY FOR THE
POND.

OWNER OF LOT 3 IS SOLELY
RESPONSIBLE FOR LOT 3
RETENTION BASIN



RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

4. The Developer covenants that the shown on this CSM hereby places restrictions on Lot 1, wherein a Dedicated 40'
Wide Public Storm Sewer, Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Easement, as shown on CSM No. 1699, recorded as
Document #934874, was given, granted and conveyed by the Developer to the Village for public sanitary sewer, storm
sewer and water system purposes and improvements, uses and purposes, and for all related and incidental ingress
and egress, construction, installation, repair, alteration, replacements, plantings and maintenance activities to serve
this and other adjacent development subject to the Dedication and Easement Provisions on this CSM.  The Developer
further covenants that there shall be no buildings, fences, driveways, parking areas, landscaping, berms or structures
of any kind placed within the easement area which might interfere with the Village's rights, unless express written
approval is granted by the Village and subject to any such conditions as the Village may impose.  Furthermore, if the
Village allows for the placement of fencing, driveways, parking areas or landscaping, berms or structures within the
sewer easement area granted to the Village, the Lot 1 Owner not the Village, shall be responsible for any and all costs
associated with the removal and or replacement of said private fencing, driveways, parking areas, landscaping, berms
or structures.  This covenant shall run with the land, shall be binding upon the Lot 1 Owner, its successors, assigns
and successors-in-title of Lot 1, and shall benefit and be enforceable by the Village.

5. The Developer hereby covenants that the areas shown as a Wetlands Protection and Preservation, Access and
Maintenance Easement on this CSM which shall be protected and maintained as a wetland protection and
preservation area that no filling, dredging, plant cutting, plant removal or other activity or condition detrimental to its
function as a Wetland Preservation and Protection area shall occur or exist within such area or on any surrounding land
without written approval of the Village, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources or the US Army Corps of
Engineers, as jurisdiction may be applicable.  This covenant shall run with the land, shall be binding on the Developer,
its successors, assigns and successors-in-title in their capacity as the Lot 1 Owner.

To the extent that the Village performs any such wetland maintenance or protection activities, the Lot 1 Owner shall
be liable for any costs which may be incurred by the Village, which the Village may recover from such Lot 1 Owner as
special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin
Statutes or otherwise according to law. Unless the Village exercises the rights granted to it in the Dedication and 
Easement Provisions on this CSM respect to the easements, the Village shall have no obligation to do anything 
pursuant to its rights under this paragraph.

PRELIMINARY
WHERE IS THIS?  NOT
DEPICTED OR LABELED
ON CSM

??



Document Number 

  

Name and Return Address 

 

Adam A. Bardosy 

Mallery & Zimmerman, S.C. 

Suite 900 

731 North Jackson Street 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202 

DECLARATION OF 

COVENANTS, 

EASEMENTS, AND 

RESTRICTIONS 

 

 

  See attached Exhibit A.                        

Lot Identification Number (PIN) 

 

 

 
 Recording Area 

 

 

THIS DECLARATION is made as of ______________, 2019 by PRAIRIE HOLDINGS 

LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (“Declarant”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Declarant owns the three lots of real estate legally described and depicted on the 

Certified Survey Map (the “CSM”) attached as Exhibit A to this Declaration (collectively the 

“Lots,” each a “Lot”).  In accordance with the labels used on the CSM, the Lots are sometimes 

referred to individually in this Declaration as Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3. 

 

B. The Lots are subject to the following agreements (together, and as amended, the 

“Prior Agreements”): 

 

(1) Declaration of Easement for Ingress and Egress dated September 22, 2004, 

which was recorded with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Kenosha 

County, Wisconsin, on November 11, 2004, as Document No. 1412019; 

and 

 

(2) Water Tower/Utility Substation Access and Maintenance Easement 

depicted and described on the CSM and on that certain Certified Survey 

Map No. 2852, which was recorded with the Register on January 31, 2018 

as Document No. 1812829.  

 

Declarant is recording this Declaration in part to allocate among the owners of the 

Lots (collectively the “Owners,” each an “Owner”) the rights and obligations of the owner(s) of the 

Lots under the Prior Agreements. 

 

C. Declarant further desires to provide for certain additional easements and 

restrictions affecting the Lots, all as more particularly described below. 

 

VOPP ENG REVIEW
PLAN MARK UP
MARCH 4, 2019



 

-4- 

Easement” area located on Lot 1 and one monument sign within the 15X15 “Sign Easement” area 

located on Lot 3, each as depicted on Exhibit D to this Declaration, together with electrical service 

to such monument signs (each an “Identification Sign”).     

 

III. WORK REQUIREMENTS 

 

All work performed pursuant to this Declaration shall be performed in a good and 

workmanlike manner and in accordance with all applicable laws.  If any Owner, including 

Declarant, performs any such work on any other Owner’s Lot, such performing Owner shall (1) 

provide the other Owner with at least 15 days’ prior written notice before commencing the work, 

except in emergencies; (2) provide the other Owner with written evidence of commercially 

reasonably insurance coverage (including coverage of contractors) before commencing the work; 

(3) repair all damage to such Lot caused by the work; and (4) indemnify and defend the other 

Owner against any and all claims, costs, damages, and liabilities arising out of the work, including 

causing any and all construction lien claims against such Lot to be discharged of record within 45 

days after filing. 

 

IV. USE RESTRICTIONS 

 

The Lots may not be used in any manner that materially interferes with the use of the 

easements created under this Declaration, provided that Owners may temporarily close any or all of 

the easement areas on their Lot(s) from time to time for maintenance, repair, and replacement 

purposes without liability to any other Owner.  Except in emergencies, an Owner performing any 

such work shall give 15 days’ prior written notice to the other Owners of any such closure on such 

Owner’s Lot.  No such temporary closure shall prevent reasonable access among the Lots and to 

and from public roads to which any Lot has legal access. 

 

V.  OPERATIONAL COVENANTS 

 

5.1 Driveway Improvements. 

 

  (a) Declarant shall install the original roadways and street lamps within the 

Driveway Easement Area at its sole cost, as depicted on the Site Plan attached to this Declaration 

as Exhibit E and as may be required under the Prior Agreements.  Declarant shall also: (1) maintain 

all roadways and street lamps installed from time to time within the Driveway Easement Area 

(together, “Driveway Improvements”) in good condition, normal wear and tear excepted, and 

promptly remove all snow from them and repair all damage to them; and (2) promptly replace the 

Driveway Improvements with improvements of equal or better quality at the ends of their useful 

lives.  The other Owners shall reimburse Declarant for their Allocated Shares of maintenance, 

repair, and replacement costs in the same manner as if such costs were Reimbursable Costs as 

defined above. 

 

  (b) If Declarant does not properly maintain the Driveway Improvements as 

required under this Section 5.1, the Village of Pleasant Prairie may send written notice to Declarant 

indicating that the Village has determined that the Driveway Improvements are not being properly 

CLARIFY THIS VS CSM.  WHO ARE THE
RESPOSIBLER PARTIES FOR LONG TERM
MAINTAINENCE AND SNOW PLOWING OF
THE  PRIVATE NS AND EW ROADWAY(S)?

PRIVATE STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE
AND ELECTRIC PAYMENTS? 



 

-5- 

maintained and further indicating that the Village will perform such maintenance if not properly 

done by such Owner.  The notice shall give Declarant a minimum of seven (7) days to correct the 

problem, unless an emergency exists, in which case less than seven days may be allowed for 

correction of the problem.  If such Owner does not properly perform such maintenance within the 

time granted by the notice, the Village shall then have the authority to perform the maintenance 

referred to in the notice and shall have the right to charge the Owner(s) for all costs incurred by the 

Village as a result of such maintenance, in proportion to each Owner’s Allocated Share of such 

costs.  Such costs shall be assessed as special charges pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0627.  If any 

Owner does not pay its Allocated Share within the period fixed by the Village, the Allocated Share 

shall become a lien upon the obligated Owner’s Lot as provided in Wis. Stat. § 66.0627, and shall 

be extended upon the tax rolls as a delinquent tax against the Lot as provided in Wis. Stat. 

§ 66.0627.   

 

5.2 Stormwater System Improvements. 

 

(a) Declarant shall install the original Stormwater System Improvements at its 

sole cost.  As between the Lots, the Stormwater System Improvements located on Lot 3 service 

only Lot 3, and the Stormwater System Improvements located on Lot 1 and Lot 2 service only Lot 

1 and Lot 2.  After Declarant’s initial construction of the original Stormwater System 

Improvements, the Owner of: (a) Lot 3 shall maintain the Stormwater System Improvements 

located on Lot 2, and shall pay as its Allocated Share 100% of the costs of such maintenance; and 

(b) Lot 1 shall maintain the Stormwater System Improvements located on Lot 1 and Lot 2, and the 

Owners of Lots 1 and 2 shall each pay as its Allocated Share 50% of the costs of such maintenance.  

Maintenance obligations under this Paragraph include maintaining the Stormwater System 

Improvements in good condition, normal wear and tear excepted, promptly repairing all damage to 

the Stormwater System Improvements, and promptly replacing the Stormwater System 

Improvements with improvements of equal or better quality at the ends of their useful lives.  Lot 

2’s Allocated Share under this Paragraph shall be paid to the Lot 1 Owner within 15 days after 

receipt of the Lot 1 Owner’s written request for payment, which shall include copies of all invoices 

for which payment is sought.   

 

(b) If an Owner does not properly maintain the Stormwater System 

Improvements as required under this Section 5.2, the Village of Pleasant Prairie may send written 

notice to the non-performing Owner indicating that the Village has determined that the Stormwater 

System Improvements are not being properly maintained and further indicating that the Village 

will perform such maintenance if not properly done by such Owner.  The notice shall give such 

Owner a minimum of seven (7) days to correct the problem, unless an emergency exists, in which 

case less than seven days may be allowed for correction of the problem.  If such Owner does not 

properly perform such maintenance within the time granted by the notice, the Village shall then 

have the authority to perform the maintenance referred to in the notice and shall have the right to 

charge the Owner(s) for all costs incurred by the Village as a result of such maintenance, in 

proportion to each Owner’s Allocated Share of such costs, as described in Section 5.2(a), above.  

Such costs shall be assessed as special charges pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0627.  If any Owner does 

not pay its Allocated Share within the period fixed by the Village, the Allocated Share shall 

LOT 3

WHAT IMPROVEMENTS
ON LOT 2 IS LOT 1
MAINTAINING?



LOT 1

LOT 2

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

!

#*

#*

#*
#*

#*
#*

#*

#*#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

!(
?

?
?

?

?

?
?

?

?

?
?

???
?

?

?

?

NO.  CLARIFY...THERE IS AN
EXSTNG WATER MAIN
FROM CTH C TO WATER
TOWER  THAT SHALL BE
COVERED WITH A WATER
MAIN ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE EASEMENT. 
VERIFY ACTUAL WATER
MAIN AND EASEMENT
ALIGNMENT WITH ANY
VACATION OR EASEMENT
RECREATION DOCUMENTS



LOT 1

LOT 2

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

!

#*

#*

#*
#*

#*
#*

#*

#*#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

!(
?

?
?

?

?

?
?

?

?

?
?

???
?

?

?

?

NO.  CLARIFY...THERE IS AN
EXSTNG WATER MAIN
FROM CTH C TO WATER
TOWER  THAT SHALL BE
COVERED WITH A WATER
MAIN ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE EASEMENT. 
VERIFY ACTUAL WATER
MAIN AND EASEMENT
ALIGNMENT WITH ANY
VACATION OR EASEMENT
RECREATION DOCUMENTS



LOT 1

LOT 2

D

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
---

88
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-

W238N1610 BUSSE RD.
WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188

262.513.0666 PHONE ▌262.513.1232 FAX

PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
973,109 SQ. FT. 22.3395 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 S. M.  # 1 0 2 8S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 M.  # 1 0 2 8M.  # 1 0 2 8  # 1 0 2 8# 1 0 2 8 1 0 2 81 0 2 8 0 2 80 2 8 2 82 8 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE 1/4 -  SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(200.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°56'43"W 58.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S A N D SA N D S N D SN D S D SD S SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 0.47' S  & 0.21' W OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(545.60')

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S03°17'20"E  2652.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED FOR STORM WATER DRAINAGE, RETENTION BASIN, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1 L=136.99', R=397.47' =19°44'49"CB=S13°43'38"ECL=136.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°57'01"E  2657.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 S. M.  # 2 8 5 2S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 M.  # 2 8 5 2M.  # 2 8 5 2  # 2 8 5 2# 2 8 5 2 2 8 5 22 8 5 2 8 5 28 5 2 5 25 2 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,235 SQ. FT. 3.7474 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
335,174 SQ. FT. 7.6945 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T  1 O T  1O T  1 T  1T  1  11

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET WIDTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET WIDTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR: : PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC 5721 WEST RYAN ROAD FRANKLIN, WI 53132

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE REGIONAL OFFICE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY::

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP SE 1/4 SEC 8-1-22 SCALE: 1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITNESS CORNER OF  CENTER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SEC. 8-1-22  CONC MON. W/ BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SEC. 8-1-22 CONC. MON. W/BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 1/4  CORNER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 NO MON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSM

AutoCAD SHX Text
88TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CTH H)

AutoCAD SHX Text
94TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILMOT RD. (CTH C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAIN STATION RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°59'09"W  2661.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°50'29"W  2670.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°29'06"E  810.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" IRON PIPE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING BASIS; ALL BEARINGS ARE ALL BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE WISCONSIN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE. THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, WAS USED AS SOUTH 03°17'20" EAST PROJECT CONVERSION FACTOR:  GRID/1.00000319 = GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS OF RECORD. ALL MEASUREMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO THE NEAREST ONE-HUNDREDTH OF A FOOT. ALL ANGULAR MEASUREMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO THE NEAREST ONE SECOND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S04°27'30"E 260.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°56'43"W   545.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°56'43"W 58.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 FND O.25' N OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
 FND 0.13' S 1.71' W OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
(260.56')

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" x 18" REBAR SET (1.50 LBS/LF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 5 FOR DEDICATED WETLAND PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 4 FOR DEDICATED STORM WATER, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEETS 2 & 3 FOR DEDICATED WATER TOWER/ UTILITY SUBSTATION, ACCESS AND MAINTENACE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 7 FOR DEDICATED PRIVATE STORM WATER, DRAINAGE,  RETENTION BASIN,ACCESS  AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 4 FOR DEDICATED SIGNAGE,  ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 4 FOR DEDICATED SIGNAGE,  ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 3 FOR DEDICATED PRIVATE ROADWAY, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO DIRECT DRIVEWAY ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 5 FOR DEDICATED WETLAND PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 7 FOR DEDICATED PRIVATE STORM WATER,  DRAINAGE, RETENTION  BASIN, ACCESS AND  MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 7 FOR DEDICATED PRIVATE STORM WATER, DRAINAGE,  RETENTION BASIN,ACCESS  AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT



LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
---

88
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-

LOT 2

LOT 3

PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
973,109 SQ. FT. 22.3395 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 S. M.  # 1 0 2 8S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 M.  # 1 0 2 8M.  # 1 0 2 8  # 1 0 2 8# 1 0 2 8 1 0 2 81 0 2 8 0 2 80 2 8 2 82 8 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S A N D SA N D S N D SN D S D SD S SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WIDE PUBLIC  WATER MAIN AND INGRESS/EGRESS  EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 523392

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED 40' WIDE  PRIVATE EASEMENT FOR  ROADWAY, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE  PER DOC. NO. 1412019

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 S. M.  # 2 8 5 2S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 M.  # 2 8 5 2M.  # 2 8 5 2  # 2 8 5 2# 2 8 5 2 2 8 5 22 8 5 2 8 5 28 5 2 5 25 2 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,235 SQ. FT. 3.7474 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
335,174 SQ. FT. 7.6945 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED 40' WATER TOWER/UTILITY SUBSTATION ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT PER CSM #2852

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T  1 O T  1O T  1 T  1T  1  11

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING  SETBACK LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITION TO DEDICATED 40'  WATER TOWER/ UTILITY SUBSTATION  ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
57.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITNESS CORNER OF  CENTER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 1/4  CORNER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF  SEC. 8-1-22 NO MON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°59'09"W  2661.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°50'29"W  2670.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°29'06"E  810.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY ZONED M-1 DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N03°17'20"W  2652.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°57'01"W  2657.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEXISTING EASEMENTS & SETBACK LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF SE 1/4, SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N35°57'51"W 560.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°52'32"E 433.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N23°19'04"W 521.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
511.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---
88

TH
 A

VE
N

U
E

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

PRELIMINARY

88
TH

 A
VE

.
---

---
---

---
---

-

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
973,109 SQ. FT. 22.3395 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED WATER TOWER/UTILITY  SUBSTATION ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE  EASEMENT PER CSM #2852 SEE SHEET 2 FOR PROPOSED ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 S. M.  # 2 8 5 2S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 M.  # 2 8 5 2M.  # 2 8 5 2  # 2 8 5 2# 2 8 5 2 2 8 5 22 8 5 2 8 5 28 5 2 5 25 2 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,235 SQ. FT. 3.7474 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
335,174 SQ. FT. 7.6945 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T  1 O T  1O T  1 T  1T  1  11

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
548.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED PRIVATE ROADWAY, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT PER DOC. #1412019

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREAS DEDICATED IN CSM #2852

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 3 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED WATER TOWER/UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USUBSTATION ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N54°03'27"E 431.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED PRIVATE ROADWAY ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

PRELIMINARY

LOT 1

LOT 3
LOT 2

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---
-

88
TH

 A
VE

.
---

---
---

---
---

-

88
TH

 A
VE

.
---

---
---

---
---

-

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
----

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 S. M.  # 2 8 5 2S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 M.  # 2 8 5 2M.  # 2 8 5 2  # 2 8 5 2# 2 8 5 2 2 8 5 22 8 5 2 8 5 28 5 2 5 25 2 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,235 SQ. FT. 3.7474 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
335,174 SQ. FT. 7.6945 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T  1 O T  1O T  1 T  1T  1  11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 4 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED SIGNAGE, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED PRIVATE STORM WATER, DRAINAGE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,235 SQ. FT. 3.7474 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
335,174 SQ. FT. 7.6945 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED 30' WIDE STORM WATER, ACCESS & MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRIVATE ROADWAY ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED SIGNAGE, ACCESS & MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 6 FOR LINE TABLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED VISION TRIANGLE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED VISION TRIANGLE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED VISION TRIANGLE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED VISION TRIANGLE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED SIGNAGE, ACCESS & MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRIVATE ROADWAY ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT



LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
---

88
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-

WETLANDS DELINEATED AND
MAPPED BY ALICE THOMPSON &
ASSOCIATES WETLAND SERVICES,
LLC ON JUNE 25, 2018.

APPROVED BY THE WIDNR ON
AUGUST 2, 2018.

APPROVED BY THE ARMY CORPS
OF ENGINEERS ON MARCH 4, 2019.

PRELIMINARY

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
----

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 S. M.  # 1 0 2 8S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 M.  # 1 0 2 8M.  # 1 0 2 8  # 1 0 2 8# 1 0 2 8 1 0 2 81 0 2 8 0 2 80 2 8 2 82 8 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S A N D SA N D S N D SN D S D SD S SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,235 SQ. FT. 3.7474 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
335,174 SQ. FT. 7.6945 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 5 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED WETLAND PRESERVATION AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 5 FOR WETLAND LINE TABLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 6 FOR LINE TABLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROTECTION, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT



PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 6 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED WETLAND PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 1 WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 3 WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED SIGNAGE, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 3

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
--

C
.T

.H
. "

H
"

---
---

---
---

---

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
---

88
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-

PRELIMINARY

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

C.T.H. "C
"

----
----

----
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
973,109 SQ. FT. 22.3395 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 S. M.  # 1 0 2 8S. M.  # 1 0 2 8 M.  # 1 0 2 8M.  # 1 0 2 8  # 1 0 2 8# 1 0 2 8 1 0 2 81 0 2 8 0 2 80 2 8 2 82 8 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S A N D SA N D S N D SN D S D SD S SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 S. M.  # 2 8 5 2S. M.  # 2 8 5 2 M.  # 2 8 5 2M.  # 2 8 5 2  # 2 8 5 2# 2 8 5 2 2 8 5 22 8 5 2 8 5 28 5 2 5 25 2 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,235 SQ. FT. 3.7474 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
335,174 SQ. FT. 7.6945 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T  1 O T  1O T  1 T  1T  1  11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 7 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. S. M.  # 1 2 6 S. M.  # 1 2 6S. M.  # 1 2 6 M.  # 1 2 6M.  # 1 2 6  # 1 2 6# 1 2 6 1 2 61 2 6 2 62 6 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 8 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED PRIVATE STORM WATER DRAINAGE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%URETENTION BASIN, ACCESS AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAINTENANCE EASEMENTS



PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 8 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 1 STORM RETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 3 STORM RETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEDICATED PRIVATE STORM WATER DRAINAGE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%URETENTION BASIN, ACCESS AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULINE AND CURVE TABLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 2



EXISTING EASEMENT DEDICATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS:

DEDICATED EASEMENTS PER DOCUMENT NO. 1412019

Easements coextensive with the areas shown as a Dedicated 40' wide Private Roadway, Access and Maintenance
Easements were bargained, sold, conveyed, transferred, and delivered to the Village of Pleasant Prairie, its successors and
assigns, as a non-exclusive perpetual easement for ingress and egress for pedestrian and vehicular access by Village
vehicles and equipment, other emergency vehicles, other village vehicles, and vehicles of the the general public visiting the
Fire and Rescue Department, including, without limitation, large trucks, over, upon and across the easement parcel.

Neither Grantor nor any successor owner of the property shall construct or permit the construction of any improvements or
other structures within the easement parcel, except for roadway improvements and utilities. Grantor, as the owner of the
property, and its successors, tenants, occupants, agents, assigns and their invitees and guests shall be entitled to use the
easement parcel for all purposes so long as such use does not unreasonably or materially interfere with the rights granted to
Village of Pleasant Prairie, its successors and assigns.

ADDITIONAL DEDICATION AND EASEMENT PROVISIONS
(PREVIOUS RECORDED DOCUMENTS ARE REFERENCED)

1. The fee interest in the areas shown as a Dedicated Public Street on this Certified Survey Map (CSM) were dedicated, 
given, granted and conveyed, by a previous Owner to the Village of Pleasant Prairie, its successors and assigns (the 
"Village") and Kenosha County for the construction, installation, repair, alteration, replacement, planting and maintenance
of public highway improvements, uses and purposes, including, without limitation, pavement, curbs and gutters, bike 
lanes, if required by the Village or Kenosha County, street signs, street lights, street trees, sanitary sewerage system 
improvements, water system improvements, storm sewer and drainage system improvements, utility and communications
facilities, street trees  and for all related ingress and egress, construction, installation, repair, alteration, replacement, 
planting and maintenance activities. Such fee interest is subject to the following: a nonexclusive easement hereby 
reserved for the Owner(s) of Lots 1, 2 and 3 shown on this CSM, which are adjacent to the Dedicated Public Street areas
for the required Public Street Tree planting, mowing, watering and maintenance of grass within the grassy terrace areas,
for the maintenance and replanting of street trees and the clearance,  if required by the Village or Kenosha County in the
area between the roadway and the Lots. In the event of any conflict between the rights of the Village or Kenosha County
under its existing fee interest in the Dedicated Public Street areas shown on this CSM and the rights of the Owner, or of 
the future Owners of the Lots, pursuant to the dedication retained herein, the rights of the Village or the Kenosha County
shall be deemed to be superior.

2. Perpetual nonexclusive easements coextensive with the areas shown as a Dedicated Private Roadway, Access and 
Maintenance Easement within Lots 2 & 3 of this CSM were dedicated, given granted and conveyed by the previous 
Owner to the Village and recorded on November 11, 2004 as Document # 1412019 at the Kenosha County Register of 
Deeds Office for an easement to the Village for public access and passage over said private roadway for access to/from the
Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue Station #2 for both pedestrian and vehicular use, as appropriate for the purpose of 
ingress, egress and parking upon and over the access easement areas.  The Owners of Lots 1, 2 and 3 shall, at their sole
cost and expense install, maintain, operate, repair, and replace said pavement; surface the access driveways with asphalt
or concrete and maintain said roadway, install private roadway signage, private street and pavement maintenance and 
install street lighting in a quality, appearance and with durable materials. All debris, paper and refuse shall be 
removed from the access roadways.  These Dedicated Private Roadway, Access and Maintenance Easement areas shall be
exclusive, except for: (1) the Owner's use, planting and irrigating, care and maintenance of landscaped and paved 
driveway areas and the Owner's use, maintenance, replacement or repair of any parking or driveway areas within the 
easement area as it will not interfere with the access, uses and purposes of the Village; (2) the Lot Owner's responsibility
to snow plow and de-ice the private roadway until said private roadway is reconstructed to an urban cross-section 
profile, at which time said responsibility will transfer to the Lots 1, 2 and 3 Owner(s); and (3) such other easements as 
may be dedicated and conveyed herein with respect to the same area or any portion thereof.  In the event of any conflicts
between the rights of the Village pursuant to these Dedicated Private Roadway, Access and Maintenance Easement and the
rights of any other persons or entities with respect to these Easements, the Village's rights under this Easement shall be
deemed to be superior. To the extent that the Village performs any such work, the Owners of Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3, in 
equal shares, shall be liable to the Village for any costs which may be incurred by the Village in connection with such 
work, and the Village may recover from the Lot Owners, in equal shares, as special assessments or special charges under
Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law.”

3. A nonexclusive easement coextensive with the area shown as a Dedicated 50' x 50' Vision Triangle Easement shown on 
this CSM is hereby dedicated, given, granted and retained by the Owner to the Village in order to maintain a clear sight 
line of vision at the Wilmot Road and Dedicated Private Roadway, Access and Maintenance Easement intersection and the
88th Avenue and Dedicated Roadway, Access and Maintenance Easement intersections. There shall be no obstructions, 
such as but not limited to structures, signage, fences, vehicular parking, vegetation, shelters that are permitted within the
Dedicated Vision Triangle Easement between the heights of two (2) feet and 10 feet unless approved by the Village and/or
Kenosha County. This restriction is for the benefit of the traveling public and shall be enforceable by the Village and/or 
Kenosha County.

PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 9 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



ADDITIONAL DEDICATION AND EASEMENT PROVISIONS
(PREVIOUS RECORDED DOCUMENTS ARE REFERENCED)

4. A perpetual nonexclusive easement coextensive with the area shown as a minimum Dedicated Water Tower/Utility 
Substation, Access and Maintenance Easement within Lots 2 and 3 on this CSM was hereby dedicated, given, 
granted and conveyed by Prairie Holdings, LLC to the Village for an easement of passage for both pedestrian and vehicular
use, as appropriate for the purpose of ingress, egress and parking upon and over the access easement areas for 
access to the Village's water tower and utility substation.  The Owner shall, at its sole cost and expense install, maintain,
operate, repair, and replace said pavement; surface the access driveways with asphalt or concrete and maintain said 
driveway in quality, appearance and durability. All debris, paper and refuse shall be removed from the access driveways.
This Dedicated Water Tower/Utility Substation, Access and Maintenance Easement shall be exclusive, except for: (1) the
Owner's use, planting and irrigating, care and maintenance of landscaped and paved driveway areas and the Owner's use,
maintenance, replacement or repair of any parking or driveway areas within the easement area as it will not interfere with
the access, uses and purposes of the Village and (2) such other easements as may be dedicated and conveyed herein with
respect to the same area or any portion thereof.  In the event of any conflicts between the rights of the Village pursuant to
this Dedicated Water Tower/Utility Substation, Access and Maintenance Easement and the rights of any other persons or
entities with respect to this Easement, the Village's rights under this Easement shall be deemed to be superior. To the 
extent that the Village performs any such work, the Owners of Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3, in equal shares, shall be liable to 
the Village for any costs which may be incurred by the Village in connection with such work, and the Village may recover
from the Lot Owners, in equal shares, as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or
similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law.”

5. Nonexclusive easements coextensive within the areas shown on this CSM as Dedicated Wetland Preservation and 
Protection, Access and Maintenance Easement areas are hereby dedicated, given, granted and conveyed by Prairie 
Holdings, LLC to the Village for wetland conservancy preservation, protection, and maintenance purposes and uses and for
related ingress and egress.  It shall be the Lot Owner's responsibility, with respect to the wetlands located on its lot to 
maintain said wetlands and remove invasive species, dead plant life and trash and debris from the wetland areas. Unless
the Village exercises the rights granted to it pursuant to the maintenance of the wetland easements areas, the Village shall
have no obligation to do anything related to its rights under these easements. Any Village costs that may be incurred for
wetland maintenance activities shall be placed as a special charge against the property. To the extent that the Village 
performs any such work, the Owner of the Lot on which the Village performs such work shall be liable to the Village for any
costs which may be incurred by the Village in connection with such work, and the Village may recover from such Lot 
Owner, as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the 
Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law.”

6.   Perpetual nonexclusive easements coextensive with the areas shown as a Dedicated Private Storm Water Drainage,
Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance Easement within Lot 1, Lot 2 and Lot 3 on this CSM are hereby dedicated,
given, granted and conveyed by Prairie Holdings, LLC to the Village for the property Owner's private storm water drainage
system improvements, storm water retention basin storage and conveyance, uses and purposes, and for all related ingress
and egress, construction, installation, repair, alteration, replacement and maintenance activities.  These Dedicated 
Storm Water Drainage, Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance Easement areas shall be exclusive, except for the 
Lot Owner's use, planting and irrigating, care and maintenance of the Dedicated Storm Water Drainage, Retention Basin,
Access and Maintenance Easement areas on Lot 1, Lot 2 and Lot 3 as it will not interfere with the improvements, uses and
purposes of the Village. In the event of any conflicts between the rights of the Village pursuant to the Dedicated Storm 
Water Drainage, Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance Easements and the rights of any other persons or entities with
respect to the Dedicated Easements, the Village's rights under these Easements shall be deemed to be superior. 
Unless the Village exercises its rights granted to it hereunder with respect to these easements, the Village shall have 
no obligation to do anything pursuant to its rights under these easements.  Any Village costs that may be incurred in 
the repair, alteration, replacement or maintenance activities of the private storm water drainage, retention basin or 
storm sewer main improvements shall be invoiced to the Owner and if not paid, it will be placed as a special charge 
against the property. To the extent that the Village performs any such work on Lot 1 or Lot 2, the Owners of Lots 1 and 
Lot 2, in equal shares, shall be liable to the Village for any costs which may be incurred by the Village in connection with
such work, and the Village may recover from the Owners of Lot 1 and 2, in equal shares, as special assessments or special
charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to 
law.  To the extent that the Village performs any such work on Lot 3, the Owner of Lot 3 shall be liable to the Village for 
any costs which may be incurred by the Village in connection with such work, and the Village may recover from the Owner
of Lot 3, as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the 
Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law

PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 10 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

1. Prairie Holdings, LLC hereby covenants that the Lots 1, 2 & 3 Owner(s) shall have the obligation of planting Public Lot
Street Trees within the CTH C (Wilmot Road) and CTH H (88th Avenue) rights-of-way area abutting their respective
Lots.  Such future planting and maintenance shall include without limitation and as needed planting, staking, mulching,
weeding, pruning, watering, replanting, and removing of trash, debris, leaves and brush around the trees in order to
prevent a nuisance condition.  No driveways, signage, mail boxes, parking areas, structures or fences shall be erected
within the right-of-ways, which might damage the street trees or might interfere with the Village's and Kenosha
County's rights to maintain the public street improvements, unless approved by the Village.  These trees shall be
planted as a condition of Lots 1, 2 & 3 development.  This covenant shall run with the land, shall be binding upon the
Lot Owners, its successors, successors and assigns and successors-in-title of the land, in their capacity as the Owner(s)
of Lots 1, 2 & 3, and shall benefit and be enforceable by the Village.  Such street tree planting and maintenance shall be
performed regularly, without compensation, and to the satisfaction of the Village. To the extent that the Village
performs any such street tree related maintenance activities, the respective Lot 1, 2 and 3  Owners shall be liable for
any costs which may be incurred by the Village, which the Village may recover from such  Lot 1, 2 and 3 Owners as
special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin
Statutes or otherwise according to law.

2. Prairie Holdings, LLC hereby covenants that the Lot 1, 2 and 3 Owners shall be responsible for all costs associated with
the pavement maintenance within the Dedicated Public 40' Water Tower/Utility Substation Access and
Maintenance Easement.  Such maintenance shall include construction, installation, repair, resurfacing, alteration,
replacement, and snow/ice removal; installation and replacement of parking and driveway lighting; grading, placement
of  topsoil, seeding or sodding and mowing of grassy areas adjacent to the private roadway and driveway terrace areas;
tree pruning, watering, mulching, staking and other tree maintenance and replacements; extensions and maintenance
of private utility and communications facilities; and other required construction, installation, repair, alteration,
replacement and site maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Village's Land Division and
Development Control and Zoning Ordinances and the requirements of the Site and Operational Plan approvals, without
compensation, and to the satisfaction of the Village. To the extent that the Village performs any such private driveway
or private roadway related maintenance activities, the Lot 1, 2 and 3 Owners shall be liable for any costs which may be
incurred by the Village, which the Village may recover from such Lot 1, 2 and 3 Owners, in equal shares, as special
assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or
otherwise according to law.

PRELIMINARY

ADDITIONAL DEDICATION AND EASEMENT PROVISIONS
(PREVIOUS RECORDED DOCUMENTS ARE REFERENCED)

7. Perpetual nonexclusive easement coextensive the area shown as a Dedicated Private Storm Water, Drainage 
Access and Maintenance Easement for storm water leaving 9201 Wilmot Road and discharging into Lot 2 Storm Water
Inlets which routes to the Storm Water Retention Pond located on Lot 1 of this CSM is hereby dedicated, given granted 
and conveyed by the Lot 2 Owner to 9201 Wilmot Road for the purposes of storm water drainage. The Lot 2 Owner's use
of the drainage easement area shall not materially interfere with the purpose of the drainage easement.  The Lot 2 Owner
shall maintain the drainage easement area in a condition that does not materially interfere with the purpose of the 
drainage easement.  The Lot 2 Owner grants the Village an easement over the drainage easement area for the purpose of
performing, at the Village's option and without obligation, any maintenance of the drainage easement area the Lot 2 
Owner fails to perform as required.  To the extent that the Village performs any such work, the Owner of Lot 2 shall be 
liable to the Village for any costs which may be incurred by the Village in connection with such work, and the Village may
recover from such Owner, as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar 
provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 11 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

3. Prairie Holdings, LLC hereby covenants that the areas shown as a Wetlands Protection and Preservation, Access
and Maintenance Easement on this CSM which shall be protected and maintained as a wetland protection and
preservation area that no filling, dredging, plant cutting, plant removal or other activity or condition detrimental to its
function as a Wetland Preservation and Protection area shall occur or exist within such area or on any surrounding land
without written approval of the Village, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources or the US Army Corps of
Engineers, as jurisdiction may be applicable.  This covenant shall run with the land, shall be binding on the Lot 1 and 3
Owners, its successors, assigns and successors-in-title in their capacity as the Lot 1 and 3 Owners.

To the extent that the Village performs any such wetland maintenance or protection activities, the Lot 1 or Lot 3 
Owners respectfully shall be liable for any costs which may be incurred by the Village, which the Village may recover
from such Lot 1 or Lot 3 Owner as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or
similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to law. Unless the Village exercises the rights 
granted to it in the Dedication and Easement Provisions on this CSM respect to the easements, the Village shall have
no obligation to do anything pursuant to its rights under this paragraph.

4. Dedicated Signage, Access and Maintenance Easement Prairie Holdings, LLC establishes a permanent, 
non-exclusive easement for the benefit of the Lots for installation, maintenance, repair, removal, and replacement 
from time to time of one monument sign within the 15X15 “Sign Easement” area located on Lot 1 and one monument
sign within the 15X15 “Sign Easement” area located on Lot 3 (each an “Identification Sign”), together with electrical
service to each Identification Sign. Each Identification Sign shall be installed by Prairie Holdings LLC (or the Lot 3 
Owner if Prairie Holdings, LLC no longer owns any Lot), subject to approval of its design, dimensions, and other 
specifications by the Owners and by the Village.  Prairie Holdings LLC (or the Lot 3 Owner if Prairie Holdings LLC no
longer owns any Lot) shall also (1) maintain each Identification Sign in good condition, normal wear and tear 
excepted, and promptly repair all damage to it; and (2) promptly replace each Identification Sign with a sign of equal
or better quality at the ends of its useful life. To the extent that the Village performs any such work, the Owners of Lot
1, Lot 2, and Lot 3, in equal shares, shall be liable to the Village for any costs which may be incurred by the Village in
connection with such work, and the Village may recover from the Lot Owners, in equal shares, as special assessments
or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise
according to law.

5. The Village of Pleasant Prairie hereby covenants that the Dedicated Vision Triangle Easements shown on this CSM
hereby places restrictions on the referenced Lots land because of the location of these Easements which was given,
granted and conveyed by the Owner to maintain a clear sight line of vision at the Wilmot Road and Dedicated Private
Roadway, Access and Maintenance Easement intersection and the 88th Avenue and Dedicated Roadway, Access and
Maintenance Easement intersections. There shall be no obstructions, such as but not limited to structures, signage,
fences, vehicular parking, trees, plantings, or bus shelters that are permitted within the Dedicated Vision Triangle 
Easement between the heights of two (2) feet and 10 feet unless approved by the Village and/or Kenosha County 
DOT. This restriction is for the benefit of the traveling public and shall be enforceable by the Village and/or Kenosha
County.

PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 12 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (CONTINUED) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 13 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: State of Wisconsin     )                                    )  SS Kenosha County       ) I, Craig W. Riley, Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  Craig W. Riley, Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and Craig W. Riley, Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  W. Riley, Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and W. Riley, Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  Riley, Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and Riley, Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and Surveyor, do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and do hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and certify that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and that I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and I have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  have surveyed, divided, dedicated and have surveyed, divided, dedicated and  surveyed, divided, dedicated and surveyed, divided, dedicated and  divided, dedicated and divided, dedicated and  dedicated and dedicated and  and and mapped a redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  a redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the a redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the Certified Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the Survey Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the Map No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the No. 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  located in the Southeast 1/4 and the located in the Southeast 1/4 and the  in the Southeast 1/4 and the in the Southeast 1/4 and the  the Southeast 1/4 and the the Southeast 1/4 and the  Southeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 and the  1/4 and the 1/4 and the  and the and the  the the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County,  Prairie, Kenosha County, Prairie, Kenosha County,  Kenosha County, Kenosha County,  County, County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: Commencing at the East 1/4 Corner of said Section 8; thence South 03°17'20" East along the east line of saidSoutheast 1/4, 1326.16 feet to the south line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Southeast 1/4; thence South 89°56'43" West along said south quarter line, 58.55 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 2 Certified Survey Map(C.S.M.) #2852, the west right-of-way of 88th Avenue (CTH H), and the Point of Beginning (P.O.B.); thence South 89°56'43" West along said south quarter line and the south line of said Lot 2 C.S.M. #2852, 428.19 feetto the southeast corner of Lot 1 C.S.M #2852; thence North 23°19'04" West along the easterly line of Lot 1C.S.M. #2852, 521.08 feet; thence North 35°57'51" West along said easterly C.S.M. line, 560.68 feet to a pointon the south right-of-way line of Wilmot Road (CTH C); thence North 54°03'27" East along said southright-of-way line, 879.24 feet; thence South 87°04'53" East along said south right-of-way line, 128.68 feet toa non-tangential point of curvature on the east property line of Lot 2 C.S.M. #2852 and the west right-of-way line of 88th Avenue (CTH H); thence southerly 136.99 feet along the arc of a curve to the right and said west right-of-way line, with a radius of 397.47 feet, through a central angle of 19°44'49", and a chord bearing South13°43'38" East, 136.31 feet; thence South 03°51'30" East along said west right-of-way line, 291.12 feet to thenortheast corner of C.S.M. #126; thence South 86°08'30" West along the north line of said C.S.M. #126, 355.95feet; thence South 35°51'30" East along said C.S.M. #126, 347.85 feet; thence South 50°51'30" East along saidC.S.M. #126, 100.00 feet; thence South 83°51'30" East along said C.S.M. #126, 100.00 feet to aforesaid westright-of-way line of 88th Avenue (CTH H); thence South 03°51'30" East along said west right-of-way line,379.86 feet; thence South 04°27'30" East along said west right-of-way line, 260.67 feet to the Point ofBeginning. Containing in all 766,686 square feet (17.6007 acres) of lands, more or less. All subject to easements and restrictions of record, if any. That I have made such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  I have made such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said I have made such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  have made such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said have made such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  made such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said made such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said such survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said survey, land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said land division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said division and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said and map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said map by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said by the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said the direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said direction of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said of PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said HOLDINGS, LLC, owner of said  LLC, owner of said LLC, owner of said  owner of said owner of said  of said of said  said said land. That such map is a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  such map is a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division such map is a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  map is a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division map is a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  is a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division is a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division a correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division correct representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division representation of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division of all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division  of the land surveyed and the land division of the land surveyed and the land division  the land surveyed and the land division the land surveyed and the land division  land surveyed and the land division land surveyed and the land division  surveyed and the land division surveyed and the land division  and the land division and the land division  the land division the land division  land division land division  division division thereof made. That I have fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  I have fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the I have fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  have fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the have fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the complied with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the  of Chapter 236.34 of the of Chapter 236.34 of the  Chapter 236.34 of the Chapter 236.34 of the  236.34 of the 236.34 of the  of the of the  the the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and  Statutes and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and Statutes and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and  and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and  the Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and  Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and Village of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and  of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and of Pleasant Prairie Land Division and  Pleasant Prairie Land Division and Pleasant Prairie Land Division and  Prairie Land Division and Prairie Land Division and  Land Division and Land Division and  Division and Division and  and and Development Control Ordinance in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping  Control Ordinance in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping Control Ordinance in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping  Ordinance in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping Ordinance in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping  in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping  surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping  dividing, dedicating and mapping dividing, dedicating and mapping  dedicating and mapping dedicating and mapping  and mapping and mapping  mapping mapping the same. DATED THIS 12TH DAY OF MARCH, 2019 ___________________________________ Craig W. Riley, R.L.S. Registered Land Surveyor, S-2264                                

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264



PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER'S CERTIFICATE  PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC, as owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the  HOLDINGS, LLC, as owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the HOLDINGS, LLC, as owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the  LLC, as owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the LLC, as owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the  as owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the as owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the  owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the owner, does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the  does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the does hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the  hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the hereby certify that said company caused the land described in the  certify that said company caused the land described in the certify that said company caused the land described in the  that said company caused the land described in the that said company caused the land described in the  said company caused the land described in the said company caused the land described in the  company caused the land described in the company caused the land described in the  caused the land described in the caused the land described in the  the land described in the the land described in the  land described in the land described in the  described in the described in the  in the in the  the the foregoing affidavit of Craig W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  affidavit of Craig W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this affidavit of Craig W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  of Craig W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this of Craig W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  Craig W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this Craig W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this W. Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this Riley, to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this to be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this be surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this surveyed, divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this  dedicated and mapped as represented on this dedicated and mapped as represented on this  and mapped as represented on this and mapped as represented on this  mapped as represented on this mapped as represented on this  as represented on this as represented on this  represented on this represented on this  on this on this  this this map, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  accordance with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant accordance with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant with the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant the provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant provisions of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant the Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant Wisconsin Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  Statutes and the Village of Pleasant Statutes and the Village of Pleasant  and the Village of Pleasant and the Village of Pleasant  the Village of Pleasant the Village of Pleasant  Village of Pleasant Village of Pleasant  of Pleasant of Pleasant  Pleasant Pleasant Prairie Land Division and Development Control Ordinance in surveying, dividing, dedicating and mapping. PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC _________________________________(sign)       _____________(date) _________________________________(print) _________________________________(title) _________________________________(sign)       _____________(date) _________________________________(print) _________________________________(title) State of ______________  )                                            )  SS ______________ County  ) Personally came before me this _______ day of __________, 2018, the above named ____________________, ___________________, and ___________________, ____________________, of the above named company, to me known to be such _________________ and __________________ of said company, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument as such officers as the deed of said corporation by its authority. ______________________________ Notary Public, ______________ County, _______ My Commission Expires ______________ VILLAGE PLAN COMMISSION APPROVAL This Certified Survey Map is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  Certified Survey Map is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on Certified Survey Map is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  Survey Map is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on Survey Map is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  Map is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on Map is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on is hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on hereby approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on by the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on the Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on Commission of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  the Village of Pleasant Prairie on the Village of Pleasant Prairie on  Village of Pleasant Prairie on Village of Pleasant Prairie on  of Pleasant Prairie on of Pleasant Prairie on  Pleasant Prairie on Pleasant Prairie on  Prairie on Prairie on  on on this ______ day of _____________, 2019. ________________________________________ MICHAEL J. SERPE Chairman of Village Plan Commission VILLAGE BOARD APPROVAL    Resolved that this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,   Resolved that this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Resolved that this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, Resolved that this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  that this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, that this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, this Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, Certified Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, Survey Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, Map, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, a Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, Redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  of Certified Survey Map No. 2852, of Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Certified Survey Map No. 2852, Certified Survey Map No. 2852,  Survey Map No. 2852, Survey Map No. 2852,  Map No. 2852, Map No. 2852,  No. 2852, No. 2852,  2852, 2852, located in the Southeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  in the Southeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of in the Southeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  the Southeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of the Southeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  Southeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Southeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Northeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of 1/4 of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  1 North, Range 22 East, Village of 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of  North, Range 22 East, Village of North, Range 22 East, Village of  Range 22 East, Village of Range 22 East, Village of  22 East, Village of 22 East, Village of  East, Village of East, Village of  Village of Village of  of of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan  Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan  Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan  County, Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan County, Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan  Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan Wisconsin, and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan  and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan and its road dedication having been approved by the Plan  its road dedication having been approved by the Plan its road dedication having been approved by the Plan  road dedication having been approved by the Plan road dedication having been approved by the Plan  dedication having been approved by the Plan dedication having been approved by the Plan  having been approved by the Plan having been approved by the Plan  been approved by the Plan been approved by the Plan  approved by the Plan approved by the Plan  by the Plan by the Plan  the Plan the Plan  Plan Plan Commission being the same, is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  being the same, is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village being the same, is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  the same, is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village the same, is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  same, is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village same, is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village is hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village hereby approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village approved and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village and accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village accepted by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  the Village Board of Trustees of the Village the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  Village Board of Trustees of the Village Village Board of Trustees of the Village  Board of Trustees of the Village Board of Trustees of the Village  of Trustees of the Village of Trustees of the Village  Trustees of the Village Trustees of the Village  of the Village of the Village  the Village the Village  Village Village of Pleasant Prairie, on this _______ day of ______________,2019. ________________________________________ JOHN P. STEINBRINK Village President ATTEST: _______________________________________ JANE C. SNELL Village Clerk 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 14 OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2019 THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W. RILEY, S-2264

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. __________

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILWAUKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S-2264









PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC
EAST DEVELOPMEMT

SITE GRADING, PONDS & ROADWAYS
9201 WILMOT ROAD

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
KENOSHA COUNTY, WI

HORIZONTAL DATUM IS BASED ON THE

WISCONSIN STATE PLANE COORDINATE

SYSTEM GRID, SOUTH ZONE (NAD-27),

AND ALL BEARINGS ARE REFERRED

TO GRID NORTH. VERTICAL DATUM IS NGVD 29.

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T 

- P
H

A
S

E
 2

1
DWG 1 OF 21 DWGS

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY: AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



2
0
'

5

1

0

'

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

(

9

2

0

1

 

W

i

l

m

o

t

 

R

d

)

L

I

M

I

T

E

D

 

M

A

N

U

F

A

C

T

U

R

I

N

G

 

Z

O

N

I

N

G

W

A

R

E

H

O

U

S

I

N

G

/

D

I

S

T

R

I

B

U

T

I

O

N

120'0' 60'

R/W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

PHASE 1 - POND AND SITE

EXCAVATION FOR LOT 1 & 3

(ESTIMATED TIME = 3-4 WEEKS)

PHASE 2 - ROADWAY & STORM

SEWER

(ESTIMATED TIME = 6-8 WEEKS)

PHASE 3 - LOT 2 SITE DEVELOPMENT.

WORK BY SEPARATE CONTRACT

(ESTIMATED TIME = 16-18 WEEKS)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
H

A
S

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 2

3
DWG 3 OF 21 DWGS

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

BERM

FOUNTAIN

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED BY WDNR

PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

B

E

R

M

B

E

R

M

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



1

5

0

'

PLEASANT PRAIRIE

FIRE STATION

LOT 1 OF CSM 2852

1

2

5

'

NOTE:

ALL STORM WATER REQ'T

WILL ROUTE TO PROP. LOT 1

IN POND NEAR ROUNDABOUT

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

 

(

W

I

T

H

F

O

U

N

T

A

I

N

 

-

 

M

I

N

.

 

O

F

 

1

 

P

U

M

P

)

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

 

(

W

I

T

H

F

O

U

N

T

A

I

N

 

-

 

M

I

N

.

 

O

F

 

1

 

P

U

M

P

)

0

+

0

0

1

+

0

0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

5

+

1

5

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

6

+

0

0

7

+

0

0

8

+

0

0

9

+

0

0

9

+

6

7

2

2

.

5

2

2

.

5

1

6

16

3

0

3

0

2

0

'

2
0
'

3

0

.
0

3
0
.
0

5

0

.
0

5

0

.

0

1

7

.

5

2

7

.

5

2

7

.

5

2
7
.5

20'

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

B

E

R

M

5

1

0

'

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

B

E

R

M

(

9

2

0

1

 

W

i

l

m

o

t

 

R

d

)

L

I

M

I

T

E

D

 

M

A

N

U

F

A

C

T

U

R

I

N

G

 

Z

O

N

I

N

G

W

A

R

E

H

O

U

S

I

N

G

/

D

I

S

T

R

I

B

U

T

I

O

N

TOTAL =

11,760 SF

8

0

'

1

4

7

'

2

9

0

'

1

5

0

'

TOTAL =

127,000 SF

3

1

5

'

4

0

3

'

TOTAL =

43,500 SF

3

0

'

3

0

'

F.F. = 734.50

F.F. = 730.50

F.F. = 735.50

3

0

'

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

SIGN

AREA

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

(

9

2

0

1

 

W

i

l

m

o

t

 

R

d

)

L

I

M

I

T

E

D

 

M

A

N

U

F

A

C

T

U

R

I

N

G

 

Z

O

N

I

N

G

W

A

R

E

H

O

U

S

I

N

G

/

D

I

S

T

R

I

B

U

T

I

O

N

LOT 2 GREEN SPACE:

TOTAL LOT (MINUS EASEMENTS) = 236,877 SF

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS = 147,800 SF (62.4%)

FUTURE:

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS = 176,000 SF (74.3%)

LOT 1 GREEN SPACE:

TOTAL LOT (MINUS EASEMENTS) = 163,235 SF

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS = 77,325 SF 47.4%)

LOT 1 GREEN SPACE:

TOTAL LOT (MINUS EASEMENTS) = 314,550 SF

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS = 167,510 SF 53.3%)

WETLANDS

(PROPOSED TO BE FILLED)

120'0' 60'

1

1

9

.

5

'

4

0

'

1

2

0

'

4

5

'

72.2'

2

5

'

7

1

.

5

'

1
2
8
'

4
2
'

33'

2

2

'

98'

WETLANDS

(PROPOSED TO BE FILLED)

DELINEATED BY THOMPSON & ASSOCIATES

WETLAND SERVICES, LLC ON 6-25-18

DELINEATED BY THOMPSON & ASSOCIATES

WETLAND SERVICES, LLC ON 6-25-18

D

E

L

I

N

E

A

T

E

D

 

B

Y

 

T

H

O

M

P

S

O

N

 

&

 

A

S

S

O

C

I

A

T

E

S

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

S

E

R

V

I

C

E

S

,

 

L

L

C

 

O

N

 

6

-

2

5

-

1

8

DELINEATED BY THOMPSON & ASSOCIATES

WETLAND SERVICES, LLC ON 6-25-18

1

4

0

'

1

3

2

'

PROPOSED 30-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

4

0

'

4

0

'

PERMANENT

EASEMENT LINES

(TYP)

PROPOSED ROADWAYS, 33'

B.O.C. to B.O.C. (WILL

FOLLOW VILLAGE MINOR

STREET SECTION UNDER

VOPP STANDARDS)

PERMANENT

EASEMENT LINE

(TYP)

PERMANENT

EASEMENT

LINE

R/W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

PROPOSED 30-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

PROPOSED 18-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

WE ENERGIES

POWER LINES

(FUTURE RELOCATE)

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

4

0

'

WORK IN R.O.W. FOR

CTH H WILL REQUIRE

KENOSHA COUNTY

DPW PERMIT

WORK IN R.O.W. FOR

CTH H WILL REQUIRE

KENOSHA COUNTY

DPW PERMIT

TREE

REMOVAL

TYP.

36-INCH RCP

15-INCH RCP

15-INCH CMP

10-OPEN GRATE

TO CMP

15-INCH CMP

12-INCH CMP PIPE WILL

BE REPLACED WITH A

15-INCH CMP UNDER

RECONFIGURED DRIVE

15-INCH CMP

30-INCH CMP

24-INCH RCP

NOTE: NOT DISPLAYING ALL

CONTOURS ON THIS DRAWING

AS IT IS JUST TO SHOW

PROPOSED POND AND BERMS

(2) LOADING

DOCKS

(10-12) LOADING

DOCKS

PUMPER PAD

PUMPER PAD

(PER VOPP FIRE DEP'T, THIS

MAY BE AN OPTION FOR

BOTH SITES)

PROPOSED 18-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

SNOW

STORAGE

AREAS

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

MONUMENT SIGN

LOCATION (15'

FROM R.O.W.)

MONUMENT SIGN

LOCATION (15' FROM R.O.W.)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 M
A

S
TE

R
 P

LA
N

4
DWG 4 OF 21 DWGS

POND WILL DISCHARGE THROUGH AN OUTLET

STRUCTURE AND A 15-INCH RCP INTO EXISTING

DITCH UNDER THE PROPOSED ACCESS DRIVE

POND WILL DISCHARGE THROUGH AN OUTLET

STRUCTURE AND A 15-INCH RCP INTO EXISTING

DITCH & THRU THE EXISTING 36-INCH PIPE

3

0

'

FIRE PROTECTION NOTE:

THIS PLAN ONLY SHOWS CONCEPTUAL FIRE PROTECTION

ELEMENTS. AS PLANS PROGRESS, EACH INDIVIDUAL SITE

WILL REQUIRE DETAILED FIRE PROTECTION CONSISTENT

WITH THE STAFF MEMORANDUM FROM CHIEF CRAIG

ROEPKE HIGHLIGHTING EVERYTHING REQUIRING

ATTENTION.

EACH SITE WILL REQUIRE ITS OWN REVIEW AND WILL

HAVE SITE DESIGN BY A FIRE PROTECTION CONSULTANT.

PROPOSED

SIDEWALK

W/BARRIER CURB

EDGE

4

7

'

1

8

'

3

1

.

5

SAN

C.O.

SAN

C.O.

SAN

C.O.

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

TREE PROTECTION

FOUNTAIN

STORM WATER

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



7
3
3

734

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
3

7

2

9

7
2
9

734

736

734

732

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

7

7

3

6

7
3
5

7

3

4
7

3

5

7
3
4

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

5

7
3
5

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
1

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

1

7
3
2

7
3
3

7
3
4

7
3
5

7
3
0

7

2

8

7

2

7

7

2

5

7
2
8

7
2
9

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7
3
3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

1

R20.0'

R20.0'

20'

142.6'30.0'142.5'

3
0

.
5

'

45'

L2A CB3

24'' INLET

RIM = 733.79

IE=725.42 S

IE=725.32 NE

L2B CB2

24'' INLET

RIM = 732.64

IE=730.00 NW

L2B CB1

24'' INLET

RIM = 732.33

IE=728.50 SE

IE=727.00 NW

L2A CB6

24'' INLET

RIM=731.51

IE=727.03 SE

IE=726.93 NW

L2A CB8

24'' INLET

RIM=731.50

IE=729.00 NW

L2A CB7

24'' INLET

RIM=731.50

IE=728.00 SE

IE=728.00 NW

L2A CB5

24'' INLET

RIM = 731.01

IE=726.04 SE

IE=725.94 N

OS MH4

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM=729.02

IE=722.90 SW

IE=722.70 NE

L2A CB2

24'' INLET

RIM = 731.95

IE=724.09 SW

IE=723.99 NE

L2A CB1

48'' INLET

RIM = 729.96

IE=723.20 SW

IE=725.00 SE

IE=723.10 NE

72' OF 30" RCP @ 1.25%

113' OF 12" PVC @ 0.89%

132' OF 15" PVC @ 0.67%

78' OF 15" PVC @ 0.67%

184' OF 15" PVC @ 0.67%

118' OF 18" PVC @ 0.67%

69' OF 24" RCP @ 0.29%

75' OF 15" RCP @ 2.69%

104' OF 12" PVC @ 1.44%

132' OF 12" PVC @ 0.74%

5
.
6
%

0

.

5

%

7
.
5
%

71.5'

104' OF 30" RCP @ 1.25%

OSA MH2

60" MH

RIM=728.00

IE=720.15 W

IE=720.05 NE

OSA MH1

60" MH

RIM=725.18

IE=718.75 SW

IE=718.64 NE

136' OF 30" RCP @ 1.95%

20'

0

.

5

%

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

5
DWG 5 OF 21 DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

80'0' 40'

9.0'

1
8
.
0
'

1
0
.
0
'

115.0' 18.5'15.9'

3
1
.
5
'

1

6

'

PARKING LOT DETAIL

LOT 2 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

40'0' 20'

S
TO

R
A

G
E

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

- P
H

A
S

E
 2

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

D

.

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

S
IG

N

A
R

E
A

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C
.T

.H
. 
"H

"  
 8

8
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C
.T

.H
. 
"H

"  
 8

8
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

L

I

M

I

T

E

D

 

M

A

N

U

F

A

C

T

U

R

I

N

G

 

Z

O

N

I

N

G

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

W

A

R

E

H

O

U

S

I

N

G

/

D

I

S

T

R

I

B

U

T

I

O

N

C
.T

.H
. 
"H

" 
  
8
8
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C
.T

.H
. 
"H

" 
  
8
8
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

0

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

729

7

3

1

7

3

1

7

3

1

7

2

5

7
2
4

7
2
6

727

7
2
8

7

2

8

7
2
8

729

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

2

7

3

3

7
3
4

7

3

6

7

3

6

7
3
6

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

7

7

3

8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7

3

5

7
3
1

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

5

7
3
2

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

2

7
3
3

7
3
4

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

3

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

2

9

7

3

1

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

   
   
   
   
   
DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

36-INCH RCP

15-INCH RCP

15-INCH CMP

10-OPEN GRATE

TO CMP

15-INCH CMP

12-INCH CMP

15-INCH CMP

30-INCH CMP

24-INCH RCP

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
IT

E
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 2

6
DWG 6 OF 21 DWGS

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



7

3

0

7

3

5

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7
2
7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

8

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

729

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
3

7

3

4

7
3
5

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

2

0

7

2

0

7

2

5

7
1
9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7
2
6

7
2

7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

4

1

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

2

6

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

2

7

3

2

7
2
6

7

2

5

7

2

4

7
3
5

7
3
6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
3
5

7
3
0

7
3
2

731

7

3

3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
1
9

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

2

2

7
2
3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

709

715

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7
2
1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

1

7

1

9

7

1

7

7

1

6

7
1
8

7

1

8

719

7
2
9

7
2
8

7

2

6

7

2

4

7

2

3

721

721

7

1

5

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

7

7
3
1

732

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

2

8

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

SIGN

AREA

DWG 7 OF 21 DWGS

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

Lot 1 - Excavate pond will require all topsoil on site to be

stripped off since this site will require fill for development.

Total topsoil stripping = 17,300 SY. and if no development,

topsoil to remain = 15,100 SY. This means 2,200 SY to be

hauled off site.

The total excavation for Lot 1 = 10,600 CY (Cut, primarily

pond) & 9,500 CY (Fill, pond and site). This excavation

includes the topsoil quantity. The total cut = 1,100 CY.

Lot 3- Excavate pond a total topsoil stripping = 8,500 SY.

and if no development, topsoil to remain = 7,100 SY. This

means 1,400 SY to be hauled off site. Total topsoil to strip if

development occurs = 25,750 SY and total to be hauld off =

18,700 SY.

The total excavation for Lot 3 = Cut, 10,600 (pond & site) &

11,000 CY (Fill, pond and site). This excavation includes the

topsoil quantity. The total need = 600 CY.

Total Excess Lot 1 & 3 = 500 CY.

BERM

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

7

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 2

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

FF = 730.50

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

TREE REMOVAL

TYPICAL

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED BY WDNR

PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

WETLANDS TO BE FILLED

BY WDNR PERMIT #

EXE-SE-2018-30-02521

FOUNTAIN

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

58' OF 18" RCP @ 0.56%

IE=715.7 SW 18"

STR# P1

48" MH

N=211033.57

E=2561868.54

RIM=721.00

IE=716.00 NE

FIRE STATION

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7
2
8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

TEMPORARY

41' OF 24" RCP @ 1.23%

IE=729.5 NW 24"

IE=729.0 SE 24"

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

7

2

9

7
3
0

7

3

0

7

3

1

7
3
1

7
2
8

7

2

7

7

2

6

724

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

3

0

81 LF 15" RCP PIPE

IE=727.2 NE 15"

IE=726.4 SW 15"

7

1

5

7

1

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

2

8

7

0

9

7
1
6

7
2
0

7

2

1

718

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

2

9

7
2
9

7

2

8

7

2

7

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7
3
4

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

1

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

2

8

92' OF 15" RCP @ 3.24%

STR# (58)

15 RCP END SECTION

+55.6, 67.6' RT.

INV = 720.97

STR# (59)

15 RCP END SECTION

+69.2, 22.8' LT.

INV = 723.94

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

6

+

0

0

7

+

0

0

8

+

0

0

9

+

0

0

9

+

6

7

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

5

+

1

5

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

PROPOSED

PRIVATE ROADWAY

STORM SEWER NETWORK

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

NWL: 716

2 YEAR WL: 718.53

10 YEAR WL: 719.20

100 YEAR WL: 720.82

TOP OF BERM: 721.82

BOTTOM OF POND: 711

OUTLET

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 D
E

TE
N

TI
O

N
 P

O
N

D
(L

O
TS

 1
)

8
DWG 8 OF 21 DWGS

80'0' 40'

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

GRADING EAEMENT

FF = 734.50

FF = 730.50

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

FIRE STATION

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

4

IE=725.4 SW 15"

63' OF 15" RCP @ 1.00%

STR# P3

48" MH

N=210160.06

E=2561965.58

RIM = 731.00

IE=726.00 NE

TEMPORARY

41' OF 24" RCP @ 1.23%

IE=729.5 NW 24"

SIGN

AREA

7

2

9

7
3
0

7

3

1

7
3
1

724

7

2

8

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

2

9

7

3

2

7

3

1

7
3
5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7
3
3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

5

731

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

735

735

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

4

1

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

3

0

7

2

1

732

726

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

92' OF 15" RCP @ 3.24%

IE=725.4 SW 15"

STR# (58)

15 RCP END SECTION

+55.6, 67.6' RT.

INV = 720.97

STR# (59)

15 RCP END SECTION

+69.2, 22.8' LT.

INV = 723.94

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

1

+

0

0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

5

+

1

5

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

NWL: 726

2 YEAR WL: 728.05

10 YEAR WL: 728.96

100 YEAR WL: 730.31

TOP OF BERM: 732.00

BOTTOM OF POND: 721

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 D
E

TE
N

TI
O

N
 P

O
N

D
(L

O
T 

3)

10
DWG 10 OF 21 DWGS

80'0' 40'

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

9201 WILMOT WAREHOUSE

FIRE STATION

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7
2
8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

SIGN

AREA

7

2

9

7
3
0

7

3

0

7

3

1

7
3
1

7
2
8

7

2

7

7

2

6

724

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

8

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

2

9

7

3

2

7

3

1

7
3
5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7
3
3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

5

731

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

735

735

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

5

7

3

3
7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

4

1

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

3

0

7

2

1

732

726

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

1

5

7

1

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

2

8

7

0

9

7
1
6

7
2
0

7

2

1

718

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

2

9

7
2
9

7

2

8

7

2

7

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

2

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7
3
4

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

1

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

2

8

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

LOT 3

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

NWL: 716

2 YEAR WL: 718.65

10 YEAR WL: 719.21

100 YEAR WL: 720.82

TOP OF BERM: 721.82

BOTTOM OF POND: 711

LOT 2

LOT 1

SILT FENCE

DITCH CHECK

TURF REINFORCEMENT

MATTING, SEE POND

DETAILS

TURF REINFORCEMENT

MATTING, SEE POND

DETAILS

12
DWG 12 OF 21 DWGS

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

P
LA

N

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

FF = 730.50

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

TREE PROTECTION

TREE PROTECTION

TRACKING PAD

SEE DETAIL

INLET PROTECTION

SILT FENCE

DITCH CHECKS

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



7

3

0

7

3

5

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7
2
7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

8

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

729

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

0

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

2

0

7

2

0

7

2

5

7
1
9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7
2
6

7
2
7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

4

1

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

2

6

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

2

7

3

2

7
2
6

7

2

5

7

2

4

7
3
5

7
3
6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
3
5

7
3
0

7
3
2

731

7

3

3

732

7
3
2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
1
9

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

2

2

7
2
3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

709

715

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7
2
1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

1

7

1

9

7

1

7

7

1

6

7
1
8

7

1

8

719

7
2
9

7
2
8

7

2

6

7

2

4

7

2

3

721

721

7

1

5

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

7

7
3
1

732

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

2

8

S

I

G

N

A

R

E

A

SIGN

AREA

DWG 14 OF 21 DWGS

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
S

IT
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

, P
O

N
D

S
 &

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

BERM

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

FF = 735.50

FF = 734.50

14

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

P
LA

N

WETLANDS TO BE

FILLED

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

WETLANDS DO NOT

DISTURB

FF = 730.50

DESIGNED BY:   KKR
DRAWN BY:      AJT, AL, KKR
CHECKED BY:    KKR
DATE CHECKED:  2-11-19

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 
2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

EXISTING FIRE

STATION

4-INCHES TOPSOIL, SEED & EMAT

PFC, CLS, GD, RTD (MIXTURE)

SWO

ABM

RE

ABM

SWO

ABM

RE

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

ABM

RE

SWO

RE

RE

RE

SWO

RE

PFC

PFC

PFC

PFC

SL

SL

SL

SL

SL

SWO

FOUNTAIN

N
O

T 
FO

R
 

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N



LOT 1

LOT 2

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
973,109 SQ. FT. 22.3395 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED FOR STORM WATER DRAINAGE, RETENTION BASIN, ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK/PG:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-7946A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-*

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATE 12' WIDE WATER MAIN & INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 1364541(B)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOTS 1 AND 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N238 W1610 BUSSE ROAD,  SUITE 100  WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188 PHONE: (262)513-0666 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE 12' WIDE WATER MAIN AND INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT PER DOCUMENT NO. 1364541(B) TO BE VACATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST CORNER LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF TERMINUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING



EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK/PG:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-7946A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-*

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOTS 1 AND 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N238 W1610 BUSSE ROAD,  SUITE 100  WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188 PHONE: (262)513-0666 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION PART OF LOTS 1 AND 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, A 12' WIDE EASEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 136454(B) TO BE VACATED, THE CENTERLINE DESCRIBED AS; COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE N54°03'27"E ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINEOF WILMOT ROAD 54.06 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF A CENTERLINE TO BE DESCRIBED; THENCE S33°12'00"E 17.47 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY 149.25 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT WHOSECENTER IS TO THE WEST, WHOSE RADIUS IS 219.53 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS S08°35'52"E 146.39 FEET;THENCE SOUTHERLY 106.63 FEET ALONG AN ARC TO THE LEFT WHOSE CENTER LIES TO THE EAST, WHOSE RADIUS IS 207.18 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS S10°41'14"E 105.46 FEET; THENCE S36°07'37"E 476.09 FEET;THENCE S12°52'09"E 59.41 FEET; THENCE S26°24'45"E 134.29 FEET; THENCE S22°12'27"E 44.19 FEET; THENCETHENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 89.34 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE WHOSE CENTER LIES TO THE NORTHWEST, WHOSE RADIUS IS 59.08 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS S86°25'34"W 81.07 FEET TO A WESTERLY LINE OFSAID LOT 1, BEING THE POINT OF TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIPTION. CONTAINING 13,129 SQUARE FEET OR 0.3014 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATE 12' WIDE WATER MAIN & INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 1364541(B)



LOT 1

LOT 2

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
973,109 SQ. FT. 22.3395 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
129.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK/PG:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-7946A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-*

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATE 20' WIDE WATER MAIN & INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 1364541(A)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N238 W1610 BUSSE ROAD,  SUITE 100  WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188 PHONE: (262)513-0666 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE 20' WIDE WATER MAIN AND INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT PER DOCUMENT NO. 1364541(A) TO BE VACATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST CORNER LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF TERMINUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING



EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK/PG:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-7946A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-*

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATE 20' WIDE WATER MAIN & INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N238 W1610 BUSSE ROAD,  SUITE 100  WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188 PHONE: (262)513-0666 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, A 20' WIDE EASEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 136454(A) TO BE VACATED, THE CENTERLINE DESCRIBED AS; COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE S54°03'27"W ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINEOF WILMOT ROAD 59.53 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF A CENTERLINE TO BE DESCRIBED; THENCE S34°23'00"E 874.54 FEET; THENCE S55°37'00"W 119.04 FEET TO A WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 1, BEING THEPOINT OF TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIPTION. CONTAINING 19,872 SQUARE FEET OR 0.4562 ACRES



LOT 1

LOT 2

WILMOT ROAD

----
----

----
----

----
---

EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
973,109 SQ. FT. 22.3395 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
268,277 SQ. FT. 6.1588 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
129.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK/PG:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-7946A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-*

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATE 20' WIDE WATER MAIN & INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 523392

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N238 W1610 BUSSE ROAD,  SUITE 100  WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188 PHONE: (262)513-0666 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE 20' WIDE WATER MAIN AND INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT PER DOCUMENT NO. 523392 TO BE VACATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST CORNER LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF TERMINUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING



EXHIBIT

EASEMENT VACATE EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK/PG:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-7946A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-*

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATE 20' WIDE WATER MAIN & INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 523392

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N238 W1610 BUSSE ROAD,  SUITE 100  WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188 PHONE: (262)513-0666 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2852, BEING PART OF THE NE 1/4, NW 1/4, SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T 1 N, R 22 E, VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, A 20' WIDE EASEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 523392 TO BE VACATED, THE CENTERLINE DESCRIBED AS; COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE S54°03'27"W ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINEOF WILMOT ROAD 810.6 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF A CENTERLINE TO BE DESCRIBED; THENCE S36°05'27"E 772.23 FEET; THENCE S31°38'39"E 102.54 FEET; THENCE S55°57'47"W 115.88 FEET TO AWESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 1, BEING THE POINT OF TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIPTION. CONTAINING 19,872 SQUARE FEET OR 0.4562 ACRES



!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

#*

#*
#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*
#*

#* #*

#*

?
?

?

?

?

?

?
?

? ?

??

??

?

?

?

?

??

10899

10928

10882
4434 10881

4467 
4445 

10825

10859

10953

10930

10920

10830

4411 

4439 
4451 4499 

4517 

4549 

4600 

4550 

4500 
4424 

11097

11137

11179

11281

11203

4404 

11254

11218

11186

11152

11124

11080

4370 

4360 

4350 

10856

10840
10837

10927

11315

11303

11127

11107

11029

11009

10820

I1 inch = 150 feet

0 300150 Feet

S
A

N
S

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

SANITARY SEWER
EXTENSION

WATER MAIN
EXTENSION

47
T

H
 A

V
E

113TH
 ST

47TH AVE SEWER AND WATER EXTENSION
SCHEDULE A

WATER MAIN NORTH
PROJECT LIMIT

WATER MAIN SOUTH
PROJECT LIMIT





RESOLUTION #19-05 

 

PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE  

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICE POWERS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE 47TH AVENUE WATER MAIN AND SANITARY SEWER 

EXTENSION IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE.  

 

 RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 

Wisconsin: 

  

1. The Governing Body hereby declares its intention to levy special assessments 

pursuant to Section 66.0703, Wis. Stats., upon property described in Schedule A 

hereto for special benefits conferred upon such property with the construction of the 

47th Avenue Water Main and Sanitary Sewer Extension in the Village of Pleasant 

Prairie.  The project generally consists of : 1) 12-inch water main and appurtenances 

along 47th Avenue beginning approximately 175-feet north of 113th Street  and 

extending north approximately 860-feet  and 2) 8-inch sanitary sewer along 47th 

Avenue beginning at 113th Street and extending north approximately 400-feet.  

 

 2. The Governing Body hereby determines that the construction of such improvements 

are in the best interest of and for the health and welfare of the Municipality and the 

property affected by the improvement and constitutes an exercise of the police power. 

 

 3. The assessment against any parcel may be paid in cash or in ten equal, annual 

installments. 

  

4. The Clerk shall cause to be prepared a report which shall consist of: 

 

A. Preliminary plans and specifications for the improvements. 

 

B. An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed improvements. 

 

C. A schedule of proposed assessments. 

 

 5. When the report is completed, the Clerk shall make a copy of the report available for 

public inspection 

 

 6. Upon completion of the report, the Clerk shall cause notice to be given stating the 

nature of the proposed improvement, the general boundary lines of the proposed 

assessment district, the time and place at which the report may be inspected, and the 



time and place of the public hearing on the matters contained in the preliminary 

resolution and report.  This notice shall be published as a Class 1 Notice and a copy 

shall be mailed, at least ten days before the hearing, to every interested party. 

 

7. The hearing shall be held at the regular meeting place of the Governing Body at a 

time set by the Clerk in accordance with Section 66.0703(7(a)), Wis. Stats. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 18th day of March, 2019. 

 

       VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

 

_________________________________          

John P. Steinbrink, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jane C. Snell, Clerk 

 

 

Posted: 

 



 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.925.6709  FAX 262.694.4734 

Office of the Village Finance 

Director/Treasurer 

Kathleen Goessl 

TO:  Village Board 

 

FROM: Kathy Goessl, Finance Director 

  Laura DeLaRosa, Financial Project Manager 

   

Cc:  Nathan Thiel, Village Administrator 

 

DATE:  March 18, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: 2019/2020 Liability and Property Insurance Proposals  

 

This is the 1st year of a new three-year bid cycle for insurance.  Therefore, we requested proposals from all 

interested companies.  Three companies submitted proposals for all lines of coverage this year.  Premiums for 

each of the companies are as follows: 

 League of WI Municipalities/MPIC $635,600 

 Community Insurance & Travelers $656,500 

 EMC     $854,908 

 

Last year’s premium was $565,043 through League of WI Municipalities for liability coverage and property/ 

workers compensation coverage via Travelers Insurance.  There is a $219,308 spread between this year’s high 

bidder, EMC; and the low bidder, League of WI Municipalities. These premiums do not include a deduction 

for dividends that are not guaranteed.  We estimated the League of WI Municipalities dividend at 10% and it 

is on all lines and based on experience and longevity.  Community Insurance is offering a flat 10% dividend 

with a loss sensitive slide on the worker’s compensation line only.  For specific details, refer to the attached 

premium comparison spreadsheet.   

 

The proposed premium from the League of WI municipalities had an increase of $70,557 or 12% from last 

year (see attached premium comparison).  Worker’s compensation accounted for the majority of the increase, 

$62,777. The worker compensation increase is due to an increase in experience mod from .82 to 1.02.   The 

liability coverage increased only $4,955 due to the increase in value of vehicles added to the policy and 

additional officers hired. 

 

My recommendation is the League of WI Municipalities liability coverage including workers compensation, 

Municipal Property Insurance Company (MPIC) for property including contractors’ equipment, boiler and 

machinery and Hanover for crime.  Our agency will be R & R Insurance Services for all coverages.  Overall 

based on this recommendation, our premium increase would be $70,557 or 12%.  The Village, RecPlex, and 

Utilities have a 2019 expense budget of $617,288 for all insurance coverage, and a dividend budget of $18,000 

netting to $599,288.  Our recommendation net estimate is $578,944, which is under budget. 

 



Lines of Coverage Premium Carrier Premium Coverage Deductible Carrier Premium Coverage Deductible Carrier Premium Coverage Deductible Carrier

Automobile Liability 20,163        League 20,306   5,000,000     1,000           League Included Below 5,000       CIC 128,779       2,000,000     1,000        EMC

General Liability 57,712        League 57,712   5,000,000     1,000           League 137,201      5,000,000          5,000       CIC 114,431       2,000,000     1,000        EMC

Law Enforcement Liability 14,019        League 16,081   5,000,000     1,000           League -              Included Above 5,000       CIC 20,458         2,000,000     2,500        EMC

Public Officials Liability 30,322        League 30,322   5,000,000     1,000           League -              Included Above 5,000       CIC 27,540         2,000,000     1,000        EMC

Automobile Physical Damage 42,357        League 45,107   1,000           League 49,277        1,000       CIC 41,994 2,000,000     1,000        EMC

Umbrella/Excess Liability 54,314         3,000,000     

164,573      169,528 186,478      387,516       

Property 54,836        Travelers 53,968   113,695,348 25,000         MPIC 57,222        114,573,627      25,000     Travelers 47,573         113,695,348 25,000      EMC

Contractors Equipment 10,230        Travelers 7,942     4,136,680     1,000           MPIC 11,281        4,752,108          1,000       Travelers 10,752         5,973,446     1,000        EMC

Boiler & machinery -              5,230     113,695,348 25,000         MPIC -              Included In Property Travelers 5,960           113,695,348 1,000        Liberty

Commercial Crime 1,149          Travelers 1,900     100,000        1,000           Hanover 1,149          100,000             1,000       Travelers 1,048           100,000        1,000        EMC

66,215        69,040   69,652        65,333         

Workers Compensation 334,255      Travelers 397,032 League 400,370      CIC 402,059       1.02 Experience Mod EMC

Total Before Dividends 565,043      635,600 656,500      854,908       

Less: Estimated Dividend (25,154)       League

(33,481)       Travelers (56,656)  On all League's policies (40,037)       On Worker's Compensation (100,515)      

Net Estimated 506,408      578,944 616,463      754,393       

Village of Pleasant Prairie
Property & liability Insurance Program

Premium Comparison

April 1, 2020

2019/2020

EMCLeague League of WI Municipalities

2019/20202018/2019 2019/2020

Community Insurance & Travelers



   
 

8600 Green Bay Road • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-2709 • Phone 262.925.6765 • Fax 262.694.2941 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 

 

Office of the Director of Public Works 
John Steinbrink Jr., P.E. 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Village  Board of Trustees 

From: John Steinbrink, Jr., P.E., Director of Public Works 

Subject: The Cottages at Village Green Phase 2 Letter of Credit Reduction Request No. 1 

Date: March 11, 2019 

 

The Village has conducted a review of the Letter of Credit Reduction for Public Improvements at the Cottages 
at Village Green and recommends approval of reduction in the subdivision letter of credit based on review of 
project progress and the following considerations: 

 Current posted security 

 Work Completed to date and conformance to plans and specifications 

 Field visits by Village of Pleasant Prairie Staff, Inspection reports/Engineer’s report, if applicable 

 Estimated costs of work remaining 
 
Village Construction Inspection staff have reviewed the request and based on inspection of the site and the 
construction observation reports, I am recommending reduction as follows to the letter of credit: 

Letter of Credit Balance as of March 8, 2019 $2,176,863.26 

Estimated Balance to Complete Project $1,669,067.92 

Retainage of Public Improvement $22,385.67 

Value of LOC to hold $1,975,392.28 

Letter of Credit Reduction Recommended $201,470.99 

 

 
 
Based on the review of the criteria, the proposed improvements meet the requirements of the Village and a 
letter of credit reduction request is warranted and recommended.   

 



COTTAGES PHASE 2 3/11/2019 Worksheet Summary

Letter of Credit Reduction Worksheet ORIGINAL Letter of Credit (LOC) Amount $2,176,863.26

Pleasant Prairie, WI                                    Total LOC reduction $201,470.99

CURRENT LOC BALANCE AFTER THIS REDUCTION $1,975,392.28

Developer's Requested Reduction Amount $223,856.65

Total Payout to developer this application 201,470.99$                 

Total Retainage held this application (22,385.67)$                  

Draw Date 3/11/2019
Responsible Party Construction Item STATUS Original Cost 

Estimate
#1 #2                  #3                            #4                            

Construction    TO-DATE BALANCE of LOC 

held

Reesman's Exc&Gr Sanitary Sewer Partial Reduction $146,350.00 $100,555.50 $100,555.50 $45,794.50 

Reesman's Exc&Gr Watermain Partial Reduction $319,033.00 $17,160.00 $17,160.00 $301,873.00 

Reesman's Exc&Gr Storm Sewer No Reduction Requested $287,315.00 $0.00 $287,315.00 

Reesman's Exc&Gr Public Grading/Roadway Partial Reduction $915,564.41 $100,250.00 $100,250.00 $815,314.41 

Village DPW Sanitary Sewer & Storm Cleaning and Televising Estimate No Reduction Requested $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 

Village DPW Street signage - Village of Pleasant Prairie No Reduction Requested $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 

Village/CM Dept. Village Inspections No Reduction Requested $133,460.99 $0.00 $133,460.99 

NMB staking/layout/survey NMB Construction staking,layout,survey Partial Reduction $49,800.00 $5,891.15 $5,891.15 $43,908.85 

WeEnergies Street lights No Reduction Requested $4,437.14 $0.00 $4,437.14 

Breezy Hill Street Trees No Reduction Requested $22,964.03 $0.00 $22,964.03 

Construction Cost Estimate $1,892,924.57 

Contingency 15% No Reduction Requested $283,938.69 $0.00 $0.00 $283,938.69 

TOTAL $2,176,863.26 $223,856.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $223,856.65 $1,953,006.61 

DISBURSEMENT/REDUCTION #1 #2                  #3                            #4                            Disbursements  TO-DATE BALANCE of LOC 

held

TOTAL $2,176,863.26 $223,856.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $223,856.65 $1,953,006.61 

RETENTION (to be held until warranty expires) 10%  $           (22,385.67)  $                       -    $                         -    $                            -    $                                                                         (22,385.67) $22,385.67 

Disbursment amount $201,470.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $201,470.99 $1,975,392.28 

Change Orders (SUPPLEMENT)

Net dispersment after change orders $2,176,863.26 $201,470.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $201,470.99 $1,975,392.28 



Estimate of Probable Costs - Letter of Credit (LOC) Reduction Worksheet SUMMARY
Project No.: 17-06 LOC CASH

Submittal Date: 3/11/2019 PRIOR SECURITY REQUIREMENT: 2,176,863.26$                   2,176,863.26$             

Project Name: The Cottages at Village Green Phase 2 Revised Security Balance Requirement: -$                                   

Owner: The Cottages at Village Green, LLC Approved LOC Reduction Amount: 2,176,863.26$                   

Item: Public Improvements

Letter of Credit #: Acceptance/Dedication of Improvements (YES/NO): NO ("YES" = 10% ON COMPLETED WORK)

Village Board Approval Date:

**COMPLETE SHADED CELLS ONLY Warranty Period: N/A (1 yr. from prev.)

Initial date Required % CURRENT "CONTINGENCY" TO HOLD 3/11/19

3/7/19 115.00% RET/CONT. 15% 10%

No. Item Qty. Units Unit Price Project Est. Letter of Credit (Initial) LOC 1 QTY LOC 2 QTY % Compl. Remaining work (Value)

Work Completed 

(Value)

Revised LOC Balance 

Requirement

SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION

4" PVC Sanitary Lateral w/Granular Backfill 260 LF 117.00$              30,420.00$                    34,983.00$                    266.50 103% (760.50)$                            31,180.50$                   2,243.48$                          

6" PVC Sanitary Lateral w/Granular Backfill 40 LF 121.00$              4,840.00$                      5,566.00$                       0.00 0% 4,840.00$                          -$                              5,566.00$                          

4" Vertical Rise Constructed on existing main 31 VF 725.00$              22,475.00$                    25,846.25$                    31.00 100% -$                                   22,475.00$                   2,247.50$                          

Sanitary riser to be adjusted 8 EA 6,700.00$           53,600.00$                    61,640.00$                    7.00 88% 6,700.00$                          46,900.00$                   12,395.00$                        

Sanitary manhole to be adjusted 9 EA 1,100.00$           9,900.00$                      11,385.00$                    0.00 0% 9,900.00$                          -$                              11,385.00$                        

Sanitary manhole to be reconstructed 5 EA 5,023.00$           25,115.00$                    28,882.25$                    0.00 0% 25,115.00$                        -$                              28,882.25$                        

146,350.00$                  168,302.50$                  45,794.50$                        100,555.50$                62,719.23$                        

WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION

8" WM w/Granular Backfill 1656 LF 78.00$                129,168.00$                  148,543.20$                  220.00 13% 112,008.00$                      17,160.00$                   130,525.20$                      

8" WM w/Slurry Backfill 100 LF 132.00$              13,200.00$                    15,180.00$                    0.00 0% 13,200.00$                        -$                              15,180.00$                        

8" Gate Valves 6 EA 1,950.00$           11,700.00$                    13,455.00$                    0.00 0% 11,700.00$                        -$                              13,455.00$                        

Hydrants 5 EA 5,481.00$           27,405.00$                    31,515.75$                    0.00 0% 27,405.00$                        -$                              31,515.75$                        

6" Hydrant lead w/granular backfill 71 LF 97.00$                6,887.00$                      7,920.05$                       0.00 0% 6,887.00$                          -$                              7,920.05$                          

6" Gate Valves 5 EA 1,322.00$           6,610.00$                      7,601.50$                       0.00 0% 6,610.00$                          -$                              7,601.50$                          

1-1/2" Water lateral Single (28ea) 1129 LF 82.00$                92,578.00$                    106,464.70$                  0.00 0% 92,578.00$                        -$                              106,464.70$                      

1-1/2" Water lateral Double (6ea) 195 LF 127.00$              24,765.00$                    28,479.75$                    0.00 0% 24,765.00$                        -$                              28,479.75$                        

Temp air release hydrant 1 EA 6,720.00$           6,720.00$                      7,728.00$                       0.00 0% 6,720.00$                          -$                              7,728.00$                          

312,313.00$                  359,159.95$                  301,873.00$                      17,160.00$                   348,869.95$                      

STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION

60" Diameter Storm Manholes 3 EA 4,957.00$           14,871.00$                    17,101.65$                    0.00 0% 14,871.00$                        -$                              17,101.65$                        

48" Diameter Storm Manholes 7 EA 3,628.00$           25,396.00$                    29,205.40$                    0.00 0% 25,396.00$                        -$                              29,205.40$                        

24" x 30" Rectangular Catch Basins 10 EA 2,713.00$           27,130.00$                    31,199.50$                    0.00 0% 27,130.00$                        -$                              31,199.50$                        

Standard Beehive Catch Basins 2 EA 2,752.00$           5,504.00$                      6,329.60$                       0.00 0% 5,504.00$                          -$                              6,329.60$                          

24" RCP Class III, w/Granular Backfill 443 LF 134.00$              59,362.00$                    68,266.30$                    0.00 0% 59,362.00$                        -$                              68,266.30$                        

15" RCP Class IV, w/Granular Backfill 1078 LF 82.00$                88,396.00$                    101,655.40$                  0.00 0% 88,396.00$                        -$                              101,655.40$                      

12" RCP Class V, w/Granular Backfill 154 LF 61.00$                9,394.00$                      10,803.10$                    0.00 0% 9,394.00$                          -$                              10,803.10$                        

15" HDPE, w/Spoil Backfill 302 LF 45.00$                13,590.00$                    15,628.50$                    0.00 0% 13,590.00$                        -$                              15,628.50$                        

15" RCP Endwall Outlet w/Grate 1 EA 1,178.00$           1,178.00$                      1,354.70$                       0.00 0% 1,178.00$                          -$                              1,354.70$                          

15" HDPE Endwall Outlet w/Grate 1 EA 650.00$              650.00$                         747.50$                          0.00 0% 650.00$                             -$                              747.50$                             

4" Sump pump lateral (41ea) 980 LF 41.00$                40,180.00$                    46,207.00$                    0.00 0% 40,180.00$                        -$                              46,207.00$                        

4" perforated DPE/ Wrapped underdrain 160 LF 10.40$                1,664.00$                      1,913.60$                       0.00 0% 1,664.00$                          -$                              1,913.60$                          

287,315.00$                  330,412.25$                  287,315.00$                      -$                              330,412.25$                      

SITEWORK CONSTRUCTION

35 Mobilization 1 LS 68,700.00$         68,700.00$                    79,005.00$                    1.00 100% -$                                   68,700.00$                   6,870.00$                          

36 Tracking Pad 160 TN 33.00$                5,280.00$                      6,072.00$                       160.00 100% -$                                   5,280.00$                     528.00$                             

37 Grade & Compact Basement Spoil 1 LS 6,100.00$           6,100.00$                      7,015.00$                       0.00 0% 6,100.00$                          -$                              7,015.00$                          

38 Subgrade Prep 1 LS 69,540.00$         69,540.00$                    79,971.00$                    0.00 0% 69,540.00$                        -$                              79,971.00$                        

Haul off excess spoil 9200 CY 10.00$                92,000.00$                    105,800.00$                  2500.00 27% 67,000.00$                        25,000.00$                   

Silt Fence & Backfill Curb 4075 LF 6.10$                  24,857.50$                    28,586.13$                    0.00 0% 24,857.50$                        -$                              

39 Erosion Mat Class I - Type A 5105 SY 1.88$                  9,597.40$                      11,037.01$                    0.00 0% 9,597.40$                          -$                              11,037.01$                        

Temp Seeding (2lbs/1000sf) 1 LS 7,800.00$           7,800.00$                      8,970.00$                       0.00 0% 7,800.00$                          -$                              

Inlet Protection 28 EA 127.00$              3,556.00$                      4,089.40$                       10.00 36% 2,286.00$                          1,270.00$                     

40 Salvaged Topsoil 4" 5105 SY 1.45$                  7,402.25$                      8,512.59$                       0.00 0% 7,402.25$                          -$                              8,512.59$                          

Excavation Below Subgrade 400 CY 27.30$                10,920.00$                    12,558.00$                    0.00 0% 10,920.00$                        -$                              

Granular for EBS 400 CY 60.62$                24,248.00$                    27,885.20$                    0.00 0% 24,248.00$                        -$                              

Geotextile Fabric - Type SAS for EBS 130 SY 3.38$                  439.40$                         505.31$                          0.00 0% 439.40$                             -$                              

1-1/4" Aggrgate Base Course 3580 TN 28.60$                102,388.00$                  117,746.20$                  0.00 0% 102,388.00$                      -$                              

Asphalt patch on 98th Street 156 SY 40.40$                6,302.40$                      7,247.76$                       0.00 0% 6,302.40$                          -$                              

1-3/4" Asphalt Concrete Pavement 585 TN 99.06$                57,950.10$                    66,642.62$                    0.00 0% 57,950.10$                        -$                              

7" Concrete Pavement 5800 SY 33.00$                191,400.00$                  220,110.00$                  0.00 0% 191,400.00$                      -$                              

5" Concrete Sidewalk & Base Course 1900 SY 56.94$                108,186.00$                  124,413.90$                  0.00 0% 108,186.00$                      -$                              

41 6" Concrete Sidewalk & Base Course 979 SY 63.64$                62,303.56$                    71,649.09$                    0.00 0% 62,303.56$                        -$                              71,649.09$                        

42 30" Type D Concrete Curb &  Gutter 3520 LF 15.15$                53,328.00$                    61,327.20$                    0.00 0% 53,328.00$                        -$                              61,327.20$                        

43 Detectable Warning Field 60 SF 54.43$                3,265.80$                      3,755.67$                       0.00 0% 3,265.80$                          -$                              3,755.67$                          

915,564.41$                  1,052,899.08$               815,314.41$                      100,250.00$                250,665.56$                      

217,965.50$                

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE

Sanitary Sewer & Storm Cleaning and Televising Cost Estimate 10,000.00 EA 1.00$                  10,000.00$                    11,500.00$                    0.00 0% 10,000.00$                        -$                              11,500.00$                        

Street Signage Estimate 4,000.00 EA 1.00$                  4,000.00$                      4,600.00$                       0.00 0% 4,000.00$                          -$                              4,600.00$                          

VILLAGE PUBLIC WORKS/NIELSEN MADSEN BARBER SC

Village Inspection and Construction Services Estimate 133,460.99 EA 1.00$                  133,460.99$                  153,480.14$                  0.00 0% 133,460.99$                      -$                              153,480.14$                      

Nielsen Madsen Barber Eng./Surv. 49,800.00 EA 1.00$                  49,800.00$                    57,270.00$                    5891.15 12% 43,908.85$                        5,891.15$                     51,084.29$                        

WE ENERGIES

Public Street Lighting Charges for 1 Street Lights 8 21 2017 1.00 EA 4,437.14$           4,437.14$                      5,102.71$                       0.00 0% 4,437.14$                          -$                              5,102.71$                          

BREEZY HILL LANDSCAPING PUBLIC STREET TREES 22,964.03 EA 1.00$                  22,964.03$                    26,408.63$                    0.00 0% 22,964.03$                        -$                              26,408.63$                        

15% Contingency 283,938.69 EA 1.00$                  283,938.69$                  326,529.49$                  0.00 0% 283,938.69$                      -$                              326,529.49$                      























 
 
 
August 3, 2016 
 
 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Attn: Vesna Savic 
9915 39th Ave 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
 
Program: League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance 
Our Insured: Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Date of loss: 3/01/2019 
Our Claim # WM000301740241 
Claimant: Kenneth Kataja 
  11204 9th Ave. 
  Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  
 
 
Dear Ms. Savic, 
 
Statewide Services, Inc. administers the claims for the League of Wisconsin Municipalities 
Mutual Insurance which insures the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  We are in receipt of the  
claim submitted by Mr. Kataja for damage to his vehicle, allegedly caused by a piece of  
cardboard that flew out of a Village garbage truck near Highway H and Highway C. 
 
We have reviewed the matter and recommend that the Village of Pleasant Prairie deny 
this claim pursuant to the Wisconsin statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(lg). The 
disallowance will shorten the statute of limitations period to six (6) months.  
 
Our denial is based on the fact that the investigation revealed no negligence on behalf of 
the Village. As far as I’m aware, there is no proof that the cardboard in question came 
from the Village truck and that it caused the auto damage being claimed.  
 
Please submit the disallowance directly to the claimant at the above address.  The 
disallowance should be sent certified or registered mail and must be received by the 
claimant within 120 days after you receive Notice of Claim. Please send a copy of the 
disallowance to Statewide Services Inc. Claims. 
 
 
 



 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Sarah Bourgeois 
Claims Rep. I 
Statewide Services Inc. 
PO Box 5555 
Madison, WI 53705-0555 
608-828-5439 Phone 
800-854-1537 Fax 
sbourgeois@statewidesvcs.com 
 
 
CC:  Rick Kalscheuer 
 



 
 
 
March 11, 2019 
 
 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Attn: Vesna Savic 
9915 39th Ave 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
 
Program: League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance 
Our Insured: Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Date of loss: 1/28/2019 
Our Claim # WM000301740237 
Claimant: Doug Anderson 
  7935 Pershing Blvd. 
  Kenosha, WI 53142  
 
 
Dear Ms. Savic, 
 
Statewide Services, Inc. administers the claims for the League of Wisconsin Municipalities 
Mutual Insurance which insures the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  We are in receipt of the  
claim submitted by Mr. Anderson for damage to his vehicle, allegedly caused by a Village  
snow plow truck. 
 
We have reviewed the matter and recommend that the Village of Pleasant Prairie deny 
this claim pursuant to the Wisconsin statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(lg). The 
disallowance will shorten the statute of limitations period to six (6) months.  
 
Our denial is based on the fact that the investigation revealed no negligence on behalf of 
the Village. The Village snow plow drivers maintain that they did not strike the claimant 
vehicle and there are no known witnesses to the alleged incident. In addition, the damage 
to the claimant vehicle does not match up with Village snow plow trucks and blades.  
 
Please submit the disallowance directly to the claimant at the above address.  The 
disallowance should be sent certified or registered mail and must be received by the 
claimant within 120 days after you receive Notice of Claim. Please send a copy of the 
disallowance to Statewide Services Inc. Claims. 
 
 



 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Sarah Bourgeois 
Claims Rep. I 
Statewide Services Inc. 
PO Box 5555 
Madison, WI 53705-0555 
608-828-5439 Phone 
800-854-1537 Fax 
sbourgeois@statewidesvcs.com 
 
 
CC:  Rick Kalscheuer 
 



 

 

 

 

Date:     March 18, 2019 

 

To:          John Steinbrink, Sr, VOPP Board president 

                Nathan Thiel, VOPP Administrator 

From:    Brian Luburich, Operations Superintendent 

                Elizabeth Caruso, Guest Services & Membership Manager 

Re:         New RecPlex Membership Levels 

 

 

In Jan 2018, we conducted a membership survey. The most predominant message received was that our 

members would like to see some form of loyalty program put into place that rewards members based 

on the length of their respective memberships.  We extended our existing Loyalty program and are 

ready to launch for April of 2019.  

We also identified that our cancellation rate due to cost was increasing because of competition from 

new gyms opening in surrounding areas. We are not a gym, we are a family recreation center. We have 

so much more to offer so we created a new membership structure that will focus on our identity in the 

community as a family organization.  

Our new Membership Tiers are called Basic Individual, Basic Couple, Family I and Family II.  The changes 

to our structure will make the membership more user friendly for our members and staff, and ultimately 

allow families to purchase their membership online. Current members will not experience a rate 

increase and all discounts will remain the same.  

The timeline for implementing this structure requires administrative set‐up, system updates and training 

of staff. We are introducing the structure today and will return with our ordinance changes at a later 

Village Board meeting.  

 




	March 18, 2019 Agenda
	5. Village Board Minutes - February 18, 2019
	7A. Ord 19-07
	Ord 19-07
	Zoning Text Amendment Application
	Company Information

	7B & C. Vistas at Creekside
	VB Memo
	Application and Options
	Orginal Conceptual Applications and Partial Plans
	Addition Info Submitted
	Estimated Rent and Income Matrix
	The Vista at Creekside Fact Sheet

	Option 1
	Option 2
	Option 3
	Option 3a
	Option 4-Village draft based current zoning
	Option 4a-Developer draft

	2018-12-06 Eng Review.Concept Plan.r
	2019-01-11 CD Comments
	2019-01-15 Fire Department Comments
	Building Elevation Comments
	Declartion Comments
	Government Agency Contacts November 2018

	7D. Prairie Holdings Items
	VB memo-Prairie Holdings
	Draft First Amendment to the MOU
	2019-08-02 DNR-Wetland Exemption Letter
	2019-03-04 ACOE AJD
	2019-03-04 Eng Review Comments
	CSM Declarations and partial Plans
	2019-03-14 revised CSM
	2019-03-14 revised Declaration
	GRADING & ROADWAY PLANS
	EASEMENT VACATE Exhibits


	7E. 47th Avenue Water Main and Sewer Extension
	47th Avenue Water Main and Sewer Extension Map - Schedule A
	47th Avenue Water Main and Sewer Extension Notice to Residents dated March 1, 2019
	Resolution #19-05 47th Avenue Water Main and Sanitary Sewer Extension

	7F. Village Insurance Proposal
	Insurance Proposals 2019 Memo
	Premium Comparison 2019_2020

	7G. The Cottages (Phase 2)LOC Reduction No 1
	7H. 3-1-19 claim disallowance K Kataja
	7I. 1-28-19 claim disallowance - Doug Anderson
	7J. New RecPlex Membership Levels
	RecPlex Memo Agenda Item 3-18-19
	RecPex add



 
   
     
       
         U.S. Geological Survey
         20181116
         US Topo 7.5-minute map for Pleasant Prairie, WI
         map, raster digital data
         
           Rolla, MO and Denver, CO
           USGS - National Geospatial Technical Operations Center (NGTOC)
        
      
    
     
       Layered geospatial PDF 7.5 Minute Quadrangle Map. Layers of geospatial data include orthoimagery, roads, grids, geographic names,
        elevation contours, hydrography, and other selected map features. This map is derived from GIS (geospatial information system) data. It
        represents a repackaging of GIS data in traditional map form, not creation of new information. The geospatial data in this map are from
        selected National Map data holdings and other government sources.
       This map depicts geographic features on the surface of the earth. It is a general purpose map for users who are not GIS experts. One
        intended purpose is to support emergency response at all levels of government.
       GNIS Cell ID = 71262
    
     
       
         
           19550101
           20181011
        
      
       publication date
    
     
       Complete
       Irregular
    
     
       
         -87.875
         -88.0
         42.625
         42.5
      
    
     
       
         ISO 19115 Topic Category
         imageryBaseMapsEarthCover
         EarthCover
         Imagery and Base Maps
      
       
         None
         topographic
         transportation
         structures
         geographic names
         hydrography
         boundary
         Public Land Survey System
         woodland
         orthoimage
         contour
         U.S. National Grid
      
       
         The National Map Product Format Thesaurus
         Geospatial PDF
      
       
         Geographic Names Information System
         US
         Wisconsin
       Kenosha County
       
         None
       Pleasant Prairie, WI
    
     None
     This product may be freely copied, redistributed, and printed. Most content is derived from public domain data with no reuse
      constraints. The primary exceptions are the orthoimage layers for maps in Alaska and Hawaii, which are copyrighted and have some reuse
      restrictions; see the relevant data source sections (srcinfo tag) in this file. US Topo maps with dates 2010-2015 may contain commercial road
      data that is also copyrighted with use restrictions; see the credit note and metadata file for individual products. Even maps that contain
      copyrighted data may be freely used and redistributed, provided the appropriate copyright notices are retained; normal fair-use principles
      apply. Users should be aware that temporal changes may have occurred since these data were collected and some data may no longer represent
      actual surface conditions. Users should not use these data for critical applications without a full awareness of their limitations.
      Acknowledgment of the U.S. Geological Survey is appreciated for products derived from these data.
  
   
     
       Cartographic content is derived from USGS national geospatial databases. Most the data are owned and hosted by the USGS, but this does
        not preclude using data sources owned or hosted by other organizations, provided that these sources have been approved by the USGS data
        program.
    
     This product is a layered geospatial PDF file.
     Each PDF layer is derived from data extracted from USGS national geospatial databases. These data are intended to be cartographically
      complete at 1:24,000 scale.
     
       
         This US Topo map product is compiled to meet National Map Accuracy Standards (NMAS). NMAS horizontal accuracy requires that at least
          90 percent of well-defined points tested are within 0.02 inch of the true position. In this product, the projection line, grids, and
          orthoimage are believed to meet NMAS. Positional accuracy of the other data layers is less controllable because of diversity of data
          sources, and may not meet NMAS. However, other vector layers do generally register well with the orthoimage, which is evidence that the
          overall accuracy is close to meeting NMAS.
      
       
         Vertical accuracy report: US Topo contours are derived from the USGS 3D Elevation Program (3DEP) 1/3 arc-second DEM data. Accuracy
          of 3DEP is inherited from various sources. These data sources vary in vertical accuracy depending on time of collection, collection method,
          control accuracy and density, and local terrain relief. The overall absolute vertical accuracy of the 1/3 arcsecond DEM data, as tested
          against GPS control, is about 3 meters at 95% confidence level (National Standards for Spatial Data Accuracy). US Topo contours are derived
          from the DEMs to generally meet National Map Accuracy Standards (90% of well-defined points in reasonably level terrain test within one-half
          contour interval of the true ground elevation); however, actual vertical accuracies of individual US Topo quadrangles may not meet that
          standard. Quadrangles containing collar notes stating contours "May not meet National Map Accuracy Standards" are in areas where the source
          is known to be questionable for meeting NMAS for the stated contour interval.
      
    
     
       
				 
					 
						 U.S. Geological Survey, National Geospatial Technical Operations Center - National Elevation Dataset is a component of
							a comprehensive base geospatial data model.
						 20020401
						 Hypsography
						 Vector digital data
						 This contour featureclass was generated from the 1/3 arc-second version of the 3D Elevation Program. The intended
							viewing scale for these features is 1:24,000. The contours are derived from a filtered elevation raster to achieve
							smoother arcs. In some areas, the 3DEP data may be modified by the National Hydrography Dataset (NHD) flow lines and water
							bodies to facilitate improved integration between the hypsography and hydrography on USGS map products. These contours
							were generated primarily for use as a layer in GeoPDFs created in the digital mapping program. The raster data source of
							contours is the 3D Elevation Program 1/3 arc-second layer. Secondary datasets include the high resolution flow lines,
							water bodies, and areas from the National Hydrography Dataset (NHD). The NHD layers are used in hydro-enforcement of the
							DEM prior to contour generation. The goals of the hydro-enforcement are to prevent contour lines from extending over the
							surface of water bodies and to align the contour reentrants with the NHD single- line streams. The 3DEP raster cells are
							converted to points. Those points, along with the NHD flow lines are input into an interpolation tool to create a new
							surface. The NHD water bodies and areas are preprocessed to attach the minimum and maximum elevation to each polygon. From
							these precalculated values, an appropriate value is calculated by which to raise the elevation cells under the NHD
							polygons. The NHD polygons are then converted into rasters, which in turn will be used to generate a mosaic that includes
							the new raster surface. The mosaic is filtered to provide smoother contour lines. Contours are generated and depression
							and index contours are identified. There is no guarantee or warranty concerning the accuracy of the data. Users should be
							aware that temporal changes may have occurred since these data were collected and generated and that some parts of these
							data may no longer represent actual surface conditions. Hydro-enforcement and generalization can also significantly alter
							the spatial characteristics of the contours. Users should not use these data for critical applications without a full
							awareness of its limitations.
						 http://Hs.gov/
					
				
				 24000
				 digital data
				 
					 
						 
							 19981215
							 20031201
						
					
					 publication date
				
				 Hypsography
				 Contours
			
			 
				 
					 
						 U.S. Geological Survey
						 2016
						 Land Cover - Woodland
						 Vector digital data
						 The Woodland Tint is a derivative land cover product created using several national map layers: three National Land
							Cover Database (NLCD) 2011 raster layers (Tree Canopy, Imperviousness, and Land Cover); and two vector layers (National
							Hydrography Dataset and Transportation). The process begins with masking the NLCD 2011 Tree Canopy Data cartographic with
							NLCD 2011 Imperviousness (values from 1-100), and NLCD 2011 Land Cover (value 11 = Open Water). The resulting raster data
							with canopy values of 20 and greater are converted to woodland vector polygons and smoothed via the Paek Algorithm. The
							woodland polygons are masked with buffered Transportation (Roads, Airport Runways, and Railroads) and Hydrography (NHD
							Areas excluding Inundation Area and NHD Waterbodies excluding Swamp/Marsh). The resulting polygons are checked for scale
							appropriate size (minimum size of one acre), and the small woodland polygons as well as small clearings within the
							woodland polygons are deleted. For Hawaii and Puerto Rico, two National Land Cover Database (NLCD) raster layers (Tree
							Canopy 2011 and Imperviousness 2001): and two vector layers(National Hydrography Dataset and Transportation) are used. The
							resulting raster data is carried out as before to produce the polygon vector data. For Alaska, the Woodland Tint is a
							derivative land cover product created using five national map layers: one raster layer, National Land Cover Database
							(NLCD) 2011 (Land Cover); and four vector layers (National Hydrography Dataset, Transportation Roads, Transportation
							Airports and Transportation Railroads). The process begins with combining three NLCD 2011 Land Cover V1 Classes (41 -
							Deciduous Forest, 42 - Evergreen Forest, and 43 - Mixed Forest). The resulting raster data was converted to woodland
							vector polygons, and smoothed via the Paek Algorithm. The woodland polygons are masked with buffered Transportation
							(Roads, Airport Runways, and Railroads) and Hydrography (NHD Areas excluding Inundation Areas and NHD Waterbodies
							excluding Swamp/Marsh). The resulting polygons are checked for scale appropriate size (minimum size of one acre), and the
							small woodland polygons as well as small clearings within the woodland polygons are deleted.
						 http://nationalmap.gov
						 https://www.mrlc.gov/nlcd2011.php
					
				
				 24000
				 digital data
				 
					 
						 
							 20010101
							 20110101
						
					
					 publication date
				
				 Land Cover - Woodland
				 National Landcover Dataset; National Hydrography Dataset; National Transportation Dataset
			
			 
				 
					 
						 U.S. Geological Survey in cooperation with U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, USDA Forest Service, and other
							Federal, State and local partners. National Hydrography Dataset is a component of a comprehensive base geospatial data
							model.
						 20100820
						 Hydrography
						 vector digital data
						 The National Hydrography Dataset (NHD) is a feature-based database that interconnects and uniquely identifies the
							stream segments or reaches that make up the nation's surface water drainage system. The high-resolution NHD was originally
							created using 1:24,000-scale data. State and Local Stewards are improving the data by incorporating local updates based on
							more current and more accurate source data. Water features in the real world are relatively dynamic and the differences at
							the time of data collection mean that water features may not register exactly to other layers. The hydrographic feature
							names contained in and displayed by the NHD are extracted and validated from the Geographic Names Information System
							(GNIS). Spatial objects may be filtered or generalized to achieve a 1:24,000-scale representation.
						 http://nhd.usgs.gov/
						 http://nhd.usgs.gov/gnis.html
						 http://nhdgeo.usgs.gov/metadata/nhd_high.htm
					
				
				 24000
				 digital data
				 
					 
						 
							 20020827
							 20180920
						
					
					 publication date
				
				 Hydrography
				 Hydrography features and feature names
			
			 
				 
					 
						 Federal Railroads Administration
						 2011
						 Transportation, Railroads
						 Vector digital data
						 Railroad are acquired annually from the FRA. Rail lines and sidings are converted into the National Transportation
							Dataset. The rail lines layer represents the freight lines of the nation's railroad system. The data set covers all 50
							states and the District of Columbia, as well as territories and possessions of the United States. No rail lines exist in
							American Samoa, Guam, Northern Mariana Islands, and the Virgin Islands of the US.
					
				
				 24000
				 digital data
				 
					 
						 
							 20180525
							 20180525
						
					
					 publication date
				
				 Federal Railroads Administration
				 Main track centerlines
			
			 
				 
					 
						 Federal Aviation Administration
						 2012
						 Airports
						 Vector digital data
						 Airport points and runway polygons are for Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)-recognized public and private
							airports in the United States. FAA airports and runway shapefiles are used to the update the existing airports and runways
							in the National Transportation Dataset. Digital data were inspected for attribute accuracy, spatial accuracy, and
							completeness.
						 http://www.faa.gov
					
				
				 24000
				 digital data
				 
					 
						 
							 20170802
							 20180605
						
					
					 publication date
				
				 Transportation - Airports
				 runways
			
			 
				 
					 
						 U.S. Census Bureau, Geography Division
						 2014
						 Transportation, Census Roads
						 vector digital data
						 Dataset source is Census Bureau MAF/TIGER database extracts in the form of TIGER/Line Shapefiles. The TIGER/Line
							shapefiles and related database files are an extract of selected geographic and cartographic information from the U.S.
							Census Bureau's Master Address File/Topologically Integrated Geographic Encoding and Referencing (MAF/TIGER) Database
							(MTDB). The MTDB represents a seamless national file with no overlaps or gaps between parts, however, each TIGER/Line
							shapefile is designed to stand alone as an independent dataset, or they can be combined to cover the entire nation. The
							U.S. Geological Survey filters Census roads to remove short road segments which are less than 500 feet in length, are not
							named and are classified as local roads. The USGS National Transportation Dataset functional road classification system is
							applied to the Census datasets. The original TIGER/Line Shapefile products are not copyrighted however TIGER/Line and
							Census TIGER are registered trademarks of the U.S. Census Bureau. The horizontal spatial accuracy information present in
							the TIGER/Line shapefiles is provided for the purposes of statistical analysis and census operations only and the data may
							not be suitable for high-precision measurement applications. Full metadata for TIGER/Line shapefiles is available from
							U.S. Census Bureau
						 http://www.census.gov/geo/maps-data/data/tiger.html
					
				
				 24000
				 digital data
				 
					 
						 
							 20150813
							 20181011
						
					
					 publication date
				
				 Roads - Census
				 Road centerlines, route numbers, road classification, street names
			
			 
				 
					 
						 Alaska Railroad Corporation
						 2012
						 Transportation, Railroads
						 Vector digital data
						 This record applies to Alaska data only. Railroad data is provided by the Alaska Railroad Corporation, and may not
							include other owner's rail features. Unpublished data provided directly to USGS. Current as of 2012. For more information,
							contact Alaska Railroad Corporation, 327 W. Ship Creek Ave., Anchorage, AK. 99501, phone 907-265-3100, or
							emailgrunwaldm@akrrr.com
						 
					
				
				 25000
				 digital data
				 
					 
						 
							 20180525
							 20180525
						
					
					 publication date
				
				 Railroads - Alaska Railroad Corporation
				 Main track centerlines
			
			 
         
           
             U.S. Census Bureau
             20140401
             State and Equivalent Boundary
             vector digital data
             The Census Bureau collects boundaries from state and county governments through the Boundary and Annexation Survey, and
              publishes the results as TIGER files. The USGS uses the TIGER data without editing or alteration.
             http://www.census.gov/geo/maps-data/data/tiger.html
          
        
         digital data
         
           
             
               20170928
               20170928
            
          
           publication date
        
         State Boundaries
         State and Equivalent Boundary
      
       
         
           
             U.S. Census Bureau
             2014
             County and Equivalent Boundary
             vector digital data
             The Census Bureau collects boundaries from state and county governments through the Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS), and
              publishes the results as TIGER files. The USGS uses the TIGER data without editing or alteration for US Topo.
             http://www.census.gov/geo/maps-data/data/tiger.html
          
        
         digital data
         
           
             
               20160601
               20170501
            
          
           publication date
        
         County Boundaries
         County and Equivalent Boundary
      
       
         
           
             U.S. Dept. of Interior, Bureau of Land Management, Division of Support Services, Branch of Information Resource
              Management
             2012
             Public Land Survey System
             vector digital data
             The PLSS information is for general reference purposes only, and should not be used to determine legal boundaries or land
              ownership. The Bureau of Land Management (BLM) is the authoritative source for PLSS information at the federal level, and the US Topo
              representation is derived from BLM GIS data files called Cadastral National Spatial Data Infrastructure or CadNSDI. The management of
              these data is not completely uniform throughout the country. Although this metadata record is included with all maps, PLSS is currently
              shown on US Topo Maps for only a few states. PLSS will be added to US Topo maps in more states in coming years as BLM authorized CadNSDI
              format is made available. The three layers USGS stores from PLSS are the Township, First Division and Special Surveys. Metadata for BLM
              PLSS data is at http://www.geocommunicator.gov/GeoComm/metadata/index.htm#PLSS, though this URL may change in the near future. Alternate
              sources of PLSS data will continued to be served mainly in western states where BLM is the data steward or the data is from a trusted
              source. Notes on individual states follow,----Alaska PLSS consists of protracted (computed, not surveyed) data only. For more
              information see http://sdms.ak.blm.gov/sdms/data_protracted_grid_gis.html----Ohio was the original PLSS state in the early 1800s, and
              the land network there is unusually complex. The source data include four first-division parcel types. These are all shown on US Topo
              maps, and are labeled according to BLM's attribution, with a leading letter followed by either a number or more letters. The meanings of
              the leading letters are S=Section, F=Fractional Section, L=Lot, Q=Quarter Township.
             https://sdms.ak.blm.gov/sdms/
             https://navigator.blm.gov/home
          
        
         24000
         digital data
         
           
             
               20170228
               20180305
            
          
           publication date
        
         Public Land Survey System - BLM
         Townships and ranges, sections
      
       
         
           
             Federal land management agencies
             2018
             Points of Interest
             vector digital data
             Includes campgrounds, trailheads, visitor centers, picnic areas, Ranger stations and federal land management agency
              headquarters. Point data was provided by various federal agencies, such as NPS, US Forest Service, BLM, US FWS. This data is subject to
              change at any time.
             http://nationalmap.usgs.gov
          
        
         24000
         digital data
         
           
             
               2016
               2018
            
          
           ground condition
        
         Structures - various
         Geographic features and feature names
      
       
         
           
             State and Federal Partners, updates from USGS' The National Map Corps volunteers 
             20120101
             Fire Stations
             Vector digital data
             Any location where fire fighters are stationed or based out of, or where equipment that such personnel use in carrying out their
              jobs is stored for ready use. Fire Departments which are Mobile Units and not having a permanent location, are included, in which case
              their location has been depicted at the city/town hall or at the center of their service area if a city/town hall does not exist. This
              dataset includes those locations primarily engaged in forest or grasslands fire fighting, including fire lookout towers if the towers
              are in current use for fire protection purposes. This dataset includes both private and governmental entities. Locations that serve only
              administrative function are excluded. Locations serving both administrative and operational functions are included.
             http://nationalmap.usgs.gov
          
        
         24000
         None
         
           
             
               20160727
               20160727
            
          
           ground condition
        
         Structures - Fire Stations
         Geographic features and feature names
      
       
         
           
              State and Federal Partners, updates from USGS' The National Map Corps volunteers
             20150203
             Law Enforcement
             Vector digital data
             Included are locations where sworn officers of a law enforcement agency are regularly based or stationed. This dataset includes
              local police, county sheriff's offices, state police or highway patrol locations. Most federal law enforcement agency locations are not
              included.
             http://nationalmap.usgs.gov
          
        
         24000
         None
         
           
             
               20160727
               20160727
            
          
           ground condition
        
         Structures - Law Enforcement
          Geographic features and feature names
      
       
         
           
              State and Federal Partners, updates from USGS' The National Map Corps volunteers
             20150203
             Prisons/Correctional Facility
             Vector digital data
             Includes both private and government medium and high security prisons and correctional institutions. Low and minimum security
              institutions such as local jails, prison camps, correctional farms or work farms, detention and treatment centers are generally
              excluded.
             http://nationalmap.usgs.gov
          
        
         24000
         None
         
           
             
               20160727
               20160727
            
          
           ground condition
        
         Structures - Prisons/Correctional Facility
          Geographic features and feature names
      
       
         
           
             State and Federal Partners, updates from USGS' The National Map Corps volunteers 
             20080101
             Schools
             Vector digital data
             The schools within this dataset are composed of Public elementary and secondary education in the US as defined and tracked by
              the National Center for Education Statistics (NCES), Common Core Dataset (CCD). Private schools in this dataset are composed of Private
              elementary and secondary education in the US as defined by the Private School Survey, NCES. The colleges and Universities are composed
              of postsecondary education facilities as defined by the Integrated Post Secondary Education System (IPEDS), NCES. Included are Doctoral
              and Research Universities, Masters Colleges and Universities, Baccalaureate Colleges, Associates Colleges, Theological seminaries,
              Medical schools and other health care professions, schools of engineering and technology, business and management, art, music, design,
              Law schools, Teachers colleges, Tribal colleges and other specialized institutions. Changes to base school data may occur through the
              USGS’ The National Map Corps Volunteer Geographic Information project.
             http://nationalmap.usgs.gov
          
        
         24000
         None
         
           
             
               20080101
               20080101
            
          
           ground condition
        
         Structures - Schools
         Geographic features and feature names
      
       
         
           
             State and Federal Partners, updates from USGS' The National Map Corps volunteers 
             20110101
             Hospitals
             Vector digital data
             Includes general medical and surgical hospitals, psychiatric, substance abuse and specialty hospitals such as Children's
              hospitals, cancer, maternity and rehabilitation hospitals. Other types of hospitals are included if represented in data sets provided by
              various partners for this compilation. Hospitals operated by the US Department of Veterans Affairs are included. Nursing homes, long
              term care facilities and Urgent Care facilities are generally excluded. Locations that are administrative offices only are excluded from
              the dataset.
             http://nationalmap.usgs.gov
          
        
         24000
         None
         
           
             
               20160727
               20160727
            
          
           ground condition
        
         Structures - Hospitals
         Geographic features and feature names
      
       
         
           
             For the conterminous 48 states - National Agriculture Image Program (NAIP) administered by the Aerial Photography Field Office
              (APFO) for the United States Department of Agriculture.
             Publication Date
             Orthoimagery - CONUS
             Raster digital data or Digital Orthorectified Image or NAIP Digital Ortho Photo Image or Raster digital data or Digital
              Orthorectified Image
             An orthorectified image is a layer in every product and is provided by the USDA-FSA-APFO from the National Agriculture Image
              Program (NAIP) in the conterminous US. This offers the USGS a consistent image product for the conterminous 48 states, normally with a
              one meter resolution in natural color, though resolution varies by collection date, and higher-res source data may be downsampled to 1
              or 1.5 meter resolution for US Topo maps. The NAIP image in this product is public domain with no reuse constraints.
             https://www.fsa.usda.gov/programs-and-services/aerial-photography/imagery-programs/naip-imagery/
          
        
         24000
         digital data
         
           
             
               20170922
               20171128
            
          
           publication date
        
         Imagery
         Image
      
       
         
           
             U.S. Geological Survey
             Publication Date
             Cemeteries
             Vector digital data
             The Geographic Names Information System (GNIS) is the Federal and national standard for geographic nomenclature. The U.S.
              Geological Survey developed the GNIS in support of the U.S. Board on Geographic Names as the official repository of domestic geographic
              names data, the official vehicle for geographic names use by all departments of the Federal Government, and the source for applying
              geographic names to Federal electronic and printed products. Cemeteries are one feature from the GNIS data base. Cemetery data are
              currently maintained in part with crowdsourcing methods by the USGS National Map Corps project
             https://nationalmap.gov/TheNationalMapCorps/
             http://geonames.usgs.gov/
          
        
         24000
         digital data
         
           
             
               19800829
               20180723
            
          
           publication date
        
         Structures - Cemeteries
         Geographic features and feature names
      
       
         
           
             U.S. Geological Survey
             Publication Date
             Geographic Names Information System (GNIS)
             Vector digital data
             The Geographic Names Information System (GNIS) is the Federal and national standard for geographic nomenclature. The U.S.
              Geological Survey developed the GNIS in support of the U.S. Board on Geographic Names as the official repository of domestic geographic
              names data, the official vehicle for geographic names use by all departments of the Federal Government, and the source for applying
              geographic names to Federal electronic and printed products.
             http://geonames.usgs.gov/
          
        
         24000
         digital data
         
           
             
               19800829
               20180723
            
          
           publication date
        
         Geographic Names
         Geographic feature names
      
       
         
           
             U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
             Publication Date
             Wetlands - Emergent and Forest/Shrub
             vector digital data
             This data set represents the extent, approximate location and type of wetlands and deepwater habitats in the United States and
              its Territories. While the Fish and Wildlife Service produces a variety of wetland categories, only two (Emergent and Forest/Shrub
              wetlands as defined by Cowardin et al. (1979)) are included on US Topo Maps.The emergent wetlands depicted do not include lakes, rivers,
              open water ponds, deepwater marine and estuarine features or non-vegetated, farmed, intermittent and temporarily flooded wetlands. The
              goal is to provide a visual depiction of the approximate location and extent of Emergent and Forest/Shrub wetlands. Digital wetlands
              data are intended for use with base maps and digital aerial photography at a scale of 1:12,000 or smaller. Due to the scale, the primary
              intended use is for data display on the US Topo Maps. This data display is not intended for analysis. The map products were neither
              designed or intended to represent legal or regulatory products. Questions or comments regarding the interpretation or classification of
              wetlands can be addressed by visiting http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/FAQs.html These data were developed in conjunction with the
              publication Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe. 1979. Classification of Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the United
              States. U.S. Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, DC. FWS/OBS-79/31. For more information on the wetland
              classification codes visit http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Wetland-Codes.html. Note that coastline delineations were drawn to follow
              the extent of wetland features as described by this project and may not match the coastline shown in other base maps.
             http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/
             http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/FAQs.html
             http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Wetland-Codes.html
          
        
         digital data
         
           
             
               20100101
               20100101
            
          
           publication date
        
         Wetlands - Emergent and Forest/Shrub
         Spatial information
      
       
         
           
             U.S. Geological Survey
             Publication Date
             Shaded Relief
             raster digital data
             The Shaded relief is a derivative elevation product created from the USGS 3D Elevation Program (3DEP) 1/3 arc-second DEM data.
              First there are five separate shaded relief datasets created from the original data. Each shaded relief has different azimuths and
              altitude values as follows: 00 450, 1350 600, 2700 450, 3150 450, 450 450. These five datasets are then combined into one feature class
              using map algebra to compute the raster layers using the following equation shadedrelief1 + shadedrelief2 + shadedrelief3 +
              (shadedrelief4 x 2) + shaded relief5 \ 6. This equation gives double importance to the 3150 azimuth and 450 elevation.
          
        
         24000
         digital data
         
           
             
               19550101
               19550101
            
          
           publication date
        
         Shaded Relief
         3D Elevation Program
      
       
         
           
             U.S. Geological Survey
             Publication Date
             Grids and Coordinate System
             Geographic Coordinate, U.S. National Grid, and UTM grid values are displayed along the map projection.
          
        
         24000
         raster data
         
           
             
               Publication Date
               Publication Date
            
          
           publication date
        
         Grids and Coordinate Systems
         U.S. National Grid, UTM grid.
      
       
         Grids and coordinate system annotation are computed for US Topo maps with Esri ArcGIS software.
         20181116
      
    
  
   
     Raster
  
   
     
       
         
           Universal Transverse Mercator
           
             16
             
               0.9996
               -86.999
               0.0
               500000
               0.0
            
          
        
         
           coordinate pair
           
             2
             2
          
           meters
        
      
       
         North American Datum of 1983
         Geodetic Reference System 80
         6378137
         298.2572221
      
    
     
       
         North American Vertical Datum of 1988
         3
         meters
         Explicit elevation coordinate included with horizontal coordinates
      
    
  
   
     
       This is a general-purpose design and layout quadrangle map based on the traditional USGS quadrangle cells. The domain is a standard
        7.5-minute cell. The scale is 1:24,000.
       National Geospatial Program US Topo Product Standard, 2011.
    
  
   
     20181116
     
       
         
           U.S. Geological Survey, National Geospatial Technical Operations Center
           Not Provided
        
         
           mailing and physical
           1400 Independence Road
           Rolla
           MO
           65401
        
         
           mailing and physical
           Box 25046 Denver Federal Center
           Lakewood
           CO
           80225
        
         1-888-ASK-USGS (1-888-275-8747)
         http://www.usgs.gov/ask/
         Monday through Friday 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM
         Metadata information can also be obtained through online services using The National Map Viewer, at http://nationalmap.gov or
          EarthExplorer, at http://earthexplorer.usgs.gov or Ask USGS at http://www.usgs.gov/ask.
      
    
     FGDC Content Standard for Digital Geospatial Metadata
     FGDC-STD-001-1998
  





US Department of the Interior
US Geological Survey


US Topo 
Map Symbols







What is a US Topo map?


A US Topo map is a digital topographic map that covers 7.5-minutes of longitude by 7.5-minutes of latitude and is produced at a scale of 
1:24,000. US Topo maps are freely distributable and are available for download on the Web from the USGS Store 
(https://store.usgs.gov) in Portable Document Format (PDF) with geospatial extensions. PDF maps can be viewed and printed with any 
conforming PDF software. Versions 9.x and later of Adobe® Reader® and Acrobat® software provide access to the geospatial function-
ality of the US Topo map. Adobe Reader is available for free at http://get.adobe.com/reader. More information about US Topo maps and 
their use is available at https://nationalmap.gov/ustopo.


The base data layer of a US Topo map is a recent orthographic aerial photograph. These orthoimages have been corrected to remove 
scale distortions that result from the varying terrain and deviations of the aircraft’s position from the true vertical. The maps include 
contours that show the shape of the Earth’s surface, hydrographic features such as lakes and rivers, roads, boundaries, and geograph-
ic names. Additional data from the geographic data themes of transportation, names, elevation, hydrography, boundaries, structures 
(such as fire stations) and land cover (such as woodland tint) is being added to the maps as they are updated, resulting in a product 
that will become progressively more robust over time. Feature data is incorporated from national Geographic Information System (GIS) 
databases under the stewardship of USGS data programs. The US Topo map is intended for conventional map users, not for advanced 
GIS analysis. However, most of the data sources used are in the public domain and may be downloaded for free from The National Map 
(TNM) (https://nationalmap.gov).


US Topo maps are revised on a three-year production cycle.


Symbols on US Topo Maps


The underlying orthoimage for each US Topo map shows those features on the Earth’s surface that are visible to the eye. Because each 
map is made at a scale of 1:24,000 (one inch on the map represents 24,000 inches or 2,000 feet  on the ground), selected features are also 
shown and emphasized by symbols, geographic names, and highway route numbers.


Map features may be represented as points, lines, or polygons. They incorporate different colors and patterns to distinguish between 
feature types and to show each feature’s importance. For example, a perennial stream is symbolized by a solid blue line while an 
intermittent stream is shown by a blue dashed and dotted line. A large reservoir is depicted by a polygon while a small reservoir may be 
shown by a point symbol if it is too small to show as a polygon.


Point symbols of different shapes and sizes depict features such as structures, dams, gates, rocks, waterfalls, and wells. Linear map 
symbols (lines) show such features as roads, rivers, boundaries, and contours. Color is used to show the class of information: topo-
graphic contours in brown, streams and rivers and other hydrographic features in blue, and roads in black and red. Areal features are 
outlined to depict the areal extent and may also be emphasized by a color tint. Names and labels are shown in different type fonts, 
sizes, and colors.


The unique feature of a topographic map is the contour. These lines do not exist on the Earth’s surface. They join points of equal eleva-
tion above a zero level surface (such as Mean Sea Level) and therefore show heights of the land and reveal the shape of the land 
surface. Heavier brown lines are index contours and are labeled with the elevation they represent. Closely spaced contours indicate a 
steep land slope; widely spaced contours show more level ground. The elevation difference between adjacent contours is the contour 
interval. A map of a relatively flat area may have a contour interval of 10 feet. In steep areas an interval of 100 feet or more may be 
used to avoid coalescence or convergence of the contour lines. The contour interval is always noted below the bar scale in the map 
marginalia.


The cartographic representation of roads has been updated from a characterization based on organizational maintenance (Interstates, 
US routes, State routes, etc.) to a functional classification defined as follows:


• Expressway1: A controlled access, divided arterial highway for through traffic.
• Secondary Highway1: Hard surface highways including secondary State routes, primary county routes, and other highways 


that connect principal cities and towns, and link these places with the primary highway system.
• Local Connector1: Hard surface roads not included in a higher class and improved, loose surface roads passable in all kinds 


of weather. These roads are adjuncts to the primary and secondary highway system and represent major arteries through 
populated places.


• Local Road1: Roads used primarily for local traffic.
• Four Wheel Drive Road1: Unimproved roads passable only with four wheel drive vehicles.


1 Federal Highway Administration Planning Glossary - http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/glossary/glossary_listing.cfm 28AUG2018ver7.2







28AUG2018ver7.2


TRANSPORTATION


£830


¬«470


Road Shields


§̈¦25Interstate Route


US Route


State Route


Airport Runway
Airport Features


Railroad
Railroad Features


Road Features


Ferry


4WD


Local Road


Local Connector


Ramp


Secondary Hwy


Expressway


Tunnel


Trail


PLSS 


Township/Range T 34 N R 79 W


Section 1  — 363636


Township/Range (protracted) T 34 N R 79 W


Section (protracted) 1  — 363636


Land Grants


Rock  X


Spring E'


Well


HYDROGRAPHY 


Levee


Area of Complex Channels


)~ ) ~~~ ~ )~ ) ~~~
~ ~ )~ )~~
~


~


~~


)~ ) ~~~ ~) ~ )~ ) ~~~
~ ~ ~


) )~ ~~


Gate |


Dam |


Inundation Area


Swimming Pool


Gaging Station (


Earthen Dam


Nonearthen Dam


Perennial Lake


Lock Chamber/Spillway


Rapids =


Reservoir


Waterfall


Perennial Stream


Intermittent Stream


Submerged Stream


Nonearthen Reservoir


Intermittent Lake


STRUCTURES


Oil/Gas Pipeline* 


State Capitol


Trailhead F


Campground 9


School (K-12) n


Fire Station F


Hospital H


Police ^


Prison ^


Post Office &PO


@âTTrade/Technical School


T@ÞÞCollege/University


Visitor Center V


ª«240Forest Service Primary Route


Forest Service High Clearance Route


Forest Service Secondary Route 420


Cemetery "!


Cabin ÷6


Shelter —


Ranger Station @


!HQPark Headquarters







28AUG2018ver7.2


IMAGES


Orthoimage


BOUNDARIES


International


State or Territory


County or Equivalent


Forest Service


Jurisdictional Boundaries


Federal Administered Lands


National Park Service


Department of Defense


Bureau of Land Management* 


Fish and Wildlife Service 


AIANNH Area*


National Cemetery


 ABBREVATIONS


               
 


Note:  Symbols use transparent color. When these 
symbols overlap the colors blend. This alters their 
appearance from how they are represented in the map 
legend. 


• Hwy
• AIANNH


• 4WD


               


Highway
American Indian, Alaska Native, and Native 
Hawaiian Area
Four Wheel Drive


               


*Currently on Alaska US Topo maps only


HYDROGRAPHY – continued


Shaded Relief


TERRAIN 


Contour Features


Index


Intermediate


Supplemental


Depression Index


Depression Intermediate


Depression Supplemental


40004000


Shaded Relief


80008000


Coastline


Reef


Nonearthen Shore


Underground Conduit


Foreshore


Estuary


Ocean


""""""""""""""""""""""""""


Freshwater Emergent Wetland


Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland


Canal/Ditch


Underground Pipeline


Flume


Ice Mass


Pipeline


Tailings Pond


Tunnel


¼¼¼¼
¼¼¼¼


Settling Pond


Wash


Playa


¼¼
¼¼


¼
¼


LAND COVER


Woodland







